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DRUG TESTING OF FEDERAL EMPLOYEES 

TUESDAY, APRIL 7, 1987 

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES, 
SUBCOMMITTEE ON HUMAN RESOURCES, 

COMMITTEE ON POST OFFICE AND CIVIL SERVICE, 
Washington, DC. 

The subcommittee met, pursuant to call, at 9:30 a.m., in room 
311, Cannon House Office Building, Hon. Gerry Sikorski (chairman 
of the subcommittee) presiding. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. This is a hearing before the Subcommittee on 
Human Resources of the Committee on Post Office and Civil Serv~ 
ice. 

Under Rule 10 of the House, this subcommittee is charged with 
the responsibility to examine and oversee the deployment of the 
Federal human resources generally and specifically, among other 
things, rights of privacy for Federal employees. 

Today the subcommittee will examine the current status of the 
Administration's efforts to implement Executive Order 12564 man­
dating the establishment of an agency program to drug test Feder­
al employees and the development of employee assistance programs 
(EAP's). 

This is the first Congressional hearing on the Office of Personnel 
Management's drug testing regulations issued in November 1986 
and the Health and Human Services scientific and technical guide­
lines issued in February of this year. 

Together these regulations and guidelines comprise the procedur­
al and legal structure through which the Administration plans to 
drug test the Federal work force. 

I commend the Administration's objective of purging our society 
of drug abuse. It destroys careers and families and lives. It costs 
society billions of dollars in lost productivity and undermines our 
basic values as a society. 

And that's why we are all concerned about drug abuse. 
For ten years of public life I have been an advocate of stricter 

enforcement of existing drug laws, greater support for enforcement 
agencies, increased drug education awareness programs, and in­
creased support for rehabilitation ar~d employee assistance pro­
grams. 

But I am troubled by the Administration's insistence on the 
urine testing of Federal employees as the crucial starting point for 
a modern crusade to rid our country of the evils of drugs. 

Considering the older nature of the Federal work force, the regu­
lations we have before us today smack of a quick fix. 

(1) 
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Last summer, we had a big "Miami Vice" media deal on drugs. 
The first blockade of the New York harbor since 1812, a two thou­
sand mile cocaine curtain along the Mexican border, and wide­
spread drug testing as a public relations response to a very serious 
and complex human and social problem. 

The easy target became the Federal work force. 
We are here today to better understand the OPM regulations 

and HHS guidelines issued pursuant to the President's Executive 
Order and the Omnibus Drug Law of 1986. 

We're going to find out what they actually mean, their costs, 
their progress, and their controversies. 

Their constitutionality is still an open question. Just a week ago 
the Supreme Court issued its ruling in the area of Federal employ­
ee Fourth Amendment rights, stating p,ublic employees have a, 
quote, "reasonable expectation of privacy' in their offices. 

Now, while the issue of constitutionality will ultimately be decid­
ed by the courts, there are several other practical but no less 
thorny issues regarding the drug testing regulations. They too will 
be examined in our hearing room this morning. 

The accuracy of drug tests is a major concern of public and pri­
vate sector groups alike and heretofore nnt sufficiently addressed. 

Study after study has shown that there are real inconsistencies 
in operating standards which have caused error rates as high as 
sixty-nine percent in urine testing. 

Even assuming a zero percent error rate in test procedures, the 
results of the tests depend on the ability of the human testers. And 
some testers have not tested out. 

For example, the Administration's massive and ambitious drug 
testing program is only in its infancy, and we have already seen 
critical drug tests in a major investigation flawed. 

The Department of Transportation, which appears to be way 
ahead of other agencies, last week announced that the test results 
from the Conrail crew involved in the January fatal train wreck 
had been flawed by procedu:ral irregularities. This was after the 
world had been treated to loud and supposedly conclusive and, I 
might say, damning statements about the test results. 

Apparently the lab goofed. And this was the main drug testing 
lab for all rail and airline accidents. Now the DOT is not sure 
about the validity of past tests at this lab. 

If the main lab makes mistakes, how many other labs are botch­
ing drug tests? How many dollars do these mistakes cost? How do 
you measure the blow to morale caused by faulty urinalysis test re­
sults? And, most important, how many careers, families, and lives 
are to be ruined by flawed tests? 

Today, the subcommittee will hear from one such victim. Sandra 
Thomson is a research biologist at the Aberdeen Proving Grounds 
in Maryland. 

It took Army officials twenty-one days to inform Sandra that her 
initially positive test came up negative on the second test. 

Because of her own doubts about the reliability of the test, she 
had a test done at a local hospital the same day, which turned up 
negative as well. 

In the days of l'aging deficits and the bite of Gramm-Rudman, we 
have to ask how much does this program cost, to the Government, 
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its employp.es and to taxpayers? Where will the funding come 
from? 

The Administration has contended that the program will cost 
only fifty-six million dollars for the first year. We are going to ex­
amine that number and the numbers for subsequent years very 
carefully. 

Moreover, what are the hidden costs? 
The initial round of so-called immunoassay screens, the so-called 

inexpensive tests, alone may cost upwards of thirty-five million dol­
lars. And this is only a very rough estimate because many agency 
heads have yet to decide who will be tested and for which drugs. 

What about rehabilitation costs? which can range from two hun­
dred and fifty to several thousand dollars per person. 

What is the effect on the Federal employees health benefit pro­
gram? 

How much is the Administration willing to spend on an employ­
ee for rehabilitation, and how much does a firing cost? 

We want to know the total cost in funding, and lost work time, 
and human dignity in the testing of over one million Federal em:­
ployees in order to catch a few drug abusers. 

Is the Administration playing the teacher and the Federal work 
force of the fourth grade class, with the teacher making everyone 
put chewing gum on their noses because one student blew a bubble 
in class? 

Finally, the President has said he prefers a voluntary program in 
which Federal employees won't lose their jobs and there won't be 
punishment, a, quote, "helping hand." 

The Executive Order and press statements stressed employee as­
sistance, counselling, and rehabilitation. And that's good. 

But the guidelines that we have before use can be viewed as sig­
nificantly more punitive than that language. 

It appears there is some confllsion regarding the President's 
intent. Or is there a calculated diversion in substance from the 
high-sounding and righteous political rhetoric? 

Today, we will review a potential bright spot in the picture, the 
employee assistance programs, the EAP's. 

They were mandated on an agency-by-agency basis for the pre­
vention, treatment, and rehabilitation of drug abuse and alcohol­
ism among Federal employees. 

The Omnibus Drug Enforcement, Education, and Control Act, 
the Omnibus Drug Act of 1986, requires the Office of Personnel 
Management to report to Congress this month on the status of 
agency EAP's. And we vnll inquire as to costs, funding, utilization 
rates, training, confidentiality, and recommended legislative 
changes. 

The drug issue is real. It's complex. It's costly. And it's important 
enough to require real action. 

But Congress cannot allow anyone to willy-nilly expose over a 
million drug-free Federal employees to unnecessary, inaccurate, 
and unconstitutional harrassment through urine testing for a quick 
and dirty fL"t to our.country'sdrug absue problems. 

We must have public debate and careful deliberation in order to 
arrive' at a reasonable~ and' responsible answer to the questions 
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about drug testing that remain to be answered. And this hearing is 
part of that process. 

Representative Morella. 
Mrs. MORELLA. Thank you. 
Mr. Chairman, the Administration's proposal to institute a Gov­

ernment-wide drug testing program has, indeed, :raised many ques­
tions, particularly, as might be expected, among Federal employ­
ees. 

As one who represents a district with a large number of Govern­
ment workers, I want to take this opportunity to personally thank 
you for responding as you have to my request for setting up this 
meeting and conducting it, a matter of such importance to my con­
stituents. 

The Administration is proposing to test the drug abuse, not only 
for all employees in jobs that affect national security or public 
safety, but also those who are in positions which the Government 
considers sensitive. 

As I read the President's directive of September 15th, 1986, this 
includes not only employees with access to classified information, 
but computer operators and people who work with financial data 
also. 

Each agency head is given the discretion to decide whether test­
ing will be comprehensive or at random and which jobs will be sub­
jected to testing. 

I firmly support drug testing for Government employees who 
hold jobs that directly affect national security or public safety or 
where probable cause has been demonstrated. 

However, the Administration's proposal, if fully implemented, 
would, as I understand it, make over half of our nation's two mil­
lion Federal workers subject to drug testing under its own criteria. 

I'm at a loss to understand why so many Federal jobs should be 
subject to such massive testing, testing that may well be inaccurate 
as well as expensive. And I am concerned as well by the proposal 
to grant agency heads such wide latitude. 

The President's directive strictly prohibits managers from select­
ing positions for drug testing in order to get particular individuals. 
And that sounds good. But, overall, the guidelines for defining 
which jobs should be subject to testing are too vague and should 
not be determined by subjective decisions. 

While there is no question that some action is in the public inter­
est, I believe that we must tread Jlery carefully. 

If the Administration remains intent on going ahead with this 
program, I strongly urge that before any guidelines or definitions 
are implemented Congress have an opportunity to closely review 
them. 

We're not considering some obscure regulations to address some 
marginal problem. We're examining proposals that not only affect 
the people involved, but could very well become models to be fol­
lowed at other levels of government and in the private sector, 

The Administration proposal, as I understand it now, has the po­
tential of holding more than one million Federal workers hostage 
to the abusive behavior of a few. It is not the best way to deal with 
problems of drug abuse. 

I look forward to learning a great deal from this hearing. 
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Mr. SIKORSKI. Thank you. 
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Does Congressman McCloskey have an opening statement? 
Mr. MCCLOSKEY. No statement. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Thank you. 
Our first witness will be Congressman Steny Hoyer of Maryland. 
Congressman Hoyer has been a long-time ally of Federal employ-

ees. 
He's Chairman of the Task Force on Federal Government Service 

and a member of the Appropriations Committee. 
He was the author of an amendment recently passed by the Ap­

propriation Committee to block the use of supplemental 1987 funds 
to pay for these drug testings, which he'll be talking about this 
morning. 

Thank you for taking the lead in this important issue and for 
being with us this morning. 

S1'ATEMENT OF HON. STENY HOYER, REPRESENTATIVE FROM 
MARYLAND 

Mr. HOYER. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Mr. Sikorski, Mrs. Morella, and Mr. McCloskey, I very much 

thank this committee for--
Mr. SIKORSKI. It sounds like a·good law firm. 
Mr. HOYER. That's right. And we hope that you will press the ad­

vocacy of what we believe to· be an appropriate position on this 
issue, once we all decide what the appropriate position is. 

And I think that's one of the reasons this committee's-hearings 
are so important .. 

Mr. Chairman, I appreciate the opportunity to testify before this 
subcommittee on this important issue. 

As you are aware, I offered an amendment, as you have stated, 
to the supplemental· appropriation bill now pending in the 
Senate-or pending in the House still. Hopefully, it will be on the 
floor soon after we return from our recess. 

And that provision would essentially suspend the President's Ex­
ecutive Order. This order mandated, as you know, random drug 
testing for employees in, quote, sensitive positions. 

It was my belief in offering the amendment that the issue. was 
entirely too complex and too far-reaching in its impact. to rush in 
to a mandatory governmentwide policy. Rather, such an issue re­
quires Congressional scrutiny and consensus building, the activity 
that this committee is now about. 

Further, the clear constitutional questions demand that the 
courts be allowed to review the Fourth Amendment ban on unrea­
sonable searches and the Fifth Amendment's ban on self-incrimina­
tion. 

You have spoken of one of the recent court cases that the Su­
preme Court has come down with, clearly recognizing the Fourth 
Amendment rights of Federal employees, even on site, notwith­
standing the fact that they also found that, in that instance, there 
was available to employers the ability to, for government purposes, 
look at items which otherwise could not be investigated: perhaps in 
a private sector context or a nonemployer context. 
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I'm glad that the committee responsible for authorizing legisla­
tion in this area is moving quickly to examine in greater detail the 
President's program and to begin the process of consensus building 
necessary for an effective governmentwide policy. 

For myself, there are many unanswered questions. And I look 
forward to the results of this and other hearings to assist in the 
formulation of a sensible, constitutional drug testing approach. 

Therefore, I come before you not with evidence in defense of a 
specific position, but rather with the questions which I believe are 
important and critical in this consensus building process. 

First. We must ask is there a problem? I know that there is a 
national drug problem. But I have seen no data that indicates that 
there is widespread drug abuse among the Federal service. In fact, 
I do not believe that that's the case. 

However, as a subsidiary issue, it may be legitimate to ask if 
there are positions that should be tested regardless of whether 
there is an identified problem. This gets to the President's requir­
ing testing of, quote, sensitive employees, close quote. 

All of you have mentioned the definition of sensitive employees. 
It is my belief, after reviewing the Executive order and the OPM 

guidelines that regardless of your position on this issue their defini­
tion is entirely too broad and unreasonable. 

It has been reported in the press that OPM's definition would en­
compass 1.1 million Federal workers. 

I will add that Connie Horner, in her testimony before the Treas­
ury, Postal Subcommittee of the Appropriations Committee, on 
which I serve, did not believe that there would be that many em­
ployees once this process was completed. 

Nevertheless, that appears to be the ambit that would be covered 
by the guidelines. 

Based on the OPM regulations, however, I think one could argue 
that almost every Federal worker could fall within the definition. I 
refer to the regulations which include within the definition of sen­
sitive any employee-and I quote-who has been granted access to 
classified information or m.ay be granted access to classified infor­
mation. 

This broad conditional statement would make eligible for drug 
testing almost double the hundred and ninety-two thousand civil­
ian employees who currently hold security clearances. 

I also believe, Mr. Chairman, that the subcommittee should be 
concerned about catchall clauses which are added to the OPM reg­
ulation's definition of sensitive employees. This clause would in­
clude in the random drug testing program all employees who an 
agency head determines performs-and I quote-other functions 
requiring a high degree of trust and confidence. 

There is no employee in my office, Mr. Chairman, who doesn't 
fulfill that definition. 

The broad authority is ripe for abuse and dis,'?,riminatory imple­
mentation. 

Apart from these problems with the OPM regulations and the 
Executive Order, and returning to the original question of whether 
there are positions which necessitate drug testing, I believe the 
subcommittee should carefully examine the issue of whether there 
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are positions where the public health or safety could be immediate­
ly jeopardized by employee drug use. 

There may well be positions, Mr. Chairman, where it would be 
reasonable as a condition of employment to perform random and 
carefully monitored drug tests. 

I would quickly add, however, that assumes that the court fmds 
that such random drug testing, absent any cause, probably or oth­
erwise, is constitutional. 

Clearly, whatever position we take will ultimately be determined 
by the answer to that question. 

But some positions may be so critical to public safety that to wait 
to test after the fact, i.e., a major loss of life, would be negligence 
on the part of the Government. 

Now, depending on the outcome of the response to the question 
of who should be tested is the question of what to do with the test­
ing information. And I think this is a critical issue and a disparity 
between the President and the Office of Personnel Management 
and the Justice Department. 

Regarding the OPM regulations, I strongly disagree with their 
position that an employee may be discharged upon a first offense. 

Both the President and the Executive Order make clear that em­
ployees should be allowed to participate in a rehabilitation pro­
gram and retain his or her position as long as the employee re­
frains from drug use in the future. 

This is a critical element in the compUlsion of this testing, not 
only as it relates to employee morale, but also as it relates to the 
constitutionality, it seems to me, of such testing. 

The OPM regulations, however, are clear that removal is an 
option of-and I quote-first resort. This should never be the case 
in my opinion. 

If the employee holds a job where the drug use poses a threat to 
the public health or safety, then that employee should be reas­
signed pending the outcome of such rehabilitation. 

Only if an employee refuses rehabilitation and/or continues to 
use drugs should the option of termination be considered in a first 
occurrence. 

There are, Mr. Chairman, many subsidiary questions. Some 
which I would urge the subcommittee to investigate would be the 
cost of testing, which the chairman has referred to, and the cost of 
rehabilitation programs. Others would be the accuracy, which you 
have also referred to, of drug testing programs, and whether it is 
possible to develop a process which is accurate and yet does not 
unduly violate the employee's right to privacy. 

Hopefully, you're hearing today and further hearings on this sub­
ject can respond fully to these and other controversial areas. 

The largest question, which I believe impedes any progress in 
this area, is the role of the Department of Justice in the Federal 
employee drug testing program. 

I can see no legitimate role, Mr. Chairman, for the Justice De­
partment. 

It is clear that the intent of the Executive Order is for manage­
ment and health rehabilitation purposes, not criminal prosecution. 

Yet the order does not mandate that information cannot be used 
for criminal prosecution. 
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Again, I suggest a critical question as to the constitutionality of 
the compulsion of the mandatory testing. 

Rather, it says-and I quote again-agencies are not required to 
report to the· Attorney General for investigation or prosecution. 
That is not to say they won't, but they are simply not required to. 

This is too important an issue, in my opinion, to allow for discre­
tion or witch hunts by agencies or the Office of the Attorney Gen­
eral. 

The Executive Order should not proceed until this issue can be 
cleared up. 

I might say, with respect to the Attorney General, I was dis­
heartened, as I'm sure you were, Mr. Chairman, when the Attor­
ney General, in talking about the issue of testing, in effect said 
that no employee has a right to take drugs and, therefore, they 
shouldn't object to mandatory testing for drugs in light of the fact 
that they had no right to take the drugs in the first place legally. 

Obvioualy, that theory, carried to its logical conclusion, would 
mean that the Federal Government could search any of our homes 
at any time it felt without probable cause, as is required by the 
Constitution, on the theory that we have no right to have illegal 
drugs in our home. And, therefore, because we have no rigtt to 
have such drugs in our home, the Government is perfectly author­
ized to search our homes at any time to make sure that we don't 
have. 

Well, obviously, our founding fathers said that no king nor our 
government should have that authority. The government must 
have probable cause. That is one of the linchpins of our freedoms. 
Governments must not be allowed to intrude into Our lives without 
cause. And that's the linchpin of both the Fourth and the Firth 
Amendments. 

And it's critical for us in the Congress to protect that not only 
for all the American public, but in particular with respect to our 
employees, who have been under assault from all different kinds of 
directions. And this is but another one of those assaults which im­
poses upon them a burden to which others are not subjected. 

In any event, Mr. Chairman, the subcommittee should take every 
step it can to deny the Justice Department any role in the drug 
testing program for Federal employees. 

Whatever the outcome of these many questions, drug testine- of 
Federal employees should solely be an issue for the Office of Per­
sonnel Management and the Department of Health and Human 
Resource. 

Mr. Chairman, I would like to submit a letter I sent to Connie 
Horner regarding some of these questions and her response for the 
record and the subcommittee's information. I believe they will be 
helpful to you as you move forward in this controversial area. 

I would also add, Mr. Chairman, that Chairman Whitten and 
Chairman Roybal, the Chairmen of the Post Office and Postal, 
Treasury Subcommittee of the Appropriations Committee, sent a 
letter to Mrs. Horner and asked her not to proceed to implement 
the provisions of the Executive Order pending further determina­
tions of the Congress of the United States. 

Obviously, if the supplemental appropriations passes and is 
signed by the President or we pass it over his failure to sign, any 

L-________________________ -~- ---~ 
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sums in that supplemental at least may not be used to implement 
the Executive Order. 

Again, I commend you, Mr. Chairman and the committee for 
holding these hearings and for your efforts to ensure that Federal 
employees continue to be treated fairly, legally, constitutionally, 
which is the minimum they would expect. 

Thank you, sir. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Thank you. 
The correspondence you referred to will be placed in the record. 
[The letters follow:] 
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STENY H. HOYER 
51l10Is"-l!;t "'.IIn"t. .. O 

OEM.O(IIATICSTU.AI~G 

AND POI.lCY COfJlounu 

Co.CHAtRMAH 

COMMIS$ION ON SIC-Ullin AND 

Coor.tIlAnON IN EUllor&: 

Q:lmgrc.s5 of the CJ!:lnitw ~tatt.s 
'!IlDuse of 'RfprtsentatiU£.5 

omashin.!lton, Bit 20m 

December 17, 19C6 

The Honorable Connie Horner 
Director 
Office of Personnel Management 
1900 E Street, N.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20415 

Dear Ms. Horner, 

ApPAOPPfATlON$ COMMITTEE 

TIlIASU" ... , POSTAL SIR'lICi. 
GEHE"Al GOVUlHMIHf 

LA'OIl, 
HUlTlt "NO HUMAN SEftyICU. 

EDUCATION 

DISTRICT OF CcWMIIJI 

I am writing to express my strong opposition to the guidelines 
your Office recently issued regarding drug testing for Federal 
employees and to the Executive Order issued by the President, 
r~quiring drug testillg for Federal employees in "sensitive 
positions." 

First, the Executive Order invades the basic privacy of the 
Federal worker. It presumes t.he existence of a drug problem among 
these workers, which has never been shown to be the case. Second, 
by defining "sensitive positions" so broadly that it could be 
construed to encompass nearly every Federal worker, the Executive 
Order creates a dragnet approach which mandates searches and 
seizures without probable cause or reasonable suspicion. Finally, 
the Order fails to recognize that all drug testing procedures result 
in false positives. By allowing aetTon to be taken against 
employees on the results of a single drug test, which could be 
false, the employee's rights of due process are savaged. 

Because of these concerns,.the Executive Order has had a serious 
negative impact on employee morale. The Executive Order however. is 
not nearly as negative as the gUidelines issued by you" Office, 
which appear to ignore what little safeguards there were in the 
Order. 

Specifically, the Executive Order clearly provides that 
disciplinary action shall not be required of employees who after a 
positive test, obtain counseling or rehabilitation and thereafter 
refrain from using illegal drugs. Further, it is clear that 
agencies shall initiate action to remove employees Who are found to 
Use illegal drugs only if they refuse such rehabilitation and do not 
refrain from using illegal drugs. 
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The Honorable Connie Horner 
December 17, 1986 
Page Z 
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The OPM guidelines however, state that "Upon the first confirmed 
determination that an employee uses illegal drugs, there are a range 
of disciplinary actions available to an agency, from a written 
reprimand to removal." This directly contradicts the President's 
clear intention that neither disciplinary action nor removal shall 
be used against employees who, after a first test, pursue 
rehabilitation and refrain from further illegal drug use. 

r plan to review this matter in full during OPM's FY 88 
appropriation hearing before the Appropriations Subcommittee on 
Treasury, Postal Service and General Government. I will be working 
closely with my colleagues to develop a fairer and more rational 
approach to drug testing for postions where the public health and 
safety are in jeopardy. For the interim however, r would recommend 
clarifying the above discrepancy between the Executive Order and the 
guidelines regarding disciplinary actions. 

r look forward to working with you to resolve Congress' many 
differences on this issue. 

With kindest regards, I am 

Sincerely yours, 

~'LC>. 
STElfYtJ HOYER 
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[ongrcs.s of tht t-lnitto ~tett.s 
i'lonsr of 'Rcprc1!rnrariors 
~ommirm on 9pproplitlrions 

Washington, B~ 20)1) 

January 22, 1987 

The Honorable Constance Horner 
Director, Office of Personnel Management 
1900 E Street, NW 
Washington, D.C. 20415 

Dear Ms. Horner; 

tJe are writing to ask that you seriously reconsider the recently issued guidance 
to federal agencies on the implementation of Executive Order 12564, entitled "Drug­
Free Federal l'lorkplace." Emerging issues raised by pending Ii tigation, we are sure 
you agree, have cast substantial doubt an the legal parameters of proposals to test 
federal employees for drug abuse. Indeed, the program instituted by the U.S. 
Customs Service has been held to be violative of the Fourth and Fifth Amendments to 
the Constitution. 

The issuance of the guidance opened the way far federal agencies to begin to 
establish drug testing programs that we now know would face serious constitutional 
and other legal challenges. It seemS to us imperative that precipitous actions in 
reliance on that guidance be forestalled. Rather, agencies must be encouraged to 
take the time necessary to plan and develop appropriate programs that are consistent 
with Constitutional rest raints. At a minimum, implementation of an), broad-based 
drug-testing program ought to be held in abeyance until the courts finally decide 
the legality of the underlving executive order and of the guidance itself. It 
\.Iould seem wise to delay action until existlng programs, Stich as the Customs Service'f 
are fully litigated, so. that dnlg testing protedures could be devised 't ... 1 th the 
benefit of further judicial explication of the Constitutional barriers to implemen­
tation of such programs~ 

To act otherwise would be irresponsible and could only lead to the frustration 
of the underlying policy goal: a drug-free lederal workplace. Scarce federal 
resources should simply not be squandered on instituting programs of questionable 
legality that invite costly litigation. The sensitivity of the issues requires 
also that drug testing not unduly disrupt the workplace, or demoralize the vast 
majority of law-abiding and faithful civil servants that comprise the federal 
workforce. 

We urge you to issue additional guidance to the agencies addressing the coocerns 
we have raised, and ~hat you advise them to delay acting on the guidance until at 
least its legality a~d that of Executive Order 12564 is determined. 

Chairman, Subcommittee on Treasury, 
Poscal Service, and Generaf Government 
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UNITED STATES 
OFFICE OF PERSONNEL MANAGEMENT 

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20415 

The Honorable Steny H. Hoyer 
U.S. House of Representatives 
Washington, D.C. 20515 

Dear Representative Hoyer: 

I'; I .... ·· 

This responds to your letter dated December 17, 1986, 
concerning the President's Executive Order 12564, Drug-Free 
Federal Workplace, and the guidance issued by the Office of 
Personnel Management (OPM) on the implementation of that 
Order (Federal Personnel Manual (FPM) Letter 792-16). While 
you raised several concerns about the Executive Order, you 
raised only one objection to the guidelines. As the 
Director of OPM, I issued guidelines on the implementation 
of the Executive Order. Rather than addressing all of the 
concerns you have raised about the Executive Order, I will 
limit my response to your objection to the OPM guidelines. 

You note that the guidelines state that there are a 
range of disciplinary actions available to an agency based 
upon a first confirmed determination that an employee uses 
illegal drugs. You then state that that provision of the 
guidelines conflicts with the President's intention that 
neither disciplinary action nor removal shall be used 
against employees who, after a first test, pursue 
rehabilitation and refrain from further illegal drug use. 

I believe that OPM's guidelines address the President's 
strongly held conviction that rehabilitation is an extremely 
important part of the overall initiative. The President 
issued the Executive Order which further outlined his 
intentions. Chief among the several aspects of the program 
as enunciated in the Executive Order and as discussed in the 
OPM guidelines is the opportunity afforded Federal employees 
for counseling and referral for treatment or rehabilitation. 
Federal agencies are instructed to strengthen their Employee 
Assistance Programs to meet this need. In addition, the 
Executive Order requires additional drug awareness programs 
and supervisory training on drug abuse. The OPM guidelines 
reflect these approaches to the drug abuse problem with 
major emphasis on treatment and rehabilitation. Attached to 
the guidelines is a Model Employee Assistance Program, a 
list of current operating drug abuse treatment consortia, 
and list of treatment facility directories for agencies to 
use. The Executive Order also includes a discussion of the 
disciplinary aspects of his initiative. Sections 5(b) and 
5(d) of that Executive Order make available disciplinary 
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actions, already available under existing law and 
regulation, to the agencies for use ln certaln situations 
involving employees found to use illegal drugs. 

The guidelines follow the President's Executive Order 
in their provisions allowing agencies a broad range of 
disciplinary options for illegal drug use based on one 
confirmed positive test ~esult. While the guidelines' 
overall intent and expression is for Federal managers to 
provide a helping hand to Federal employees with a drug 
abuse problem, agencies' inherent discretion to take action 
against employees who engage in misconduct was recognized by 
the President in the Executive Order and is further 
explained in the OPM guidelines. 

In some instances, disciplinary action, up to and 
including removal, based upon an initial confirmed positive 
test result may be warranted. Some agencies in unique 
circumstances (for instance, the FBI or Secret Service) may 
be faced with no realistic alternative for some of their 
employees but to remove them for misconduct, no matter 
whether that misconduct involves illegal drugs, violence, or 
other activities. We do not expect this situation to arise 
often, nor do we expect such discretion to be unfairly 
applied. Additionally, an employee will always have 
available the protections of the Civil Service Reform Act 
for the review of any possible abuse of such discretion by 
an agency. 

In conclusion, I must reiterate that I believe that the 
guidelines are fully consistent with the President's 
expressed intentions for establishing a drug-free Federal 
workplace. The President has determined that the 
cornerstone of his initiative to rid the Federal workplace 
of illegal drug use is the provision of an opportunity for 
Federal employees with a drug abuse problem to get help in 
beating that problem. 

Both the Executive Order and the guidelines address the 
President's comprehensive education and assistance effort in 
a complemental.'y fashion. However, the President also 
recognized that illegal drug use by Federal employees is 
contrary to the efficiency of the service. The guidelines 
set out the options available to Federal managers and 
supervisors in assisting employees who need help and in 
disciplining those who are unwilling or unable to respond to 
that assistance. 

I do not believe that there is any discrepancy between 
the Executive Order and the OPM guidelines regarding 
disciplinary actions. Consequently, I do not believe that 
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it is necessary to take any action to clarify the guidelines 
on this subject. However, I appreciate your interest in 
both the Executive Order and the OPM guidelines on this 
i~portant initiative. I, too, look forward to working with 
the Congress on the issues surrounding the elimination of 
illegal drug use from the Federal workplace. 

C:,'~~}l;t: ~ 
onstance Horner 

Director 
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Mr. SIKORSKI. One thing you mentioned triggered a thought in 
my mind. We're going to hear from the Office of Personnel Man­
agement next. But in their statement they make reference to the 
Section 6(b) of the Executive Order. The Department of Justice has 
responsibility for consulting with each agency on the implementa­
tion of the order. 

And it seemed, through inference, to move responsibility, from 
OPM over to the Department of Justice, which raises even greater 
concerns than the orders on their face. 

You have that concern. 
Mr. HOYER. I agree, Mr. Chairman, which is why, of course, I in­

cluded that in my statement. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Yes. 
Mr. HOYER. It seems to me, if the intent, as the President seemed 

to imply in his Executive Order and in his statement which attend­
ed the issuance of the Executive Order, if the intent is to rehabili­
tate, that is certainly a worthwhile intent. 

But if it is, the Justice Department doesn't playa role in that. If 
the focus is not criminal, if the focus is not punitive, then the Jus­
tice Department and Mr. Attorney General Meese need play no 
role. 

The Department of Health, as it relates to the whole issue of 
testing, Dr. McDonald's office, who has also coordinated the White 
House's efforts out of the White House and also is Director of 
NIDA, are involved. And the Office of Personnel Management 
clearly is involved as the agency that oversees Federal personnel 
policies. 

However, the Justice Department has no direct role in that other 
than, perhaps, to advise on the constitutionality of whatever proc­
esses are involved. But in the implementation of the order they 
should have no role. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Not only those who are skeptical of the drug test­
ing program should be concerned about that growing relationship, 
but those who are strong proponents of the drug testing program 
should be concerned with the movement of the program towards 
the Department of Justice. This might trigger a whole host of Mi­
randa warnings and rights that would certainly eliminate any 
chance for a drug testing program, even in some very narrow 
areas, to succeed. 

So, it should be a joint concern. 
Mr. HOYER. I agree with that, Mr. Chairman. 
And, Mr. Chairman, let me say something on drug testing. I said 

this facetiously in another capacity. 
I also serve on the Labor, Health, Human Services, and Educa­

tion Subcommittee of the Appropriations Committee, which, of 
course, has Health and Human Services under the ambit of its ap­
propriating authority. 

And I discussed this with Dr. McDonald. The most abused drug 
in this nation by everybody's definition and observation is alcohol. 
None of the tests proposed will test for alcohol. 

I somewhat, but only somewhat, facetiously suggested that there 
be a post-lunch breathalyzer test for everybody. Because there is no 
doubt that when we talk about drugs in this context we exclude 
the most abused drug in this nation. The drug that undermines 
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families, that undermines work performance, that undermines the 
health of human beings more than perhaps all the other drugs 
combined, but certainly more than any individual drug combined. 

And we ought to keep that in mind as we pursue this because 
there seems to be a double standard imposed here. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Absolutely. In my ten years in public life and 
raised in a family with alcoholism, it is clear that alcohol pervades 
every family, if not immediate, a little further removed. 

It pervades every occupation. It knows the educated and the un­
educated, the poor and not poor, and every strata of society. 

And when I talk to employees, public employees, whether they're 
state, or local, or Federal, that issue of alcoholism is of much great­
er concern in the workplace than the issue of other drugs being 
abused. 

And you represent many Federal employees. I presume that's 
been your experience as well. 

Mr. HOYER. Yes. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Mrs. Morella. 
Mrs. MORELLA. Thank you. 
Steny, I just want to thank you for what you did on the Appro­

priations Committee in terms of the amendment to hold back on 
implementing the program in the supplemental budget. 

And I k.."'lOW that you and I had some of the same reservations 
when we first heard about the procedures, in terms of how imple­
mentation was going to take place. 

My assumption is that we are going to hear more about that 
from OPM. But that's another facet that deserves to be looked 
into. 

Thank you for testifying today. 
Mr. HOYER. Thank you. 
Let me, if I might respond, first of all, congratUlate Congress­

woman Morella for her interest in this, and attention in this, and 
service, of course, on your subcommittee, Mr. Chairman. 

Let me say that I appreciate your comment on the provision that 
was included in the supplemental appropriation bill. 

If you will the report language-and I am sure, Mr. Chairman, 
you have that, the committee has that-you will note that the com­
mittee did not take a position with respect to either the rules, regu­
lations, or the ultimate questions involved. 

What it said was that it is a very controversial area on which 
there are many legitimate questions that ought to be pursued and 
are of sufficient importance and magnitude that the Congress 
ought to be itself involved in revieVl.>ing those issues because of 
their importance. And there are basic questions involved with re­
spect to the constitutionality on personnel policies. 

This need not be a confrontational process. 
I think OPM-I've spent some time talking with Dr. McDonald. 

I've spent some time talking to OPM. I think all of us together re­
alize that the substance abuse, alcohol and drugs, is a problem. 
And we all want to solve that. We all want to provide. 

And I think your statement at the opening was appropriate. The 
rehabilitation programs that have come out of this and are being 
focussed on are appropriate and postive aspects of this interest. 
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And to the extent that we can free not only the Federal work­
place, but the entire place, as you said, Mr. Chairman, in your 
opening statement, of drugs and substance abuse we will have 
America forward. 

And, so, we're united I think in that objective. So, it ought not to 
be perceived that because some of us have concerns about-legiti­
mate concerns about constitutionality that we aren't equally com­
mitted with the Administration in achieving greater educational 
awareness of the harmful effects of substance abuse and to reha­
bilitating thOSe who have fallen prey to such abuse. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Thank you very much. 
Mr. HOYER. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. At this point, I'm going to ask that the statement 

of Congressman Ackerman be placed in the record without objec­
ti<lU. 

['fhe statement of Mr. Ackerman follows:] 
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1M.iI. ~OU5t of lleprestntatibt5 
COMMITTEE ON POST OFfiCE AND CIVIL SERVICE 

SUBCOMMllTEE ON COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

511 HOUSE OFFICE BUILDiNG ANNEX 1 

lBa'bin!llon, 0Il~ 20515 

TELEPtlONE (2021226_1546 

STATEMENT 

Rep. Gary L, Ackerman, Chairman 
Subcommittee on Compensation and Employee Benefits 

House Post Office and Civil Service Committee 

before the Subcommittee on Human Resources 
April 7, 1987 

Mr. Chairman, my statement will be brief, because the 
arguments against mandatory drug-testing of Federal employees are 
easily-stated. 

During the 99th Congress, when I chaired the Subcommittee on 
Human Resources, we conducted three hearings on drug testing. I 
think those hearings amply demonstrated that drug tests are 
unnecessary, inaccurate, prohibitively expensive, and 
unconstitutional. 

First, there is simply no evidence of drug abuse among 
Federal employees. During our hearings, no one -- absolutely no 
one -- could present any evidence that public employees are using 
drugs. The tragic Conrail accident last January is now cited by 
some as proof that we need preventive screening, But I hasten to 
point out that the engineer and brakeman were not Federal 
employees; and serious questions have recently~en raised about 
the accuracy of reports that evidence of drug use was found among 
their remains. 

Second, drug tests are often wrong. The Office of 
Technology Assessment presented expert testimony that urinalysis 
screenings have an inaccuracy rate of 5 to 20 percent. In some 
cases, it 1s much worse than that. An investigation of one Army 
laboratory found that 97 percent of its test results were "not 
scientifically or legally supportable". Inaccuracies can result 
from human error in the handling of specimens, as well as 
chemical cross-reactions with everyday medicines and common food 
such as poppyseed rolls. If we required one million workers to 
take a test which is even 95% accurate -- and that's being 
optimistic -- at least 50,000 of them would be falsely branded as 
drug abusers, 
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Third, the cost of drug testing is prohibit~ve. The most 
.accurate test costs about $100. Testing one million workers Just 
once would cost $100 million -- money which will go to medical 
laboratories, and the manufacturers of blue dye and little 
plastic cups. That money would be better spent on drug education 
in the workplace and in our schools, and on the interdiction of 
drugs at our borders, programs which, in fact, the new Reagan 
budget proposes to cut. 

Fourth, and most important, the President'~ Executive Order 
violates the Constitution's prohibition against "unreasonable 
searches and seizures" by the government. Many Federal courts 
have already ruled against random urine tests for precisely that 
reason. Just last week, the Supreme Court issued a deciSion in 
which all nine Justices acknowledged that public employees have 
a "reasonable expectation of privacy" in their places of 
employment. I am optimistic that the Court would rule in favor 
of the pending suit, filed by public employee unions, challenging 
the constitutionality of the Administration's drug-testing 
program. 

American Citizens do not give up their constitutional rights 
when they choose a career in public service. Drug tests would 
reverse our SOCiety's traditional presumption that everyone is 
innocent until proven guilty. In addition, drug tests are an 
enormous invasion of privacy; they can be used to identify a 
variety of conditions -- including urinary tract infections, 
epilepsy, venereal disease, and pregnancy -- which are, Simply, 
nobody else's bUSiness. 

As I warned last fall, the hysteria over drug testing is 
spawning a whole new industry in America -- the sale of »clean" 
urine samples for $50 to $100. What all this means is that the 
only thing which drug-testing will do is to brand the innocent as 
drug-abusers, While letting the guilty, 1£ there are any, sneak 
by. 

For all of these reasons, I have introduced H.R. 280, to 
require that drug tests conform with the Fourth Amendment. 
SpeCifically, drug tests would have to be based on "reasonable 
suspicion", by two supervisors, that a particular employee's job 
performance is impaired because of the use of illegal drugs. 
Drug tests are appropriate in 4hose instances, but their use 
should be carefully circumscribed. Job impairment can be 
revealed through more accurate, and less intrusive, techniques, 
such as physical tests of reflexes and motor skills. We should 
put greater emphasis on training supervisors and managers to spot 
problems ~ they arise. 

Mr. Chairman, I believe that the Administration's drug 
testing program was really an election-year gimmick designed 
to deceive the American people into believing that the 
Administration was serious about doing something about drug 
abuse. In fact, all that it was doing was wasting money and 
trampling on the rights of Federal employees. I hope that your 
Subcommittee will take early and favorable action on legislation 
to put an end ~o this dangerous charade. 

11## 
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Mr. SIKORSKI. Our next witness is Mr. Hugh Hewitt, who is Gen­
eral Counsel of the Office of Personnel Management. 

The subcommittee would like to thank Mr. Hewitt for filling in 
for the Director of the Office of Personnel Management Mrs. Con­
stance Horner. 

The subcommittee was informed yesterday morning that she 
would not be able to testify because of longstanding family commit­
ments, which I certainly respect. She also promised that she would 
be here at our next hearing as we delve deeper into the issues that 
are raised in this more general hearing. 

1'd like to also note that the subcommittee received the Office of 
Personnel Management's prepared testimony at six o'clock last 
night, although they were invited to testify almost two weeks ago 
and everyone else made the time limits. In fact, everyone else 
made the limit of last week for the statements. 

I just want to note that I understand the problems and I'm sym­
pathetic to them, but we're going to insist on a little bit better re­
sponse in terms of the statements. 

Mr. Hewitt, I thank you for coming. And we will give you an op­
portunity to present your statement. I think it's about five min­
utes. 

We're going to try to keep statements to about five minutes. And 
if you can assist in that, we'll let you go. 

STATEMENT OF HUGH HEWITT, GENERAL COUNSEL, OFFICE OF 
PERSONNEL MANAGEMENT 

Mr. HEWITT. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Thank you. 
Mr. HEWITT. And I'd like to thank the committee for the oppor­

tunity to come up today and to talk about the program, and to 
relay the Director's sincere regrets that she couldn't be with you 
this morning. 

I would like to submit my statement for the record so that we 
can move on to answering as many questions as you have with the 
note that we welcome oversight because, with particular regard to 
this program, we find that the more we explain, and the more un­
derstanding of our program we gain, the more appreciative even 
our critics are of the care that went into its design, and the caution 
that is going into its implementation. 

It is a good program and we are proud of it. 
I do regret the delay with the testimony. But we are dealing with 

something of a moving target here, at least in the constitutional 
area. And I wanted to make sure that it reflected accurately the 
state of the law as we understand it. 

Some of these court opinions are lengthy and quite detailed. And 
I do believe the statement reflects our best understanding of the 
program's genesis and its current status. 

That having been said and with the statement submitted for the 
record, I would be happy to try and answer any questions that you 
have. 

[The statement of Mr. Hewitt follows:] 



22 

STATEMENT OF 

HUGH HEWITT, GENERAL COUNSEL 
OFFICE OF PERSONNEL MANAGEMENT 

before 

SUBCOMMITTEE ON HUMAN RESOURCES 
COMMITTEE ON POST OFFICE AND CIVIL SERVICE 

U.S. HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES 

ON 

THE STATUS OF FEDERAL AGENCY DRUG TESTING PROGRAMS 

APRIL 7, 1987 

Thank you for this opportunity to present the views of the Office of Personnel 

Management on the status ofthe Administration's efforts to implement the 

President's initiative to ensure a drug-free Federal workplace as a part of his overall 

effort to rid the American society of the use of illegal drugs. 

As the President said in a memorandum for all Executive Branch employees 

shortly after issuing the Executive Order and initiating other activities to control 

illegal drug use, "[olur intention is not to punish users of illegal drugs, but to help 

rehabilitate them. When you see colleagues or friends struggling with a drug 

problem, encourage them to seek help from your Employee Assistance Program or 

from some other organization or person skilled in drug counseling and treatment. 

Together we can send a message that illegal drug use in every office, shop, and 

laboratory simply will not be tolerated. The combined efforts of all of us will made it 

easier for Federal as well as private sector employees to 'Just Say No'." 
,/ 

-1-
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When he outlined his program, the President indicated that he wanted to 

emphasize compassion, the extension of a helping hand, and rehabilitation of 

employees suffering from a problem with drugs. He also stated that continued 

illegal drug use after an opportunity for rehabilitation would not be tolerated. 

It is important for Federal employees to join with other sectors of the American 

workforce in working to reject drug use and in becoming drug-free. The American 

public has a right to expect work being done on its behalf -- especially in matters 

concerning national security, health and safety -- to be conducted by officials and 

employees who are responsible and not under the influence of illegal drugs. 

Your letter of invitation requested that OPM address the development onts 

guidelines for establishing a drug-free Federal workplace, agency efforts to establish 

drug testing programs, agency Employee Assistance Programs and training for 

Employee Assistance Program staff, and any OPM proposals for legislation in this 

area. Each item is addressed briefly below. 

Guideline Development 

Executive Order 12564 was issued on September 15, 1986, and provides that OPM 

shall issue government-wide guidance on the implementation of the order and that 

the Secretary of Health and Human Services shall issue guidance on the technical 

aspects of the tests themselves. OPM guidelines were issued on November 28,1986, 

as Federal Personnel Manual (FPM) letter 792-16. 

It was important that the guidelines be consistent with the Executive Order. 

Therefore, Director Constance Horner gathered an interdisciplinary team oftop 
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OPM technical, policy, and legal advisers to draft them. In the course of developing 

the guidelines, we consulted closely with the Attorney General, who found them to 

be legally acceptable and a correct interpretation of the President's policy, as 

enunciated in the. Executive Order. In addition, we worked closely with the 

Department of Health and Human Services on ensuring that our guidelines 

complement their scientific and technical guidelines. The Secretary of Health and 

Human Services issued those guidelines on February 16, 1987. As we crafted the 

f>uidelines, we were well aware of the need to develop guidance which met the 

President's desire that the testing program be fair and balanced, that it protect 

individual privacy, and that anyone found to be using illegal drugs be treated with 

compassion and offered assistance in recovery. 

Status ofImplementation Efforts 

OPM has a long.standing responsibility in assisting agencies in extending a 

helping hand to employees through Employee Assistance Program. As agencies 

develop programs to establish a drug-free workplace, they have been and will 

continue to consult with OPM on the use of their Employee Assistance Programs. 

Under section 6(b) of the Executive Order, the Department of Justice has 

responsibility for consulting with each agency on the implementation of the Order. 

The Executive Order does not establish any coordinative role for OPM. However, 

OPM has been providing technical advice and assistance to agencies as they develop 

their programs. 
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lean report that agencies are identifying which sensitive positions to designate 

for testing and working to establish the framework for the implementation of their 

internal drug testing programs. Given the fact that agencies must provide 60 days 

advance general notice of testing, it is unlikely that any agency will begin testing 

under the Executive Order until sometime this summer. Some agencies, like the 

Army and the Department of Transportation , already have in place programs to test 

some of their employees for illegal drug use. These programs were in existence prior 

to the issuance of the Executive Order. 

Education and Training 

Given the President's expressed interest in seeing that Federal employees with a 

drug abuse problem are assisted, it is very important to educate them about drug 

abuse and to train their supervisors in effectively dealing with drug abuse in the 

workplace. All Federal agencies are training their supervisors and managers on 

how to deal with employees who have a work performance or behavior problem that 

may relate to alcohol or drug abuse. This training includes instruction on 

identification of performance and conduct problems, referral of employees to the 

Employee Assistance Program, when leave is appropriately used for employee 

treatment, Gnd how to take any personnel actions that may be necessary. As a result 

of the Anti-Drug Abuse Act and the Executive Order, a number of agencies are 

planning to enhance their supervisor and manager training to include instruction on 

the recognition of alcohol and drug abuse symptoms. Some intend to incorporate this 

instruction into training programs on the agency's drug testing program. 

As part of our responsibilities under the Executive Order, we have developed a 

supervisory training program on the drug-free Federal workplace initiative that will 
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be available later this spring. In addition, OPM is.developing training packages for 

use by agencies in their internal training programs and is providing technical advice 

and assistance to agencies as they develop those training programs. A model 

program for use in conjunction with the drug-free workplace initiative is attached to 

the OPM guidelines. 

The American Federation of Government Employees,the National Association of 

Government Employees, the National Federation of Federal Employees, the 

National Treasury Employees Union, the Senior Executives Association, the Federal , 
Managers Association, and OPMjointly produced a poster announcing that they 

were "U ni ted Against Substance Abuse." Director Constance Horner and the 

presidents of those employee organizations signed the poster. We are confident that 

aU parties will continue to search for ways to cooperate in this important drug abuse 

education effort. 

Employee Assistance Programs 

Ever since the enactment of the Comprehensive Alcohol. Abuse and Alcoholism 

Prevention, Treatment, and Rehabilitation Act of 1970 and the Drug Abuse Office 

and Treatment Act of 1972, Federal agencies and departments have been authorized 

to establish and maintain appropriate prevention, treatment, and rehabilitation 

programs and services for substance abuse among Federal employees. These 

programs were established ill recognition of the need for the Federal government, as 

an employer, to assist its employees with drug abuse, alcohol abuse, and alcoholism. 

All Federal departments and agencies are required by the Anti-Drug Abuse Act 

of 1986 to develop and maintain appropriate prevention, tJ'eatment, and 
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rehabilitation programs and services for drug abuse, alcohol abuse, and alcoholism 

among civilian employees. Agency Employee Assistance Programs are based upon 

these laws. Executive Order 12564 also recognized the Employee Assistance 

Programs as a means of assisting employees with drug abuse problems. 

Agency Employee Assistance Program administrators and counselors vary in 

qualifications and experience. About three quarters of them have experience or 

advanced academic qualifications directly related to alcohol and drug abuse program 

functions. Advanced degrees are in the areas of mental health, counseling or 

psychology. Some of these counselors are also nurses or medical doctors. The 

remaining one quarter have received on-the-job training supplemented by special 

training. 

OPM evaluations of agencies' programs through on-site visits and analyses of 

annual report submissions reflect that counselors are qualified to identify 

employees' primary personal problems (including alcohol and drug abuse), refer 

them for appropriate treatment, and assist in their rehabilitation and return to 

satisfactory performance. While there does not appear to be a need for standard 

qualifications requirements, there is a need to insure thatEAP officials obtain the 

best training available. 

Agencies enroll their Employee Assistance Program officials who are newly 

appointed or are in need of refresher training in OPM's four day course on 

"Administering the Employee Counseling Services Program" which is offered three 

times each year. These courses are con tinuously revised to include the latest 

information and concerns related to alcohol and drug abuse. 

-6-
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In fiscal year 1985, $11.8 million was spent by the Executive Branch for these 

programs. In fiscal-year 1986, that figure had risen to $15.5 million. It must be 

note~ that this is the total figure for the provision of all counseling program 

functions including alcohol and drug abuse counseling. 

OPM compiles fiscal year statistics from information provided.by the Federal 

departments and agencies. In FY 86, 13, 167 employees were counseled through 

Employee Assistance Programs for alcohol abuse. Of these, 8, 187 employees were 

rehabilitated and returned to duty; 1,975 were not. Agencies reported that there 

were 3,005 emplo;, aes still being counseled who had enrolled during FY 86. 

In FY 86, Employee Assistance Programs handled 3,690 new employee drug 

abuse cases. These cases involve abuse of either legal or illegal drugs. Of these, 

2,111 employees were rehabilitated and returned to duty; 706 were not. Agencies 

reported that there were 873 employees still being counseled who enrolled in FY 86. 

The percentage of Federal civilian employees counseled for drug abuse during FY 

86 was .16 of one percent, continuing a small, but steady, increase since FY 80. 

Agencies range in percentages from 0% to .89%. 

OPM on-site evaluations have found that many employees with the financial 

resources to do so or applicable health insurance coverage elect to utilize private 

counselors rather than EAPs. 

OPM is required by the Omnibus Drug Enforcement, Education and Con trol Act 

of 1986 to report to the Congress annually on drug and alcohol abuse programs in the 

-7-
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Federal government. The first report is due to the Congress no later then April 27 , 

1987 which is six months after enactment of the Omnibus Act. 

Last summer, OPM negotiated with all of the Federal Employee Health Benefits 

Program carriers for increased coverage of treatment and rehabilitation of substance 

abusers for last year's open season. With few exceptions, the carriers increased their 

coverage of substance abuse care. In order to facilitate decision-making by Federal 

employees during last year's open season, OPM included a new subcategory of 

substance abuse care benefits in each carrier brochure's summary of benefits. Last 

fall, OPM also published a "Guide to Substance Abuse Treatment Benefits Under the 

FEHBP for 1987" that provided a comprehensive summary of the pertinent benefits 

available from all of the carriers. That guide was distributed to all Federal agency 

personnel offices. 

Legislative Proposals 

OPM sees no need for legislation in this area at the present time. 

I am very pleased to have had this opportunity to present OPM's views on the 

drug testing and employee assistance programs and to provide some information 

about the program that may prove helpful to you. rd be pleased to answer any 

questions that the Committee may have. 

-8-
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Mr. SIKORSKI. Thank you. 
Let's go through the Office of Personnel Management's guide­

lines. You have those before you, 
As I was looking them over some questions naturally came to 

mind I will ask those first and then do a little cleanup at the end 
with outstanding questions that were raised. 

In the purpose section 1(b), the statement is made that the use of 
illegal drugs by Federal employees, whether on or off the job, 
cannot be tolerated. Employees who use illegal drugs have three to 
four times more accidents while at work. 

I'm wondering what kind of data does OPM on Federal employee 
drug abuse. 

Mr. HEWITT. We do not have hard data. We are compiling the 
record to support the report in April. 

We do not have statistical data on Federal employees that is 
exhaustive. 

We have, I think, very significant data that has been generated 
by the operation of those programs that predate the Executive 
order, that reflect that we have a problem, at least in some areas. 

I believe that this comment refers to statistical analyses of the 
entire work force in the United States. 

1'd be happy to submit for the record where that--
Mr. SIKORSKI. So, when it says employees, this would be all em­

ployees, private or public sector employees. 
Mr. HEWITT. That's correct, Mr. Chairman. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. I got the impression that we were talking about 

public sector employees. 
I would guess there would be some demographic differences. The 

public employee, the Federal work force, is older than the work 
force generally. And I would expect, if my understanding of the use 
of say cocaine and marijuana from the studies is accurate, then you 
would expect that there would be less abuse for those two sub­
stances, PHP and other substances like that, than in the general 
work force. 

Mr. HEWITT. I couldn't answer that because I'm not certain of 
the demographics. 

But I could note that we are putting into place a program that is 
intended to persevere for a number of decades. And as we see the 
Federal work force, perhaps, at this point, if you take a static pho­
tograph of it, it is older than the general population. But it will 
change. And what we are witnessing is a rolling into the Federal 
work force of younger people who have grown up in a different 
milieu than perhaps our older people. 

So, if it is not as significant a problem today, and I'm not sure 
that it isn't, I think that we can expect that it will eventually 
mirror completely the work force at large. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. So, there's no data on that statement. 
How many have drug problems-we don't have data on how 

many Federal employees as a percentage, or a good guess, or a 
rough estimate on drug abuse. 

Mr. HEWITT. In 1986, there were over three thousand self-refer­
rals of employees with substance abuse problems, drugs specifical­
ly, to the employee assistance programs. 
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That is perhaps an iceberg tip because it does require a commit-
ment to seek help for people to refer themselves to the EAP. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. How about alcohol? 
Mr. HEWITr. I don't have that in front of me, Mr. Chairman. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Significantly greater than the--
Mr. HEWITr. It is in here. It is not significantly greater. It is per­

haps twice as many. I remember seeing the figure. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. I'm talking about the general problem of abuse, 

substance abuse, the alcohol versus the nonalcohol drug abuse. It's 
significantly higher for alcohol abuse. 

Mr. HEWITr. Okay. 
I think that is reflected in our EAP statistics, but I couldn't say 

for certain. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Well, looking down at agency responsibilities in 

2(a). The head of each Executive agency shall develop a plan for 
achieving the objective of a drug free workplace with due consider­
ation of the rights of Government and the employee. 

How many agencies have developed such a plan? 
Mr. HEWITr. There have yet to be implemented any post-Execu­

tive Order plans. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Okay. 
Let me back up. How many agencies are effected by this, by the 

Executive Order, and by these guidelines?; 
Mr. HEWITT. Every agency in the Executive Branch. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. And what are we talking about in terms of 

numbers? 
Mr. HEWITr. I don't know offhand how many agencies we have if 

you start including things like the Pennsylvania Avenue Develop­
ment Corporation. All of the major cabinet agencies, all of the sub­
cabinet agencies, right down to different smaller groups, but I don't 
know offhand. 

I would be glad to submit that. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Bruce? 
Mr. HEWITr. Eighty major agencies. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Eighty major agencies and a few hundred other 

agencies. 
Mr. HEWITr. That's correct. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Which are also responsible, under this order, to 

come up with a plan, right? 
Mr. HEWITr. Yes, the~ are. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. And it s your testimony that none have developed 

a plan under this, under the order, and under these guidelines. 
Mr. HEWITT. That's correct. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Some have previous drug and alcohol plans. 
Mr. HEWITT. That's correct. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. One was the Army? 
Mr. HEWITr. Yes, they did. Theirs was implemented. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. One was DOT? 
Mr. HEWITr. The Department of Transportation, FAA, had a 

prior existing plan. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Any others? 
Mr. HEWITr. The DEA, the Federal Bureau of Investigation, the 

Central Intelligence Agency. I believe that is what I know of for 
certain. 
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Mr. SIKORSKI. We've got DEA, FBI, CIA, Army, DOT, FAA. 
Mr. HEWITT. That's correct. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. OK. 
The war hasn't been won yet. In fact, the first battle hasn't been 

fought. 
Mr. HEWITT. No, it hasn't. 
I should add the Customs Service to that as well. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Treasury, Customs. 
I had other questions in terms of the plans, the statement of 

policy. 
You have not seen the statements of policy from the various 

agencies because they haven't developed the plans. 
Mr. HEWI'f!'. We would not see them in any event. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Why not? They're your work force. 
Mr. HEWITT. The coordinating responsibility for drug plans is 

placed squarely on the agency head. He is to operate under our 
guidelines and the HHS guidelines. But the President has placed 
responsibility for the implementation and development of the 
agency-by-agency plans on the agency head, not on OPM. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. You said he or she is to operate under your guide­
lines. How do you know whether he or she is operating under your 
guidelines if you don't know what their plans are? 

Mr. HEWITT. We are relying on two things. One, the fact that the 
President has asked his agency heads to do this and we expect that 
they will comply. And, two, the plans must be submitted to the At­
torney General for review of a constitutional nature, a legal 
nature, prior to implementation. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Well, looking at the plans, there's a statement of 
policy regarding their expectations of drug use. I would guess that's 
not a constitutional question-although there might be some rami­
fications. 

Supervisory training is part of the plan and has to be in there. 
Self-referraL Those aren't constitutional issues. So, those wouldn't 
be reviewed by the Department of Justice, the Attorney GeneraL 

And then your reliance on the notion that these agency heads 
would do it because the President said they should. 

Mr. HEWITT. Well, actually, Mr. Chairman, because it is a pro­
gram ordered by the Executive order, and the Executive order in­
corporates OPM guidance and HHS guidance, the Attorney Gener­
al will have the authority to effectively examine any program for 
major gaps. 

But I do believe the reliance is 011 our trust and confidence in 
agency heads. I think that's a well placed reliance. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. I sense that those who are concerned about wide­
spread random drug testing in the Federal work force shouldn't be 
too concerned if what you are saying is accurate because there's 
likely to be no follow-up, no compliance. 

If it does, it would come in the form of Department of Justice, 
which raises a specter. You were here when Congressman Hoyer 
raised that question in that discussion we had. Does that bother 
you? You're General Counsel for OPM. 

Mr. HEWITT, It doesn't bother me. I have a great deal of confi­
dence in the Department of Justice doing their review duty. I also 
have a lot of confidence in the fact that we've designed what we 
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think is a constitutional and a very careful system that protects 
and preserves employee rights; it doesn't attempt to alter any ex­
pression of employee rights. 

If an employee believes that it has departed in a significant fash­
ion, he'll have his entire panoply of rights to challenge that pro­
gram. 

But I do have confidence in the Department of Justice review. 
And I have confidence in the agency heads. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. And what have they given you so far? 
Mr. HEWITT. They don't. Mr. Chairman, they do not give us any­

thing. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. What have they produced so far? 
Mr. HEWITT. I don't know. I can't speak to what the agencies 

have thus far put into action. 
The HHS guidelines came down only in February. I think it 

speaks to the caution and the care with which the programs are 
being implemented that no one has rushed out and established a 
drug testing program yet. 

In fact, as the HHS representative will tell you, the linchpin now 
is certification of laboratories to make sure that testing is com­
pletely accurate. 

And until such time as laboratories are certified and agencies 
can make use of them, I don't think you will see a drug testing pro­
gram. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. What's the Office of Personnel Management's mis­
sion? 

Mr. HEWITT. We have a number of different missions. Our first 
and primary mission on the Executive Order was to outline the pa­
rameters on drug testing. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. No. No. Not on this. Generally, what's your mis­
sion? Why are you in existence? 

Mr. HEWITT. Oversight of Federal work force policies. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. You oversee the policies affecting the Federal work 

force. 
Mr. HEWITT. That's correct. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Including their privacy rights? 
Mr. HEWITT. We do take care to watch that record systems are 

put into place and adequately maintained. That's one. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Make sure that they are functioning efficiently 

and safely? 
Mr. HEWITT. Yes. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. And you were called upon to issue these guidelines 

because of that. 
Mr. HEWITT. Because of our experience with the Federal work 

force, yes. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. I would expect, therefore, and the President, the 

White House is going to expect that you will be a source of infor­
mation on this. 

But you seem to push away any responsibility for data gathering 
to assess compliance. 

Mr. HEWITT. I hope I have not created that impression. 
We will be gathering data by Congressional mandate for reports 

on the EAP's. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. I understand. The first report is due April 27th. 
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Mr. HEWITT. That's correct. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. And you, in your statement, give a preliminary 

kind of summary report of that. And thus far nothing has hap­
pened. 

Mr. HEWITT. Well, the EAP's are up and running. And they are 
very, very good. But the baseline data that we need to gauge for 
future efforts on the success of the EAP's will be provided by the 
end-of-April report. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. We don't have any plans yet. 
Mr. HEWITT. That's correct. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Therefore, no statement of policy, no statement 

with regard to supervisory training to assist in identifying and ad­
dressing illegal drug use by agency employees, no provision for self­
referral, no provision for identifying illegal drug users. 

Agencies shall ensure, going further, that the drug testing pro­
grams in existence as of last mid-September are brought int.o con­
formance. 

Have those agencies that have drug programs-CIA; FBI; DEA; 
the DOT, FAA component; and Customs at Treasury-come into 
compliance with the Executive Order and these guidelines? 

Mr. HEWITT. It is impossible to come into compliance until such 
time as the laboratories have been certified by HHS, at which 
point all the pieces of the puzzle--

Mr. SIKORSKI. Wait a minute. 
I understand that part. But how about with OPM guidelines out­

side of the testing-the actual testing labs? 
Mr. HEWITT. I'm confident that at the time that the program, is 

in place with all of its components is in place, that they will con­
form. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. I respect your confidence. But as of this date none 
of these agencies have a plan with a mission or statement or state­
ment of policy, with provision for supervisory training, self-referral 
provision, self-identification provision. 

Mr. HEWITT. Of the eighty major agencies, I don't know which 
ones are closer or further away from implementation yet. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. I'm talking about the plans that were in existence 
at the time of the Executive Order. 

Mr. HEWITT. I don't know whether or not they have had to make 
any changes. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. OPM hasn't reviewed the programs of the Customs 
or FAA? 

Mr. HEWITT. We don't have that responsibility to review. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. And you don't know anything about those? 
Mr. HEWITT. We know that the Customs program has been liti­

gated in New Orleans. We know that the FAA's program was liti­
gated just recently in Anchorage, Alaska, and that it was the deci­
sion of the judge in Anchorage not to issue a TRO to employees 
being tested under the FAA's plan because it was constitutional 
and sound. 

They have many similarities with OPM's guidelines. As to 
whether or not they will have to take any conforming action, I just 
can't tell because the last building block is not yet in place. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. How about your drug testing program at OPM? 
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Mr. HEWITT. It is not yet ready to be implemented because we do 
not have an HHS certified laboratory. 

The Director and her major advisors are working on it and 
giving it the kind of care, and attention, and specificity, and cau­
tion that reflects a commonsense approach to drug testing. 

We think it will be a very defensible, easy to understand system 
when it is in fact ready to be unveiled. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Which will be when? 
Mr. HEWITT. I can't say with certainty. We are taking our time. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. How about uncertainty? Give me a month. 
Mr. HEWITT. I can't do that because I don't know. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Give me a quarter year. 
Mr. HEWITT. I think it will be done by the middle of summer. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. OK. Thank you. 
Looking at point three, agency drug testing programs. How many 

agencies have established programs to test for the use of illegal 
drugs? 

Mr. HEWITT. We go back to the FAA. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Yes. 
Mr. HEWITT. Department of the Army. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Those. 
Mr. HEWITT. Yes. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. And no more? Has the term employee in a sensi­

tive position as designed here, how many? How many are we talk­
ing about? 

Mr. HEWITT. I believe Congressman Hoyer accurately stated the 
figure that the outside figure of the broadest pool would be about 
1.1 million. 

It is our belief that nowhere near that number of employees will 
eventually end up in testing designated positions. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Why are you nowhere near that number? I mean 
there aren't any plans. You know the universe. And you assume 
for practical needs that it's going to be smaller. 

Mr. HEWITT. No, not for practical needs but because of the com­
monsense approach. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Common sense is related to practical needs it 
seems to me. 

Mr. HEWITT. Well, it also relates to agency mission and the sensi­
tivity of the position, judgements that are inherently within the 
agency head's discretion. 

Mr. SnWRSKI. And the money available to test? 
Mr. HEWITT. Well, I do not believe that the money available to 

test will drive the program. I believe the program will drive the 
necessary budget expenditure. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Well, we'll see about that. 
But an employee in a position that an agency head designates 

special sensitive, critical sensitive, noncritical sensitive, under 
Chapter 731, or an employee in a position that an agency head des­
ignates as sensitive in Executive Order 10450, employee has been 
granted access to classified information Or may be granted access to 
classified information, law enforcement officers, other positions 
that the agency head determines involve law enforcement, national 
security, protection of life and property, public· health or safety; all 
drivers, all food handlers could ,arguably come, or other functions-
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requiring a high degree of trust and confidence are in there, and 
individuals serving under Presidential appointment. 

Now, that's the universe. And it's about 1.5 million? 
Mr. HEWITT. 1.1 million, actually. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. I'm sorry; 1.1 million. 
And individuals serving under Presidential appointments, that's 

all the cabinet officers? 
Mr. HEWITT. That's correct. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. And everyone else the President appoints? 
Mr. HEWITT. That's correct. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Now, to be a Presidential appointment, does that 

need to be triggered b~ Senate approval? 
Mr. HEWITT. Yes. It sPAS. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. So, everyone that the President appoints that is 

approved by tho Senate would be under this testing? 
Mr. HEWITT. Under a sensitive position. That means he's within i 

in the pool. That does not necessarily mean that he will be tested. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Are these people going to be tested when they 

apply? 
Mr. HEWITT. People applying for positions that have been testing­

designated positions, the second cut-what you have been describ­
ing is the first cut, the universe. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. I know. I'm jumping. 
Mr. HEWITT. The second cut, testing-designated positions, after 

the agencies have put their programs into place, applicants for 
those positions can and may be tested. And, in fact, an agency may i 
make a determination to test all applications for pool positions. I. 

It is up to the head of the agency to determine whether or not r 
that makes sense. ~ 

Mr. SIKORSKI. I got the impression, reading the Attorney Gener­
al's statements, the President's statements, your guidelines, and 
the HHS regulations, that there was strong encouragement to drug 
test every applicant into the sensitive positions. 

Mr. HEWITT. There is encouragement for agency heads to look 
and see if that is necessary. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. I think I had a different reading. There was strong 
encouragement to test every applicant. And there was encourage­
ment to look at who should be tested on a random basis already in 
Federal service. 

Mr. HEWITT. There's encouragement to the agency head to put 
together his program as he sees it best serves the agency mission. 

It may, in fact, serve the agency mission to test every applicant. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Do you know if any Presidential appointment ap­

plicants-people who are pending in front of the Senate now-that 
haven't been approved have been drug tested? 

Mr. HEWITT. I don't believe that any of those would have been 
drug tested. 

There is as yet no drug testing program under the Executive 
Order that's been implemented. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. The White House is responsible for doing its own 
drug program? 

Mr. HEWITT. Yes, sir. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Okal. Who would? Who is responsible there? 
Mr. HEWITT. I don t know offhand. 
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Mr. SIKORSKI. Well, who is the agency head? 
Mr. HEWITT. Well, the President is. But whether or not he will 

designate that to his Counsel I don't know. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. So, you don't know what agency head at the White 

House is in charge of drafting this plan and initiating the drug 
testing program. 

Mr. HEWITT. No, I don't. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. And we're seven months from the Executive Order 

stating a national crisis. 
Mr. HEWITT. Well, I think that the crisis is aptly stated. I think 

it is a crisis. But balanced against that crisis is a very careful ap­
proach to this problem, Mr. Chairman, an approach that I think 
reflects your concerns. 

We're trying to infuse it with commonsense. We're trying to 
infuse it with caution and concern for employee rights. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. And I think that's meritorious, and I think that's a 
good idea. 

I'm just trying to measure the crisis rhetoric that we heard last 
summer with the performance that's come down. And it's always 
important to look at things close to home. And I'm asking what the 
White House had done on drug testing programs. 

Mr. HEWITT. I don't believe that the rhetoric with which the ini­
tiatives were launched is diminished by the fact that we are now 
taking a good deal of time to make sure the program is carefully 
crafted. 

We have moved quickly. I have never seen an agency move as 
quickly as Director Horner had OPM move when it came time to 
draft these guidelines. We did it in two months. For as comprehen­
sive a program as this, that was a maximum effort, enlisting the 
aid of people throughout the building and the experts in their field. 

So, it is the maximum speed balanced against the need to make 
sure that what we are doing is carefully crafted and constitutional. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Okay. I understand that; But we're talking about 
the first step, and that's designating-looking at the universe of 
sensitive positions, and then making a determination on as to who 
will be tested in that pool. 

And I haven't seen any movement in some of these agencies. In 
your agency, you're talking about this summer, which would be an 
acceptable time frame. 

And I am asking about the White House. 
Mr. HEWITT. I believe our agency is illustrative of this. I can't 

speak to what the other agencies are doing, but I can talk about 
OPM's approach to it. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Your agency is a lot easier than most of the other 
agencies in terms of sensitive positions wouldn't it? 

Mr. HEWITT. I can't really compare. I don't know, sir. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. They're all unique. You are dealing with privacy, 

and confidential personnel information. 
Mr. HEWITT. But what I want to stress is that we have been­

and I think this is the reason you do not hear much from the agen­
cies yet-very careful not to alarm anyone needlessly, to drop posi­
tion descriptions into the hopper and to talk about, well, maybe we 
should test these positions or test these other positions, because, 
again, concern for employees' rights and morale dictates that we be 
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careful and that we keep it as confidential as possible to avoid un­
necessary alarm. 

The guidelines provide for a sixty-day notice of a testing program 
and for a thirty-day notice, a specific notice, to the employees who 
will be tested. 

We don't see that there's any reason to alarm people before the 
arrival of those individual events as to the scope of testing or who 
mayor may not be tested. 

We are doing it carefully. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. However, when we shift over to the new applica­

tions, there's a different set of concerns there. None of these apply. 
Mr. HEWITT. Well, again, that will be whether or not applicants 

will be tested. It will be part of this broad-scale determination. 
It doesn't make much sense to design a program backwards for­

wards or forwards backwards but comprehensively. 
And we cannot test them until labs are certified. So, again, there 

is really no need to rush until we have got all the components in 
place. 

rm glad the agencies are taking their time to be as careful as 
possible, forgoing the publicity of who's going to be first, so that 
they may be doing it correctly. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. In the determinations it said the head of the 
agency has discretion and that determinations should be based on 
the nature of the mission, employee duties, efficient use of agency 
resources-and that includes the cost of these tests-the danger 
that could result from the failure of an employee to discharge his 
or her duties adequately, and the rest. And this includes everyone 
from those who have access to the most classified national security 
data to public health and safety to privacy, confidential, confiden­
tiality of public data on people's lives. 

And we have no designations thus far, no determinations thus 
far. 

Mr. HEWITT. Again, Mr. Chairman, the easy ones are probably 
already made in the minds of the agency heads. I mean it will be 
obvious that some people must be included in any commonsense 
approach to testing. 

It is the scope of the program that I am sure is providing people 
with cause to pause and carefully examine how broad the scope is 
going to be. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Well, let's go. Common sense. How about people 
who work at the Department of Energy's nuclear production facili­
ties? 

Most people in this country don't know that our nuclear war­
heads are produced by the Department of Energy and not by the 
Department of Defense. And up until they are placed in an actual 
missile, or warhead, or a weapons system they are under the juris­
diction of the Department of Energy. 

Would these people be a natural assumption to be tested? 
Mr. HEWITT. Well, you have identified why it is takin?: agency 

heads time to carefully craft their programs, because they re going 
to have to look at their agency. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. No. Mr. Hewitt, you just told me that the easy de­
terminations have already been made in people's minds. I'm asking 
is that one of those easy determinations. 
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Mr. HEWITT. Well, that wouldn't be for me to say. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. But it is for you to say that there have been easy 

determinations made. 
Mr. HEWITT. I believe what I tried to point out to you, Mr. Chair­

man, is that some agency heads may very well know who they 
have to test that will make sense, but that they are taking their 
time in expanding the program. 

Whether or not the Secretary of Energy believes that warhead 
manufacturing employees ought to be in the program is for the 
Secretary of Energy to say, not for me. 

We do call attention in our guidelines, the next paragraph down, 
to the need for taking particular care to examine employees who 
work with explosive, toxic, radioactive, or other dangerous materi­
als. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. That's why I came up with the example. 
When selecting testing-designated positions, agencies should 

ensure that the selection process does not result in arbitrary, capri­
cious, or discriminatory selections. What are those? 

Mr. HEWITT. I think the last line of that paragraph is illustrative 
of that: 

"Agencies are absolutely prohibited from selecting positions for 
drug testing on the basis of a desire to test particular individual 
employees." 

One of our primary concerns-that's why it is so emphatically 
stated there-is that this drug testing program is directed at posi­
tions and not at people. We believe that directing it at people 
would be counterproductive. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. So that you don't get a whistle-blower or a trouble­
maker, or someone whose hair the agency head doesn't like. 

Mr. HEWITT. And if a.n employee has, in fact, been the subject of 
a discriminatory selection, this will serve as his basis for pursuing 
grievance procedures. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Okay. 
Jumping down to B there, under 3, voluntary testing. How many 

agency heads have established programs for voluntary employee 
drug testing? 

Mr. HEWITT. That is a component of the comprehensive program. 
As I've said, no comprehensive program has been implemented yet, 
so no voluntary testing has yet been implemented. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Well, you don't have to wait for that. 
Mr. HEWITT. Well, we want to ensure that those people who vol­

unteer will be subject to the same laboratory protections, at a mini­
mum, as people who are randomly selected. 

So, it will not make sense to have a voluntary program until 
such time that we have the labs that are certified to be completely 
accurate. 

The damage done due to a false positive by a volunteer employee 
would be just as devastating as one to someone selected through 
the random procedure. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. In the CIA, and the FBI, and the DEA, and the 
DOT, FAA, and the Treasury, Customs are all aware with regard 
to the sanctity of their testing program? 
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Mr. HEWITT. I can't speak to the agency programs, Mr. Chair­
man. I don't know. But the one that we're designing to replace 
those is very sensitive to those concerns. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Those programs are okay to go along. And you 
don't have cause to question their testing procedures? 

Mr. HEWITT. No. I don't have any individual complaints nor do I 
know very much about them other than that they exist. The Army 
program started in February of 1986. It tested sixty-two hundred 
people. There have been no false positives under that. What they 
turn up is, I think, very significant. We find fifteen aviation me­
chanics with a drug problem. We find a hand grenade assembler 
with a drug problem through their random testing. 

I think what that shows is that you can achieve the kind of goal 
that we're looking for, a drug-free workplace. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. We're going to have a woman in a few minutes 
who was in the Army and had a false positive. You said that there 
weren't any false positives in the Army. 

Mr. HEWITT. I think that we should pay very close attention to 
what we mean by a false positive. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Oh. 
Mr. HEWITl'. We do not doubt that a first test of a urine sample 

may occasionally be misleading. But the second test-and I think 
the HHS representative can speak to this-the chromatography 
and the spectrometry assure one hundred percent accuracy. 

She may have, in fact, been alerted wrongly. And I want to point 
out that our guidelines provide that no one will be informed of the 
results, no supervisor, no medical review officer, no one in the 
agency, of the first test of the sample. The system kicks in only if 
it's been confirmed by the much more deliberate and much more 
exhaustive test that attends the second test. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Okay. 
You don't have any voluntary testing, based on the fact that 

there have been no certified labs, even though there are labs up 
and running and program up and running that were pre-Septem­
ber 15th of last year. 

Mr. HEWITT. I do not know if those agency programs that are al­
ready in place provide for voluntary testing. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Okay. 
But the point is you don't have voluntary testing because you 

don't have certified labs. My point is there are certified labs that 
are operating for these other testing programs. 

Mr. HEWYIT. They're not certified under the very rigorous HHS 
standards that will call for internal controls, quality testing, qual­
ity control. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. But you're not aware of those already existing pro­
grams coming into conformance with your guidelines and HHS reg­
ulations, which are very tight, and very important, and very care­
fully drawn, and protective of rights? 

Mr. HEWITl'. They can't conform until HHS's standards are fm­
ished. They're not finished. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. The certification process. 
Mr. HEWITl'. That's correct. 



41 

Mr. SIKORSKI. I have questions with regard to the reasonable sus­
picion testing, but again we haven't reached that point because 
there are no plans and there are no programs, right? 

Mr. HEWITT. Well, the reasonable suspicion standard, as articu­
lated in the guidelines, is drawn from a series of Court of Appeals 
decisions dating back to 1972, governing administrative searches. 

We believe that they are quite defensible and very carefully 
crafted and drawn. 

Mr. Sm:oRSKI. And we expect that each plan will pick up those? 
Mr. HEWITT. Yes, sir. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. But we're not sure whether they are going to be­

cause that's not your role? 
Mr. HEWITT. We are sure that they are going to because we have 

confidence in the agency heads to conform to the guidance. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. But you're not going to be sure of it, other than a 

belief that these people are very talented, and very efficient, and 
very dedicated, and the President has ordered them to do it. 

Mr. HEWITT. I'm sure that agency heads will obey the President's 
order. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. You are sure? 
Mr. HEWITT. Yes. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. But you can't point to any proof? 
Mr. HEWITT. I will not have proof, no. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. You will not have proof, just your opinion. 
Mr. HEWITT. An opinion as an Administration official that we all 

do what the President tells us to do. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. And you're in the same situation. 
Mr. HEWITT. That's correct. And I know how we are implement­

ing it. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Okay. "Specific condition testing." Again, we are 

not there. "Follow-up testing." We are not there. "Applicant test­
ing." I touched on this briefly before. We're not there yet either be­
cause of no plans, no plans have been done. We're still in the proc­
ess. We're doing this carefully. And no labs have been certified. 

Mr. HEWITT. That's correct. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. How about dollar signs attached to this? 
Mr. HEWITT. We have estimates on the average cost per individ­

ual tested. Those range from twenty to twenty-five dollars per test. 
And they include not only all those people tested in the first in­
stance, but those also tested for the second time to confirm an ini­
tial showing of positive. 

So, between twenty and twenty-five dollars per test is our initial 
estimate. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. And you don't have an initial estimate in terms of 
the universe? Twenty or twenty-five dollars times what? 

Mr. HEWITT. No, I don't, because the universe is dependent upon 
the application of the agency programs. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. But there's been a supplemental request made? 
Mr. HEWITT. I don't know whether or not there has been, Mr. 

Chairman. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Well, I've seen numbers in terms of fifty-six mil­

lion dollars in the cost for the first year of the program. 
Mr. HEWITT. Right. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. HOVI did we get that number? 
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Mr. HEWITr. I really don't know. I'd be glad to submit that for 
the record if that number is an OPM generated number, an expla­
nation of it. 

it. 
That is not an OPM number. We don't have a way of predicting 

Mr. SIKORSKI. I'm told it's am OMB number. 
Mr. HEWITr. That's what my deputy just told me. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. I could read lips. 
This money that's going to pay for the testing and the implemen­

tation of the program doesn't come out of a special pot that's set up 
in your office or Ed Meese's office or some other place? 

Mr. HEWITr. No. It's to come out of salaries and expenses in the 
agency, 

Mr. SIKORSKI. In the agency. 
Mr. HEWITr. The Sand E line. That's correct. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Those numbers are already in the President's pro­

posed budget? 
Mr. HEWITT. That's correct. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. And those numbers took in to consideration this 

drug testing program? 
Mr. HEWITr. I couldn't say for certain, if it's an OMB generated 

number, I assume that the Office of Management and Budget took 
that into consideration when they were preparing the President's 
budget. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Did you? Do you have in the OPM budget a set 
aside amount of money for the implementation of your new drug 
program for fiscal year 1988? 

Mr. HEWITr. We do not have a line item dedicated to the imple­
mentation. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. All right. 
Mr. HEWITl'. I do not know what it is. We have an amount for 

our employee assistance plan. We have an idea of how much that's 
going to cost. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. OK. 
Mr. HEWITr. But it's awfully hard to set aside money or to find 

the money without knowing how broad the testing program is 
going to be. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Well, I am trying to look. And I understand that. 
And you don't know what the certified labs are going to cost either 
when it comes down to it, if they're going to be as tight and as 
carefully restricted. 

But you're coming up to mid-summer, maybe late summer, with 
your plan. And it's going to be in operation in fiscal year 1988. 

What are you going to have to pay for that in fiscal year 1988? 
Mr. HEWITr. We think that we will be able to fmd the money 

within the agency to take care of it, because it's part of the mission 
of the agency if we're testing someone, It means it's part of the 
mission. We'll be able to find the money to afford that portion of 
the mission. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Well, you don't do anything that's not part of the 
mission. 

Mr. HEWITr. I'm tieing it up as drug testing relates to the 
agency. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Yes. 
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Mr. HEWITT. It's a predicate that it has to be under the Execu­
tive order, that it's a part of the mission of the agency to make 
sure that you have a drug-free work force in these positions. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Everything you do is part of your mission. 
Mr. HEWITT. That's right. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Everything every agency does is part of the mis­

sion. 
Mr. HEWITT. That's right. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. But I'm told this is not a loaves and fishes kind of 

situation with regards to missions. 
EPA tells us in the Health and Environment Subcommittee all 

the time that they have a tremendous range of missions, responsi­
bilities under their mission, and they don't have the resources. 

And at the Department of Justice, everyone has made the same 
statement with regards to something. 

You're telling me you're going to take it out of the pot of money 
there just because it's part of the mission. 

Mr. HEWITT. That's correct. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. And I'm saying everything you do is part of the 

mission. 
Either we're giving you too much money now or you're going to 

take it from something that is already being done. 
Mr. HEWITT. Well, every time that Congress addresses a new ad­

dition to our mission, for instance, our new reporting requirements 
on the EAP's, we have to juggle our resources. We do it all the 
time. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Well, this is an Executive Order here. 
Mr. HEWITT. I agree. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Okay. 
Mr. HEWITT. But the point is the same, that the mission changes, 

and you have to address those things which are a priority. 
EAP's have now become a priority. 
In our six hundred installation visits over the course of the next 

fiscal year, we will be paying particular attention to how the EAP's 
are implementing the President's program. And we feel confident 
that, although we have to juggle resources, that we will be able to 
fulfill that mission and we will be able to implement our drug test­
ing program with what has been given to us. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Well, it will be interesting to see what is up and 
running next year at this time with that kind of preparation and 
plan for funding. "Sixty-day notice" you already mentioned. 

Is there any conflict with the Executive Order under 4(a)(3)? Any 
agency may take action as described in part 3(c) of this letter with­
out reference to the sixty-day notice requirement. 

I guess I'll ask you that question for the record. 
In reading the Executive Order, and this, I came up with an ap-

parent conflict. 
Mr. HEWITT. I'll respond to that or the record. 
[The information follows:] 
There is no conflict between section 4a(3) of the OPM guidelines and the Execu­

tive Order with-regard to the provision of a sixty day notice. Section 4(a) of the Ex­
ecutive Order states: "[a]gencies may take action. under section 3(c) of this Order 
without reference to the 60"Clay notice period;' Section 3(c) of the Order authorizes 
agencies to test employees for illegal drug use when there is a reasonable suspicion 
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of illegal drug use, in an examination regarding an accident or unsafe practice, or 
as part of a follow-up to counseling or re11nbilitation. Section 4a(3) of the OPM 
guidelines simply restates those provisions of the Executive Order that allow agen­
cies to test for illegal drug use in those limited circumstances without reference to 
the sixty day notice requirement. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Before I ask you to answer a few questions on your 
statement, I'll turn over to Congresswoman Morella, and then 
return on the EAP's. 

In the preparation of your guidelines you have technical policy 
and legal advisors. Did you have drug people, science people, medi­
cal people? 

Mr. HEWITT. For OPM guidelines, no. 
We do have people who are in charge of employee systems and 

oversight. And as part of their duties they have supervisory over­
sight roh~s on the EAP's. So, we are very conversant with the 
EAP's. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. I'm going to defer questions on education and the 
EAP's until after Congresswoman Morella. She may might want to 
get into that as well. 

Thank you. 
Mrs. MORELLA. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
You really got put through the paces by the Chairman. I think 

he asked most of the questions that all of us may have had, but, 
you know, I still have some great concerns. Mr. Hewitt, as General 
Counsel, you really want to make sure that litigation is not going 
to be too imminent. 

And I can see from your point of view the real difficulty of this 
idea of letting the agency head determine sensitive positions. I 
know there are some guidelines here, but almost anybody can fall 
into those guidelines. And, then, of course, the admission over and 
over again that it could be more than one half of the Federal work 
force, the 1.1 million. 

Can't you see litigation resulting? Can't you see enormous prob­
lems with administration? 

I guess I see this as an administrative nightmare. You're going to 
have to E,ive a sixty-day notice. The agency is going to have to de­
termine what is sensitive. 

It is going to be absolutely objective. But how objective can you 
be when you have an agency head saying these are the sensitive 
positions; someone might have access to material that is confiden­
tial. 

So, then you've got to give notice. Then you have got to go 
through the random testing, which might be through Social Securi­
ty number, it might be through letter of the alphabet, it might be 
through, I guess, when they started working, who knows, any 
number of options for who is going to be picked for the random 
one. 

Then you have got to go through the procedure of the monitor­
ing. 

Now, I am thinking not only the mass administrative problem, 
but also the personnel that you're going to need. I mean who is 
going to be the one assigned to do the monitoring? Is that going to 
be the agency head that's going to have to keep doing that? 
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You're talking about the possibility, maybe not the probability, 
but the possibility of 1.1 million people. 

I just think that I'm surprised it's not more streamlined in terms 
of guidelines for starting off with a brand new program that has 
some validity in some instances, but is so broad that, I think you 
lose the credibility when you come out with something-I'm not di­
recting this just to you, but it's in general from the reading that 
I've done and the discussions-to come out with something like this 
plan. 

People begin to question whether it can be done at all, even with 
people in high security places or with probable cause. 

You then have the possible litigation for invasion of privacy. And 
then the cost, twenty-five dollars or twenty per test. And I know 
we're going to hear about the validity of tests, which has always 
been a concern of mine, particularly in light of the television pro­
grams that we saw that demonstrated that substances that were 
sent in the urine to laboratories were pointed out to be inaccu­
rate-I think a hundred percent inaccurate, others eighty percent 
inaccurate. 

In light of that, I know we'll hear about the accuracy, and I 
think that's important. 

To be accurate, again, requires extra money. And when you put 
all this together this is going to be a monumental amount of 
money. And you say we're going to find a way to pay for it. We've 
got the specter of Gramm-Rudman-Hollings. And it's just not 
making that much sense. 

And, so, I question the administration, the need for a more spe­
cific definition for testing that would really hone in on probable 
cause and high security positions. 

So, I see it as a real difficulty. Do you want to comment? 
Mr. HEWITT. Congresswoman, you have articulated a number of 

concerns that were very much on Director Horner's mind when she 
set about this task, and on the President's mind. 

It would have perhaps been tempting to do the slapdash drug 
testing program that would have been small and inexpensive. How­
ever, when we decided to design a program, we did it. We turned it 
into the Cadillac of programs when it came to employee protection 
and employee rights, because we felt that we had to do that to pre­
serve the morale of Federal employees and their expectation of 
good governance. We did that. 

It is more expensive than a stripped down version. But, the ex­
pense comes from the protections that we've built into the system, 
protections we take very seriously, that Director Horner takes very 
seriously. 

It is going to take some time to make it administratively feasible. 
Again, the 9-uestion is, it would be nice to come, six months after 

the President s Executive Order, and say it's up and running. We 
could only have done that at the expense of the caution that we 
are infusing into this system to take care of employee rights. 

It is a difficult position not to be able to answer with certainty 
now what we will be able to answer with certainty i.r. six months. 

As to the expense, it is an expensive program. The problem, how­
ever, is an enormous one, as everyone who has testified this morn­
ing or made statements from the committee has recognized. 
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I don't know what kind of value we can put on finding the public 
health and safety worker who is endangering the public that we 
find through drug testing and get in to rehabilitation. I don't know 
what we're saving in that respect. 

But the President has made the determination, and the Execu­
tive Branch is carrying it out, that it is worth the cost. It is a high 
enough priority of our mission to find and rehabilitate these people 
and to protect the public health and safety. 

It's a tough calculation. But it's one that we had to make in light 
of the enormity of the problem, and one that we're implementing 
slowly to protect the employees and the public. 

Mrs. MORELLA. Well, what is our role in it? We can talk about 
the budgetary constraints, withholding, strings attached. We can 
talk about a specific piece of legislation. Beyond that, as it stands 
right now, what is the responsibility and the authority of Congress 
in the procedures and regulations? 

Mr. HEWITT. Well, I think that this committee is exercising a 
very appropriate and a very welcome role from the Executive 
Branch's perspective. 

We enjoy an extended conversation, one that brings out the de­
tails, that allows us to talk about the design and the care that went 
into this system. 

Oversight I think is appropriate. We welcome it. 
The Director, as I mentioned, is sorry she can't be here, but she's 

already conversed with two Appropriations Committees on this 
subject. We respond to Congressional inquiries. 

It keeps the Executive Branch honest, that you know. And for 
your constituents and just for the public interest at large you're 
doing your job to make sure that what we're about is a well-de­
signed, carefully crafted system. I think that's the appropriate role. 

We're designing a system, and it might be the best argument 
that Congress keep abreast of the system and see how it turns out. 
What are we working with? 

It's not going to be 1.1 million people. It's going to be a common­
sense approach. 

Then to take a look at the final product. And I think you will be 
surprised, and I think many of our critics will be converted to what 
has been true from the outset, that we're designing a careful 
system, one that will be effective, protect the public interest, but at 
no injury to employee rights or morale. 

Mrs. MORELLA. As a result of this hearing, if this subcommittee 
submits recommendations to you for what we deem to be critical 
improvements, what will happen to them? 

Mr. HEWITT. We would take those, study them, make recommen­
dations. 

But on some of the letters that we have received asking why we 
don't stop the program, the Executive Branch is subject to the 
President's direction. It's a matter of law. He's issued his Executive 
Order. We have to implement it. 

We can tinker with our guidance. We can look at it. But we 
think we have a good system. 

And I woulCLurge" you ~to think about 'laws or supplemental Ian" 
guage on recommendations; and wait until you see what we've 
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come up with. Because I think it may turn out to be solutions that 
are in search of a problem. 

I think you will be impressed with how this operates. 
Mrs. MORELLA. In the meantime, I guess what I'm saying is that 

you would listen? 
Mr. HEWITT. Oh, I always listen. Yes. 
Mrs. MORELLA. You would act on the basis of listening if it seems 

valid? 
Mr. HEwITr. Yes. 
Mrs. MORELLA. Okay. 
Because we can air all of this, and some strong feelings, and 

have some illumination but if we don't do something after that it's 
going to be futile. 

So, I take you at your word that we will have some impact on 
procedures. 

I also just want to compliment you on the fact that I read here 
that you are doing some training with regard to helping the agency 
heads identify people who have substance abuses and alcohol abus­
ers. That kind of training program is always good. 

Mr. HEWITT. One of our major efforts in training is to develop a 
comprehensive module to train supervisors on how to detect and 
refer employees to the help that they need. 

Mrs. MORELLA. We talk about the Executive Branch, the Legisla­
tive Branch. I think you're bringing the Judicial Branch into some 
of these regulations. 

Thank you. 
Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Thank you very much. 
We're going to get into the privacy issues, the tinkling and the 

toilet issues, with HHS. I take it from their regulations that's going 
to be their concern. 

But on page seven of your guidelines you do talk about privacy 
in drug testing in the first paragraph there. 

You say, if an employee or applicant to be tested requests priva­
cy, the sample shall be provided in the restroom stall or similar en­
closure so that an employee is not being viewed while providing 
the sample. 

Mr. HEWITT. The HHS guidelines supersede that. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Okay. 
So, it's not a matter of request? 
Mr. HEWITT. No, it is not. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Okay. 
Then there are controls in the test areas, bags, luggage, coats, 

station a testing official in the restroom, examine the sample, and 
the rest. 

We talked earlier about who's covered by this. 
Are milit.ary employees covered? 
Mr. HEWl1'T. Civilian employees would be. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Only civilian employees are covered. 
Mr. HEWITT. Correct. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. How about contract employees? 
Mr. HEWITT. No, they are not. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Let me raise a question. I sit on the Oversight and 

Investigation Subcommittee of Energy and Commerce. And the 
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first few months I was here we had a closed door meeting. And 
we've had a couple sjnce. And there were a couple before with re­
gards to the security at the Department of Energy's sites through­
out this country where they produce our hydrogen nuclear war­
heads, and all phases of that. 

It affects Star Wars. It affects our entire nuclear stockpile and 
our nuclear weaponry. 

Those programs are quite sensitive. They're quite personal be­
cause if any of the reactors or any of the other mechanics at these 
plants went awry there could be serious public health effects for 
wide, wide distances. 

They are subject to incredible potential opportunity for terror­
ists, who either want to steal or to hold them hostage or do both. 

If one ~ite, for example, is shut down, our entire warhead produc­
tion and a weapon system or several weapons systems could be 
shut down if just one facility were affected by either an accident or 
an incident. 

Much of this is public. A lot of this is still classified. 
I raise that because many of those facilities have contract em­

ployees in them. All of them, our entire nuclear production compo­
nent for the security of this country, are secured by contract secu­
rity operations, some of which have been subject to incredible 
lapses of security, and some stupidity. 

We had one facility where the officers, security officers, couldn't 
fire their guns except upon approval by the head office, the corpo­
rate office. And the problems get worse. 

I raised that because this is clearly one of those areas where ev­
eryone will agree that you can't have drugs, not only for national 
security purposes, but for health and safety purposes, not only for 
the people that work there, but the people in the surrounding com­
munities. 

Now, they aren't covered by this great effort. 
Mr. HEWITT. Well, I think that goes back to one of the original 

reasons for the President's program. 
In this area, the Federal Government has a leadership role. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. That's bulL Wait a minute. 
They're not covered. 
Mr. HEWITT. But I believe, despite your description of it, there is 

merit to the idea that if the Government shows how you do-­
Mr. SIKORSKI. Thetre paid by taxpayer money. 
Mr. HEWITT. That s correct. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. These people are employees. They are contract em-

ployees of the Federal Government. 
They're doing some of the most sensitive work. 
Mr. HEWITT. That's right. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. And you believe that somehow this is going to 

trickle down to them, that somehow, without direct action of this 
Government, they're going to pick up these. 

We're going to have a secretary in some dusty file area in the 
bowels of some bureaucracy tested perhaps, and yet the guards at 
the most sensitive nuclear weapons production facility are not. 

Mr. HEWITT. I think the juxtaposition of the secretary and the 
guard diverts us from the real issue. 

And I agree with you that contractor testing is a serious issue. 
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Mr. SIKORSKI. That situation is a real situation. 
It might not be a nice thing to face, but that is a real situation. 

I'm not overstating the case. 
Mr. HEWITT. Someone who is maybe in a dusty environment or 

something may, in fact, be a sensitive employee with access to the 
very same technical guidance that the security guard has. 

But getting back to your original statement, I agree with you 
that contractor testing Is a very serious issue. 

But, again, the question of what we should do about them is 
under review by the Administration. Hopefully, the leadership that 
we've established in this area will prompt private firms and, at the 
same time, if the need remains, if we review our system, we have 
not ruled out doing that. We just have not yet made a decision. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. This Administration wants to increase contracting 
out. 

Earlier, when I raised a specter of an older work force, that is, by 
and large, beyond the prime age area for abuse of the drugs that 
are going to be tested-not alcohol, but the drugs that are going to 
be tested under this program-you said, we're going to have a 
younger and younger work force as we look to the future. 

Is a younger work force contracting out? 
Who's in charge of looking at the contracting out in this Admin­

istration for drug testing? 
Mr. HEWITT. That has been discussed within the Administration. 

And it is a decision that it is up to the agencies, to determine the 
appropriateness of extending their program. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. But doesn't OPM have a position? 
Mr. HEWITT. The contractor on employees are not OPM employ­

ees. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. You're tasked with the fair, and equitable, and rea­

sonable supervision and treatment of Federal employees. 
Mr. HEWITT. That's correct. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. How is it fair that many of them, who are in ques­

tionable positions of sensitivity, or say not in a national security 
position at all, not in classified information position at all, could be 
in a public health and safety situation, who arguably may be 
tested, or are going to be tested under this massive crusade against 
drugs. However, those in the most sensitive area, because they are 
functions performed by contracted out services, are not going to be 
tested? . 

Mr. HEWITT. The efficacy of that equation, I don't think it is 
really there. What we are trying to design is a position sensitivity 
program, one that will focus on the position being tested, not rela­
tive across the Government, but upon its impact on the agency mis­
sion and the sensitivity of that. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. And Federal employees are going to get the threat 
of removal or some other discipline because of the drug testing pro­
gram, but these other people aren't even going to be tested, and the 
discipline question doesn't arise. And you don't think there's a fair­
ness issue there. 

Mr. HEWITT. It is not an issue within the scope of OPM's respon­
sibility for these guidelines. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Isn't your mission to make sure that we have a 
happy, and healthy, and functioning, and efficient work force? Or 
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maybe I'm too optimistic about your advocacy for the Federal work 
force. 

Mr. HEWITT. I don't think you overstated it. That is our mission. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Okay. 
Isn't that subject of some contest if your people, whatever the 

numbers, are subject to random drug testing, whereas people that 
are performing some of the most sensitive and dangerous jobs in 
this country, for the Federal Government, for the taxpayers of this 
country, aren't required to go through the same hoops? 

Mr. HEWITT. I've got to resist that analogy because it places the 
Federal employee in a very dangerous situation, because then it 
may stand to reason that we ought to have as intrusive a system or 
as broad a system as any private employer does. I don't know that 
these people are not. In the agency, in the situation, facilities 
you're talking about, I don't know that they are not now tested, 
that all of them are now tested. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. It doesn't revert to that. You have used the argu­
ment here. You have treated the argument the Administration has, 
that Ed Meese has, and everyone else has that where people in ex­
tremely sensitive positions, Going extremely important work for the 
taxpayers, should stand as a model and for the purpose of Federal 
employees' protection, and the protection of the health, safety, and 
national security of the country, of the public, they will be random­
ly drug tested. 

They will be, many of them, tested as they apply, before they are 
hired, then randomly drug tested after that. 

Yet, those who, without argument, do the some of the most sensi­
tive national security and health and safety area functions for the 
taxpayers of the country are left scot-free. 

And you don't see any equity issue in there. You don't see any 
morale issue in there. You don't see any reversion to the original 
argument that we've got to do this drug testing. Sure, it's nice to 
have a drug free society. But we've got to do it to protect the public 
health, safety, and national securit?'" of this country. 

That's your argument. And that s an argument that I think has 
almost unanimous support within Congress and within the general 
public. 

I'm simply pointing out you don't cover the field. 
There's a laundry list of violations and drug abuse-and it's 

public record-at these facilities. And yet you don't seem to be 
bothered with it. 

At the March 1986 hearing of the Energy and Commerce Sub­
committee on Oversight and Investigation, the Assistant Secretary 
of Energy for Defense Programs stated that the DOE was in the 
process of establishing a human reliability program, which would 
include drug testing and drug abuse programs. 

One year later, this program is not yet in operation. 
The DOE contract personnel guard some of the most highly sen­

sitive and dangerous nuclear weapons production facilities. And, 
yet, there have been several instances of drug use by these security 
personnel. 

Serious drug problems have been reported at the Y -12 Plant in 
Oak Ridge, Tennessee. Drug problems have also been identified at 
Hanford and Savannah River. 



51 

Certainly the Government should first worry about the employ­
ees who are guarding our nation's vital interest before we devote 
substantial resources to testing secretaries and others with desk 
jobs whose possible impairment does not so immediately jeopardize 
our national security and the safety of millions of Americans. 

Mr. HEWITr. Again, I don't want to disagree with the importance 
of those employees you are talking about. 

But the better must not become the enemy of the good in this 
instance. 

You're talking about a discrete work force, the Federal work 
force, with a whole different system of legal concerns, legal au­
thorities. We had to design a constitutionally sound basis. 

Mr. HEWITr. I think that we do have to treat the Federal work 
force as distinct, Mr. Chairman, for the simple reason that once 
you allow the comparison to be made the other comparison rears 
its head, which is some firms in the private sector that do the very 
kind of work you're talking about test everybody, in the door and 
through the wo'rk force. 

I don't know that we want to have that as our model or that we 
should begin to set up the Federal work place as a mirror of every­
thing on the outside. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. I'm talking about treating people who work for the 
taxpayers of the country the same, especially those who are doing 
these extremely sensitive jobs. 

Mr. HEWITr. There is a significant legal and, I would argue, oper­
ational distinction between contracting employees and Federal em­
ployees. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. That's the biggest bunch of baloney I've heard in 
about four and a half years on the Hill here. 

You know, that's fine for an answer, but it doesn't answer the 
serious problem. 

I assume I'm sincere about raising this issue. And if you sat in 
on these hearings, you would have trouble sleeping at night, under­
standing the security, the slapstick security that we have around 
these facilities in days of high concern for terrorism, as well as just 
the likelihood that when human beings do something there is a 
chance that there might be an accident. 

You wouldn't find that distinction, if there is one there, of great 
import in looking at the security around these facilities. 

And you and I know that these people wouldn't be there if the 
Government of the United States didn't hire them to be there. 

And we, acting as the contracting party, have a right to establish 
guidelines by which these people operate. And one of those guide­
lines can damn well be some drug testing. 

Mr. HEWITr. And I do not mean to doubt your sincerity. I agree 
with vou. 

But I want to repeat. The better must not become the 'enemy of 
the good. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. I've always believed that the better must not be 
the enemy of the good. 

Mr. HEWITT. Okay. 
Well, our program is not the entire answer for the country. It is 

the answer for the Federal work force. And that is what we' de­
signed it for. 
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The issue is on the table within the administration. It receives 
continuing consideration. But we just want to proceed one step at a 
time. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Who in the Administration is in charge of looking 
at this application of drug testing to contract employees? 

Mr. HEWITT. I believe that it is up to the agencies to make that 
determination. But I know that the issue has been discussed in a 
number of forums ranging from the Domestic Policy Council to 
other different forums. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. So, who should we ask to testify here to respond 
for the Administration on the issue? 

Mr. HEWITT. The contracting out of sensitive positions and their 
need to be tested could be addressed to any number of different 
people. The Secretary of Energy would be an excellent person. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. I understand that. But it's not unique to the De­
partment of Energy. 

Mr. HEWITT. But because of the variety of problems that con­
tracting out presents, it takes a lot more time, but it has to be ad­
dressed serially, according to the agency and the agency mission. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Well, I understand. 
[The following information was furnished:] 
The President's coordinator of all Federal programs concerning drug abuse is the 

Director of the White House Drug Policy Office, Dr. Ian Macdonald. Dr. Macdonald 
and Mr. Richard Willard, Assistant Attorney.General for the Civil Division of the 
Department of Justice, are examining the question of testing Government contrac­
tor employees for illegal drug use. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. If you're going to treat the Federal work force as a 
whole and issue major press statements and major initiatives with 
regards to their treatment, then break it down, honestly break it 
down and try to use discretion in making determinations on the 
specific problems there, why isn't there someone, using the same 
argumentation for this Federal work force crusade on .random 
urine testing, looking at the issue from the national picture in con­
tract employees? 

Mr. HEWITT. Well, it seems to me that it is being addressed in 
some forums. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. I think it's because the Federal work force is easy 
prey for people wanting to do something. 

And I'm pointing out that these contract employees of the tax­
payers, whose money comes from the same pot, who are doing sen­
sitive work, should have the same kind of scrutiny, the same kind 
of concern within the Administration. 

And I'd like to know who that person is or where we can trigger 
that kind of interest. 

Mr. HEWITT. I think it has to be done an agency-by-agency basis. 
The concern you've articulated is one that is unique to the De­

partment of Energy. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Why should contracting out be done on an agency­

by-agency basis, but the thrust of and the initiative for the Federal 
work force is done across the board? 

Mr. HEWITT. We have not departed too much from that ethic. We 
have designed broad guidelines. And we have committed discretion 
in--
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Mr. SIKORSKI. You're absolutely right. And I am not arguing 
that. But there is a top of the pyramid on the Federal work force. 
That's why we are here. Where's the top of the pyramid for the 
Federal work force that's not part of the civil service? 

Mr. HEWITT. I think what you might be running in to is the re­
ality of the great deal of variety when you're dealing with contract­
ing out. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. No. I'm running in to the reality of philosophy. 
There's a bunch of people who think contracting out is God's 

greatest gift. And this is part of their ideology. And they're not 
willing to apply the same kinds of concerns that they're ready to 
apply to the Federal work force because they've been bumping on 
them for a long time to contract out employees. 

And, secondly, there's an unwillingness to recognize the security 
problems associated with contracting out the security facilities. 
We've beaten them. 

1 would ask that you localize, for the subcommittee's purposes, 
someone-and I'm sure it will be outside of OPM-to request to be 
here to talk about the contracting out situation, especially in na­
tional security areas. 

Employee assistance programs. You talk about, on page four of 
your statement, all Federal agencies are training their supervisors 
and managers on how to deal with employees who have a work per­
formance or behavior problem that may relate to alcohol or drug 
abuse. 

What's the basis for that statement? 
Mr. HEWITT. The basis for that statement is that we offer, three 

times a year, a course-and we intend to beef this up-to train em­
ployee assistance administrators for those programs. 

At the same time, we are developing, and it's very close to being 
launched, the supervisory training. We've already done the demon­
stration project. We used the unions to help develop that. We used 
outside experts, the best medicine has to offer, on how to identify 
and refer employees who are in trouble with drugs. 

We will be launching that. We will be offering it intensively. 
The interest in the work force is immense. We think it will be 

one of our most subscribed courses of training. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. I'm not critical of you or what you're trying to do 

with the resources you have. 
You have to understand, though, I read these statements for a 

full value. And it says all Federal agencies are training their su­
pervisors and managers on how to deal with employees who have a 
work performance or behavior problem that may relate to alcohol 
or drug abuse. 

I asked you what the basis is for that statement of fact. 
Mr. HEWITT. Well, that's our employee assistance programs. 

They have been in place for twelve years. 
One of the jobs of the EAP Administrator is to make sure that 

he goes to the agency, that he offers this kind of training. And 
OPM performs the oversight of this. And we are happy with the 
way that it has gone. 

We recognize that the demands are probably going to increase. 
And we are training the administrators on a more frequest basis. 
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Mr. SIKORSKI. This is the old program that has been in exist-
ence---

Mr. HEWITT. Since 1976. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. In every agency. 
Mr. HEWITT. Yes, sir. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. I'm going to ask the HHS person how many super-

visors are at HHS later on. 
How many supervisors are at the Department of Education? 
Mr. HEWITT. I don't know. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Hundreds? 
Mr. HEWITT. I don't even have a clue. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. What agency are you familiar with? 
Mr. HEWITT. Well, OPM has a work force of about five thousand. 

I would wager we have five hundred supervisors. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. That's a guess. 
Mr. HEWITT. I could be wrong. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. And have they been trained? 
Mr. HEWITT. Over the course of many years, I believe they have, 

just like with our ethics training component. 
We work through our building on a revolving schedule. I believe 

we train them. I believe everyone knows where the EAP is. 
We offer intensive sorts of help courses. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. I don't think that the facts bear out that statement 

of fact. But I would ask you to supply us for the record the basis 
for that statement, and the numbers that are attached to it in 
terms of supervisors and managers that exist in the Federal work 
force, and the numbers that have been trained in, say, the last five 
years, the last two years, and the numbers that have been trained 
since the President's Executive Order of last September, and any 
other. 

Mr. HEWITT. Certainly. 
[The information follows:] 
As of October 31, 1985, there were 248,372 supervisors and managers in the Feder­

al work force. In fiscal year 1986, 5,785 supervisors and managers took advantage of 
OPM-provided training in which this type of training was given. OPM does not have 
numbers of employees trained by individual agencies. Thus, the number of supervi­
sors and managers attending agency-sponsored training in this area is not included 
in this figure. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. You talk about a supervisor training program 
that's coming up later this spring. 

Mr. HEWITT. Yes. That's the new one. That is the new one that is 
not for EAP Administrators, but is for supervisors to recognize 
drug abuse. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. And that will be on-line--
Mr. HEWITT. Very shortly I would imagine, within the month, be­

cause the module has already been done. It has been tested out. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. How many people are going to be in that program? 
Mr. HEWITT. We will offer it to fit demand. We expect demand to 

be very high because of the expressions of interest we have had in 
it thus far. We will run until it's-we will continue to run it for 
years. I doubt it will ever go out of our inventory of training 
courses. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. No. Because· of new training. 
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But we have probably over a hundred thousand supervisors in 
the Federal work force, probably sufficiently more than that. How 
many? And how many dollars are going to be in this program? 

Mr. HEWITT. Well, the training programs are reimbursable by 
the agency. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Yes. 
Mr. HEWITT. So, OPM does not have to put up the money for it, 

other than development costs, which we have already sunk into the 
program. 

We can offer it as much as demand requires. It is simply with 
any training program you have a lead-in development time, you 
have a testing time, and then you go in to full implementation. 
And demand drives the offering of it. And we expect a large 
demand. We will meet it. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. A large demand like--
Mr. HEWITT. Well, I cannot predict. We have expressions of inter-

est from a number of agencies. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Okay. 
Mr. HEWITT. They want to send their supervisors for it. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. YTould you put some numbers on that? 
Mr. HEWITT. I'd like to do that for the record. 
[The information follows:] 
Twenty-seven sessions of the new two-day course for supervisors and managers on 

establishing a drug-free Federal workplace have already been requested through 
OPM's regional training centers. This number of sessions demonstrates substantial 
interest on the part of the agencies in sending their supervisors and managers to 
this course. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Okay. 
I commend you for your poster initiative with the various unions 

and the managers association and others on the employee assist­
ance program. 

I thought on education and training that initiative was different. 
You have, under '70 and '72 laws, the employee assistance pro­

grams for-and I quote from your record-appropriate prevention, 
treatment, and rehabilitation of Federal workers in all the depart­
ments and agencies. 

You state in your statement-that some of these programs are 
very good and some are quite dormant. 

Mr. HEWITT. I don't know which ones would be on the latter. 
We do, as I mentioned to you, have a new initiative at OPM, that 

in our six hundred annual installation visits the status of the EA 
program has been bumped to the top. 

Weare going to look intensively at that in the coming years to 
make sure that they are all excellent. We're going to encourage 
consortia arrangements among smaller agencies that might not 
have the facilities to establish a full-fledged EAP that a major 
agency would. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. For the record, when you talk about agency em­
ployee assistant program administrators and counselors, you say 
three-quarters of them have experience. Would you give us the uni­
verse, how many numbers we're talking about? And then you talk 
about on-site visits and annual report submissions. Could you give 
us numbers for those as well? 

[The information follows:] 
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Program administrators.-In the aggregate, Federal agencies employ approximate­
ly 90 EAP Program Administrators. Some of these administrators perform their 
EAP jobs as collateral duties in conjunction with their official positions as personnel 
officials, employee health services managers, etc. 

Counselors.-Federal agencies reported to OPM that they utilized approximately 
940 staff years in conducting their EAP's in fiscal year 1986. Included in this 
number are the staff years devoted to program administration as described above. 
In addition, these staff years represent counseling, administrative/clerical support, 
and program coordination services provided in support of EAP programs. The vast 
majority of these staff years were devoted to counseling services, although we do not 
have a specific breakdown available. 

Evaluations of EAP programs.-In fiscal year 1986, OPM conducted on-site eval­
uations of the scope and effectiveness of employee assistance programs in nine dif­
ferent Federal agencies. 

OPM is currently developing an on-site evaluation mechanism for EAP programs 
which will become a component of OPM's ongoing, installation-based, personnel 
management evaluation program. This component will be field tested in late fiscal 
year 1987 and used to gather and evaluate information on 500 to 600 agency instal­
lations in fiscal year 1988. 

Analyses of annual report submissions.-In fiscal year 1986 OPM reviewed annual 
report submissions from 90 Federal agencies. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. You have a four-day course on administering the 
employee counselling services program. 

In fiscal year 1985 you spent 11.8 million. In fiscal year 1986, 
15.5 million. You didn't. The entire Executive Branch did, all these 
agencies in this employee assistance program. And that equals the 
sixty-some million dollars the OMB is talking about for one year of 
testing. 

Mr. HEWITT. I am not certain if that fifteen million is included in 
that sixty million figure. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. No, it's not included. 
Mr. HEWITT. I don't know. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. I'm just trying to compare apples and oranges. 
We have 15.5 million in fiscal year 1986 for the entire Executive 

Branch employee assistance program for alcohol and drug abuse 
before the big media blitz last summer. I expect that it will be 
around that, maybe some more for counselling. We hope that it 
will be some more. 

But that compares to about sixty million dollars, for it's about a 
four to one ratio for drug testing. 

Mr. HEWITT. To make a completely accurate comparison, though, 
Mr. Chairman, you would have to take into account the things we 
have done with FEHB to ensure that rehabilitation benefits are in­
cluded among health benefits, something that we insisted upon 
with our carriers last year and which we successfully negotiated 
"With a number of them, including the largest one, Blue Cross/Blue 
Shield. 

So, to successfully do that, you'd have to see the reciprocal ef­
fects of what OPM has done to assure the care and assistance. 

The EAP's are a referral service and a guidance service. 
We are providing for the helping hand in the private sector by 

demanding in our contracts with our largest carriers that they 
offer a benefit to employees for rehabilitation. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. The EAP is the extension of the helping hand. The 
counselling, that is triggered either through EAP or, more likely, 
through the health employee benefit plan package program, is the 
actual helping hand. 
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Mr. HEWITT. They're one and the same. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. My point is that it's going to cost us sixty-some 

million dollars minimum to urine test compared to fifteen million 
to refer and counsel. 

Mr. HEWITT. But without the latter we'll never get them to the 
former. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. That's not true. You have 13,167 employees who 
are counselled in fiscal year 1986 for alcohol abuse. 

Mr. HEWITT. Well, I'm speaking in terms of the drug abusers, 
those who would not self-select, who will be identified by random 
drug testing. 

I think it is a certainty that they would not otherwise have vol­
unteered until the crisis became so unmanageable that perhaps 
treatment was far more difficult. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. It's growing late. 
As I read this through very carefully, I had more and more and 

more questions and some of which I shared with you. I have others. 
And we will ask OPM to respond to them. 

Again, thank you. 
Connie, do you have any questions? 
Mrs. MORELLA. Thank you very much. 
You certainly have had a gruelling situation here. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Yes. 
Mrs. MORELLA. We appreciate your candor and willingness to 

work with us. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Yes. Thank you. 
Mr. HEWITT. Thank you both. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. We will expect that we will see more of OPM as we 

go through this process. Thank you, Mr. Hewitt. 
Mr. HEWITT. Thank you. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Our next witness is Dr. Michael Walsh from the 

Department of Health and Human Services. 
Dr. Walsh is the Director of the Office of Workplace Initiatives 

at the National Institute on Drug Abuse. 
Dr. Walsh is one of the main authors of the Department of 

Health and Human Services' scientific and teclmical guidelines for 
agency drug testing programs and has spent over twenty years ex­
amining the effects of drug use on job performance for the Federal 
Government. 

STATEMENT OF J. MICHAEL WALSH, DIRECTOR, OFFICE OF 
WORI{PLACE INITIATIVES, NATIONAL INSTITUTE ON DRUG 
ABUSE 

Dr. WALSH. What I would like to do is to excerpt from my formal 
testimony and try to hit the main points in around five minutes' 
time, if that is all right. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Good. 
You benefit from the clock. We will be much quicker with you. 

Thank you. 
Dr. WALSH. All right. 
Mr. Chairman and members of the subcommittee, I am Dr. Mi­

chael Walsh, Director of the Office of Workplace Initiatives, Na­
tional Institute on Drug Abuse. 
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We are grateful to the subcommittee for this opportunity to dis­
cuss the Department of Health and Human Services' technical and 
scientific guidelines for agency drug testing programs which were 
developed in accordance with the Executive Order 12564 issued by 
the President on September 15th, 1986. 

I'd like to note here that the basic purpose of the Federal drug 
program is to help substance abusing employees to enter into treat­
ment, provide them with the assistance that they need, and to get 
them back on the job. 

We want to get employees who use drugs to stop, and we want to 
encourage other employees to avoid the dangers of drug abuse. 

Clearly, drug testing in the Federal work force is a sensitive area 
of endeavor, which follows a course strewn with difficult questions 
of medicine, human relations, law, science, and ethics. 

The Department of Health and Human Services has attempted 
to address the many issues involved. Frankly, the guidelines under­
went numerous revisions in an attempt to strike a balance between 
the rights and responsibilities of the Federal Government with the 
reasonable expectations of privacy and confidentiality that every 
Federal employee deserves. 

We at HHS feel that we have met the goals set out by the Presi­
dent and the Secretary of Health and Human Services to develop 
reasonable and appropriate procedures which respect the individ­
ual rights and civil liberties of all Federal employees. 

The guidelines prescribe procedures under which urine speci­
mens are taken at a designated collection site without observation. 

The collection procedure is similar to what we all have experi­
enced in any physical examination or in a visit to our personal 
physician's office. 

In order to follow the intent of the Executive Order, that is, al­
lowing individual privacy while providing a specimen and main­
taining the jutegrity of the specimen collection process, the HHS 
guidelines require that precautionary measures be taken to pre­
vent substitution, dilution, or adulteration of specimens. 

The guidelines require a two-step process in analyzing urine for 
abused drugs. First, an initial screening test is used to separate the 
truly negative specimens from those that appear to be positive. Sec­
ondly, the guidelines require a confirmatory assay whenever the 
initial screen is positive. 

When two different assays that operate on different chemical 
principles both give a positive result, the possibility that a cross re­
acting substance or a methodological problem could have created 
the positive result is virtually eliminated. 

Specimens found negative on the initial screen are reported as 
negative and are discarded. 

Specimens found positive on the initial screen but negative on 
the confirmation assay are reported as negative and are discarded. 

Only specimens that test positive on both the screen and confir­
mation assays are reported out as positive. 

Much of the criticism and concern regarding the accuracy and 
reliability of drug testing in fact reflects the intrinsic limitations of 
the initial screening assays. Any diagnostic screening technique, by 
definition, requires a more specific assessment before treatment is 
initiated. 
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Concerns about cross-reacting substances, that is, legal sub­
stances that produce a positive result on a screen, have principally 
been a problem for programs where action is taken on the basis of 
the initial screening test and th~re is no confirmation test. 

As Dr. Miike of the Congressional Office of Technology Assess­
ment has testified previously before this committee, and I quote, 
"There are intrinsic limitations for drug screening tests, and errors 
are inevitable from other substances in the urine and from labora­
tory performance errors, especially in mass screening programs. 
However, when positive results from the initial screen tests are 
confirmed with a more specific test, such as the gas chromato­
grapy/mass spectrometry method, the results are highly reliable 
and difficult to dispute." 

The HHS guidelines for laboratory analysis procedures are quite 
rigorous. There are comprehensive requirements for inter.nal and 
external quality control procedures, laboratory accreditation, and 
external proficiency testing. 

The procedurt.Js that have been specified in the Technical and 
Scientific Guidelines for Federal Drug Testing Programs are appro­
priate and reasonable and include many safeguards to ensure the 
high level of accuracy and reliability which is required for this Fed­
eral drug testing program. 

An essential part of the entire program is the final review of the 
results. 

A positive laboratory test, even a confirmed positive test, does 
not automatically identify an employee or an applicant as an ille­
gal drug user. 

The guidelines require that agencies must employ a licensed phy­
sician with knowledge of substance abuse disorders to review and 
interpret confirmed positive test results obtained through the agen­
cy's testing program prior to the transmission of those results to 
the agency. 

In conducting the review, the medical review officer, which is 
what we call this individual, will contact the employee who yields a 
confirmed positive result and afford that employee the opportunity, 
in a confidential medical setting, to offer alternate medical expla­
nations for the positive test result. 

This physician is required to review all medical records that the 
employee chooses to make available when a confirmed positive test 
could have resulted from legally prescribed medication. 

Should any question arise as to the veracity of the laboratory 
result, the medical review officer is authorized to order a reanaly­
sis of the original specimen. 

If the medical review officer determines a legitimate medical ex­
planation for the postive test result, no further action will be 
taken. 

In summary, in developing the Technical and Scientific Guide­
lines for Federal Drug Testing Programs, the Department of 
Health and Human Services has made every effort to protect the 
rights of Federal employees while canying out the Executive Order 
of the President. 
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Mr. Chairman, that concludes my remarks. I would, be-happy to 
answer any questions that you or the members of the committee 
may have. 

[The statement of Mr. Walsh follows:] 
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Mr. Chairman and members of the Subconrnittee, I am Dr. 14ichael Halsh, Director 

of the Office of Horkplace Initiatives, National Institute on Drug Abuse. He 

; are grateful to the Subcorrmi ttee for thi s opportuni ty to di scuss the 

Department of Health and Human Services I (HHS) technical and scientific 

guidelines for agency drug testing programs, developed in accordance with 

Executive Order No. 12564 that was issued by the President on September 15, 

1986. In addition to ordering the development of technical and scientific 

guidelines for agency drug testing programs, the Executive Order directed that 

such programs insure individual privacy of employees in the implementation of 

such programs and that HHS assure the accuracy and reliability of the 

procedul'es and the laboratory techniques. 

Let me note here that the basic purpose of the Federal Drug Program is to hel p 

substance abusing employees to enter into treatment, provide them ~Iith the 

assistance they need, and get them back on the job. We want to get employees 

who use drugs to stop, and we want to encourage other employees to avoid the 

dangers of drug abuse. 

The Secretary of HHS requested that the Alcohol, Drug Abuse and Mental Health 

Administration and, specifically, the National Institute on Drug Abuse, draft 

these guidelines. The Secretary further directed that the guidelines be 

reasonable and appropriate and that adequate safeguards be provided for both 

employees and the agency. Therefore, from the outset, the goal of the 

Department of Health and Human Services was to develop policies and procedures 

which would require that Federal Agency dl'ug testing programs must be 

conducted with the highest regard for protecting employee rights. 



Developm~nt of th~ Guideli~~~ 

The Natlonal institute on Drug Ahuse conv~n~d a task force involving all levels 

of the Department of Health and Human Services to draft the initial version of 

the guidelines. This draft was reviewed by the Public Health Service and 

recommendations were made by the other Health Agencies including: the Food and 

Drug Administration, the National Institutes of Health, the Health Resources 

and Services Administration, and the centers for Disease Control. ·Subsequent 

revi~w at the Department level inco~porated recommendations from other 

Departmental Agencies. In addition to input from all levels within the 

Depa~tment of Health and Human Servir.es, the development effort was 

coordinated with the Department of Justice, Department of Defense. Office of 

Personnel Management. and the White House Office of Drug Abuse Policy. 

Clearly. drug testing in the Federal workforce is a sensitive area of endeavor 

which follows a course strewn with difficult questions of medicine, human 

relations. law. science. and ethics. The Department of Health and Human 

Services has addressed the many issues involved. These guidelines underwent 

numerous revisions in an attempt to strike a balance between the rights and 

responsibilities of the Federal government with the reasonable expectations of 

privacy and confidentiality that every Federal employee deserves. 

We at HHS feel that we have met the goals set out by the President and the 

Secretary. Health and Human Services to develop reasonable and appropriate 

procedures which respect the individual rights and civil liberties of all 

Federal employees. 

2 
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Technical Aspects of Drug Testing 

The fiHS guidelin~s presrribe prt)cedure$ unJer "Ihich each urine s;>ecimen 

taken in a designated collec"Cion room Wit~Ollt observation. TIle collection 

procedure is similar to \1hat we all have expeo-ienced in any physical 

examination, or visit to our personal physician's office. 

Practical experience with drug testing has shown that specimen collection is 

the most vulnerable Dart of any drug testing program. Difficulties with chain 

of custody procedures frequently occur at the point of collection. It is 

absolutely essential to be able to document that the specimen in question came 

from the Federal employee identified on the label and the supporting 

documents. In addition, for any drug detection program to be c;"edible, 

precautions must be taken to assure that a fr~sr. urine specimen is collected 

that has not been substituted, adulter,t~d, or diluted with any liquid. 

The best method of assuring the chain of custody and preventing specimen 

substitution or adulteration is observation of the specimen collection. 

Witnessed collection is the method that the Department of Defense has used 

excl usively since the inception of its drug testing program in 1981, and it i!i 

widely used in the private sector hy many of the largest corporations in 

America. Executive Order No. 12564 requires that procedures must allow 

individual privacy unless the agency has reason to believe that a particular 

individual may alter or substitute the specimen to be provided. 

In order to follo~1 the intent of the Executive Order, that is, allowing 

individual privacy while providing a specimen, while maintaining the integrity 

3 
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of the specimen col1ection process, the HHS Guidelines requil"e that two 

precautionary measures be taken to prevent substitution, dillit'ion l:r 

adultel"ation of specimens: 1 i that bluing agents :'e placed 1n tile toilet 

tanks and in the bowl so that the reservoir of water "emair.s blue and that 

there be r.o other SCJl!I"Ce of water in the enclosure where urina-:-ion cccurs. 

This precaution is taken to prevent the dilution of the specime~ by collecting 

water from the toilet itself and adding it to the specimen. The dye in the 

water would change the ,pecimen color and specimen dilution can be easily 

detected. Past experience with drug treatment centers indicate that drug 

abusers will lise the toilet w~ter to dilute their specimen to avoid detection 

of their drug use. 2) Immediately after collection, the collection site 

personnel are required to measure the temperature of the specimen. Human 

urine normally has a temperature which is quite close to body temperature, 

varying from it only a by maximum of a few degrees. Specimens outside this 

temperature range give rise to reasonable suspicion that adulteration or 

substitution has occurred. 

Dr. BO~len has stated that in his view, "These guid~lines provide the greatest 

possible privacy for the individual, consistency in testing procedures, 

secIJri ty for specimens, and accuracy in 1 aboratory resul ts. " 

Laboratory Analysis Procedures 

The HHS Guidelines require a two step process in analyzing urine for abused 

drugs. An initial screening test separates the truly negative specimens from 

those that appear to be positive. The gUidelines require a confirmatory assay 

4 
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whenever the in:tial screen is positive. When two differe~t assays that 

operate on different chemical principles both give a positive result, the 

possibility that il "cross reactir.g" SUDst3!'!ce or a methodological pro:'lem 

could have created a positive resu'lt is elimin8ted. 

The HHS Guidelines require that an immunoassay test approved by the Food and 

Drug Administration be used as the initial screening assay, and that the 

confirmation of an initial pusitive be accomplished by the gas 

chromatography/mass spectrometry (Gc/r~S) method. Specimens found negative on 

the screen are reported as negative ~nd ~re discarded. Specimens found 

positive on the screen and negative on confirmation are reported as negative 

and are discarded. Only specimens that test positive on both the screen and 

confirmation assays are reported as positive. Specimens confirmed positive 

shall be retained and placed in properly secured long-term frozen storage for 

at least 365 days. Within this 365 day period, an agency may request that the 

laboratory retain the specimen for an additional period of time. This ensures 

that the urine specimen will be ~vailable for a possible retest during any 

administrative or disciplinary proceedi~g. 

Most of the concern and cri ti ci sm regardi ng the accuracy and rel i abil i ty of 

drug testing, in fact, reflects the intrinsic limitations of the initial 

screening assays. Any diagnostic screening technique, by definition, requires 

a more specific assessment before treatment is initiated. Concerns about 

cross-reacting substances, that is, legal substances that produce a positive 

result on a screen, have principally been a problem for programs where action 

is taken on the basis of an initial screening test and there is no 

5 
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confirmation test. As Dr. Miike, from the Congressional Office of Technology 

Assessment, 03S testified previou ly before this committee, "There are 

intrinsic lirnitations for drug sc 'eening tests and errors are inE:vitable from 

other sub~ta~ces in the urine ~nd from laboratory perform~nce errors, 

especi ally in mass screen'ing prog 'ams. However, when posi tive resul ts fl'om 

the screening tests are confirmed with a specific test, such as, GC/MS the 

l'esults are highly reliable and difficult to dispute." 

It is the position of the Departm!nt of Health and HUman Services that 

positive urinalysis rosults shoul j always be confirmed by an alternate method 

from that used for the initial sc 'een, and at this time the GC/MS method is 

the only authorized technique. 

The guidelines for laboratory ana ysis procedures are quite rigorous. There 

are comprehensive requirements fo' internal and external quality control 

procedures, laboratory accreditation, and external proficiency testing. The 

procedures that have been specif; .!d in the Techni cal and Sci entifi c Gui del i nes 

for Federal Drug Testing Programs are appropriate and reasonable and include 

many safeguards to ensure the high level of accuracy and rel iability required 

for the Federal testing program. 

Reporting and Review of Test Results 

An essential part of the drug testing program is the final review of the 

results. A positive laboratory test result does not automatically identify an 

employee or an appli cant as i:lO il egal drug user. The gui del i nes requi re that 

5 
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agen~ie5 must emplcy a licensed physician with knowledge of 5ubstance abuse 

disorders. The role of this "Medical Review Officer" is to review and 

interpret confirmed positive test result3 obt"ined through the Agency's 

testi!1g program. This indivldual wnl serve as the interface between the 

laboratory and the agency administrative personnel. In conducting the review, 

the Medi cal Revi ew Offker (MRO I wi 11 contact the employee who yi el ds a 

confirmed positive result and afford the employee the opportunity in a 

confidential medical setting to offer alternate medical explanations for the 

positive test result. The t~RO is required to review all medical records that 

the employee chooses to make available when a confirmed positive test could 

have resulted from legally prescribed medication. Should any question arise 

as to the veracity of the laboratory result, the MRO is authorized to order a 

reanalysis of the original specimen. If the t~RO determines a legitimate 

medical explanation for the positive test result, no further action will be 

taken. If the r~RO verifies the laboratory assessment that illicit drug use 

has occurred the case will be referred, as determined by agency policy, to the 

employee assistance program or administrative office for disposition. 

In summary, in developing the Technical and Scientific Guidelines for Federal 

Drug Testing Programs, the Department of Health and Human Services has made 

every effort to protect the rights of Federal employees while carryi'1Y out the 

Executive Order of the President. 

001 OW 
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Mr. SIKORSKI. Thank you. 
rd like you to refer to your guidelines. Who came up with the 

toilet bluing business? 
Mr. WALSH. As I mentioned in my statement, there are two pre­

cautionary measures that need to be taken to prevent substitution, 
dilution, or adulteration of the specimens. These were developed to 
adhere to the President's request that specimens be collected in 
private, and that the individual Federal employee, unless there was 
some basis for suspicion that that employee was going to try and 
subvert the process, be allowed to go into a bathroom, and close the 
door, and provide the specimen in private. 

In order to protect the integrity of the system, based on our long­
term experience with drug treatment programs, we put in two pre­
cautionary measures into the guidelines. First, that a dye be placed 
in the toilet-blue specifically, because it is already very readily 
available for toilets. One of the ways to easily subvert the system 
is, when providing a specimen, to scoop up clear water out of the 
bowl, which would dilute the amount of concentration of the drug 
in the volume of specimen that is being provided. 

The amounts of drug being detected in these specimens are very, 
very small. And by diluting the specimen in half, you can avoid de­
tection. 

The purpose of the dye was simply to color the water so that if 
an employee provides a green or purple colored urine specimen 
that would constitute grounds for reasonable suspicion that the 
specimen has been tampered with. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Either that or they're from a differ.ent solar. 
system. 

Mr. WALSH. Yes. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Doesn't the temperature test do the same thing? 
If a specimen was diluted to any extent, it would be a different 

temperature, unless you have heated urine bowls. 
Mr. WALSH. Well, I suppose that an individual could sit in the 

lavatory long enough, holding the specimen in his or her hands, to 
bring it up to within the range within which we've specified in the 
guidelines as a secondary precaution to be taken. 

Typically, this is what methadone treatment programs have used 
over the last twenty years. It is certainly noninvasive and relative­
ly inexpensive to put in a package dye. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. We heard a little discussion earlier-you were 
here-on the distinctions. 

Certainly not people on the methadone program are the same, 
the same people we're talking about here in the Federal work force 
for random testing. 

I mean you've got a voluntary program of drug abusers who have 
signed up for a program. And it's a monitoring, usually at some 
compulsion associated with a criminal charge and a lot different 
here. 

Maybe it's a distinction without any difference. But I wouldn't 
look for parallels, especially in the random testing of the Federal 
work force, with people in a Methadone program and their circum­
stances for being there. 

You are going to test for, at minimum, marijuana and amphet­
amines? 
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Mr. WALSH. Cocaine. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Cocaine. And maybe opiates, amphetamines, and 

PCP? 
Mr. WALSH. That's correct. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Why not alcohol? 
Mr. WALSH. The decision not to include alcohol in this program 

was based on a number of issues. Principally, at the time the Exec­
utive Order was issued, in the interim, and when these guidelines 
were being developed, many health related organizations, the Epi­
lepsy Foundation, Diabetese Foundation, and many mental health 
organizations petitioned the Federal Government to be very cau­
tious about ensuring that the collection of body fluids could not be 
misused in making employment decisions based on other health-re­
lated disorders. 

So, in a conscious effort, the Executive Order limited testing to 
only those drugs covered in Schedule I or II of the Controlled Sub­
stances Act. Alcohol is not included there. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. But did the epilepsy or the diabetic groups request 
that you not test for alcohol? 

Mr. WALSH. No, sir. I believe the decision was made-however it 
was not one I actively participated in-based on the sole purpose of 
the Executive Order, which is to target the illicit use of illegal sub­
stances. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Everything I've seen in the President's statement 
and everything else talks about drug and alcohol. 

And certainly the numbers are much greater with alcohol in 
terms of abuse, in terms of dollars, in terms of efficiency, in terms 
of families, in terms of economics, society, whatever. They're all 
stacked up against alcohol, right? 

Mr. WALSH. Alcohol is a significant public health problem, that's 
correct. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. It's the number one drug of abuse is it not? 
Mr. WALSH. I would say it's certainly far out in front, yes, sir. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Is it expensive, more expensive to test for alcohol 

besides marijuana and cocaine? 
Mr. W ALBH. The use of a breathalyzer to detect blood alcohol con­

centration is relatively inexpensive and noninvasive. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. But on these urine tests, if you threw in alcohol, 

does it evaporate or is it--
Mr. WALSH. No. You can detect alcohol in urine. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. But is it more expensive? 
Mr. WALSH. It would add a small additional cost. 
Each different drug that you test for would essentially add a 

small additional cost, because each class of drugs that you test for 
is a separate test. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. I'm not trying to make light of it. But there is a 
real potential in alcohol abuse among everyone in society, and 
among Presidential appointments and others who are making these 
decisions. And I think that if we are going to do these random 
tests, if this is what we have come to, and if we're going to test in 
areas that there's some agreement in extreme national security, 
public health and safety, and rationalize the expenditure of money 
and resources for this purpose, then it seems to me the number one 
drug for abuse should be in the test as well. 
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Mr. WALSH. That's a very reasonable position. It was our task at 
the Department of Health and Human Services, to develop guide­
lines to implement the Executive Order, which did not include alco­
hol. 

Me. SIKORSKI. Ed Meese drinks. Ronald Reagan drinks. I see him 
toasting all the time. Most of our society drinks. And the numbers 
are horrendous if you look at drinking compared to other drugs in 
costs, damage across the board, yet the people who made the deci­
sion to get about this drug crusade eliminated the one drug that 
they themselves use. 

On the issue of privacy, you talked about people going into this 
restroom, and closing the door, and the rest of it. 

You're going to have people in the restroom, and they will be 
able to go into a stall, is that correct? 

Mr. WALSH. The guidelines require that the agency designate a 
place, which would include a collection site person, the equipment, 
and forms, and so forth. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. If the collection site is a public restroom, then they 
have to have those. 

What other kind of situation would there be? 
Mr. WALSH. What you were reading about would be an exception­

al case. If you were unable to get to the official collection site in a 
situation such as an accident investigation, or for some reason 
there was a requirement to obtain a specimen immediately, then 
you would follow those requirements. 

However, in my estimation, at most official collection sites, they 
would have a normal bathroom facility, where there would be a 
closed door, and the collection site person would be outside. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. But most of those would have a sink in them. 
Mr. WALSH. The guidelines also r8quire that there be no access 

to any other water other than the dyed water in the bowl. That's 
essential to the collection process. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. You're talking about expenditures of some money 
to set up these collection sites. 

Mr. WALSH. I think within the Washington area there could be 
relatively few sites to handle most of the Federal employees who 
may be tested. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. You mean they're going to travel? If you work at 
HHS, you're going to have to go some other place-or if you work 
for FDA out in Rockville, you're going to drive some place else? 

Mr. WALSH. Well, for example, in Rockville we have six thousand 
employees in that building. It would be likely that there would be 
one official collection site somewhere, either in--

Mr. SIKORSKI. And that collection site, under your regulations, is 
going to take some work to construct. I mean we're not going to 
use any room. We're going to have a room without anything else, 
except probably a toilet. 

Mr. WALSH. That's correct. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. We'll have to have a toilet for some means of 

excess. Since you can't have another source of water in that room 
you're going to have to shut off the plumbing or do something else. 

Mr. WALSH. Yes. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. So, there is some money attached to that. 
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As I understand the situation, you're going to have someone in 
these rooms. Are these people-a male in a men's room and a 
female in a woman's room-going to be trained? Are there any 
guidelines with regards to the taking of those samples? 

Mr. WALSH. We are developing guidelines to train collection site 
persons. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Okay. 
What about sterile containers? 
Mr. WALSH. Basically, in terms of the equipment involved, we 

are borrowing from much of the technical aspects of the DOD drug 
program, since they've been in place for almost six years now. 

There are specimen containers that are available under GSA 
schedule, which would be appropriate for use in this program. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. But not sterile? I've been told that to prevent bac­
terial contamination, which can lead to test errors, especially in 
screening tests, you have to have sterile containers. 

Mr. WALSH. Most of the containers that I have seen are sterile. 
They're in plastic bags. And unless the lid is off, the inside of the 
container is sterile. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Is that the kind you're going to use? Are they steri­
lized or are they just in plastic bags? 

Mr. WALSH. They are processed in a sterile procedure I believe. 
According to the label, they are sterile. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Well, as I understand, then, these people are going 
to take the sample from the person. The person goes into one of 
these stalls, provides the sample, and fmishes the job, arranges the 
clothes, hands the sample to the taker or the site person. That site 
person then goes in and flushes the toilet and then checks to make 
sure that there's sixty milliliters of sample. Then the site person 
must immediately take the temperature of the specimen to make 
sure it's a regular temperature. Right? Then they take the temper­
ature. They check the color and any signs of contaminants. Right? 

Mr. WALSH. Well, the only time a collection site person would ac­
tually go into the bathroom or the stall and flush the toilet would 
again be in the exceptional case where an official collection site 
'Was not used. 

That would not be necessary in an official collection site. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Why do you flush the toilet in a public restroom 

site and not in a private site? 
Mr. WALSH. Well, if you've got your toilet '(vith the dye in it in 

the back so that even when you flush it the new water entering is 
also dyed, you don't need to take that precaution. vVhereas, in a 
toBet facility that has not been appropriately prepared, when you 
fluE'h you get clean water, which could easily be scooped up in the 
spedmen cup. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. I assume you wouldn't use a public restroom 
unless you had the blue dye in the water. 

Mr. WALSH. Item seven, in the procedures section, which I think 
you're referring to was written to cover unusual situations. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Where does the individual wash his or her hands? 
Mr. WALSH. The procedures require that there be a place in the 

official collection facility to wash their hands, both before and after 
providing a specimen. 
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Mr. SIKORSKI. I didn't see that in there. Maybe I missed it. 
Maybe you can point that out for the record where the guidelines 
state this process. 

Certainly, from a public health standpoint, it's important to do 
it. 

How about the person who is taking the sample and seals it? 
How does that person keep from contaminati..'lg the samples? Are 
they instructed to wash their hands? 

Mr. WALSH. It's most likely, in an official capacity, where an in­
dividual would be processing many specimens over the period of a 
day, that they would wear surgical gloves. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Do they take them off every time? How do you 
keep one sample from contaminating another another sample by 
the glove? 

As I understand, these samples can get contaminated very easily. 
And if someone handles the test at the lab or the test site, and 
there's some kind of drug or foreign matter present it can contami­
nate a sample. Or, am I wrong? 

Mr. WALSH. I don't have an answer. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Maybe you should answer that for the record. 
[The information follows:] 
There is virtually no possibility of "contaminating" a specimen by the person put­

ting on the seals on the specimen containers, unless the contamination is intention­
al (purposely adding u drug to the specimen). The minute quantity of drug which 
might be on the skin surface of a drug user, even if he or she put their fingers di­
rectly into the specimen would not create a sufficiently concentrated specimen to 
appear positive on a urine screen. 

Surgical gloves and related precautions are to keep the urine off the processor's 
hand to reduce the possibility of any infection which might be transferred by con­
tact with the urine. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. What happens in the shipping? Can the sample 
change its nature based on temperature or anything else? 

Mr. WALSH. Urine is a hardy specimen and does not need to be 
refrigerated, and can actually sit around for quite some time unre­
frigerated. 

However, over a long period of time without refrigeration, some 
of the metabolites of drugs would begin to degrade and disappear 
from the urine. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. You have this language and so does the Office of 
Personnel Management about unusual erratic behavior. 

Has anyone tried to put that into words? 
Mr. WALSH. Specific words? Again, we were trying to deal with 

general--
Mr. SIKORSKI. I'll take you over to the floor of the House and 

we'll see unusual behavior. 
Mr. WALSH. I think, certainly, if a balloon or a condom full of 

urine rolled out from under the stall, that would constitute unusu­
al behavior. 

If you subscribe to magazines like High Times or other drug cul­
ture magazines, there are often articles on how to beat the boss' 
drug tests which offer advice on drinking herbal teas or a quart of 
pickle juice to change the pH of your urine, as well as ways to 
obtain clean urine samples. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. A whole new economy is growing. Two new econo­
mies, the testing economy and the dumbfound the test economy. 
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Mr. WALSH. I think, frankly, that we acknowledge there are 
people that are going to be able to beat this system. 

Again, in trying to strike a balance between what is fair, and 
reasonable, and appropriate in terms of these procedures, we could 
not go to the extremes that might be required to catch those few 
individuals who will attempt to subvert the system. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Can you beat the system by changing from cocaine 
or marijuana to alcohol? 

Mr. WALSH. By stopping the use of marijuana and cocaine and 
beginning to drink? 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Yes. 
Mr. WALSH. Is that what you are saying? 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Yes. 
Mr. WALSH. Certainly. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. You can beat it. 
And if you can, you can move from marijuana to some other sub­

stitute? Do you have a background in these drugs? 
Mr. WALSH. Yes, sir. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Do you have to give notice to people of what drugs 

are going to be tested for? 
Mr. WALSH. Not necessarily. 
We have authorized agencies to test for these five classes of 

drugs. We require only that agencies test for marijuana and co­
caine. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Okay. 
Mr. WALSH. Essentially, we have recommended that agencies 

only include drugs in their test batteries where they assume there 
is a reasonable prevalence of that drug in the area. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. My question is-and I ask you for an honest 
answer-does that set up incentives to move to some other drug 
that's not tested for that might be more addictive, might be more 
diabolical? 

Mr. WALSH. That's certainly possible. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. These specimens are supposed to be tested within 

five working days, is that right? 
Mr. WALSH. That's correct. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. The laboratories must comply with applicable pro­

visions of any state licensure requirements. 
You have this certification process. Have you certified any labs 

yet? 
Mr. WALSH. At this point, we have authorized agencies who wish 

to begin immediately to use labs that are certified by the Depart­
ment of Defense until the IrrlS certification program is in place. 

We anticipate the program to be in place by the end of August. 
The certification process, however, will take several months in 
terms of actually performing on-site visits t.o the laboratory a:"d 
then processing several rounds of proficiency testing. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. You read the articles. It's not a new issue for you. 
The Department of Transportation last week disclosed that ~ositive 
drug test results from Conrail crew involved in January s fatal 
Amtrak train crash were flawed by, quote, procedural irregular­
ities, unquote, which to me, after reading that article-and that's 
all I know about it-seems to be a very light word for what hap­
pened. 
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It was a Keystone Cops kind of routine in terms of what hap­
pened, who tested what, and unsigned statements saying that there 
were no positives. 

At the same time, there were public statements being issued 
with regards to the test results that as a result of these tests, the 
Federal Railway Administration stopped using the Civil Aeromedi­
cal Institute in Oklahoma, supposedly one of the most credible labs 
in the country, to analyze urine and blood samples. 

The mass drug testing program hasn't even begun, and already 
we have some problems. 

Will your guidelines, however rigorous, prevent these kinds of 
lab screw-ups from occurring in multiples as the testing program 
grows? 

Mr. WALSH. Well, I think we're certainly going to minimize them 
to an absolute as Iowa level as technologically possible. 

I think one of the issues here is that there is a significant differ­
ence in terms of the kind of testing that is being done under this 
program and typical clinical laboratory testing. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. What? 
Mr . WALSH. The FAA's lab is not a certified lab for urinalysis 

testing. I think, typically, in their accident investigations, they look 
at a piece of liver, the heart, and some brain, as well as blood and 
urine. And then they take the data from all those organs and 
tissue and can come up with a reasonable estimate of what actual­
ly occurred. 

I think that there is a concern that many laboratories see that 
there's money to be made in this area and are beginning to convert 
and offer services for urinalysis testing. However, a significant 
amount of experience and expertise is required to do this job prop­
erly. 

The medical review officer in our program is really the critical 
aspect of the whole program. Because no matter how good your lab­
oratory is, no matter how good your technical procedure is, or how 
expensive the equipment that you have is, when you have humans 
typing labels on bottles and transforming computer data and num­
bers from one roster to the other, errors can occur. 

I think this point is essential. The laboratory really does not 
make the assessment. The laboratory talks about whether or not 
there is a presence of drug in the urine. If it's an amphetamine, it 
has to be the medical review officer that determines whether that's 
a legally prescribed amphetamine or whether illegal drug use has 
occurred. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. You talk about five working days of receipt of the 
specimen. The medical review officer gets the report. 

It took twenty days for Sandra Thomson's confirmatory results 
to be reported to her. Is there some requirement that it be done 
faster? 

Mr. WALSH. Absolutely. That would not be permitted under this 
program. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. And you're going to test. HHS is in charge of ac­
creditation, right? 

Mr. WALSH. That's correct. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. That's your job,. and only your job. 
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On the subject of the medical review officers, we have eighty 
major agencies and hundreds of other little agencies that are also 
charged under the Executive Order to come up with these pro­
grams. 

And as I remember your statement, you talk about the medical 
review officers being a key component. Do you have a list of medi­
cal review officers for the most important agencies? 

Mr. WALSH. We are currently developing a handbook for medical 
review officers, which is being written by an expert in the treat­
ment of substance abuse disorders who has a long history of treat­
ing impaired health professionals, as well as executives and blue­
collar workers. 

In terms of the medical review officers for each of the agencies, 
there is 110 list. 

We met with representatives of about sixty agencies last week at 
the General Services Administration to discuss the development of 
a consortium to try and pool the resources of the agencies to have 
a single medical officer who would service several agencies, as well 
as having perhaps a single laboratory contract to accommodate 
many agencies. 

The smaller agencies could buy into the contract. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. This is a big deal. The medical review officer acts 

as Solomon in terms of a positive and medical explanation. 
Mr. WALSH. He's really an ombudsman between the laboratory, 

the agency, and the employee. It is a very important role. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Is it going to be a medical person? 
Mr. WALSH. Yes, sir. A licensed physician who has some training 

in substance abuse disorders. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. And how about for these other agencies, these sub­

agencies? They're going to have to go into a consortia, too, right? 
Mr. WALSH. I think that makes a lot of sense in terms of the re­

ducing of the overall cost of this program to a minimum. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. You have model language for contract RFP's, re­

quest for proposals, for these collection sites, specimens, and to do 
the testing. 

You mean you're going to have these people come in? They're 
going to be from outside and be contracted out employees? 

Mr. WALSH. For the laboratory assays? 
Mr. SIKORSKI. No. To come in and-­
Mr . WALSH. The collection site folks? 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Yes. 
Mr. WALSH. Essentially, again, in trying to establish broad direc­

tion for the entire Federal Government, which is no small task 
when you begin to talk to the different agencies and the logistical 
problems that they have,--

Mr. SIKORSKI. And their unique circumstances. 
Mr. WALSH. What we tried to do was provide guidance in terms 

of how to secure the services that you would need. 
Many agencies will use the Federal Employee Health Benefit's 

units to do some of the work for them. Other agencies will include 
the collection process in their laboratory contract and have the lab­
oratory personnel actually come on site at certain times to do test­
ing. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Who's going to be testing the testers? 
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Mr. WALSH. In terms of the-­
Mr. SIKORSKI. Drug use. 
Mr. WALSH. Which testers? 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Were you here during our previous discussion? 
Mr. WALSH. Yes, sir. Do you mean the contract personnel? 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Contract and noncontract. 
As I understand, a little bit of an illicit drug which contaminates 

a specimen that's being analyzed, can make dramatic differences in 
the results of the test. 

Mr. WALSH. As Mr. Hewitt mentioned, there have been discus­
sions at the highest levels in terms of whether or not contract em­
ployees should be required to have drug testing programs in place 
before they do business with the Government. 

At this time, the decision has been made not to have a blanket 
requirement for all contractors with the Federal Government. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. How about for the people that are going to con­
tract in this program to do testing of other people? 

Mr. WALSH. Well, as Mr. Hewitt mentioned, the decision has 
been left to each agency where it is reasonable and appropriate. 
And, clearly, this is what it comes down to in terms of the constitu­
tional issue. 

It should be in all new contracts where appropriate. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. I don't buy that from your perspective. 
You're talking about accrediting these labs. If it's good for the 

goose, it's good for the gander. These are the people that are 
making the tests. -

And, some have suggested that heavy breath and other things 
can change the nature of the specimen. 

Are these labs going to have their people randomly tested by 
some other lab that's randomly tested, by some other lab that's 
randomly tested, by--

Mr. WALSH. We have not required that in the guidelines. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Are the MRO's going to get randomly tested? 
Mr. WALSH. It would seem to me that that would be reasonable. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. But it is not in the guidelines. 
Mr. WALSH. It is not specified in the guidelines, that's correct. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Regarding the people who do the collection at the 

sites, there's no compulsion in these guidelines that they be tested 
either. 

Mr. WALSH. That's correct. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Are these guidelines written in stone? Are you 

going to look at that issue? 
Mr. WALSH. Oh, no. Actually, these are not written in stone. We 

have instructed agencies, essentially, to put them in a loose-leaf 
binder, because we intend to update them routinely as this pro­
gram begins to develop and many of the problems begin to surface. 
We certainly will be amending and changing these guidelines as 
necessary. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Are you going to look at the issue of contract de­
velopment employees involved in the random testing? Not the issue 
I talked with OPM about. I'm talking about the people that are ac­
tually contracted out in the testing process. 

Mr. WALSH. I would certainly refer that issue to the Department 
level and/or the White House Office of Drug Abuse Policy. 
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Mr. SIKORSKI. There are other issues. We're going to look at this 
later in terms of other kinds of tests. 

Where's the money gGing to come for these tests, and setting up 
tl).e program? 

Mr. WALSH. It is my understanding that the money is going to be 
coming out of the operational administrative funds. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. And how about your program, the accreditation 
program? Where is that money coming from? 

Mr. WALSH. The initial accreditat.ion program will come out of 
our contract research funds this first year. 

The development of the accreditation standards has been under­
way for more than a year and a half. We have been working with 
many of the national certifying organizations that currently certify 
laboratories for other laboratory services. 

They have commented on our draft guidelines, and it is apparent 
that at least one, maybe more, of the national organizations will 
adopt standards very similar and offer certification for urinalysis 
testing for drugs through their certification program. 

If they matched our standards, we would certainly recognize 
their certification process. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. You have a whole range of important services in 
the Alcohol, Drug Abuse, and Mental Health Administration at 
HHS. And the money for this accreditation process is being taken 
out of the money that you received, and there are no additional 
monies going in to this. 

Mr . WALSH. Not at this time. Our main purpose is to develop a 
self-sustaining program, where the individual laboratories will an­
nually pay a certification fee to be certified, which would cover the 
cost of operating the entire program. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. And then they'll charge the other agencies? 
Mr. WALSH. Clearly, it gets passed on to the customer. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. What is the current status of HHS's drug testing 

program. 
Mr. WALSH. The policy is under development at this time. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Are you responsible for that? 
Mr. WALSH. No, sir, I am not. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Do you have an MRO over there? 
Mr. WALSH. I am not aware if one has been identified at this 

time. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. When is your plan coming down? Do you know? 
Mr. WALSH. I am not certain of the timetable. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Who's in charge of that? 
Mr. WALSH. The Assistant Secretary for Personnel Administra-

tion has been designated. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Have you been consulted on the HHS's program? 
Mr. WALSH. Yes, sir. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. What r.ort of employee assistance program does 

HHS have? 
Mr. WALSH. HHS has a number of contract programs all over the 

country. 
We in Rockville have our own in-house program, which is staffed 

by medical officers and personnel of the Public Health Ser.vice, 
commissioned officers. 
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The Health Resources and Services Administration, I might add, 
have just recently issued, approximately eight weeks ago, stand­
ards for accreditation of employee assistance programs. And all 
vendors of employee assistance programs now must meet those 
standards in order to do business 'JVith the Federal Government. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Do you have anything you want to add? 
Mr. WALSH. Well, I think, basically, that this is a very difficult 

issue. 
We're very plp-ased that this committee has been willing to invite 

us here and to listen with an open mind on this issue. 
We are trying velY hard to implement the President's drug 

abuse initiative and achieve the goal of a drug-free Federal work 
force. 

And I think, frankly, in my own experience over the past five 
years of dealing with many of the largest corporations in America, 
that the workplace programs probably are the best prospect that 
we have for turning around drug abuse in this country. But, clear­
ly, if they're going to be effective they have to be done intelligent­
ly. And that is what we are striving to do. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. And a major component of that is awareness, coun-
selling, treatment, and rehabilitation. 

Thank you very much. 
Mr. WALSH. Thank you. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Our next witness is Ken Blaylock, who has served 

as President of the American Federation of Government Employees 
for almost twenty years. And during this time he has been a force­
ful and highly effective leader and advocate for the more than 
seven hundred thousand employees AFGE represents. 

The subcommittee thanks you for being here this morning to dis­
cuss this important issue. 

And as we learn, and we learned this morning, the thing is not 
without some controversy or a host of legitimate questions. 

Good morning, Ken. 

STATEMENT OF KENNETH BLAYLOCK, PRESIDENT, AMERICAN 
FEDERATION OF GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES (AFL-CIO) 

Mr. BLAYLOCK. Good morning, Mr. Chairman. 
J have with me this morning my general counsel, Mark Roth. 
On behalf of hundreds of thousands of Federal employees, let me 

express my appreciation for your serious investigation of this whole 
proposal on drug testing of Federal employees that's before us. 

We are a bit bewildered by the sudden obsession, bordering on 
hysteria, with the drug problem at the Federal workplace. 

For years, Mr. Chairman, we've trained our officers alJ.d stewards 
regarding employees with substance abuse problems. And for years 
our locals have attempted to negotiate strong drug and alcohol 
treatment programs for Federal workers. 

Mter years of unrecognized struggle on the real battlflfield of 
substance abuse, our local leaders now find that their employer, in 
a blaze of publicity, haa decided to purge illegal drug use from the 
lives of Government employees by the use of broad scale drug test­
ing. 
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They have watched with not a little cynicism the political use of 
this issue, as leading political figures parade their urine samples 
before rolling cameras. 

Their cynicism is justified because this program is not a reasoned 
response to a real problem. 

Often, in discussing the Administration's drug testing program, 
the unreliability of the tests and the cost of the programs are cited 
as reasons for opposing the Administration's program. 

Although we agree that no program of this scale can be run one 
hundred percent accurate and this program will be very expensive 
and waste very scarce resources, we do not address these issues in 
our testimony here today. 

But even if the testing was one hundred percent accurate and 
was cost free we would oppose the program for other reasons. 

First, Mr. Chairman, Federal employees are American citizens, 
and they don't leave their constitutional rights at the door when 
they hire on to be Federal employees. 

In determining whether an individual has a reasonable expecta­
tion nf privacy and whether the governmental intrusion are rea­
sonatle, courts have generally weighed the need to search or seize 
against the invasion such actions entail, the co-called balance test. 

It's our position, in agreement '!{ith the courts, that random, 
without cause drug searching of Government employees cannot 
meet this test. 

They violate employees' reasonable expectation of privacy and 
are therefore unconstitutional. 

Our submitted statement fully develops this argument and cites 
key court decisions. 

It's degrading to innocent employees. 
Mr. Chairman, your predecessor, Representative Gary Acker­

man, graphically made this point last year, when he asked Rodney 
Smith, who was the Executive or Deputy Director of the Presi­
dent's Commission on Organized Crime, in this room, to undergo a 
drug test as part of the committee hearing. 

Mr. Smith refused that mo:ming. And when he was asked why, 
basically it was because it was embarrassing to him and it was de­
grading to him. And that's probably the only point that we agreed 
on with Mr. Smith. 

It sets a precedent of employers intruding on the private lives of 
their employees and raises a specter of Government as a Big Broth­
er. 

Employers in a free society cannot and should not seek to regu­
late the lives of their employees off the job unless such off-the-job 
behavior affects employees' abilities to do their job. 

The Government in a free society cannot and should not be al­
lowed to violate the sanctity of an individual's body without cause 
or reason. 

And I guess most of all, Mr. Chairman, we oppose these regula­
tions and this whole policy because it is irrelevant to resolving the 
real drug problem in our country. 

'rhe demand for illegal drugs is intertwined with poverty, jobless­
ness, disillusionment. And the ready supply of illegal drugs is tied 
to profits and organized crime. 
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Since neither demand nor supply are easily addressed, the easy 
answer is to address something else, namely, Federal employee 
drug use. 

The hypocritical nature of this substitution is highlighted by the 
Administration's efforts to slice some nine hundred million dollars 
from the anti-drug programs authorized by Congress and signed by 
the President in last year's Anti-Drug Abuse Act of 1986. 

So, while adopting a l1lUlti-million dollar program for wide-scale 
drug testing of government employees, where there is no evidence 
that a major problem really exists, money is cut from law enforce­
ment, drug abuse treatment services, educational programs, and 
interdiction efforts. 

We think, Mr. Chairman, it's time to get on with the business of 
addressing the real problem of the drug problem in this country 
and abandoll this side show of Federal employee drug testing as so­
called setting the pace for the public again. 

In final, this proposed program hinders the actual rehabilitation 
program in Government. 

And I noticed, Mr. Chairman, this morning previous witnesses 
stated that we are now establishing standards for real employee as­
sistance program in Government. 

I would point out that's fourteen years after the laws were 
passed and we were supposed to start the programs. 

A fundamental problem with the Administration's program is 
the issue of confidentiality and the independence of the employee 
assistance program. 

In talking with our locals with a history of successful drug abuse 
programs working in cooperation with the agency, they stressed 
that the employee assistance program must be perceived by the 
employees as existing to help them resolve their problems. It 
cannot be seen as existing to help the employer deal with problem 
employees. If it is, then the employees will not participate. 

The success also depends on a strong need for confidentiality and 
a separc.tion from adverse personnel actions. 

All of you read these regulations closely. You notice, immediate­
ly after they talk about the testing process and also the reasonable 
test, they immediately state in those regulations that agencies will 
me the results of those tests in an adverse action file on the em­
ployee. 

So, right up front it is tied to a job action against that worker. 
And I would say to you that no employee is going to voluntarily 
participate in a program of that nature. 

The OPM regulation section 3(e) invalldates the confidentiality 
and the independence of the employee assistance program. This 
provision encourages agency heads to mandate unannounced 
follow-up drug testing of all participants in an employee assistance 
program for drug reasons. 

If follow-up testing reveals drug use, such employees would be 
subject to immediate dismissal. 

Again, Mr. Chairman, nobody is going to participate voluntarily 
in a program of that nature. Because self-identification as an ille­
gal drug user now also carries with it under the Executive Order 
the likelihood of follow-up testing and subsequent firing, such em­
ployees are much less likely to voluntarily come forward. 
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We hope this committee will not only oppose the Administra­
tion's unwise and ill-conceived program, but will take a positive 
role in improving our understandings and actions of substance 
abuse problems. 

We would like to see our Government setting the pace and really 
resolving the problem of this country. Their approach, Mr. Chair­
man, is not the way to do it. 

We went through our files prior to this hearing and could come 
up with only, really, three examples of effective employee assist­
ance programs operating throughout Government. 

As you well know, we represent employees in sixty-seven agen­
cies of Government. We found that in the Kansas City Social Secu­
rity Payment Center we have a cooperative program with local 
management and outside assistance involved in a real employee as­
sistance program that apparently is a very, very effective program. 

We find GSA in Florida a very well operated program. Again all 
three players or parties playing an aggreGsive role. 

And we find that Local 12, which is the headquarters local, De­
partment of Labor, here in Washington, D.C., has a very effective 
program, Mr. Chairman. 

Beyond that, with a search of about a week of staff, it was very 
hard for us to come up with a program that we could recommend 
t(' this committee that are really working. 

But a lot of those programs-three things are happening. What 
we need is serious cooperation between union and management to 
give the program credibility, and there's joint effort there all the 
way through. We think that's very necessary. 

Now, Mr. Chairman, in the normal scheme of things-and, as 
you said, I've been in this town a long time-generally, regulations 
of this significance are being considered by the Office of Personnel 
Management. They generally contact the unions. And we sit down 
and talk them through. Because it is going to take everybody to 
make this program work. 

In this case, we had no contact by OPM. There was no consulta­
tion. There was no input. In fact, labor relations people at OPM 
who normally deal with the union didn't even know about this 
letter going out. 

We hope that the chairman and the committee does find out the 
origin of these regulations. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Is there someone from OPM still here today? No? 
They all left. 

Mr. BLAYLOCK. I can understand that. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. I can understand it, too, but I think they'll be 

back. 
Mr. BLAYLOCIC, I'll just make one closing comment. 
We have provided for the committee a copy of model contract 

language we provide to all of our local!', our national bargaining 
councils, for proposed language for a drug and alcohol assistance 
program. 

And, as I said, over the year:.; we have attempted to negotiate 
this type of language in our contracts. And for most cases we either 
hit resistance of nonnegotiability or placid resistance, where it's 
impossible to get the agency to set down in a cooperative or in a 
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collective bargaining atmosphere and negotiate this kind of lan­
guage and install that kind of program. 

The three examples I gave you is where we do have this kind of 
language in effect and obviously addressing the problem. 

Mr. Chairman, that would conclude my summary of my state­
ment. And I would be glad to try to answer any questions that you 
may have. 

[The statement of Mr. Blaylock follows:] 
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STATEMENT BY 

KENNETH T. BLAYLOCK 
NATIONAL PRESIDENT 

AMERICAN FEDERATION OF GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES 
(AFL-CIO) 

My name is Kenneth T. Blaylock. I am the National President 

of the American Federation of Government Employees, AFL-CIO. We 

represent 700,000 government workers across this country, 

thousands of whom are threatened by the widescale drug testing 

program proposed by the Administration. 

Our local officers are a bit bewildered by the sudden 

obsession, bordering on hysteria, with the "drug problem" at 

federal workplaces. For years, we have trained our officers and 

stewards regarding employees with substance abuse problems: how 

to convince thEse employees to seek counseling, rehabilitation, 

and treatment; how to work closely with supervisors and other 

management officials to help them to have a better understanding 

of the employees and their problems; how to assist employees in 

obtaining time off for meetings, counseling, and outside 

programs; and how to relieve job-related stress. For years, our 

locals have negotiated strong drug and alcohol treatment 

programs. 

After years of unrecognized struggle on the real battlefield 

of sUbstance abuse, our local leaders now find that th.,dr 

employer, in a blaze of publicity, has decided to purge illegal 

drug use from the lives of government employees by the use of 

broad scale drug testing. 

They have watched with not a little cynicism the political 

use of this issue as leading political figures parade their 

urine samples before rolling cameras. 

-1-
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Their cynicism is justified. This program is not a reasoned 

respon~e to a real problem. The demand for illegal drugs is 

intertwined with poverty, joblessness, and disillusionment. The 

ready supply of illegal drugs is tied to profits and organized 

crime. Since neither demand nor supply are easily addressed, 

the facile a~swer is to address something else--namely, federal 

employee drug use. 

This is a political magician's act played before the 

electorate, with President Reagan cast as Doug Henning, creating 

the illusion of a disappearing national drug problem via the 

slight of hand of federal employee drug testing. 

The hypocritical nature of this substitution is highlighted 

by the Administration's effort to slice some $9~0 million from 

the anti-drug programs authorized by Congress and signed by the 

President in last year's Anti-Drug Abuse Act of 1986 (according 

to the staff House Budget Committee's analysis of the 

President's FY 1988 Budget.) So while ~dopting a mUlti-million 

dollar program for wide-scale drug testing of government 

employees (where there is no evidence that a major problem 

exists), money is cut from law enforcement, drug abuse treatment 

services, education programs, and interdiction efforts. 

The committee has asked AFGE to address the "policy aspects" 

of the Administration's drug testing regUlations. The 

President, in his Executive Order, gave six basic policy 

justifications for the wide-scale drug testing of federal 

employees. In principle, we agree with the rationale offered, 
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however the Executive Order doesn't adhere to those principles 

and neither does the Administration with its subsequent 

actions. None of these justifications can be shown to be 

compatible with the Administration's previous or subsequent 

actions. They fail the tests of rationality and consistency. 

Reason No.1: "Concern ••• with the well-being of its 

employees." 

For years, our locals have been struggling to help employees 

with substance abuse problems (primarily alcohol, but illegal 

drugs, as well.) They have struggled t~i th Employee Assistance 

Programs (EAP), which most often were "paper programs" which had 

little money and too few skilled personnel to be effective. 

They have seen the good EAPs downgraded to where many are now 

only referral services. They have struggled within the labor-

management system to avoid punitive disciplinary actions and see 

these individuals through until they could get back on their 

feet. They have worked with counselors to get employees release 

time when supervisors are reluctant to grant such time. Often 

they have had to go outside the agencies to line up appropriate 

treatment and rehabilitation programs to help these individuals. 

Since the Executive Order, little, if any'thing, has 

changed. Agencies have not been granted additional money or 

staff to improve EAPs. In none of the regulations are managers 

.---~ 
given guidance on the reintegration of an employee who has 

finished treatment back into the worksite. In none of the 
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regulations is there any recognition of the worksite environment 

as a potential contributing factor to the subs·tance abuse. And 

although the new regulations require agencies to include unions 

in training and orientation programs on drug abuse, none of the 

20cals my staff has spoken to have been involved in such 

training. 

Reason No.2: "The successful accomplishment of agency 

missions, and the need to maintain employee productivity." 

Yes, there are a small number of employees with a substance 

abuse problem--but the number has not gotten proportionately 

larger. The President's commission on Organized Crime (Kaufman 

Report) and OPM recognize that there is not a major drug problem 

in the federal sector. Even the OPM regulation states: "There 

is no reason to believe that there is a greater incidence of 

illegal drug use in the federal workplace than in the private 

workforce." In almost all cases, drug abuse "can't be cited as a 

major problem in agency effectiveness. Indeed, substance abuse 

is dwa.rfed by the morale problems created by inferior pay, anti­

employee rhetoric, meanspirited management by political 

appointees, a convoluted labor-management system, and work 

speedups from budget cuts. These are the factors hindering 

productivity and agElncj effectiveness, not "substance abuse". 

Reason No.3: "The federal government, as the largest 

employer in the nation, can and should show the way." 

We have argued for six years that the government should be 

the "ideal employer" and show the way in labor-management 
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relations., pay and benefits, etc. We find it disingenious that 

the Administration would flatly and uniformly reject this 

reasoning on all these issues only to resurrect it here. 

But more fundamentally, this conception of an ideal employer 

is one with which we disagree. Employers in a free society 

cannot and should not seek to regulate the lives of employees 

off the job, unless such off the job behavior effects the 

employees' abilities to do their jobs. 

Indeed, to suggest otherwise conjures up frightening 

Orwellian visions which are antithetical to a free society. 

Reason No.4: "Profits from illegal drugs, on or off duty, 

provide the single greatest Source of income for organized 

Crif(le. " 

Here we will defer to the reasoning of Representative 

Patricia Schroeder before this committee last year: 

'iFirst, organized ~rime is a serious problem. 

"Second, organized crime makes a lot of money 
by importing and selling illegal drugs. Never mind 
that the mob also makes money by loan sharking, 
shakedowns, tax evasion, and labor racketeering. 

"Third, traditional law enforcement, which 
involves trackinq down criminals and proving 
criminal conduct, has been notoriously ineffective 
in dealing with drugs. 

"Fourth, an alternative means of stopping the 
flow of drugs is needed to end the demand for 
drugs. 

"Fifth, traditional law enforcement has been 
notoriously ineffective at stopping drug abuse. 

"Sixth, depriving drug users of employment will 
presumably dry up demands for drugs. 

-5-
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"Seventh, it would be too much to impose 
employment restrictions on all of society. But we 
can make Federal employees an example by subjecting 
them to drug testS. 

"Conclusion: Pesting Federal employees for 
drugs will stop organized crime. 

"Frankly, I think anyone who finds this logic 
persuasive ought to be a prime candidate for drug 
testing." 

Reason No.5: "The possibility of coercion, influence, and 

irresponsible aetion." 

There has been a spate of "spy cases" brought forth in 

recent years, and to our knowledge not a single one of them were 

connected to illegal d~ug use. We know of no instance where a 

federal employee's illicit drug use has caused him or har to 

betray their country. We hope the subcommittee will ask the 

Administration to come forward if such cases do exist. 

Reason No.6: "The use of illegal drugs, on or off duty, by 

federal employees is inconsistent with the special trust placed 

in such employees as servants of the people." 

Aside from the good sounding rhetoric, we are not sure what 

this means. "Trust" usually means an assumption of good will 

and intent. Random drug testing implies exactly the opposite. 

Employees are not trusted and must prove their innocence. 

Furthermore, government employees, by and large, take pride 

in their work and pride in the mission of their agencies, but 

such pride is inconsistent with the meaning of "servant". The 

government as an institution, but not the government worker, is 
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the servant of the public. Drug testing demeans the pride 

employees take in their work and implies that such employees are 

"servants II. 

As can be seen, the Administration's policy justifications 

for this program cannot withstand critical scrutiny. 

We hope this committee will act to protect the Fourth 

Amendment rights of government employees by barring widescale 

drug testing. 

The fourth Amendment to the United States Constitution 

states: 

"The right of the people to be secure in their 
persons, house, papers and effects, against 
unreasonable searches and seizures, shall not be 
violated •••• " 

The essential purpose of the Fourth Amendment is to "impose 

a standard of reasonableness upon the exercise of drscretion by 

government officials" in order to "safeguard the privacy and 

security of individuals against arbitrary invasions of 

government officials." (Delaware v. Prouse, 440 U.S. 648, 

653-54 (1974): Camara v. Municipal Court, 387 U.S. 523, 528 

(1987).) Clearly, the collection and analysis of a person's 

bodily fluids is a "search" within the ambit of the Fourth 

amendment. (Schmerber v. California, 384 U.S. 757 (1966).) 

Although, the Fourth Amendment does not outlaw all searches, 

it does require that all searches be "reasonable." (New 

Jersey v. TLO, U.S., HI5 S.Ct. 733,743 (1985).) The 

"reasonableness" of a particular search is established by the 

use of balancing test between the need of governmental interest 

-7-
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for the search, weighed against the invasion of the search into 

personal privacy. (Bell v. Wolfish, 441 U.S.520, 559 

(1979). ) 

The degree of intrusion engendered by any search must be 

viewed in the context of the individual's legitimate expectation 

of privacy. The test for determing when an expectation of 

privacy is "legitimate" is found in Katz v. united State~, 389 

u.s. 347, 361 (1967), where the Supreme Court held: 

"(T)here is a twofold requirement, first that a 
person have exhibited and actual (subjective) 
expectation of privacy and, second, that the 
expectation be one that is prepared to be recognized 
as 'reasonable'" 

The courts have routinely held that persons have a 

legitimate expect ion of privacy in the contents of their bodily 

fluids and that expectation overrides the government interest in 

requiring a random drug test. (American Federation of 

Government Employees v. Weinberger, CV. 48°6-353, slip op. 

(S.D. Georgia Dec. 2, 1986); Nat'l Treasury Employees Union v. 

Von Raab, Civ. No. 86-3522, slip op. (E.D. r.a. Nov. 14, 1986); 

Lovvorn, et aI, v. City of Chattanooga, No. Civ. 1-186-389, 

slip op. (E.D. Tenn. Nov. 13, 1986).) 

Equally ~ell settled is the current trend to allow drug 

testing when facts lead to the reasonable belief that a specific 

person is currently under the influence of drugs, that is drug 

testing nfor cause" as opposed to "random" testing. (Division 

-8-
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214, Amalgamated Transit Union (AFL-CIO) v. Suscy, 538 F.2d 

1264 (7th Cir. 1976); Turner v. Fraternal Order of Police, 

500 A.2d 1005 (D.C. App. 1985).) 

Several recent cases have allowed random drug tests which 

lack individualized suspicion. (McDonell v. Hunter, No. 85-

1919, slip OPe (8th Cir. Jan. 12,1987); Shoemaker v. Handel, 

795 F.2d 1136 (3rd Cir. 1986).) But, these cases can be 

distinguished from random testing in the federal government by 

the fact that both cases involved either a closely and 

pervasively regulated industry, such as horse racing 

(Shoemaker. supra), or internal prison security (McDonnel, 

supra ); both areas having reduced expectations of privacy than 

normal government employment. 

It is AFGE's postion, in agreement with the Courts, that 

random (i.e., without cause) drug searches of government 

employees violates employee's reasonable expectations of privacy 

and are therefore unconstitutional under the Fourth Amendment. 

Aside from the policy and legal issues of the 

Adminstration's drug testing program, there are a set of 

practical problems with the Administration's plan. Perhaps most 

glaring is the lack of any recognition of the linkage between 

drug and alcohol abuse. All of the locals I have talked to told 

me that the number of alcohol abuse cases dwarfs the number of 

drug abuse cases. 

Furthermore, they have told me that they expect that with 

the advent of drug testing there would be some substitution of 

-9-
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alcohol for drugs. Economists zpeak of "complementary goods" as 

goods which are easily substituted for one another, like butter 

and margarine. When the price of one complementary good 

(butter) goes up, demand for the other (margarine) increases. 

Illegal drugs and alcohol abuse are complementary drugs. By 

dramatically increasing the "price" of illegal drugs, the 

substance abuser inevitably will switch to the "now" cheaper 

substance--alcohol. 

This same principle also applies to testing for select drugs 

rather than the full range of illegal drugs. For example, if it 

becomes known that the agency is only testing for cocaine and 

marijuana (which are the only two drugs required to be 

identified in the testing by the OPM regulations) one would 

expect substance abusers to switch to other drugs, such as 

"downers" or "uppers". This "loophole" could be closed, but it 

would add to the cost of the program. 

Another fundamental problem with the Administration's 

program is the issue of confidentiality and the independence of 

the EAP. In talking with AFGE locals with a history of 

successful drug abuse programs working in cooperation with their 

agency, they stressed that the EAP must be perceived by the 

employees as existing to help them solve their problems. It 

cannot be seen as existing to help the employer "deal" with 

problem employees. Thus, successful EAPs have a strong need for 

confidentiality and a separation from adverse personnel 

actions. Otherwise, employees will avoid EAPs like the plague. 

76-899 0 - 87 - 4 
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The OPM regulations (Section 3e) invalidates the 

confidentiality and independence of the EAP. This provision 

encourges agency heads to mandate unannounced follow-up drug 

testing to all participants in EAPs for drug reasons. If follow­

up testing reveals drug use, such employees would be subject to 

dismissal. 

Because self-identification as an illegal drug user now also 

carries with it, under the Executive Order, the likelihood of 

follow-up testing and subsequent firing, such employees are less 

likely to voluntarily come forward. 

Prior to the Executive Order, our locals often acted to 

encourage and refer employees with a substance abuse problem to 

the agency's EAP. Our locals are now much more reluctant to 

make such a referral because it might contradict their duty to 

protect such employees from adverse personnel actions. Indeed, 

some locals are advisi?g employees with substance abuse problems 

to avoid EAPs and seek outside help. 

Finally, we doubt whether even the stringent HHS guidelines 

will avoid the resourceful employee who is detemined to subvert 

the test. The Baltimore Sun (Tuesday, March 31) reports on a 

booming new company called Insurine Labs which sells guaranteed 

"clean" urine for $19.95 per sample. Although the HHS 

quidelines require temperature testing, we suspect that 

handwarmers or some such contrivance will avoid this detection. 

-11-



95 

If such practices become wide-spread we hope the committee will 

ask OP~ if they are willing to take the next logical, degrading 

step--public urination. 

Often in discussing the Adminstration's drug testing 

program, the unrealiablity of the tests and the cost of the 

program are cited as reasons for opposing the Administration's 

program. Although we agree no program of this scale can be 100 

percent accurate, and that this program will be very expensive 

and will waste resources, we have not addressed these issues 

here because we do not feel that these are the grounds upon 

which the program should be opposed. Even if the testing was 

100 percent accurate and was cost free, this program should be 

halted for much more important reasons: 

1. It is unconstitutional~ 

2. It degrades innocent employees; 

3. It sets the precedent of employers intruding on the 
private lives of their employees~ 

4. It raises the spectre of Government as Big Brother; 

5. It is irrelevant to solving the real drug problem of 
our country~ and 

6. It hinders the actual rehabilitation programs in the 
government. 

We hope this committee will not only oppose the 

Administration's unwise and ill-conceived program, but will take 

a positive role in improving our understanding and action on 

substance abuse problems. 

In particular, the committee could help identify the scope 

of the problem by seeking answers to such questions as: 

-12-
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o What proportion of employees in EAPs are drug abusers? 
What proportion are alcohol abusers? 

o What percentage of disciplinary actions are related to 
drug abuse? Nhat percentage alcohol abuse? 

o Is successful rehabilitation of sUbstance abusers 
likely on the first treatment or does it take recurrent 
treatment? 

o How do managers perceive the sUbstance abuse problem 
(i.e., is it a "major" or "minor" problem)? 

o Are there particular work environments which are 
accompanied by higher. than normal substance abuse by 
the employees? 

In addition, the committee, through hearings such as these, 

can keep OPM on notice that they must do everything in their 

power to sensitize government managers to the problem. Managers 

must recognize EAPs; they must cooperate with Employee 

Assistance Counselors; they must make reasonable accommodation 

for an employee seeking rehabilitation, and they must respect 

the need for confidentiality. They must do all qf these things 

if employees with substance abuse problems are to be helped. 

Finally, we hope the members of this committee will support 

H.R.289, int~oduced by Gary Ackerman CD-NY), which addresses 

vital areas in the drug testing field and will provide much 

needed Congressional direction in this area. 

Thank you. 

-13-
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SUGGESTED GUIDELINES FOR LABOR MANAGEMENT 
AGREEMENT ON EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE AND COUN­
SELING PROGRAM 

In recent years, the problems of·alcoholism, drug abuse, and medical 
behavori.al problems have been rapidly increasing throughout the federal 
workforce. Public Law 96-180 amended the "Comprehensive Alcohol Abuse 
and Alcoho lism Prevent ion, Treatmen't, and Rehabilitation Act of 1970" to 
include the abuse of other legal a(1d illegal drugs. The Office of Per­
sonnel Management concurrently issued FPM Letter 792 "Federal Employees 
Health and Counseling Program." This letter covers alcoholism, drug abuse, 
and medical behavorial problems. These medical behavorial problems may be 
caused by alcoholism, drug abuse, personal, financial, marital, family, 
legal problems, etc. This suggested contract language is written to show a 
jo int effort by the union and the employer to provide advice, guidance, 
counseling, and referral for troubled employees and their Families as well 
as providing protect ion For the rights and privacy of the bargaining unit 
employees. 

FPM LeUer 792 has broadly expanded the responsibil ities of the employer to 
assure lhat troub led employees receive the proper counseling, treatment, 
etc. This letter and all of its supplements emphasize joint participation 
by the union and the employer. We suggest that locals When preparing con­
tracl proposals, review these letters to enable you to have a better under­
standing of OPM's position and intent to have working programs throughout 
the federal sector. 

Any satjsfactory understanding ~nvolving unions and management on the 
problems of alcoholism, drug abuse, or medical behavior should have 
several basic inclusions: 

(1) fhere should be a joint policy statement on the subject issued by 
the union and the employer. 

(2) A joint committee of equal membership from the union and manage­
ment should be set up to i.mplement this statement and the program. If 
the program is activity-wide it might be well to have an activity-wide 
committee with additional committees to function at lower levels. 

(}) In order to insure that the program is success ful, it must have a 
clear posltlve objective--that is to provide treatment and rehabili­
tation of the employee who is an alcoholic, user of drugs or one who 
has a med ical behavIor problem--not to eliminate him from the employ­
meot rolls. 
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(4) Specific caution is needed to avoid setting up a detection mech­
anism, wh ich, in the course of developing facts to confront the alco­
holic, drug user, or employee with medical behavior problem, also makes it 
possible to entrap other employees who are not in any way affected with 
these problems. Some sources have urged "secret documentation i • or daily 
"log-keeping" of mistakes, improper behavior, bad work day, etc. This 
should not be a part of any agreement or understanding. 

(5) A check of all the facilities, services, and assistance that are avail­
able from the employer and within the area should be made to insure: 

(a) that all Federal sick leave beneFits and medical facilities 
are available to those employees who participate in the 
program; 

(b) that services, assistance and facilities within the conmunity 
may also be used; 

(c) that proper steps are undertaken to bring these items under 
(a) and (b) up to a satisfactory level if they are not pre­
sently so; 

(d) that family members of troubled employees who have volunteer­
ed for the assistance and counseling program receive guidance, 
counseling, etc. to enab Ie them to better cope and understand 
the employee and his/her problem as well as aiding the family 
member in helping the employee t? recover. 

With these aforement ioned po ints in mind, a contract clause or a union­
management joint understanding on alcoholism and/or drug abuse might con­
t. a I n the fo I lowing language. 
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1. Section 1. The union and the employer jointly recognize alcoholism and drug 

2. abuse as illnesses which are treatable. In addition, the parties recognize 

3. that personal, financial, marital, family, and legal problems, etc. may 

4. also· create medical behavorial problems. 

5. Section 2. Each of these problems may cause pOllr attendance and unsatis-

6. Factory performance on t~,e job. It is recognized that each problem has 

7. its own identity and will be treated as such. 

8. Section 3. The parties agree to establish a joint Employee Assistance and 

9. Counseling Program. This program is e~tablished to provide counseling and 

10. ass istance to employees who are confronted with one' or more of these pro-

11. blems. This program will provide a procedure to deal fairly and effec-

12. lively with these problems while also properly recognizing the emplo-

13. yee's right to privacy. The parties are definitel)' concerned with each 

14. emp loyee' s sa fety, hea Ith, and morale. This jo int effort is to help 

15. 

16. 

17. 

18. 

.19. 

20. 

employp.es Who have problems caused by personal difficulties to control 

lhe conditions themselves. 

Section 4. Employees who suffer from anyone of these problems may have an 

adverse impact on their co-workers. In order to provide a better under-

standing of these problems, all employees will receive a basic training 

cOlJrse in the Employee Assistance and Counseling Proglam. 

21. Spct ion 5 Any employee who participates in this program will be entitled 

22. Lo all of the rights and beneflts provided to other employees who are 

23. ~Ick, in addition to specific services and assistance which this program 

24. WI [1 provide. 

25. ~jer.l Ion 6. To better coordinate and implement the Employee Ass (stance and 

26. COllnsel.nr] Program, the part les agree to form a joint committee conslst ing 
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27. of an equal number of union and employer members. One member shall serve 

28. as cha.irman of the committee. This office shall be rotated on an annual 

29. basis between the union and the employer. 

30. Section 7. It is the responsibility of the joint committee to: 

31. (a) consider all cases that are referred and review cases 

32. that are in process; 

33. (b) develop and promote educational inFormation on the 

34. Employee Assistance and Counseling Program, working 

35. with other agencies within the community who can 

36. assist in mak ing the program more e Ffecti ve and make 

37. recommendations for program improvement; 

38. (c) review the effectiveness of the program periodically, 

39. see that reasonable uniformity is maintained; 

40. 

4l. 

42. 

43. 

44. 

45. 

46. 

47. 

48. 

49. 

50. 

51. 

52. 

(d) establish subcommittees when necessary and assist them 

with their problems on an as-needed basis; 

(e) check and report on the nearest qualified counseling 

and diagnostic facilities and/or sources that are 

available, and the nearest suitable medical, hospital, 

rehabilitation facilities and employer facilities; 

(f) approve all training programs; 

(g) continue to seek means to improve the overall program, 

utilizing education, new developments ~ techniques, 

and assistance from agencies; 

(h) engage in other activities that will be benefic2al 

to this program; 

(il approve the select20n of any professionals s~lch as 
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53. medical personnel and counselors who are involved in 

!>4. the program. Whare available, select rehabilitated 

55. employees as counselors. The committee shall assure 

56. that these counselors will receive comprehensive 

57. training in esch of these problem areas. If. training 

58. is not available onsUe, the employer will provide 

,59 • the neces!lary means to assure that the training is 

60 • rece i ved; and 

61. (j) assure that all documentation and files of each 

62. employee 1n the program are maintained separate from 

63. all othar records. 

64; Section B. The aarlier thst employee's problems relating to alcoholism, 

65. drug abuse, and mental illnesses can be identified, the more favorable are 

66. the chances for a satisfactory solution. 

67. Section 9. \'then a supervi30r, through daily job contact observes that 

58. an employee is experiencing difficulties in maintaining his job perfor-

69. mance, he win d,iscuss the spparent difficulties with the employee. If 

70. the employee is unable to correct his jo~ performance difficulties through 

71. his own efforts, the supervisor will notify the appropriste union represen-

72. tal ive and then arrsnge to offer t"e employee confidential assistance and 

73. services that are available as outlined in the following procedures. 

74. Section 10. 1he focus of corrective interviews is restricted to the issue 

75. of job pe.rformance. Opinions or jUdgments on employees with alcoholism, 

76. medical-behavorjal problems, or other drug use are prohibited. It must be 

77. re-emphall ized that all referrals must be made on objective and factual 

78. hases ralher than on any unsupported assumptions or judgments of the 
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ao. 
81. 

82. 

83. 

84. 

85. 

86. 

87. 

F',8. 

89. 

90. 

91. 

92. 

93. 

94. 

95. 

96. 

97. 

98. I 

S9. 

100. 

101. 

102. 

103. 

104. 

102 

supervisor. 

Section 11. The employee shall be a fforded the right to have the appro-

priata union :epres!lntative(s) present at each such interview. In all 

instances, the union representatives(s} shall be notified that such an 

interview is scheduled. 

Section 12. If, following this discussion ~t is felt by the supe1'visor, 

the employee or his representative that the matter should be brought 

directly before the joint review committee the committee chairman shall 

arrange a meeting as expeditiously as possible. 

At the meeting with the committee and the employee, these steps should 

be taken: 

(a) give the en:ployee a clear, positive statement 

pointing out all the eviden:e wo~ch indicates that 

a job performance deficiency is involved. 

(b) Explain the function of the joint program and the 

benefits availab Ie in detail. 

(c) Emphasize that help for the existing problem is 

covered under the problem and handled on a confiden­

tial basis, 

(d) Remind the employee that unless his problem is 

identified and corrected, he is subject to existing 

penalties for unsatisfactory job performance and 

attendance. The employee may elect to have his/her 

union representative present when meeting with the 

committee. 

Sect ion 13. (a) Employees who agreed to counseling, medtcal treat-
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106. 

107. 

108. 

109. 

110. 
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112. 
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mant, rehabilitation treatment, etc. shall not be 

subject to disciplinary and/or adverse actions so 

long 88 they remain in the program and are sincore-

ly trying to be cured. These services will be pro-

vided at the employer's expense. 

(b) Family members of employees who-have agreed to 

counseling, medical treatment, rehabilitation 

treatment, etc. shall receive guidance, counsel-

113. ing, etc. to aid them in coping and understand-

114. ing the employee in the treatment and recovery 

115. process. 

116. Section 14. In the event an employee lrefusea counseling, medical treatment, 

117. rehab ilitat ion treatment, etc. a fter the discussion with the supervisor 

118. and/or the joint conmittee as spelled out in Section 11, above, diposition 

: 119. _ of the matter will proceed under the existing collective bargaining con-

120. tract agreement between the union and the employer. 

121. Section 15. It shall be the policy of the employer to inform any employee 

122. subject to discharge or discipline, of his rights to a review before this 

123. commit tee. The canmittee will determine if the source of his problem falls 

124. within the corrective and treatment procedures offered by the program, and 

125. his right to process any discipline or discharge actions through the 

126. appropriate appeals procedure or the n~otiated grievance procedure. 

127. Sect ian 16. It is recogn.ized that supervisors, union representatives, and 

128. comm.ittee members are not professional diagnosticians in the field of 

129. alCOholism, drug abuse or mental health. Neither are they medical experts. 

130. However, the committee will select and approve the qualified physic ians, 

l31. therapists or personnel of other treatment resources and facil it ies .nose 

132. recommendations for needed treatll1t!nt and rehabilitation services will be 

133. followed. 

134. 



104 

Mr. SIKORSKI. I thank you. 
In your summary, you answered the questions that were raised 

to me as I read over your statement before. 
The model will be put in the record as part of your full state­

ment without objection. 
And you have had difficulty putting staff into researching where 

the EAP's are around the country. 
We had testimony from OPM that, by definition, every agency 

had an EAP. And in reality, it's your testimony that very few have 
EAP's and very few of those that are functior~ing are functioning 
as they're intended to be, employee assistance programs where 
there's a cooperative effort to make people aware and to provide 
assistance to employees who are having difficulty in and around 
drug and alcohol abuse. 

Mr. BLAYLOCK. Mr. Chairman, I hope that you follow up with the 
OPM witnesses with very specific information. 

We'd like to know where those well-working programs are too. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. We will ask them specifically where these EAP's 

are. 
Mr. BLAYLOCK. If I could make a comment on the cooperation. 

Even now the current regulation, you know, requires the agencies 
to set up training programs for supervisors, managers. And also 
the current r.egulation, the one we are addressing, requires union 
involvement in those training programs. 

As of last night, as we inquired around the country with our bar­
gaining councils, our vice presidents, we could not find one place 
where the agency had involved our union in training on this so­
called new ~rogram that they've come up with all at once. 

So, there s just a total lack of involvement or cooperation out 
there. And I would say to you and to the agencies, you know, the 
program is not going to work unless they do involve the union. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. You commented earlier that there is language that 
deals with consultation with you on matters such as drug testing, 
and EAP's, and the rest. And you thus far have not been consulted. 

Mr. BLAYLOCK. No, sir. That was the point I was just making, is 
that we checked with our locals around the country. 

This training program is now going on. We can't find one place 
where management has involved our local officers or stewards in 
those training programs that OPM is now so proud-that they 
claim is going 011 out there. 

We do find there is training going on out there for supervisors 
and managers. We fmd that. But to this day we have yet to find 
one of our locals where they have come forward and involved the 
union in that training at the workshops. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. But it sat,s, "the Office of"-I'm reading Mr. Hew­
itt's testimony in this-' The Office of Personnel Management, in 
longstanding responsibility in assisting agencies and. extending a 
helping hand to employees through employee assistance programs, 
and under the old laws and the new order and law, have a respOIl­
sibility." 

And he said that all Federal agencies are training their supervi­
sors and managers on how to deal with employees who have a 
work performance or behavior problem that may relate to alcohol 
or drug abuse. 
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And you say that's news to you, to your local people, to your 
stewards and others. 

Mr. BLAYLOCK. Yes, sir. 
And I'll just point to the facts. I mean they tell you they're now 

developing standards for those kind of programs. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Yes. 
Mr. BLAYLOCK. Hell, they don't even have the programs. They 

don't have the standard out there, let alone the program. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. And he said all Federal departments and agencies 

are required by the Anti-Drug Abuse Act of 1986 to develop and 
maintain appropriate prevention, treatment, and rehabilitation 
programs. 

And the . agency employee assistance programs were embraced by 
the Executive Order of the President last September. And they are 
all there functioning. And that three-quarters of the administrators 
and counsellors in these programs have experience or advanced 
academic qualifications related directly to alcohol and drug abuse 
program functions. 

That's all news to you, too? 
Mr. BLAYLOCK. If it's at the administrator level, Mr. Chairman, 

it's a long way from the work site. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Yes. 
Well, I've asked for the numbers. And it will be interesting to get 

them. 
Did you hear our discussion about contract employees? 
Mr. BLAYLOCK. Yes, sir. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. What's your position with regards to drug testing 

of these contract employees? 
Mr. BLAYLOCK. Well, I'm not going to sit here and say contract 

employees ought to be tested too. There's no more of a require­
ment. We've made this a:rgument many times, Mr. Chairman, that, 
for so many different reasons, Federal workers, have a serious pay 
problem at the Federal work site today. Yet, the Federal workers 
can't strike. ' 

Federal workers are Hatched. They can't participate in the polit­
ical process. Yet they can turn that right around, turn that job 
over to a contractor, doing the same job, whether it's sweeping 
floors or fIxing airplanes, it don't matter, all of once, you know, 
they can negotiate, they can strike, and they can participate in the 
political process. 

So, you know, if the rationale is there, then I agree with your 
statement to the previous witness. It makes no difference. It's tax­
payers' dollars that's paying for that. 

We think the restrictions are ludicrous to start with. 
But I notice in these OPM regulations also there's three places in 

there there's obviously an intent to contract out this program of 
testing Federal employees. It's mentioned three times in this OPM 
letter that, you know, that itself will go on contract, which I think 
is another element that the Congress should really look in to. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Yes. 
Mr. BLAYLOCK. This whole idea of drug testing is a whole new in­

dustry, Mr. Chairman. And, you know, whether it's the pathologist, 
whether it's the people setting up the new labs that are going up 
allover the country now, or, you can get a test, your mom and dad 
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kit, test yourself kit, test your own employees kit, and none of 
them say anything about addressing the drug problem in this coun­
try. They all talk about increasing productivity. 

I looked at a 1920 newspaper heading here about six months ago. 
And it said "Federal Government Declares War On Drugs." So, 
we've had drug problems in this country a long time. 

As you point out, alcohol is a more serious problem. But we've 
got along without drug testing, you know, all this time. Our Gov­
ernment is two hundred years old. And, to me, we need to be 
paying more attention to really beginning to resolve the drug prob­
lem in the country thau we do setting an example with a political 
publicity flare. And that's all we see it is. And we just see the Fed­
eral workers being made a scapegoat again. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. It is a confusing time to live. It's an exciting time 
as well. 

But I know all this talk about urine testing causes people to stop 
and reflect about the times that have changed. But, as you point 
out, in the 1920's there was the war on drugs then. And I'm sure 
we will see it recycled as well. 

Do you have anything additional you want to add? 
Mr. BLAYLOCK. No, sir. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. I thank you. You've answered all our questions for 

now. We might have a couple more that we will submit to you 
later. 

Mr. BLAYLOCK. Thanks again for your concern, Mr. Chairman. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Thank you. 
Our next witness is Mr. James Peirce, President of the National 

Federation of Federal Employees. 
Mr. Peirce is accompanied by Sandra Thomson, a research biolo­

gist at the Army's Research Center at Aberdeen Proving Ground in 
Maryland. 

Ms. Thomson will share with the subcommittee her expert 
thoughts on the OPM and HHS regulations, her nightmarish expe­
rience resulting from her false positive drug test. 

I welcome you both and thank you for your willingness to be 
here and your continued advocacy for your people. 

STATEMENT OF JAMES PEIRCE, PRESIDENT, NATIONAL FEDERA· 
TION OF FEDERAL EMPLOYEES, ACCOMPANIED BY SANDRA 
THOMSON, RESEARCH BIOLOGIST, ABERDEEN PROVING 
GROUND 

Mr. PEIRCE. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
I also have Bruce Heppen, who is an NFFE attorney, with me. 
I'm pleased to appear before the subcommittee today to present 

our views on the recent implementation of the President's Execu­
tive Order and the Department of Army's drug testing program. 

Since I last appeared before the subcommittee to discuss our po­
sition on the issues, many events have occurred which have served 
to strengthen our opposition to random urinalysis of civilian work­
ers. 

I commend the subcommittee for its attention to the ongoing 
problems with drug testing of Federal workers, and I look forward 
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to working with you to prevent the infringement of the rights of 
these workers. 

Mr. Chairman, I'd like to really not even summarize, since Dr. 
Thomson I think has a statement that probably would be very en­
lighting to you. 

I would like to have her make a couple of observations relative 
to what has already been said, and that way maybe I won't be 
quite so redundant. 

I think I heard the OPM representative indicate that there was a 
philosophy that the civil service of the Federal Government should 
be a leader. That's my recollection of what he said. And, in essence, 
by going ahead with this drug testing program others were going to 
follow. 

I wish they would apply that philosophy to pay and benefits. 
By the same token, from what I've heard this morning, it makes 

me feel more and more that there literally is no justice or prevail­
ing privacy as far as the current Executive Order or regulations 
are concerned. 

So, therefore, we would urge the members of the committee to 
move quickly to pass H.R. 280, the bill introduced by Congressman 
Gary Ackerman to ban drug testing except in cases of reasonable 
suspicion of drug use based on job impairment. 

Again, we commend you for your attention to this issue, and we 
look forward to working with you to stop this flagrant violation of 
the rights of Federal employees. 

I will conclude my statement with that. I would like to turn this 
over to Dr. Thomson. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Thank you. 
Your entire statement will be made a part of the record. 
I've looked at it, and it's very helpful to us. We thank you for 

putting the time and effort into it. 
[The statement of Mr. Peirce follows:] 
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STATEMENT OF JAHES PEIRCE, PRESIDENT, NATIONAL FEDERATION OF FEDERAL 

EMPLOYEES 

I am pleased to appear before the subcommittee today to present our 

views on the recen~ implementation of the President's Executive 

Order and the Department of Army's drug ~esting program~ since I 

last appeared before the Subcommittee to discuss OUr position on the 

issue, many events have occurred which have served to strengthen our 

opposition to random urinalysis of civilian workers. I commend the 

subcommittee for its attention to the ongoing problems with drug 

testing of Federal workers, and I look forward to working with you 

to prevent the infringement of the rights of these employees. 

I am accompanied by Sandra Thompson, Ph.D., member of NFFE Local 178 
.-

and a research biologist at Aberdeen proving Ground, Maryland. She 

will discuss her experience with the Army's program and her analy­

sis of the OPM and HHS regulations. 

Let me begin by discussing our initial lawsuit to block the testing 

of employees at Aberdeen. In April, 1986 NFFE instituted suit in 

District Court seeking to enjoin the Army from implementing a 

program of random urinalysis of 10,000 civilian employees. The 

action alleged violations of the 4th Amendment protection from 

unreasonable searches and seizures, constitutional right of privacy, 

due process, the Administrative Procedure Act and the Drug Abuse 

Office and Treatment Act. We asserted that any testing without a 

reasonable, objective basis for suspicion violates the Fourth Amend­

ment. The District Court for D.C. dismissed the lawsuit for lack of 

jurisdiction. Issues of both jurisdiction and the merits were 

briefed and argued and are awaiting a decision by the D.C. Circuit. 

NFFE is also a party to a lawsuit before the u.s. District Court in 

New Orleans, attacking the Executive Order and implementing regula­

tions. 
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Second, I would like to reaffirm our opposition to random drug 

tes~ing on constitutional grounds. Under the Executive Order and 

the Department of Army's program, workers are subjected to random 

and periodic urinalysis whether or not drug abuse is suspected. 

This testing is the ultimate invasion of a worker'~ privacy and also 

violates the Fourth Amendments prohibition against unreasonable 

searches and seizures. We believe that for the average employee, 

testing may be authorized only where there is probable cause of job 

impairment resulting from drug use. However, employees in safety, 

sensitive or law enforcement positions may be tested under the lower 

standard of "reasonable suspicion" of job impairment resulting from 

drug use. A finding of either probable calIse or reasonable suspi­

cion must be based on objective evidence. 

Third, we do not believe that drug testing is necessary because the 

Federal Government has shown no evidence that drug abuse is wide­

spread or on the increase among its workers. In fact, the Depart­

ment of Defense has found exactly the opposite. In an article on 

the Defense Department's urinalysis policy for civilians in the June 

3, 1985 issue of The Federal Times, the Department acknowledged that 

the problem of drug abuse among civilians is "very small." Nor have 

any of the other Executive Departments even mentioned drug use among 

their employees since then. 

Furthermore, Federal workers do not fit the accepted "profile" of 

drug abusers, who are most often young, single, hold temporary jobs 

and have considerable disposabl~ income. Federal employees, on the 

other hand, are generally mature, more likely to be married, hold 

career jobs in which they have invested several. years and, because 

of recent pay caps and freezes, unlikely to have the extra funds to 

purchase drugs. 



110 

-3-

Fourth, we oppose drug testing because policies already exist within 

the Federal Government for handling'problems of on-duty drug abuse. 

Few Federal workers a~e willing or able t~ tolerate working with a 

co-worker who is under the influence of a controlled substance. 

However, if such a situation exists, managers should offer drug 

abuse counseling to an employee before taking any disciplinary 

action. Under existing procedures, ,Federal supervisors have been 

able to identify employees with alcohol or drug problems and have 

referred them for treatment. Drug and alcohol abuse must be 

recognized for the illness that it is. Treatment can be' extremely 

effective for many workers suffering from such abuse, and agencies 

can avoid expensive separation and retraining costs by first 

providing drug abuse treatment to affected workers. 

Mr. Chairman, the Executive Order presented the lofty goal of offer­

ing drug users a helping hand. But as is so often the case with 

this Administration, the reality of implementation has set in. The 

guidelines by OPM and the HHS regulations have emphasized the 

punitive aspects of drug testing to the near exclusion of concern 

for employee welfare. The Order specifically requires that Employee 

Assistance Programs (EAPs) emphasize counseling. Yet the plan 

designed by OPM almost completely ignores this requirement. The 

Model EAP (attachment 6 to FPM Letter 792-16) explicitly provides 

that the EAP counselor will refer an employee to someone else for 

counseling. 

Clearly, under OPH's plans, the only counseling an agency will 

provide a worker is a periodic test to ensure that he or she is 

still on the wagon (attachment 6, Section B.a., B.c.). OPM's 

interpretation of the E~ecutive Order thus transforms the EAPs into 

mere referral services and quasi-parole boards, hardly the quality 

rehabilitation programs 'envisioned by the Order. 
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particularly disturbing is OPM1s disdain for employee privacy, which 

is theoretically protected by the Executive Order. OPM explicitly 

requires that upon referral to an EAP, an.employee must ·sign a form 

waiving his Privacy Act rights and giving his supervisor access to 

all his rehabilitation records (Attachment 6, section 8.c.l. 

Failure to execute the form could be considered failure to obtain or 

successfully complete counseling and therefore could be a basis for 

removal (Section S.d. of the FPM Letter 792-16). 

The HRS regulations offer no better assurance of quality testing. 

Under the regulations, the first link in the chain of custody is the 

person in charge at the collection site. The regulation proscribes 

no standards or qualifications for that person, despite the fact 

that he or she performs critical functions conducting observations 

of the employees, establishing a chain of custody, and taking the 

temperature of the urine samples. Thus, the first link is extremely 

weak, and there is substantial likelihood that inexperienced collec­

tion site personnel will taint the whole procedure. 

In addition, the Has regulations are no better than the OPM guide­

lines in protecting privacy. Employees will be carefully monitored 

as they empty their bladders, in the presence of a monitor or 

collection site person. Although the employee will not be under 

direct visual observation, the monitor is to stand outside the stall 

and listen for "normal" sounds of urination. Moreover, the monitor 

will require the employee to remove all "unnecessary' outergarments, 

leaving it to the monitor to decide what is unnecessary. Perhaps 

the most farcical requirement is that the monitor is to record care­

fully any "unusual behavior." I submit, Mr. Chairman, that most of 

us would behave in an unusual manner if we were placed under c~stody 

to provide a urine sample. 
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Furthermore, the monitor is required to add a bluing agent to the 

toilet tank, presumably to discourage adulteration of the sample. 

This seems ludicrous 'since the employee knows that his or her sample 

will be tested for temperature, and the water in the bowl is 

probably 30°- 50· Fahrenheit below 98.So. The regulations are 

almost as insulting as the drug test itself. Not only does the 

Administration seem to believe that Federal employees are drug 

abusers; they are assumed to be liars and cheaters as well. 

Most Federal workers strongly resent a program th~t forces.them to 

offer up their bodily fluids for inspection. Just as invasive, 

however, is the fact that workers who take prescribed medicines are 

now forced for their own protection to inform their supervisors, so 

that any prescribed drugs would be noted during the testing of the 

sample. We can think of many instances in which an employee would 

prefer to keep his or her medical history private. For example, a 

worker under the care of a psychiatrist would likely prefer not to 

divulge use of anti-depressants or other psychiatric drugs. An 

employee being treated for heart disease might prefer not to alert a 

supervisor to the illness, because the employee might then be turned 

down for a more stressful job assignment or promotion. In addition, 

women may be forced to reveal that they are menstuating as this is a 

known basis for false positives. Yet despite an employee's reason­

able desire for privacy, the Executive order and the Army's program 

force employees to divulge this information to supervisors. But if 

such information is not provided, false positives will occur with 

alarming frequency_ 
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Another critical argument against drug testing is that the Federal 

Government should have' to prove "nexus" or a connection between 

off-duty use of substances and the performance of work. Urinalysis 

testing can result in a positive test for controlled substances up 

to four weeks after use. However, such tests only'detect the 

presence of such substances, not intoxication or any on-the-job 

impairment. There is no more connection between an employee's 

off-duty use of these substances and the on-duty danger to employees 

or Federal property than there is a connection between an Air Force 

General's drinking four martinis on a Saturday night and reporting 

for duty at 7:00 Monday morning. Because there is no demonstrable 

nnexus' between off-duty substance use and an individual's employ­

ment, positive results on a test should not be the basis for dis­

ciplinary action, even with subsequent testing. 

The use of positive urinalysis as the sole reason to terminate or 

remove an employee violates one of the basic purposes of the nexus 

requirement, nto minimize unjustified government intrusion into the 

private activities of Federal employees. n Doe ~ Hampton 566 F.2d 

265 11977). Clearly, we believe that the testing program is an 

invasion of an employee's privacy. 

NFFE is also extremely concerned about the cost of the drug testing 

Proposal. The Department of Defense spent $48 million in fiscal 

year 1985 for three million urinalyses for active duty personnel. 
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A conservative estimate for the CQst of conducting drug testing' for 

the civilian Federal workforce is $40 mi}lion. This ampunt for 

implementing the Executive Order is prohibitive. surely, 

Mr. Chairman, during this time of severe budget ~uts, which are 

threateni~g to minimize public service, disable or eliminate entire 

agencies, the Administration should be able to spend such a large, 

amount of money in more productive ways~ 

Mr. Chairlnan, the President's Executive Order has done untold damage 

to the morale of the Federal workforce, which was already at an 

all-ti~e low prior to the Order. Apparently, it is not enough that. 

the pay and benefits of Federal workers are dramatically lower than 

their private sector counterparts, and that employees are constantly 

threatened with contracting out, safety and health hazards, and 

budget cuts. Now the Administration has decided that further 

humiliation is necessary. 

Aside from the obvious considerations of privacy and constitutional 

rights, the program is simply bad management. Entire groups of 

employees should not be humiliated simply because occasional 

instances of on-duty drug use may occur. Such instances should be 

handled on an individual basis. 

Our final concern is that the Department of Army's program clearly 

states that the drug testing of civilian employees is not negotiable 

with recognized labor ~rganizations because it involves the Army's 
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~ernal securi.ty;'~.~~j:w~~.e1~~tt~i~:t1'~e meaning of 5 U.S.C. S7l06(a) 

(~l),. ' we. ada~nt!Y,i..d,il!.~gr~~f.;t~S~ch testing falls wi thin the scope of 

'working conditions::of,~Federal' employees, and thus is negotiable. 

Should the'A~inist;at~o~'a{s~'assert that drug-testing government-
'. ~ '. ~l~' . "' . 

wide is not ,negotiable, ~we:wilLpursue every leg,al avenue available. 
'.' ',1 .... 'i .. ~. ft!: ... ;~;./~ '.' .~. . 

Mr. Chairman, one of.,the mos,tlmportant merit princi1?les on which 

Federal personnel manag,ement is based requires that "Employees and 

applicants for employment should receive fair and equitable treat-

ment in all aspects of personnel management • with proper regard 

for their privacy and constitutional rights· (Title 5, U.S.C. S230l 

(b)(2». The Administration's urinalysis program clearly violates 

this principle. NFFE, its members, and its bargaining unit employ­

ees do not aondone the use of controlled substances. We pannot, 

however, condone the testing program's gross violation of the 

privacy of our members and the intrusion on their rights to work 

, freely within a free society. It is tantamount to a witch hunt, and 

we will continue'to oppose it in congress, in the courts, and at the 

bargaining table. 

We urge you and the members of the Subcommittee to move quickly to 

pass H.R. 280, the bill introduced by Congressman Gary Ackerman to 

ban drug testing except in cases of reasonable suspicion of drug use 

based on job impairment. Again, we commend you for your attention 

to this issue, and we look forward to working with you to stop this 

flagrant violation of the rights of Federal employees. 

That concludes my statement. I will be happy to. answer any ques­

tions. 
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Mr. SIKORSKI. Ms. Thomson. 

STATEMENT OF SANDRA THOMSON 

Ms. THOMSON. Thank you. 
Good afternoon,. Mr. Chairman and committee members. 
As a toxicologist at Aberdeen Proving Ground, I am one victim of 

a false positive test. And there were others. And I fear there will 
be many more like me if the Executive Order and the Army!s pro­
gram are not blocked. 

Let me just briefly describe to you what has happened to me. 
Last year, I was selected for random drug testing based upon my 

job description. Without probable cause, in spite of an excellent 
safety record, work performance records, we were required to sign 
consent forms. 

We had a ninety-day consideration period to sign their pseudo­
voluntary consent form. 

In spite of numerous questions that we asked, adequate informa­
tion was never provided. As the deadline approached, I and my 
fellow workers signed consent forms with the caveat that it was ob­
tained under duress. We were threatened with the loss of our Fed­
eral employment. 

Several weeks later, my number came up, and I was called to 
give a sample. 

For the first time· in my life, while being escorted to the rest­
room, stripped of my belongings, I was made to feel guilty for no 
reason. And, now, I had to prove my innocence. 

I cannot describe for you the torment that put me through. 
Under direct observation, I urinated. 
I was not allowed to witness the test, although I asked. I was al­

lowed to wait for results. 
I was then told I was positive for marijuana. 
I immediately asked if I could be retested because I don't smoke 

and I've never touched pot. I was told it would be at least ten days 
before their confirmation test would clear me or confirm me. 

Having no faith in the system that I had seen, I took annual 
leave and went out and had myself tested, at my own expense, at 
two local hospitals, and had my results in hand within twenty-four 
hours. The tests were negative for all controlled substances. 

I then began to look at the Aberdeen Proving Ground drug test­
ing program and learned they had no local standard operating pro­
cedures, no local procedures, no signed-off regulations. It was being 
operated by a seat-of-the-pants fashion, loose-leaf notebook, if you 
will. 

The chief of staff told me, "We will fix it as we go:' 
As a toxicologist, I can tell you I have much stricter guidelines 

for testing rodents and guineau pigs on that post. 
It was twenty-one daYB later before I was fmally cleared in the 

eyes of the Army. I cannot describe for you the tension, the agony 
that my family and I went through for those three weeks. 

And the sloppiness of the program was reaffirmed when I fmally 
received those results in the mail. To my horror, not only were my 
results contained in what I received in the mail, but also the re­
sults of four other people. 
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I then began a long struggle with the Army in which I sought 
redress through their grievance procedures. Eventually, my griev­
ance complaints were dismissed because, according to the Army, a 
grievance must be filed within fifteen days of the event. As you 
recall, it was twenty-one days before they confirmed my test. So, 
how could I possibly fIle within their fifteen-day period? I have 
since sought to get redress within the court system of this country. 

I have reviewed the OPM and HHS guidelines and find them as 
bad, if not worse, than the Army's. 

Please do not subject my fellow Federal employees to these need­
less and unconstitutional procedures. If performance is the issue, 
there are better ways of addressing that than an unconstitutional 
drug test. 

I thank you for your time and consideration and would be happy 
to answer any questions. 

[The statement of Ms. Thomson follows:] 
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STATEMENT BY 

SANDRA THOMSON, Ph.D. RESEARCH BIOLOGIST 

LOCAL 178, NATIONAL FEDERATION OF FEDERAL eMPLOYEES 

My name is Sandra Thomson. I am a Ph.D. research biologist 

specializing in toxicology. At the present time I conduct 

studies at the Army's Chemical Research, Development and 

Engineering Center, Aberdeen proving Ground, Maryland .on 

chemical hazards that may be encountered by our soldiers. I 

am also ~ member of the National Federation of Federal 

Employees Local 178. Briefly I would like to describe my 

experi~nce with the employee drug test program at my 

installation. 

On March 13, 1986, I was notified of my selection for the 

Civilian urinalysis Program (CUP) at Aberdeen's Edgewood 

Area and given 90 days to sign a form giving my consent to 

being tested for drug use on a random basis. Imposition of 

these tests was not based upon any prior reasonable 

suspicion of individual wrong-doing or any general problem 

at the Center. Instead the tests were applied to all those 

working in certain job categories. I was further told that 

failure to consent would result in revocation of the 

clearances needed for my career advancement and reassign­

ment. Possible demotion, or dismissal could follow. 

Before signing the consent form that ~brogated our rights, 

my fellow employees and I were given an orientation session 

by Carol Bruce, Chief of Edgewood's Alcohol and Drug Control 
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Office. The session consisted of a brief explanation of the 

program, a short demonstration of the field test unit and 

the distribution of some material supplied by its manu­

facturer. Little information on the laboratory test methods 

was provided in spite of the fact that many members of the 

audience were professionals and technicians who work with 

chemical procedures on a daily basis. Many members of the 

audience, including myselF, asked questions on technical 

matters, administrative procedure, methodology, system 

reliability, and personnel policy. All were greeted with an 

adversarial reaction and few answers. The supervisors in my 

organization attended a similar briefing with similar 

results. 

At the deadline for signing the consent form, my 

professional opinion was that the amount of technical 

information given was still insufficient to instill 

confidence in the testing procedures, especially in its 

protections against false positives. However, faced with 

the possible loss of my clearances, I did sign the consent 

form. I clearly noted my objections on the form (as did 

several of my coworkers), indicating that I was agreeing to 

be tested only under duress, with the threat of losing my 

job. 

A short time later, my colleagues and I drafted a list of 

questions in writing on June 24, 1986, to Ms. T. Walz, 
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Program Administrator for the Army Armaments, Munitions and 

Chemical Command, my center's parent organization. We 

followed up the list of questions with telephone requests 

for a response. Answers were promised; none ever arrived. 

On July 31, 1986, I was summoned to give a sample. Upon 

arrival I was given a cup from an open, unsealed container. 

With. the witness, Ms. L. Wheattley, observing, I filled the 

container. The cup was then labelled with my taped on 

social security number, sealed and given to a technician. 

At no time did anyone ask if I was taking any kind of 

medication. I asked if I could watch my sample's field 

test, but was told that this was not allowed because "the 

social security numbers on other samples were visible in the 

laboratory and my seeing them would violate the Privacy 

Act. tI 

I was permitted to wait in the hallway for the results of my 

test. It was positive for cannabis (marijuana) on two 

repeats of the field test on the same sample. I asked the 

person handling the testing if I could be retested and was 

told that the existing sample would be sent to Fort Meade, 

North Carolina for confirmation. However, results from that 

test would not be available for ten to fifteen days. 

Having little information on the nature and quality of the 

confirmation testing procedure and little faith in what I 
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had seen of the field test, I took the advice of both the 

person in charge and my attorney, took leave and underwent a 

complete drug screen test at two different hospitals. They 

employed the rigorous procedures for sterile sample taking, 

direct labelling, handling, and testing which are used in 

acquiring evidence for courtroom use. Both tests were 

negative for all controlled substances, both returned 

results within twenty-four hours and both were perfcrmed at 

my expense. 

Clearly, one of my primary concerns was that despite the 

fact that I asked for information regarding the procedures 

of the test, its reliability, and the consequences of 

various results several times before I signed the consent 

form, I never received it. Just as importantly, however, 

Army Regulation 600-85 requires that local commanders 

establish procedures and insure compliance with that 

regulation. When I asked to see the local implementing 

regulations and standard operating procedures, I was given 

drafts and told that these were in a "state of change, but 

were being used until procedures were finalized." 

In my subsequent conversation with Lieutenant Colonel Kolch, 

Chemical Research, Development and Engineering Center Chief 

of staff, I was told that no final procedures had been 

approved and that they were sorting out the procedures as 

they went. Clearly, the Aberdeen drug testing program was 
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being carried out in an improvised, seat-of-the-pants 

fashion. As a toxicologist,' I can tell you that such 

liberties are never tolerated in any clinical setting, even 

in work with small laboratory animals. To put it bluntly, 

we do not test rats the way I was tested for drug use. I 

submit that procedures involving human subjects in which 

their careers and reputations are at stake are as deserving 

of at least as much supervision and control as those carried 

out on guinea pigs. 

Beyond the lack of local regulatory and procedural controls 

we met other problems. Army regulations require that all 

urine specimens will be shipped so that they will arrive at 

the confirming laboratory no later than three days after the 

sample is taken and that the laboratory will transmit the 

results within five duty days after receipt. In my case the 

lab report showed that my sample arrived at the laboratory 

seven days after my test and that the results were reported 

to my managers eleven days later. I was not informed until 

two days beyond that. Apparently, protracted delays, during 

which samples may be subject to chemical change, 

contamination or mishandling, are the rule. 

While my sample and results languished, I existed under a 

cloud of suspicion and was subject to at least a temporary 

suspension at any time. I suffered a near total disruption 

to my professional performance, family life, and sleep. 
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Eight days of this hell would have baen enough, but twenty 

was beyond all reason and regulation. 

perhaps the most telling moment came for me when I received 

my final test results, which Army regulations say must be 

marked "FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY" and be transmitted with the 

utmost privacy and discretion. Imagine my shock to find a 

ROUTINE-UNCLASSIFIED message containing not only my re'sults, 

but also those of four other individuals identified by 

social security number. If you recall the care taken to 

protect the social security numbers attached to urine 

samples when I asked to see my field test, you will 

understand why I find it scandalous to permit their 

disclosure when juxtaposed to vastly more important results. 

It is worthy of comment that the others' results that I was 

handed bore the notation: CANCELLED UPON RECEIPT, ENTRY ON 

CHAIN OF CUSTODY BUT BO BOTTLE. This meant that the 

contractor had received the paperwork on the sample, but the 

accompanying urine was missing. Further investigation 

revealed that this and other recordkeeping/sample handling 

problems were not uncommon in the contractor's dealings with 

the originating laboratory. 

One of the worst aspects of the experience was the manner in 

which my colleagues and I were treated when we attempted to 

question the procedures employed in the drug testing 
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program. Frequently we were told that we had nothing to 

fear from the test if we did not use drugs, with the 

implication being that if we questioned the program we must 

be drug abusers. One of my co-workers was prevented from 

asking questions about the testing procedure after she 

provided her sample. The person in charge said that the 

ninety days prior to signing the consent form had provided 

plenty of time for her to ask questions. You will reca~l 

that when we asked many questions, we received almost no 

answers. My co-worker was admonished, "You gave up your 

rights, now you play by our rules." She was distinctly 

told, "If you don't use drugs, you don't have a problem 

(with the test). If you use drugs, you do have a problem. 

Now do you have a problem?" My colleagues and I do not feel 

that we deserve to be treated in such an insulting manner. 

Another co-worker, Dr. Steve Christesen, had an experience 

that in many ways was more wrenching than mine. He too was 

the victim of a false positive, but his clearance was 

temporarily suspended and he was physically removed from his 

laboratory. Instantly word of his "drug involvement" 

spread. Although he was completely exonerated locally 

within a few days, the experience was painful at best, 

especially when he learned that the reason cited for his 

test-s problem was that the air conditioner in the drug test 

lab was not working. 
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Although my·confirmatory test eventually showed that my 

sample was negative for all drugs, the anxiety created by 

the faulty testing procedures, inadequate information, and 

delyed results created an enormous hardship for myself and 

my family. ! will probably never know what caused my false 

positive. Experts have told me that the type of test that ! 

was subjected to could be thrown off by my menstrual 

condition, over-the-counter drugs, accidental contamination 

or a variety of other factors. 

Once cleared, ! next began a struggle with Aberdeen's 

command for an explanation, redress, and some improvements. 

My first step was to complain to the local Inspector 

General. The major outcome of that effort appears to have 

been a change of test site to a facility that a survey by 

our Center's own biochemical test experts branded woefully 

deficient. In addition, the test procedures were modified 

so that now it is impossible to find out any test results 

until long after it is too late to have yourself tested. 

Throughout my dealings with command, they gave the 

impression that I, and not the program, was considered to be 

the problem. This contrasted sharply with the support and 

trust given me by my colleagues and technical managers - a 

confidence which I will always cherish. 

! next filed an agency grievance. Army grievance 

regulations provide that I shall have access to all records 

76-899 0 - 87 - 5 
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relevant to my problem. Verbal and written requests for 

information from the record and followups were ignored. 

Finally I had to resort to the Freedom of Information Act 

(at considerable expense) to get data concerning my own 

case. 

Recently I learned that my grievance was rejected without 

any investig~tion by the US Army Civilian Appellate Review 

Agency in Columbia, MD. The reason given \'las that my 

grievance wasn't filed within 15 days of the event, meaning 

the drug test. The fact that my results took twenty days to 

reach me, that I was denied access to vital records for 

weeks following the event, and that many grieved conditions 

(such as the lack of Center re~llations) persist make the 

Army's grievance system seem self-serving and farcical. I 

have since turned to the courts to stave off a repeat of my 

test experience. 

With regard to the recent regulations promulgated by the 

Office of Personnel Management, apart from my fundamental 

objection to the nature of this search, I consider them as 

punitive and subject to most of the same shortcomings found 

in the Army's effort. I particularly object to the proposed 

consent to the release of test information that must be 

signed prior to the administration of the test. It appears 

to be a before-the-fact confession. There also appears to 

be little room for due process that would allow the employee 
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to enter evidence in his own behalf like the kind of drug 

test results that I obtained at the local hospitals. 

Indeed, in this en.tire drug test regimen, the employee is 

not confronted with any accusation or evidence against him 

until it is much too late to acquire evidence in his own 

behalf. His metabolism destroys his ability to clear 

himself. 

Turning now to the Health and Human Services guidelines, it 

is my professional opinion that they are seriously flawed. 

Again, many of the Army program's problems are revisited. 

Notable is the lack of sterile containers needed to prevent 

bacterial contamination which can induce errors, especially 

in the screening tests. The overall matter of collection 

site personnel troubles me. Who are these people to be and 

what will be their training? In the CUP program, coworkers 

were drafted into this thankless task under threat of 

insubordination charges. Their levels of attentiveness, 

competence, and objectivity at performing this vital role 

were highly variable. In the new program, their role is to 

be expanded to include actual measurements of color, 

temperature, and signs of contaminants. There are other 

apparent shortcomings, such as security during 

transportation, labelling, and the retention of screening 

tests of the unreliable type that led to my difficulties. 
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In summary, ! would like to reiterate my opposition both in 

principle and practice to the past and proposed programs. 

If the object of this program is to assess impairment, then 

the scientific literature clearly shows that it will not 

work. At best it will only indicate possible past exposure. 

It would be far better to look into bolstering the first 

line of abuse control - supervisor cognizance of his 

employee's actions. This might be supplemented in the most 

critical positions by non-invasive, job-tailored performance 

tests. At least then one could have reasonable ~~use to 

take steps and deal with the full spectrum of employee 

frailty: alcohol, mental or emotional upset, and physical 

distress as well as drugs. 

Thank you very much. I will be happy to answer any 

questions. 
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Mr. SIKORSKI. Thank you. 
No standard operating procedures? 
Ms. THOMSON. No. They had a number of draft procedures, which 

they kept changing and adjusting as they went. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Who does the drug testing? 
Ms. THOMSON. The Army conducts the drug tests. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Themselves? 
Ms. THOMSON. Yes, they do. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. And who did it on you? 
Ms. THOMSON. They had a field test of the immuno assay, which 

was conducted on post. 
The EAP office, those who head the drug assistance program 

were also in charge of the drug testing program. To me, that was a 
defmite conflict of interest. The testers were also the helpers. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. They were the tug and the pull into the program. 
As soon as you reach out your hand, they pull you in to the drug 

test. 
Ms. THOMSON. Absolutely. 
And I would also like to point out something which didn't come 

up during the OPM discussion. But, on page eight of the OPM 
letter, 792-16, paragraph 6, "consent obtained prior to the test 
itself." Consequently, refusal to consent to release of this informa­
tion will be considered a refusal to take the test. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Right. 
Ms. THOMSON. So, in your now new OPM guideline8, they are 

asking you to sign a confession, to be able to turn over your drug 
testing information to them. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Right. You have to consent before a test can be 
taken. 

Ms. THOMSON. That's correct. Otherwise you are considered a re­
fusal. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. And if you don't consent, it's subject to disciplinary 
action, including removal. 

Ms. THOMSON. Absolutely. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. So, there is no uncoerced consent. 
If you don't want to work for the Federal Government, then you 

don't have to give your consent. 
Ms. THOMSON. That's correct. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. I see there is someone from HHS here. Right? And 

no one from OPM? 
This is the model that was referred to repeatedly by the HHS 

and OPM people as being the model for drug testing that we're 
going to embrace in the new initiative; a system where you have a 
loose-leaf notebook. This kind of system is referred to generally as 
a model which we are going to now try to replicate. 

I assume, from looking at what HHS has done, many of the 
things that you were concerned with would be eliminated if they 
follow the HHS model. 

Has the Army revised its program to come into compliance with 
the President's Executive Order of last September? 

Ms. THOMSON. They have not entirely. They say they will now 
not directly observe. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Was it last August or July you were tested? 
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Ms. THOMSON. We started in June. And it had to be completed by 
the start of the new fiscal year because they had quotas they had 
to meet. 

We were always told they were behind on their quotas. They had 
to meet their quotas. They had to be at the forefront to make sure 
that they had all. 

There were eight hundred and forty-five of us scheduled in these 
jobs that needed to be tested before the start of the fiscal year. And 
they started to run behind as they ran into problems. And then as 
the end of September approached they just rushed through every­
body to hurry up and get them tested to meet their quotas. 

The change that I see that they have made is, if they continue 
testing-right now there is a temporary restraining order based on 
court action-that there will no longer be direct observation. They 
will go along with that. 

We had what was called knee-to-knee observation. Fellow em­
ployees of mine--

Mr. SIKORSKI. What kind of observation? 
Ms. THOMSON. Knee-to-knee. When I was observed, the observer 

was allowed to stand outside the open door and watch me pee. And 
that observer was a Federal fellow worker. 

And if you refused to be what they called a BTM, a biochemical 
test monitor, then you would be cited for insubot'(tination. So, there 
was coersion there also. 

But that's the way it was. 
After the problem with the false positives-myself and another 

co-worker, Dr. Steve Christesen, whose story I enclosed in the testi­
mony, also came up positive, and, by the way, he was physically 
removed from working in the laboratory until his was cleared up­
they then decided they would do what's called knee-to-knee obser­
vation. 

A secretary friend of mine was literally knee-to-knee with her 
observer in the restroom, in the john. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. And her observer was of the same sex? 
Ms. THOMSON. Yes. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Well, did you hear OPM's response when I raised 

the issue. 
The first statement was that there wasn't a false positive in the 

whole Army program. 
Ms. THOMSON. Well, obviously he hasn't been tested. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Yes. 
Ms. THOMSON. I was handed a piece of paper from a machine 

that is not a hundred percent accurate that said positive for mari­
juana. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. And then I said you had a false positive. 
He said, well, not in the confirmatory test. And that's true. But 

you had twenty-one days of agony. You lost your ability to chal­
lenge the process. 

Ms. THOMSON. That's correct. Because you never face your accus­
ers. There's no place in these guidelines or in the Army regs where 
you can introduce evidence on your own behalf. 

At no time was I able to introduce, and still haven't to this day, 
my test results. 
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If that test-and I had no reason not to suspect that there may 
have been an error, where the positive calibrator could have acci­
dently been piped inio my sample-I would have had a spiked 
sample. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. As I understand, the HHS regulations require that 
those specimens be preserved, if they are positive, for a lengthy 
period of time. Is that correct? 

Ms. THOMSON. But the point is, the day you are tested, your 
body, if you have drugs in it, is continually metabolizing. If you 
wait three weeks, the evidence is gone. The time for retest is imme­
diately. 

That's why I left work and went out and got tested to have my 
own evidence. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. They tested the same sample again-which is the 
best kind of a retest, the same sample-and if it comes up negative, 
then it's proof that the--

Ms. THOMSON. Well, they retested mine twice, and it was positive 
twice. But there could be reasons as to why one sample could come 
up positive on it in--

Mr. SIKORSKI. So, the error rates are incredible. They're over­
turning these testing procedures. They're overturning chain of cus­
tody. They're overturning conclusions left and right based on legiti­
mate analysis of a more perfect science. What's the status of your 
lawsuit? 

Ms. THOMSON. Right now we have a preliminary injunction. It's 
still undergoing litigation. We have pending a permanent injunc­
tion. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Have you on your work, in your daily work sched­
ule, have you been treated differently? 

Ms. THOMSON. No. My immediate supervisors have been very 
supportive and wonderful. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. So, you want to commend those people? 
Ms. THOMSON. Yes, I certainly do. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Okay. 
Ms. THOMSON. The technical management at CRDC has been 

very supportive. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. There's an attempt by HHS, as I see it, to clean up 

the system and to eliminate some of the challenges or bases for 
challenging and to be somewhat responsive or sensitive to the 
human situation involved in drug testing. 

They are attempting to respond to your prAvious situation-the 
knee-to-knee occurrence. But you can't fully respond to the process 
of maintaining human dignity in our urine test situation. 

Ms. THOMSON. The indignity of the situation was that my consti­
tutional rights were violated. There was no probable cause to test 
me. 

The very week that my number came up to be tested was the 
week that I was honored in an award ceremony for outstanding 
performance, given a quality step increase, my five hundred hour 
accumulated leave for not abusing sick leave. And, yet, they were 
testing me for drug abuse. 

Mr. SIKORSKI .. You get the. eer:tificateand the·specimen-.-.: _. 
Ms. THOMSON. Signed by the general 'himself: 
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Mr. SIKORSKI. And the specimen cup, unsigned, at the same time. 
There is just no way of eliminating the human mass. 

The human indignity in this process of random testing, assuming 
what I talked about in my opening statement-the teacher coming 
into the room, and one person blows a bubble, so everyone's got to 
put gum on their nose, or one person acts up while the teacher is 
facing the blackboard, and everyone has to stay after school. Also, 
you're dealing with body fluids and you're dealing with a very per­
sonal function. It makes it impossible, no matter how sensitive 
HHS is to eliminate the dignity factor. And what's on black and 
white in paper is much different from what in reality occurs at 
that site, that contracted-out site specimen collector is taking the 
specimen. 

You can't eliminate those problems can you? 
Ms. THOMSON. No. 
There is also the long chain of custody. The route that my 

sample took went from Edgewood to Aberdeen, by mail to Fort 
Meade. Fort Meade, by the way, is awash in urine. Colonel Durrell, 
who was deputy commander, told me, at the time, they have more 
samples than they can possibly handle. 

It is subcontracted out to Compuchem, North Carolina, which is 
where it was tested at Raleigh. Then the results wound their way 
back. That's why it took twenty-one days. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Why don't you go through that again? 
You went from your body into a specimen cup, into a bag in 

some kind of transportation. 
Ms. THOMSON. That was transported to Aberdeen because it's 

under the aegis of the commander at Aberdeen. There are two 
areas of Aberdeen Proving Ground. 

It is then packaged up with other samples, mailed. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Oh, it's not packaged before it gets over there. 
Ms. THOMSON. Well, it's in a container. And then it's packaged to 

bemailed.mailed to Fort Meade, where Fort Meade then subcon­
tracts theirs out to Compuchem in North Carolina. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. And they're awash in these urine tests? 
Ms. THOMSON. Yes. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. At Fort Meade? 
Ms. THOMSON. They've been testing all of the military as well as 

the start of the civilians. All of this takes time. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. And back. 
Ms. THOMSON. And back. 
And we have to assume that the chain of custody is maintained. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. What are you suing for? 
Ms. THOMSON. Constitutional rights. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. For violation of constitutional rights? 
Ms. THOMSON. Yes, sir. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Are you seeking damages? 
Ms. THOMSON. No monetary damages. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Are you joined by other plaintiffs? 
Ms. THOMSON. A fellow employee, a pipefitter. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. And is that in Federal Court? In what district? 
Ms. THOMSON. Yes. It's in Baltimore. 
And I really would not like to discuss the case too much, on the 

advice of my attorneys, because it is in litigation. 
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Mr. SIKORSKI. Okay. And at this point there -is the TRO?· 
Ms. THoMSON. Yes. We have a preliminary injunction, which is 

actually a step beyond that. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. How about the Inspector General's Office at the 

Department of Army? Did you talk to them? 
Ms. THOMSON. Yes. As I tried in the intervening days, the 

twenty-one days, to fmd out what would happen, I did ·go to the In­
spector General with the information that I had gained in these 
draft documents, citing that here we have all of these very tight 
regulations surrounding toxicity testing of rodents for the Army, 
and yet they're testing me without anywhere near the. strict guide­
lines. And they did agree, you know, that--

Mr. SIKORSKI. Wait. Let me back up. You test rats? 
Ms. THOMSON. Yes, sir. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. For the Army? And what are the kinds of guide­

lines and standards, procedures that you employ? 
Ms. THOMSON. Our procedures are very strict, in accordance with 

FDA, EPA good laboratory practice guidelines. We have "signed­
off, approved" standard operating procedures. 

Our animal use protocols· go before a committee headed by a vet­
erinarian to make sure that we are using state-of-the-art proce­
dures, that .they are needed. 

The commander has to sign off on every single study that is done 
to make sure that it is required, and necessary, and meets all of 
the requirements for good laboratory practice; 

Mr. SIKORSKI. So, the rats get better fare than employees. 
Ms. THOMSON. They certainly did in this case. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. And you have a Ph.D.? 
Ms. THOMSON. Yes, sir. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Which took how long? 
Ms. THOMSON. Eight years of college. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Are you in classified work? 
Ms. THOMSON. Yes. I am an inhalation . toxicologist. We test a 

number of chemicals that are of interest to the Army. We are con­
cerned with protecting the soldiers from health hazards from those 
materials. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. You're not involved in chemical--
Ms. THOMSON. Yes, we are. That is one of the job categories. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Okay. 
You are an example of an employee with an extensive back­

ground who never had problems-disciplinary problems, or things 
like that, always a credible employee, did a credit to the work, got 
awarded a certificate for outstanding· work the same week you 
were asked to take a urine test, went through the indignity of that, 
and then found out the machine made a mistake, but had to live 
through three weeks of hell before you were cleared. 

And that kind of situation can only grow exponentially as these 
random drug tests grow exponentially within our Federal work 
force. 

Ms. THOMSON. I would expect so; 
Mr. SIKORSKI. In fact, with the programs that haven't been on as 

long, with people that are new, with businesses and lab test busi­
nesses that are new to the process, we can expect that there will be 
even bigger problems in starting up the new system than in the 
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current system, which is pointed to as a model by many who are 
charged with coming up with a new system. 

Dr. Thomson, you've been a real help to the subcommittee. I 
hope and expect a lot of people will be made aware of your testimo­
ny, your situation. 

Thank you very much. Did you take annual leave to get here? 
Ms. THOMSON. Yes, I did. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. I commend your superiors for handling you with 

respect, even though you saw something wrong and wanted to right 
it, for continuing to protect your rights and deal with you in a dig­
nified way. They should be commended as well. 

Ms. Lois Williams is the Director of Litigation for the National 
Treasury Employees Union. Last, but certainly not least. 

Ms. Williams has led the NTEU's successful charge to challenge 
the Federal employee drug testing in the courts. And she's here to 
inform the subcommittee of her efforts in this respect. 

I thank you for coming and staying with us. 

STATEMENT OF LOIS WILLIAMS, DIRECTOR OF LITIGATION, 
NATIONAL TREASURY EMPLOYEES UNION 

Ms. WILLIAMS. I appreciate the opportunity to be here. 
As you say, NTEU has been a vigorous opponent of this Adminis­

tration's attempt to require employees to submit to this kind of 
drug testing. 

We have two important cases pending. The first has been men­
tioned, against the Customs Service. That's currently on appeal by 
the Government to the Fifth Circuit, where we could get a decision 
any day in that case. 

The second is a challenge to the President's Executive Order, 
which has been much discussed today, and its implementing regu­
lations. That case, we're filing a huge brief tomorrow in that case. 

We will be arguing April 30th in the District Court. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. The District Court here in Washington? 
Ms. WILLIAMS. No, in New Orleans. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. In New Orleans. 
Ms. WILLIAMS. The same court. 
MI'. SIKORSKI. That's right. 
Ms. WILLIAMS. The same District Court that decided the Customs 

case. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Is that a single judge then? 
Ms. WILLIAMS. Yes, it is. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Okay. No magistrate? A real judge? 
Ms. WILLIAMS. No, no. No. This is cross motions for summary 

judgement, although we have developed some extensive record in 
the case. 

And perhaps I could just mention that the more we look at this 
problem the more we see how little is known about it. 

And you don't have to be a research scientist to see how inad­
equate the data is on which anybody relies. 

We were tempted to take pictures of ourselves holding the evi­
dence that the Government was able to submit, the studies that 
have been done to date. They can fit on the palm of your hand. 
There just is nothing now. 
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Mr. SIKORSKI. If I could interrupt you. 
Ms. WILLIAMS. Surely. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. I think we found that out this morning. 
Ms. WILLIAMS. Yes. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. There's no data base. There are statements made 

with regard to drug use in the Federal work force that aren't sup­
ported by studies. 

Ms. WILLIAMS. Yes. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. And they point to extrapolation from work force 

studies which we aren't aware of either. They didn't specify those. 
Then you ask for specifics. You ask for numbers. You ask for 

dollar signs and calendar dates. And there is none of that .. But 
there is a wishful assumption away of the problem. 

People are doing these things because, by definition, they're re­
quired to do these things. 

People are going to do things because, by defmition, they've been 
ordered by the President to do these things. 

And the more questions that are asked this morning, as you are 
aware, the more questions need to be asked because there are no 
answers. 

Ms. WILLIAMS. Exactly. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. And you found the same thing in your litigation? 
Ms. WILLIAMS. Yes. And I will be happy to supply the committee 

with some of that information if it wishes. 
We have a number of exhibits attached to our brief. And some of 

that we found very helpful. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Okay. 
Ms. WILLIAMS. In fact, there's very little known about the private 

sector drug use in the workplace. 
I think it's astonishing that we're taking major actions of any 

sort based on this kind of knowledge. 
The President's own Executive Order says it costs the Govern­

ment billions of dollars in productivity, billions of dollars is what 
he said. 

The only study we can find is a perfectly respectable study for 
what it purports to do. The Research Trianagle Institute, to which 
I've referred in my tes'Limony, it studies productivity measured 
only in terms of income. 

Now, that may be sound economics, but it doesn't tell us any­
thing about what it costs an employer whose employees may use 
drugs. It doesn't tell us anything about that. 

It only measures-this is the only thing this study does. And I 
tell you this because this is the best there is. It takes a sample of 
people who admit to marijuana use for thirty consecutive days at 
some time in their lives. And it fmds that they, today, make less 
money than their counterparts who do not make such an admis­
sion. That is all. No cause and effect. No study of motivation. The 
obvious question is, perhaps a heavy marijuana user at one time is 
motivated to seek other kinds of employment, employment that 
isn't so remunerative. 

The obvious answer to that problem would be to raise the sala­
ries of Federal employees. 

---- ----------
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But I think that it's absurd to suggest that this productivity 
figure has anything to do with what it's costing the Government as 
an employer to deal with the drug problem among its employees. 

In fact, there just isn't any evidence of any drug problem. I'm a 
lawyer. We have to talk about the standard which must be met in 
order to undertake a search, which this is. There's no question it is 
a search. 

We're talking about a known population, our own employees. 
They have accumulated a work record. They perform on the job. 
It's not an unknown quanity. It's not as though we were writing on 
a blank slate. 

We have people-as the witness you just heard-with excellent 
work recoras, who have never given their employers any reason to 
believe that they use drugs at all. And for them the standard ought 
to be much higher, I think, to require them to undergo any search. 
Probable cause is an absolute necessity, I believe. 

Reasonable suspicion, as I think the subcommittee will appreci­
ate, is already a significant concession to the public interest in fer­
retting out drug abuse. It's already a significant concession. 

And a supervisor who says, you look a little sleepy to me today, I 
think maybe you've got a problem, let's go down to the tester-you 
can see the obvious potentials for abuse even in the reasonable sus­
picion standards, which, under the Executive Order and the regula­
tions, would apply to every Federal employee. Every Federal em­
ployee. Forget sensitive. Okay. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. It's important to make that distinction. 
There's the sensitive area which we have been focusing on. 
Ms. WILLIAMS. Yes. 
And I think these terms are fairly loosely used. And it is ex­

tremely important to keep in mind that for the normal citizen, 
probable cause is paramount. Now, that's the minimum. 

There are some searches, which even with the most probable 
cause, can't be justified, as the Supreme Court has told us. 

I think I need not go into the horrors about intrusion on privacy. 
I think, perhaps, in any event, we'd be singing to the choir here. I 
wish the preacher would listen a little bit more. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. The preachers have been busy these days. 
Ms. WILLIAMS. Indeed they have. Indeed they have. 
The medical officer has been mentioned and all the protections 

involved. But please do not overlook that there are many employ­
ees who take drugs that are on these lists by doctors' prescriptions 
for medical conditions. And there is no way that they can preserve 
any privacy in that matter. That will be revealed by the test. 
That's not a false positive. That's a true positive that. has to be 
then explained. And that will be revealed. And one will have to 
justify why one takes codeine, demerol, tincture of opium. Even 
marijuana is used in chemotherapy these days. All of those condi­
tions, which otherwise could not be inquired in to unless they are 
clearly job related, will have to be revealed and a record made. 
And we have no assurances of what will happen to that record. 

And there are reasons in our society why such medical factors 
are entitled to privacy. That privacy is abandoned here. 
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Now, I'd like to just make a couple of points, and then I'd be 
happy to answer any questions, about what is constitutionally, le­
gally, practically wrong with this program. 

Obviously, to evaluate the constitutional question, you have to 
ask whether these intrusive means are necessary to solve a real 
problem. And much has been said this morning about the lack of 
evidence about a real problem. 

But let's not forget the first and foremost difficulty, which is that 
these tests, even if they were one hundred percent accurate, do not 
measure in any sense of the word impairment on the job. And 
nobody makes that claim even. I mean even the Justice Depart­
ment, the enemy we love to hate, doesn't claim that there's any re­
lationship between a positive test result and job impairment. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. No. They make the argument that Federal employ-
ees should have respect for Federal laws. 

Ms. WILLIAMS. Absolutely. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. And that's sufficient in itself. 
Ms. WILLIAMS. That's right. And that's the legal leg they stand 

on. 
Now, that, it seems to me, is clearly the law enforcement func­

tion of the Government and not the employer function of the Gov­
ernment. But it also suggests that the Civil, Service Reform Act, 
which requires-not just the act, but the Constitution and cases ex­
isting before the statute was passed-that in order to take an 
action against an employee you have to show a clear relationship 
between off-duty conduct and impairment on the job. 

It seems to me it very clearly contemplates performance impair­
ment. And we have many, many decided cases in which persons 
convicted of crime have been found not unfit for Federal employ­
ment, depending on the circumstances. 

And I am told that the use of marijuana is not normally an in­
dictable offense anyway. It's an illicit activity, certainly. But it is 
not something that normally would incur prosecution. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. If I could again interrupt on that point. 
Ms. WILLIAMS. Surely. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. There is no nexus, you argue, between the viola­

tion of the law on drug use and the performance at work. To 
remove without that nexus would be questionable. 

Ms. WILLIAMS. It would violate the statute at least, if not the due 
process clause of the Constitution. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. As I understand, the Department of Justice has 
sent to Congress legislation or made a request that that problem be 
eliminated by statute. Is it? 

Ms. WILLIAMS. The statutory problem would be eliminated. In my 
opinion, there would still be a due process question. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. The due process question this whole discussion 
triggers is a criminal procedure type of scrutiny that would be a 
very heavy burden for each of these agencies, and especially the 
smaller agencies, to bear. 

Ms. WILlLIAMS. Not to mention the employees and their represen­
atives. 

The cost to society is enormous. And we're prepared, obviously, 
to litigate every on.e of those questionable cases. We have to do 
that. But what a waste. What a waste it is. 
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Now, of course, they're not required to turn over any evidence 
obtained for prosecution, but neither are they forbidden. 

And, as I think you suggested earlier, Mr. Chairman, there is 
probably an encouragement anyway to let people believe that that 
will happen. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. The potential bright spot in this is these employee 
assistance programs. Dr. Thomson testified that it was the employ­
ee assistance program, which supposedly assists Federal employees 
who have or may be concerned about drug problems, that the point 
agency for the actual random testing. 

Ms. WILLIAMS. Right. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. And at some point there's going to be a triggering 

of Miranda rights and specific criminal due process rights that 
would be well nigh impossible for most agencies on this local basis 
to carry. 

Ms. WILLIAMS. Yes. No question about that. 
The cost to employee morale is immeasurable. Already, I think, 

at an all time low. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. And it changes the management-employee function 

dramatically, too. Because it becomes a cop and assumed robber 
kind of situation as opposed to a partnership, at least in theory. 

Ms. WILLIAMS. Clearly. I think that point was well made this 
morning that this whole program is destructive of efforts in the 
employment assistance area. 

We don't have any hard evidence either. But anecdotal evidence 
certainly suggests those programs have fallen in to disrepair and 
disrepute to the extent they did exist. 

People are certainly afraid to enroll themselves in them these 
days. I don't think there is any question about that. 

And it's logical. Because remember one of the things that gives 
rise to suspicion, allowing test after test, every hour on the hour, is 
the admission that there ever was a problem. 

So, one positive test is, by itself, grounds for the next test. So, all 
you have to do is be enrolled in a program to incur this possibility. 

And ew .. ry employee assistance counsellor will tell you that that 
will destroy the program. Because occasional falling off the wagon 
happens. And it does not mean that the program is not succeeding. 

But a second positive test, in that circumstance, remember, re-
quires dismissal. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Right. 
Ms. WILLIAMS. You can't survive that. 
So, the whole thing, I think, is seen for the sham it is. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Say this program goes for twenty years, and some­

one has a positive this year, goes through treatment program, and 
twenty years from now has a positive, does that count as your 
second confirmed--

Ms. WILLIAMS. Well, the guidelines do not suggest that there is 
any statute of limitations-that would operate that would operate. 
I think that that couldn't stand up obviously. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. May 1? There, I'm going to ask a few questions? 
Ms. WILLIAMS. Sure. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. And then you can add whatever you like at the 

end and complete if you can. 
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The Customs program has been going on for some time, the test-
ing program? 

Ms. WILLIAMS. Well, it was begun last summer. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Before the Executive Order? 
Ms. WILLIAMS. Yes. It preexisted the Executive Order. 
It was halted as a result of our lawsuit in November. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Have they attempted to conform with the new 

guidelines and regulations? 
Ms. WILLIAMS. Well, I think nothing is being done now, but, at 

least we are not aware of it. 
We did negotiate fully on the procedures that would be involved. 
The thing I don't know, whether anything has been done on the 

certification of the laboratory procedures. 
In general, I will say that the procedures for the testing are very, 

very similar to the HHS guidelines. 
And, of course, in our litigation we have assumed all of the safe­

guards. We have assumed that it is going to be conducted in the 
most careful way possible, with the best technology possible. And 
we're prepared to litigate any situation where that's not so. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Amtrak, court martials-There are a whole host of 
cases around the country where that assumption, with errors up to 
sixty··nine percent are reported.You can't make that assumption. 

But even assuming that the tests are going to be done up to a 
very high standard--

Ms. WILLIAMS. Right. Even in that circumstance, we say it can't. 
It's unconstitutional. And that's what the court found. 

But this program, the Customs program, I forget, I think they 
were testing about fifty people a week for about six months, some­
thing like that. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. For the two drugs, or wider? 
Ms. WILLIAMS. No. They tested for all five drugs. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. But not alcohol? 
Ms. WILLIAMS. Oh, no. 
I think you're quite right. The specter of that is too frightening 

for too many people. Although the evidence we have looked at, the 
data we have looked at, show not only that much more is known 
about alcohol abuse, and that it is a much, much more serious 
problem, but that it's much easier to test for. In both these situa­
tions, let's not overlook the possibility of simple observation with 
the human eye. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Yes. 
Ms. WILLIAMS. Tests, urine tests or blood tests, in the workplace, 

are frequently completely unnecessary. 
And if there are performance problems, the Government has the 

full range of remedies now to deal with those problems. 
Normally, anybody who is not operating a safety switch some­

where that is going to affect hundreds of thousands of people some­
how impaired on the job, not performing, mental acuity suffering, 
that person is fired. That's what happens. You don't inquire into 
why necessarily. 

And the way it should work, I think, is if the person said wait a 
minute, you can't fire me, I have a drug problem; then is when you 
get referred for an -employee assistance program if not before that 
point. 
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Mr. SIKORSKI. Are your employees Customs agents? 
Ms. WILLIAMS. Well, Customs inspectors were a prime target. But 

it was not limited to people who handled drugs, which Customs in­
spectors do, or carry guns, which they do, or have any other impact 
on public safety. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. People inspect bags as they come in. 
Ms. WILLIAMS. Yes. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. People inspect fruit and vegetables and--
Ms. WILLIAMS. Sure. But there are also noninspectors who were 

covered. There were lawyers covered, for example. There were cler­
ical employees. There were cafeteria workers in the Commission­
er's cafeteria I believe. Sensitive employees. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. How about the Commissioner? 
Ms. WILLIAMS. The Commissioner, yes. He was one of the first 

volunteers. He happily did so, and most managers in the Customs 
Service. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. How about contracting out the tests? The Customs 
must contract out for some tests, you know, like assay tests and 
other things. 

Ms. WILLIAMS. The tests were all conducted by-as far as I 
know-private contractors. Yes. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Okay. 
That's a question, too. 
Ms. WILLIAMS. Yes. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. All this drug testing was contracted out. 
Ms. WILLIAMS. Right. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. But Customs Service also contracts out part of 

their traditional day-to-day duties do they not? 
Ms. WILLIAMS. Oh. Laboratory analysis. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Yes. 
Ms. WILLIAMS. Yes, I believe some of that is done under contract. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. But these people weren't tested for drugs. 
Ms. WILLIAMS. No. I think that the focus I have heard on that 

this morning is very helpful. Because it seems to me the reason­
one obvious reason why this isn't required is I think they know 
they couldn't get away with it constitutionally. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Right. 
Ms. WILLIAMS. I mean, they think they have an argument 

against employees that will vitiate the constitutional right. But I 
think they wouldn't dare try to impose it on people who aren't 
technically employees, no matter that they are paid by taxpayer 
funds. 

Now, of course, there are a great many things you can require of 
contractors, certainly. And I don't know whether that would pass 
muster or not. But I don't think they want to get in to that hor­
net's nest. 

I don't think they care really. 
If there's anything that's come out clearly in all of this, and cer­

tainly our research bears it out, it is that this was first, and fore­
most, and probably exclusively a political statement. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. And Federal employees are easy targets. 
Ms. WILLIAMS. Absolutely. They are the handiest. They are the 

handiest of targets. 
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The argument that the Federal employer should be able to do 
what any private employer can do, who is uncenstrained by the 
Constitution, is absurd, because the entire mix, the entire balance 
is different in the Federal Government. 

We may have a constitutional right with respect to our employ­
er. But there are many, many things we can't do because the Gov­
ernment is our employer, not the least of which is bargain over 
this whole matter. And if it's abhorrent enough to strike, we can't 
do that. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. And if the politicians who have spoke eloquently 
or at least loudly about the need to do these t.hings were sincere, 
they would start in t.heir own agencies. 

The White House could have their own program. They didn't 
have to wait for Customs or for other people to go ahead. And they 
could have it now. 

Ms. WILLIAMS. Absolutely. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. There are labs around that could do the job, the 

job that they seem to want done. 
Maybe things would have been different if Ollie North and Bud 

McFarlane and Fawn Hall and others were tested in their national 
security roles. 

Ms. WILLIAMS. Well, that's an interesting proposition. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. That's why it is reserved for 1:20 in the afternoon. 
Ms. WILLIAMS. I do think that they might well encounter the re-

sponse that Secretary Shultz gave when he was asked to submit to 
a lie detector test. And he was mightily and properly outraged. 
And that's the normal human response to this matter. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. And the deputy of the commission that made the 
recommendation that we have this testing had a similar response 
to the thought. 

Ms. WILLIAMS. Yes. 
You know, in order to avert an obvious air piracy problem, we're 

willing to walk through a magnetometer. We're willing to do that 
to enter this building, where there is a dramatic threat, something 
to go on, a reason to believe that a problem could occur that would 
endanger a lot of people, and where the intrusion is minimal. 
That's obviously no comparison to what's going on here. 

This is a far more dramatic intrusion for no excuse whatever. 
I have never really seen such a demoralizing, debilitating, de­

structive program aimed at employees. And I was a Federal em­
ployee for a long time. 

I would be quitting if I were faced with this problem today. 
I think the President should probably follow his own advice, 

which is, if it's not broken, don't fIx it. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Just say no. 
Ms. WILLIAMS. That's right. Just say no. 
Thank you. 
[The statement of Ms. Williams follows:] 
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STATEMENT OF LOIS G. WILLIAMS, DIRECTOR OF LITIGATION, 

NATIONAL TREASURY E~WLOYEES UNION 

Thank you Mr. Chairman and other distinguished members 

of.the House Subcommittee on Human Resources for this 

opportunity to discuss the President's proposal that federal 

civilian workers be subject in large numbers to drug 

tes ting. My name is Lois G. Williams, Direc!tor of Li tiga tion 

for the National Treasury Employees Union. NTEU is the 

exclusive representative for approximately 120,000 federal 

civilian employees locat~d across the continental United 

States, Alaska, Hawaii, and Puerto Rico. 

We do not appear today to argue that federal employees 

should have the right to use illegal drugs. Ue urge, rather, 

that there are constitutional limits on the government's 

investigation into the off-duty behavior o! its employees. 

NTEU has consistently opposed both publicly and in COI_Irt the 

efforts of this Administration to impose unwarranted, unwise, 

unconstitutional drug testing on federal employees. In the 

first important test of the Administration's program, the 

government has appealed from our successful challenge to the 

U.S. Customs Service's urinalysis program, and we are 

awaiting the Fifth Circuit's decision.ll The Customs 

Service, of course, chose to impose a costly program of 

employee urine testing, while simultaneously urging the 

NTEU v. Von Raab, F.Supp. (E.D. La. 1986), 
apbeal pending, No:-B6-3833 (5~Cir.) (argued 
Fe ruary 3, 1987). 
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Congress to cut dramatically the resources for interdicting 

illegal drugs at the nation's borders.11 This perverse 

approach is emblematic of this Administration's entire 

approach to the nation's drug problem--it fabricates a 

"problem" among federal employees; it pretends a solution; 

and, in so doing, it diverts both attention and resources 

from the real societal problem of drug abuse. 

Our second case is "a challenge to .the President's 

broader program embodied in Executive Order 12564.11 That 

Order requires widespread urine testing across all sectors of 

the federal workforce, and imposes severe disciplinary 

penalties, including removal, against any employee who either 

objects too providing a urine sample for chemical analysis or 

whose urine sample is reported positive for specified illegal 

drugs. We are filing briefs in that case April 8, and it is 

scheduled for hearing on April 30. 

11 

11 

Let me describe what federal employees are threat"ened 

The Administration's FY 1987 budget proposal would 
have cut the Customs budget anu cut its personnel 
levels by 1500 pos i tions. The FY 1988 proposal was 
for a cut nearly 1,000 below original 1986 levels, as 
well as a rescission of the 1987 authorization of 
increased staffing levels. See Budget of the Uni"ted 
States Government, Fiscal Year 1988, pp. 1515 
(personnel summary) 11-69 (rescission proposal). 

NTEU, et al. v. Reagan et al., No. 86-4058 (E.n. La.). 
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with}'/ Let us follow 11ary Green, who has been ordered to 

report immediately to a specified "collection site" for a 

urine test. Mary has been a federal employee for 15 years, 

and is now secretary to a high level manager. Her position 

has been designated for random drug tes'.ing, but she has 

never given anyone reason to believe she uses drugs. 

Upon reporting, she finds that "collection site" means 

bathroom. It is attended by a "collection site person," who 

is in the bathroom in order to scrutinize ~1ary's appearance 

and behavior while she urinates, to make sure she is really 

Mary Green, and to see that Hary does not adulterate or 

s ubsti tute her sample. 

The collection site has been "secured" prior to Mary's 

arrival. Toilet bluing agents have been placed in the toilet 

tanke, and all other sources of water have been cut off. 

Mary is required to provide identification and surrender 

"unnecessary outer garments" and personal possessions. 

Failure to present proper identification would be duly 

noted. While Hary disrobes, the "collection site person" 

observes and would "note any unusual behavior or 

appearance." When Mary is ready to urinate, she will be 

The description that follows contains only 
requirements enumerated in the HHS Guidelines, 
"Scien tific and Technical Guidelines for Drug Tes ting 
Programs," Department of Health and Human Services, 
Feb. 13, 1987. 



) 
I 

145 

4 

required to wash her ha.nds. During this period, the monitor 

keeps her under scrutiny and assures she is out of range of 

any water supply, soap dispenser, or cleaning agents. 

Mary is allowed to provide her urine specimen in the 

"privacy" of a stall or behind a partition, while the 

"collection site person" again notes "any unusual behavior." 

Had a public restroom been used, the collection site person 

would remain in the restroom (although outside the stall) 

while Mary "voids" into a specimen container. Had the agency 

had "reason to believe" that Mary might alter or substitute 

the specimen, the agency could order that the monitor 

directly watch Mary urinate, exposing her genitals and 

urinary stream to the monitor's view. Mary is instructed not 

to flush the toilet herself after she "voids"; the collection 

site person must flush the toilet. 

After receiving the sample, the collection site person 

must confirm that Mary has provided a sufficient amount of 

urine. If she has not, she may be detained and required to 

drink additional.liquid. Thereafter, Mary is allowed to wash 

her hands. The collector then checks the sample's 

temperature and "conducts an inspection" of its color and 

character for signs of adulteration. If the temperature 

falls outside a certain range, Mary must try again, this time 

under the direct observation of the monitor. 
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The monitor follows her instructions to "always 

attempt to have the container or specimen bottles within view 

before and after the individual has urinated, and before and 

after it is sealed." Chain of custody procedures must be 

followed to attempt to prevent switching and mislabelling of 

samples. 

The urine sample is then subjected to laboratory 

analysis. If Mary has not used one of the specified illegal 

drugs (the specimen must be screened for at least marijuana 

and cocaine), she should have nothing further to fear, except 

for two things. First, though perhaps unlikely, laboratory 

errors can occur in chain of custody procedures or in 

contaminated glassware or the li~e. Only last week, the 

Department of Transportation announced that positive drug 

test results from the train crew involved in the highly 

publicized fatal wreck last January may have been flawed by 

"procedural irregularities " at the laboratory also used by 

the FAA and the Federal Railroad Administration:11 Second, 

if Mary is one of the many who take one of the specified 

drugs under prescription, yet another invasion of privacy 

occurs. That drug will be detected and the medical condition 

will have to be revealed. Thus, legitimate use of codeine, 

See John Lancaster, "Possible Flaws Found in Conrail 
Drug Tests," \vashington Post (April 2,1987). 
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morphine, tincture of opium, and others will have to be 

documented to the agency's satisfaction. 

Does this sound like a medical examination? It should 

be no surprise that employees are offended by these tests. 

Nor should it be a surprise that we are prepared to litigate 

their constitutionality to the highest court, if necessary. 

Our cases and the many other challenges to urine 

testing are grounded in the Fourth Amendment's protection 

against unreasonable search and seizure by the government. 

The Supreme Court just last week decisively rejected the 

Justice Department's argument that the Fourth Amendment does 

not protect government employees against unreasonable search 

and seizure by their employer. In the case of O'Connor v. 

Ortega, No. 85-53.0, decided Narch 31, ·1987, all members of 

the Court agreed that the government employee retains a 

reasonable expectation of privacy even in his desk, office, 

and files. The court recognized that even greater privacy is 

involved in the employee's belongings brought into the 

.workplace. Necessarily, the highest of privacy expectation 

attaches to the employee's own body and bodily functions. 

Since there can no longer be any question that the 

Fourth Amendment applies to government employee urine 

testing, then, the analysis must focus on whether the testing 

is "reasonable." The courts will balance the harm to privacy 

expectations against the necessity for the search. Our 
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position is that urine drug testing intrudes mont heavily on 

an individual's sense of privacy and dignity. Against that 

considerable intrusion must be balanced the government's 

interest in and need to conduct the tests. It is undisputed 

that urine tests do not and cannot measure in any way worker 

impairment, intoxication, or on-the-job use. In addition, 

urine tests are expensive if properly conducted and fraught 

with the risk of devastating error, even when the most 

sophisticated technology is employed. Perhaps most 

important, as I will discuss more fully in a moment, there is 

no demonstrable problem of drug use among federal employees, 

nor any reason to believe that a drug problem exists. 

Therefore, urin~ testing cannot be said to be necessary to 

meet any reasonable goal; balanced against the profound 

invasion of privacy it represents, drug testing cannot meet 

the Fourth Amendment's reasonableness test. 

Chemical surveillance of federal employees is an 

outrageous invasion of their privacy. It requires employees 

to urinate on demand under the close scrutiny of a stranger, 

to submit to chain of custody procedures usually reserved for 

criminals, to disclose confidential medical information, and 

to reveal, through laboratory analysis of their bodily waste, 

details of off the job activities during prior days or even 

weeks. 
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tfuy is this being asked of federal employees? Fow 

have they inspired their President's or their nation's 

distrust? tfuat have they done to suggest that they should be 

the targets of this chemical surveillance? The answer is, 

nothing. 

Our Constitution and our society tolerate some 

invasions of privacy when they are necessary to meet a known 

and serious danger that cannot be met in a non-intrusive 

way. ~le walk through magnetometers at airports, a relatively 

non-intrusi\ ' search, so as to prevent the known and dramatic 

danger of air piracy. We permit limited weapons searches of 

visitors and employees at prisons. becaus"e they are volatile 

situations where weapons and contraband are particularly 

dangerous, and the search directly abates the danger. 

But this Administration has embarked on its drug 

testing crusade without any such justification. It has never 

bothered to examine the extent or the impact of illegal drug 

use by its employees. It purports to base its invasion of 

employee privacy and dignity on needs of workplace safety, 

efficiency, and productivity.£/ However, it has never 

compiled evidence on workplace safety problems attributable 

to drug use; it has never attempted to analyze inefficiencies 

such as absenteeism or health costs attributable to drug 

£/ See E.O. 12564 Findings. 
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abuse; j.t has never studied loss of productivity owing to 

employee drug use. It simply asserts, and expects us to 

believe, that these problems exist. 

In fact, our research in connection with our 

litigation shows that very little is known about drug abuse 

in the workplace. Alarming "statistics" have been widely 

circulated by the burgeoning drug testing industry. This 

immensely profitable industry has obviously benefited from 

the attention currently focused on the nation's serious law 

enforcement drug abuse problem.II However, that industry 

has offered no facts or research that assists in measuring 

any problem in the workplace, either private or public. Nor 

has such research been undertaken by others. 

To illustrate, let us look briefly a~ the two studies 

most commonly relied upon in discussions about the drug 

As media and public attention has increasingly focused 
on the law enforcement problem, so have the profits 
increased in those sectors of private industry 
promoting drug testing andlor drug treatment 
programs. See, tveisman, Adam Paul; "48 Hours on Crock 
Street: I Was A Drug Hype Junkie," The New Republic 
(October 6, 1986), pp. 14-17. Industry sources state 
that the drug testing industry's profits have tripled 
and quadrupled in the past two years. See Nell 
Henderson, "Drug Testing Industry FlourISlies," 
l-lashington Post, June 30, 1986. Gerard A. Marini, 
Pres l.dent of "Diagnos tic Dimens ions," a subs idiary of 
Hoffman-LaRoche (purveyor of "RIA" drug testing kits), 
has boas ted tha t he has "no daub t this is going to be 
big, big business." Chapman, Fern Schumer, "The 
Ruckus Over Medical Testing," Fortune Magazine 
(August 19,1985), p. 60. 
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problem. The first is the National Institute of Drug Abuse 

Household Survey. The most recently published Household 

Survey, 1985, shows that there has been a steady decline in 

illegal drug use since the 1970's. The Survey certainly does 

not suggest, nor do we, that no law enforcement problem 

exists. But it clearly belies the argument that there is a 

new epidemic of drug use that requires dramatic new remedies 

in our work places. 

Moreover, as the Comptroller General testified to this 

Subcommittee last fall, the Survey of drug abuse patterns in 

society will not justify imputing those patterns to the 

federal workforce. Drug abuse in the general population 

sharply declines after age 26. In that older population, 6.6 

percent used marijuana, 1.2 percent cocaine, and less than 

one-half percent used hallucinogens or heroin. Ninety-four 

percent of the federal workforce is over 26, and the average 

age is 42. We agree with the Comptroller General that, given 

that profile, plus the screening processes and security 

clearances that precede federal employment, drug abuse among 

federal employees would be less--and we believe far 

less--than in the general population.~/ 

Statement of William J. Anderson and Henry R. 
VanCleve, U.S. General Accounting Office, September 
10, 1986. 



152 

11 

One of the President's most prominent "findings" in 

the Executive Order was that drug use "results in billions of 

dollars in lost productivity each year." The study most 

often cited for the estimate of productivity losses is the 

Research Triangle Ins titute' s "Economic Cos ts to Society of 

Alcohol and Drug Abuse and Mental Illness: 1980," June 

1984. That study, however, tells us nothing about the cost 

to the government associated with employee drug use, nor does 

it claim to do so. It measures "productivity" solely in 

terms of income, and, the only significant finding regarding 

drug abuse is the finding that lower income levels are to be 

found among persons who smoked marijuana for thirty 

consecutive days at some pas~ period in their lives. The 

study admittedly can find ££ impact on income from current 

marijuana or other drug use. Therefore, if the study is 

sound, it merely says that one who at one time was'a heavy 

marijuana user can expect to earn less than one who was not. 

The study itself acknowledges that it establishes no causal 

relationship between drug use and lower income, and does not 

measure such factors as motivation to seek higher paying jobs. 

However appropriate it may be to measure productivity 

by income levels, it is clearly absurd to use that 

"productivity" figure to estimate the costs of current drug 

use for American employers. Presumably, such costs are not 

unmeasurable: absenteeism, health care costs, accident rate, 
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turnover rate, other inefficiencies, are obj ective1y 

observable. They have simply not been studied, and that fact 

strongly suggests that no reason to study has shown itself. 

The Department of Health and Human Services was quite correct 

when it said in 1984: 

The fact is, very little is known about 
the complex relationship which undoubtedly 
exists between drug abuse, worker 
performance and productivity or the lack 
thereof, and how the work setting 
i~fluences or is influenced by drug 
abuse.'ll 

There is simply no evidence to suggest that the government as 

employ~r is incurring any significant costs attributable to 

drug abuse among its employees. 

Even if a problem exists, undetected, the government 

as employer has never tried to address it with more 

effective, less intr"usive methods. Among the obvious 

possibilities are supervisory training to detect possible 

problems (never mandatory before the Executive Order), full 

commitment to Employee Assistance Programs, and simple reflex 

and other tests for actual impairment on the job. 

In short, considering that urine tests do not measure 

impairment on the job; that there is no demonstrable problem 

21 Drug Abuse and Drug Abuse Research, Triennial Report 
to Congress from the Secretary of Health and Human 
Services, 1984, at p. 26. 
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of drug abuse among federal employees, and no reason to 

believe that a new problem will arise; and that these tests 

are highly invasive of reasonable privacy expectations, they 

are unconstitutional when conducted without probable cause 

for most employees, and without at least individualized 

suspicion for highly sensitive positions directly affecting 

public safety. I turn now briefly to the problem of 

punishment for off-duty con~uct and to the application of the 

probable cause or reasonable suspicion standards to the 

ca~egories of employee in jeopardy under the President's 

program. 

The centerpiece of the Administration's effort is 

"random and· comprehensive" urine testing of current federal 

employees and applicants for employment. In addition, the 

Executive Order mandates specific disciplinary actions, 

including removal, that agencies must take in retribution 

agains t an employee who produces a "positive" urine sample. or 

who is otherwise tagged as having used an illegal drug, 

whether on or off duty. This aspect of the Order, requiring 

agencies to punish and remove employees, without reference to 

their job performances, but instead on the basis of off duty 

conduct--even illegal conduct--violates current civil service 

law. That law forbids government actions against its 

employees based on their private activities, unless it can 

prove that the off duty conduct directly affects job 



155 

14 

performance. To the extent that the Order purports by fiat 

conclusively to establish this statutorily required nexus 

~henever an employee is identified as a drug "user" under the 

new program, the Order violates both the statute and the due 

process clause. lOI 

The Executive Order and its implementing regulations 

direct andlor authorize agencies to require employees to 

undergo drug testing under at least four circumstances, all 

of which we contend violate the Fourth Amendment: first, 

random tes ting of "sensi tive" employees; second, tes ting of 

any employee involved in an accident or unsafe practice, 

regardless of whether any suspicion of drug use by that 

employee exists; third, testing of any federal employee based 

on mere "reasonable suspicion" of illegal drug "use," whether 

on duty or off; fourth, testing o'f any applicant for any 

federal job as a condition of employment. Employees who 

101 To cqmplement his Executive Order, the President 
proposed that a "Drug-Free Federal Workplace Act of 
1986" be e'lacted. Among other things, this Act would 
have amended the Civil Service Reform Act "to make 
clear that nothing in the Act would 'permit or require 
the employment of an applicant or employee' who uses 
illegal drugs." "Absent this change," the ~lhite House 
explained, "a drug-using employee might attempt to 
argue that his off duty drug use has no "nexus" or 
relationship to the performance on the job, and that 
under section 2302(b) (10) of Title 5, it would be a 
prohibited personnel practice to take disciplinary 
action agains t him." The "Drug-Free Federal ~lorkplace 
Act," however, was never enacted. 
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refuse to submit to urinalysis where directed to do so will 

be punished with removal, and applicants who decline to 

Rroduce a sample will be denied federal employment. 

Regarding the first category, the Executive Order and 

its implementing regulations require agency heads to 

establish a program for random testing of employees in 

"sensitive" positions. The pool potentially subject to 

testing includes all emplo.yees currently classified as 

"sensitive," a very broad category indeed. It also includes 

other employees whom the agency head wishes to add to the 

pool, because he believes their positions involve "law 

enforcement, national security, the pr.otection of life and 

property, public health or safety, or other functions 

requiring a high degree of trust and confidence." Current 

"sensitive" positions include, in man! agencies, clericals, 

accountants, lawyers, paralegals, and many other pOSitions 

that are clearly not related to public sa·fety or the national 

security. 

Although the Justice Department has refused to 

provide, in discovery, lists of positions currently 

designated as "sensitive," we believe that the very broad· 

reach of the sensitive categories at IRS typifies all federal 

agencies. For example, at the Internal Revenue Service, all 

positions at grade GS-9 or equivalent, or above, are 

considered at least non-critical sensitive. Th4!se include 
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attorneys, law clerks, paralegals, real estate appraisers, 

computer technicians, and so on. Many clerical positions are 

"non-critical sensitive." 

Under the OPM Directive, agency heads may choose not 

to test all "sensitive" employees in the pool. They may not, 

however, decide not to test any employees at all, even if 

they believe the workforce is completely drug free, that its 

performance is beyond reproach, or that other less intrusive 

alternatives can meet the agency's need equally well. In our 

view, the random testing of employees without any 

individualized suspicion of illegal drug use that directly 

affects job performance, cannot pass constitutional muster. 

Second, any employee may be tested for illegal drug 

use in an examination regarding an accident or unsafe 

practice. While we have no quarrel with the government's 

authority to order a urine test where there is at least 

reasonable susp~cion to believe an employee was impaired at 

the time of the accident or "unsafe practice," the mere fact 

of accident, without more (such as indication that it might 

have been due to human error on the part of particular 

employees) does not provide a constitutional justification 

for subjecting employees to urine testing. 

The third category of testing established by the Order 

and regulations authorizes testing ~ federal employee 

without notice, upon "reasonable suspicion" to believe that 

76-899 0 - 87 - 6 
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the employee "us es" illegal drugs. The Pres iden t thus 

bestows upon agency heads, and by necessity government 

supervisors, the right to require a urine test of ~ 

employee without probable cause and without a warrant. The 

supervisor may order a urine test based on a mere suspicion 

that an employee has used illegal drugs, off duty or on. In 

fact, where reasonable suspicion of drug use exists, the OPM 

regulations authorize the agency to require particular 

employees to provide their urine samples under direct 

observation. lll 

Even if it were constitutionally permissible to 

require employees in certain sensitive positions to submit to 

a uLine test where reasonable suspicion exists that they are 

impaired on the job, it is uncon~titutional to test 

non-sensitive employees on the basis of mere reasonable 

suspicion of illegal drug "use" either on, and certainly off, 

the job. It must be appreciated that the courts have 

permitted searches on less than probable cause (i.e., 

reasonable suspicion) only in very limited, highly dangerous 

situations. To abandon the probable cause requirement just 

because the subject is a federal employee is absolutely 

unjustified under the Constitution. 

11/ See FPM Letter Section 4(g)(3)(a). 
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Finnlly, under the order and regulations, applicants 

for any federal position may be required to produce a urine 

sample. An agency may test all applicants or may test only 

those who apply for "testing designated positions." It may 

decide to insert a drug test into a physical examination, 

where one is required. In any case, agencies are not 

required to possess any particularized suspicion before 

testing applicants. 

Here, too, testing applicants for evidence of drug use 

without particularized suspicion violates the Fourth 

Amendment. Applicant testing violates the Fourth Amendment 

because it is not based on individualized suspicion. 

Moreover, applicant testing is ineffective, in that a 

positive result can be avoided by simply abstaining from drug 

use for a few days. A test that is ineffective to meet the 

stated goal cannot be constitutional. 

In sum, probable cause still remains the 

constitutional standard for searching the vast majority of 

federal employees. Employees in the most highly sensitive of 

positions may no doubt be searched on reasonable suspicion. 

However, the search must be for evidence that the employee is 

impaired in functioning in that highly sensitive position, 

and where the search is especially intrusive, as are urine 

tests, the justification must be correspondingly compelling. 

The President's program fails on all counts. It is an 

attempt, once again, to make a political poi~t at the expense 

of those closest at hand: the nation's public servants. 
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Mr. SIKORSKI. Thank you. 
That concludes our hearing. We thank you and HHS for staying 

the route and we appreciate it. 
We will see more of this issue as we go in, looking at the accura­

cy issue of these urine tests, and alternatives, and focus on the con­
stitutional issues as well. 

We have a lot of ground yet to cover. Not to mention all the 
questions that remain unanswered after this hearing today. 

Thank you. 
[Whereupon, at 1:22 p.m., the subcommittee was adjourned.] 
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WEDNESDAY, MAY 20,1987 

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES, 
SUBCOMMITTEE ON HUMAN RESOURCES, 

COMMITTEE ON POST OFFICE AND CIVIL SERVICE, 
Washington, DC. 

The subcommittee met, pursuant to call, at 9:30 a.m., in room 
311, Cannon House Office Building, Hon. Gerry Sikorski (chairman 
of the subcommittee) presiding. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Today the Subcommittee on Human Resources of 
the Committee on Post Office and Civil Service continues its over­
sight of drug testing of Federal employees. 

Under Rule 10 of the House, this subcommittee is charged with 
the responsibility to examine and oversee deployment of Federal 
human resources generally, and specifically, among other things, 
the rights to privacy for Federal employees. 

At the subcommittee's April 7 hearing, we examined the current 
status of the administration's efforts to implement Executive Order 
12564 mandating the establishment of agency programs to drug 
test Federal employees and the development of employee assistance 
programs [EAPs]. 

We dissected the Office of Personnel Management's drug testing 
regulations issued in November of last year and the Health and 
Human Services's scientific and technical guidelines issued Febru­
ary of this year, which together comprise the procedural and legal 
structure through which the administration plans to test over one 
million so-called sensitive workers in the Federal work force. 

Today's hearing will more closely examine the technical aspects 
of the administration's dru~ testing program. Our interest is not 
abstract. Just turn on the TV or look in the newspapers or periodi­
cals. The subcommittee decided to increase the magnification of its 
microscope because the information from our earlier hearings 
shows the program has several serious flaws. 

The administration's crusade to screen the Federal work force 
for evidence of drug use rests on the premise that widespread drug 
testing by urinalysis yields consistent, reliable results upon which 
personnel, civil and perhaps criminal action can be taken. But such 
urine tests are, in fact, fraught with limitations that can cause 
people to be falsely branded as drug users, to be disciplined, demot­
ed, fired or to be referred for criminal prosecution. 

We know that faulty laboratory equipment or procedures, as well 
as sloppy work by ill-trained technicians lead to erroneous test re­
sults. Even the gas chromatography/mass spectrometry, the GCI 
MS test, the most sensitive and accurate tool we've got for the 

(l6!) 
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identification of miniscule amounts of chemicals in urine, and em­
braced as the confirmatory test in the administration's test plans 
is only as good as the initial sample taken, its chain of custody, and 
the technician operating the machine. Even with frequent lab qual­
ity control tests, many experts agree quality can vary from day to 
day and from one technician to the next. 

Moreover, in the administration's attempt to construct some­
thing from their high and mighty election year rhetoric, they 
forgot to incorporate provisions essential for a fair, smooth and cost 
effective program. Conflicting provisions of the Civil Service 
Reform Act, Privacy Act and the Rehabilitation Act, along with 
the lack of program uniformity among agencies, and the lack of 
centralized oversight, may well leave this vaunted drug testing ini­
tiative as little more than a governmental Comet Kahoutek-and 
you might remember that in the 1970s, long on public relations and 
hype, but nonexistent to the naked eye. 

The architects of the administration's drug testing program have 
been wholly unable to answer such critical questions as: who and 
in what numbers are to be tested? How much are these tests to 
cost? What is to happen regarding assistance and counseling, reha­
bilitation and disciplinary actions? When are the various agencies 
going to coordinate efforts? Who is responsible for centralized over­
sight for Federal agency drug testing? And what about the accura­
cy and reliability of urine tests themselves? 

Our witnesses today will focus on these subjects, which need to 
be addressed before the Administration marches on. We have the 
General Accounting Office expert, the expert at the Office of Tech­
nology Assessment, two hands-on scientists, and a lawyer who is an 
expert on urinalysis litigation. 

With that we will begin. Our first witness is L. Nye Stevens, As­
sociate Director in the General Government Division of the Gener­
al Accounting Office. The GAO has closely monitored the adminis­
tration's drug testing efforts since the President issu.ed his execu­
tive order mandating drug testing for Federal employees. Mr. Ste­
vens will present the GAO's latest analysis of OPM's drug testing 
regulations and the HHS's scientific and technical guidelines. 

He is accompanied by Richard Seldin and Tom Beall. 
Good morning, gentlemen. Do you want to proceed with your tes­

timony, Mr. Stevens? If you like, all of it will be placed in the 
record as you have submitted it, and you can summarize as you 
desire. 

STATEMENT OF L. NYE STEVENS, ASSOCIATE DIRECTOR, GENER­
AL ACCOUNTING OFFICE, ACCOMPANIED BY TOM BEALL AND 
RICHARD SELDIN 

Mr. STEVENS. Yes, Mr. Chairman. It is a rather long statement. 
So I have a shortened version that hits the high points and summa­
rizes those in 5 minutes or so, if that is all right with you. 

In analyzing OPM's guidelines for the government-wide imple­
mentation of the President's drug testing executive order and the 
technical and scientific guideline::; that HHS has developed, we 
have some concerns about those, some of which you have just men­
tioned. Ours fall into four broad areas. 
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The first of these is the decentralized nature of the decisionmak­
ing on drug testing and the implications of that decisionm~king for 
equitable treatment of employees in different agencies. 

The second area is the broad one of employee rights. 
A third one is a concern we have about the lack of any provision 

for long-term oversight or monitoring of the drug testing program 
on a governmentvvide basis. 

And then finally we will say a few words about program costs, if 
we may, and then my colleagues and I will respond to any ques­
tions you have. 

We noted in our September testimony last year before this sub­
committee that the definition of an employee in a sensitive position 
in the executive order was very broad, and it could be interpreted 
to cover a substantial part of the Federal work force. The OPM 
guidelines used the very same defmition. They do not elaborate on 
it. They do not make it any more specific than it was in the execu­
tive order. 

Furthermore, the guidelines allow the head of each agency to de­
termine which positions within the agency should be designated as 
subject to testing, but they really do not provide any additional cri­
teria to help an agency head make those decisions. 

Naturally, with such a broad delegation and latitude, employees 
in different agencies holding very similar positions may be treated 
quite differently. 

A similar problem arises with the HllS technical guidelines and 
their requirements for the testing of drugs. They require each 
agency to test for two drugs: marijuana and cocaine. They are also 
authorized, however, to test for opiates, amphetamines, PCP, and 
on approval, other unspecified drugs as well. Again very wide lati­
tude is provided, but no rationale or criteria are given to agencies 
~o make consistent choices. 

It is hard to believe that some agencies will not screen for a 
broader variety of drugs than others, 

There is also a great deal of latitude in these guidelines in the 
matter of discipline. Permissible actions after the first I will call it 
offense, for lack of a better word, the first finding, range from a 
written reprimand to dismissal. It is left up to agency discretion. 
There may arise the situation where a first-time violator is given a 
written reprimand in one agency, while another employee in the 
same situation in a different agency or conceivably even perhaps in 
the same agency is dismissed or is fired. There are no specific crite­
ria to apply in determining the choice of which disciplinary action 
for an agency to take. 

Now, in one respect the OPM guidelines seem to improve on the 
executive order in that we read them to preclude agencies from dis­
closing test results to the Attorney General without the employee's 
consent, The executive order had simply said that agencies are not 
required to report testing information to the Attorney General, but 
neither were they prohibited in the executive order. So we think 
the guidelines are an improvement, but there is a discrepancy now 
between them and the executive order. 

'rhe HHS guidelines specify· agency and contractor records con­
taining drug testing data will be a Privacy Act system of records. 
One exception to the nondisclosure restricEons of the Privacy Act 



164 
. 

involves the routine use provision, which is defined as the use of a 
record for a purpose which is compatible with the pur?ose for 
which the data were originally collected, and that provision has 
been interpreted very broadly in the past by agencies. 

For instance, it can authorize the disclosure of records to other 
agencies when related to the hiring of employees, security clear­
ance matters, provision of benefits, and so forth. 

The OPM guidelines also allow an agency great latitude in 
follow-up testing of employees during and after counseling or reha­
bilitation, but they do not say how long an employee in this catego­
ry would be subject to retest. Some agencies might interpret that 
as providing no limit at all, and others may not have a retesting 
program at all. 

The OPM guidelines are clear about the consequences of the 
second confirmed positive test, however, and that is mandatory dis­
missal, but they provide no discussion of any time limit or differ­
ence between the first and second confirmed test that would stay 
or mitigate the mandatory dismissal upon a second fmding. 

In the matter of laboratory testing, there is also a good deal of 
decentralization. There is no indication in the guidelines of the 
degree of error in proficiency testing or any other conditions or cri­
teria that describe what is meant by unsatisfactory performance on 
the part of a laboratory operating under contract. The quality as­
surance standards used by each agency may very well vary, and 
since one lab may perform analyses for several agencies, it could 
create a situation where one agency considers the lab's perform­
ance satisfactory while another agency does not and stops using it. 

Employee rights is the second area that we have some concerns 
about. Here it relates to the Civil Service Reform Act, and an im­
portant protection under civil service law is that with some excep­
tions, there is a requirement that an agency taking a disciplinary 
action demonstrate a nexus or a connection between the employ­
ee's off-duty conduct and his job performance. That requirement is 
not mentioned here, only that an employee have a confirmed posi­
tive test as the basis for action. 

Depending on the employee's position, drug test results alone 
may not be sufficient to sustain a disciplinary action under the 
law, and we expect a good deal of litigation on this point. 

Perhaps our number one concern I will come to now, and that is 
the lack of oversight. The very wide latitude given to agencies 
would not be of such concern to us, except that there is no provi­
sion in these guidelines for centralized oversight or monitoring of 
the drug testing program governmentwide. I think you saw this, 
Mr. Chairman, in the April hearings when the General Counsel 
with OPM was here and more or less said that there were a lot of 
questions that you were asking him that could not be answered by 
anybody in the executive branch, that these were matters essential­
ly left up to individual agencies. 

At present there is a diffusion of program responsibilities among 
OPM, HHS and the Department of Justice, and it raises the ques­
tion: who will be checking to see how well the program is working 
across government? 

Also, there is no requirement, I might add, for each agency to 
monitor or evaluate its own program by itself. 
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I will skip briefly over the matter of program costs,' and just say 
that the wide latitude, discretion, decentralization that is allowed 
to individual agencies, is going to continue to make it difficult for 
us or anybody else just to estimate the costs of the program until 
all of these agencies have made the decisions that they are going to 
have to make down the line. 

In summary, Mr. Chairman, we recognize the importance of pro­
viding each agency with sufficient flexibility to implement a test­
ing program that is responsive to individual needs and resources, 
but in our opinion, a more detailed set of standards than those pro­
vided in the OPM and HHS guidelines will be necessary to insure 
that a sound, consistent and defensible set of programs is imple­
mented throughout the government, and this is particularly true in 
view of the fact that the guidelines do not provide any mechanism 
or procedure for oversight, review or monitoring of the agency drug 
testing programs once they are underway. 

That concludes the prepared comments I have, sir, and we will 
respond to any questions you would like to pose. 

[The prepared statement of L. Nye Stevens follows:] 
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STATEMENT OF L. NYE STEVENS, ASSOCIATE DIRECTOR, GENERAL 

GOVERNMENT DIVISION, GENERAL ACCOUNTING OFFICE 

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Subcommittee, it is a pleasure 

to appear before you today to comment on the Office of Personnel 

Management's (OPM) guidelines for establishing a drug-free Federal 

workplace and the Health and Human Services' (HHS) companion 

technical guidelines concerning the operation of drug teSting 

programs. 

Executive Order 12564 reqUires that the head of each Executive 

agency establish a program to test employees for the use of illegal 

drugs. As directed by the O~der, OPM issued guidelines on November 

28, 1986, which are intended to provide governmentwide guidance on 

the implementation of the Executive Order. Also pursuant to the 

Executive Order, HHS issued scientific and technical guidelines on 

February 13, ].987. While these guidelines provide further 

instruction concerning the implementation of the Executive Order, 

we are concerned that they do not address in sufficient detail, or 

at all, certain aspects of how the testing programs will operate. 

Specifically, we have four areas of concern: 

programs may not be uniform since agency interpretation of 

some requirements in the guidelines may vary considerably 

and thus similarly situated employees may not be assured 

similar treatment; 

employee rights ar~ not fully addressed; 

no provision exists for continuing, centralized oversight; 

and 

how much the program will cost continues to be unknown. 

1 
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Guidelines provide wide latitude to agencies 

We testified before this Subcommittee in September of last 

year that the definition of "employee in a sensitive position" in 

the Executive Order was very broad and could be interpreted to 

cover a substantial part of the federal workforce.l The OPM 

guidelines provide further procedural directions for identifying 

employees in sensitive positions to be tested, but the definition 

of "employee in a sensitive position" is the same as that in the 

Executive Order. Furthermore, the guidelines allow the head of 

each agency to determine from those sensitive positions for which 

randomized testing is authorized, which positions should be subject 

to testing. Thus, it is possible that employees in one agency will 

be identified as holding designated positions but not employees in 

another agency holding similar positions with similar 

responsibilities, 

Equity and fairness seem to dictate that if federal employees 

are to be subject to drug testing programs, such programs should be 

structured so that uniform criteria are conSistently applied to all 

federal workers. The OPM and HHS guidelines, however, provide wide 

latitude to agencies and could result in notable differences 

between agency programs. 

1 In our comments there and in earlier comments on H.R. 4636 (99th 
Cong., 2nd Sess. (1986» we addressed certain constitutional 
problems about the drug testing programs provided for. Consistent 
with your request, we have not again addressed those issues here. 

2 
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The HHS guidelines specify that, at a minimum, each agency 

shall test for marijuana and cocaine. The agencies are also 

authorized to test for opiates, amphetamines, PCP, and can seek 

authority from HHS to test for other drugs as well. The selection 

of these three drugs as well as others to test for, however, is up 

to each agency. Bow are agencies to make this determination? 

Neither the OPM nor HHS guidelines provide any rationale, criteria, 

or procedure for determining what other drugs should be screened, 

or not screened. 

An agency decision not to test for certain drugs of abuse may 

inhibit the goal of having a drug-free workplace. Employees may be 

free of those targeted drugs but not necessarily others. It can 

also create a situation where employees in some agencies might be 

screened for use of a broader variety of drugs of abuse than 

employees in other agencies. 

The guidelines direct agencies to discipline the employee who 

has a confirmed positive drug test. The OPM guidelines cite a 

specific list of disciplinary actions that an agency may take upon 

the first confirmed determination that an employee uses illegal 

drugs. Such actions range in severity from reprimanding the 

employee in writing to removing the employee from federal service. 

The guidelines note that agencies have discretion in determining 

which actions to take. Again, there may arise a situation where an 

employee with a first time, confirmed, positive test for a 

particular drug is given a written reprimand in one agency, while 

another employee in the same situation in a different agency, or 

3 
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perhaps even in the same agency, is dismissed. The OPM guidelines 

do not preclude this, nor do they discuss any specific criteria to 

apply in determining the choice of which disciplinary action to 

take except that the disciplinary m~asures must be consistent with 

the Civil Service Reform Act. 

The Executive Order provides that drug testing shall not be 

performed under the Order for the purpose of gathering evidence for 

use in criminal proceedings and that agencies are ~reguired to 

report testing information to the Attorney General. It might be 

interpreted, however, that agencies are not prohibited from 

disclosing test results to the Attorney General. On the other 

hand, the OPM guidelines seem to preclude agencies from disclosing 

test results to the Attorney General absent consent of a tested 

employee. We think the limitation in the guidelines sound; 

however, we note the discrepancy. 

The guidelines provide several significant controls over 

employee records, and specify conditions under which written 

consent of the employee is required for disclosure of individual 

drug test results and treatment/rehabilitation records. The HHS 

guidelines specify that agency and contractor records containing 

drug testing data on employees will be a Privacy Act system of 

records. The guidelines do not provide any details as to how the 

maintenance of these record systems will affect confidentiality. 

A system of records is defined by the Privacy Act as any group 

of records under the control of an agency from which information is 

retrieved by an individual's name or some identifying number. The 

4 
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nor do they note any conditions or criteria that specifically 

describe what is meant by unsatisfactory performance. 

Conceivably, labs that perform poorly on proficiency tests may 

still continue testing operations while they take corrective 

actions. If quality assurance functions are to be conducted by 

each agency as the guidelines indicate, then standards for lab 

review and criteria for revocation of accreditation may vary. 

Since one lab may perform analyses for several agencies, it could 

create a situation where one agency considers the lab's performance 

satisfactory while another agency does not. 

The guidelines also provide that should a false positive error 

occur on a blind proficiency test, retesting of all specimens 

submitted to that lab for the period of 2 weeks prior to the 

detected error and 2 weeks after is required. This situation, 

however, is not specifically identified as constituting 

unsatisfactory performance. There is also no indication in the 

guidelines as to why individuals tested 15 or more days before or 

after the false positive do not need to be retested. If the 

interval between proficiency tests were 30 days, for example, and 

the last proficiency test showed a false pcsitive, only those 

specimens in the prior 14 days would be retested. Thclse specimens, 

especially those with positive results, tested during the initial 

16 days would not be retested, although they too might have been 

subject to a false positive result. 

7 
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Employee rights and protections 

Both the OPM and HHS guidelines contain provisions reqarding 

protection of employees' rights. The OPM guidelines specify that 

employees are to be provided with a notice that test results will 

be handled with maximum respect for individual confidentiality, 

consistent with safety and security. The guidelines also instruct 

the agencies to provide employees with notice (1) that they may 

submit supplemental medical documentation to support legitimate use 

of a specific drug, and (2) that counseling and rehabilitative 

services will be made available. However, questions about employee 

rights and protections remain. 

While the OPM guidelines cite the Civil Service Reform Act, 

there is no detailed discussion of employee rights under this law. 

An important protection under the law is, with some exceptions, the 

need for an agency taking a disciplinary action to demonstrate a 

nexus or connection between the employee's off-duty conduct and job 

performance. The guidelines do not require that such a nexus be 

established before taking disciplinary action, only that the 

employee have a confirmed positive test. Depending on the position 

held by an employee, drug test results alone may not be sufficient 

to sustain a disciplinary action. 

Agencies are also not given any information concerning the 

implementation of the guidelines in relation to the Rehabilitation 

Act of 1973 as amended which generally includes a drug abuser as a 

handicapped individual. Under this act, employees may, under 

certain conditions, be protected from adverse actions such as 

8 
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act restricts disclosure by federal agencies of personally 

identifiable information, unless the record subject consents or 

unless the records fall under one of 12 exceptions. One exception 

to this rule involves the "routine use" provision, defined as the 

use of a record for a purpose which is compatible with the purpose 

for which the record was collected. 

Routine use notices are of particular concern with regard to 

confidentiali~y of records because some agencies have daveloped 

broad routine use justifications that permit extensive disclosure. 

Consequently, even though the OPM and BBS guidelines limit 

disclosure of test results, other disclosures might be made 

pursuant to routine uses established with the Privacy Act systems 

of records. For example, a common !outine use established by some 

agencies is to authorize disclosure of records to other agencies 

when related to the hiring of employees, issuance of security 

clearances, or other benefits. 

Another exception in the Privacy Act is that which allows 

disclosure to agencies for a civil or criminal law enforcement 

activity. Although neither the Executive Order nor the guidelines 

specifically allow for diSClosure on this basis, there is no 

mention in either about how the Privacy Act would affect these 

restrictions. 

The OPM gUidelines also indicate that an agency may require 

follow-up testing on a confirmed drug-using employee during or 

after counseling or rehabilitation. Depending on how each agency 

chooses to implement this testing component, employees undergoing 

5 
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or completing treatment in some agencies may be targeted for 

additional tests while in other agencies this may not be the case. 

It is also unclear how lonq an employee in this category would be 

subject to retesting on this basis. Would the employee be subject 

to unlimited retesting over the span of a 30-year career? 

The JPM guide~ines are clear about the consequences of a 

second confirmed positive test--dismissal. There is no discussiou 

of any time limit between a first and second confirmed positive 

test that would stay this mandatory dismissal. An employee who 

tested negative for several years would be dismissed on the 

occurrence of a second confirmed positive test. There is no 

instruction in the gUidelines specifically prohibiting or 

authorizing agencies to establish a time limit in which two 

confirmed positive tests constitutes a basis for dismissal. If the 

interval between tests was substantial, an adverse action based on 

the second test might conflict with the Civil Sevice Reform Act. 

The HBS guidelines provide extensive specification of the 

collection and test procedures to be followed by agencies in 

testing employees for drugs. They also provide some description of 

the lab quality control procedures to be followed. The guidelines 

note that any unsatisfactory blind proficiency testing result must 

be investigated by the agency and corrective actions must be taken. 

Unsatisfactory performance on proficiency test samples is 

sufficient cause for lab accreditation to be revoked. The BBS 

guidelines do not, however, specify what degree of error (false 

positives 0 .• false negatives) would be considered uns..l.tisfactory, 

6 
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discharge unless the agency can show impairm~nt of the employee's 

job performance. Applicants, otherwise qualified for a position, 

but refused employment solely on the basis of a positive drug test 

may have a valid claim under this act. There is also no 

instruction to agencies that employees should be informed about 

relevant provisions of the Rehabilitation Act. 

The Executive Order states that positive drug test results may 

be rebutted by other evidence that an employee has not used illegal 

drugs and the guidelines refer to Civil Service Reform Act 

protections. Nevertheless, the guidelines do not instruct agencies 

to inform employees of procedures to challenge or rebut other 

aspects of the testing program such as the disciplinary actions. 

The guidelines are silent on such matters as applicant or employee 

right to access administrative or laboratory records, proficiency 

test I~sults, or other material that may bear upon a challenge to 

test results. 

Lack of oversight 

The OPM/RHS guidelines do not provide for centralized 

oversight of employee drug testing governmentwide. Such an 

oversight responsibility could help ensure that all employees are 

treated equitably, that agencies comply with the respective 

guidelines, and that any needed modifications to either the 

guidelines or program operations are identified and implemented. 

At p.esent, there is a diffusion of program .esponsiblities among 

9 
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OPM, BES, and the Department of Justice. 

Also, there is no mechanism established in the guidelines for 

the continued, independent monitoring of each agency's drug testing 

program. While agencies and labs are directed by the guidelines to 

collect and mQintain certain statistics about the drug testing 

program, there is no requirement that an agency evaluate its 

program. If such a requirement were added, criteria should be 

specified for assessing program effectiveness or efficiency. 

Program costs 

Finally, on the question of program costs, the O~M/HgS 

guidelines provide some insight into the elements that might be 

included in estimating the cost of drug testing programs. In 

addition to the costs associated with the actual testing activities 

as detailed in the HHS guidelines (e.g., specimen collection, lab 

testing, review by a medical officer), the guidelines indicate that 

activities such as employee rehabilitation and counseling, 

personnel actions, and supervisor training are also cost elements 

associated with the program. The wide latitude provided to agency 

heads in implementing an employee drug testing program, however, 

makes it difficult to estimate the costs of these programs until 

the number of employees to be tested as well as the drugs to be 

tested for is known. 

Mr. Chairman, these are some of the concerns or questions not 

addressed by the OPM/BHS guidelines -- matters that, in accordance 

10 
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with the Order, each agency head will need to address. We 

recognize the importance of providing each agency with sufficient 

flexibility to implement a testing proyram that is responsive to 

its individual needs and resources. However, in our opinion a more 

detailed set of standards than those provided in the guidelines 

will be necessary to ensure that a sound, consistent, and 

defensible set of programs are implemented governmentwide. This is 

particularly true in view of the fact that the guidelines do not 

provide any mechanism or procedure for oversight or review of the 

agency drug testing programs once they are implemented. Even with 

adequate oversight and review, we believe the emphasis in this 

program should be to take every precaution to make sure it is done 

right the first time. 

This concludes my prepared comments. I would be happy to 

answer any questions you may have. 

11 
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Mr. SIKORSKI. Gentlemen, the subcommittee wants to thank you 
for your continued activities and expertise in this area. You have 
been, once again, helpful in providing a thoughtful analysis. You 
were helpful last year when the subcommittee was chaired by Mr. 
Ackerman, and we thank you for your continued assistance. 

Let me summarize your testimony to begin with. You concluded 
that there are four areas of concern. The first one was that the pro­
grams may not be uniform from agency to agency. Due to major 
areas of interpretation and defmitional ambiguity, similarly situat­
ed employees may very well be treated differently in terms of the 
initial testing, in terms of what they will be tested for, and in 
terms of what will happen if there is a confirmation of drug use. 

Your second area of concern was in employee rights generally 
which have not been fully addressed. 

The third area is the lack of centralized oversight for this pro­
gram. We saw this in our last hearing. 

And finally there is a big, gaping question mark at the end as to 
what this program is going to cost. 

Mr. STEVENS. Yes, sir. Those are certainly the four areas that we 
think are the most notable. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Let me focus a little bit on the definition of a "sen­
sitive employee". We know that no agenices have not defined this 
group of employes yet. I think OPM is going forward with their 
program and has some draft definitions for their agency, and I pre­
sume others are struggling with that as well, but we still do not 
know what a "sensitive person" is. We know the other people that 
are put into this category for random, involuntary drug testing­
Presidential appointments and a few others-but the "sensitive 
person," which is the biggest category, still is not defined. 

Mr. STEVENS. That is correct, Mr. Chairman, and a great deal of 
discretion is left to the individual agency to determine that. OPM 
may very well come up with a set of guidelines for its own use. 
Then another agency would be, resulting in the fact that a person 
with a position at OPM very similar to a position, say, at the De­
partment of Transportation might be treated quite differently. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Well, we know they have to test for marijuana and 
cocaine. 

Mr. STEVENS. Yes, sir. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. They can test for opiates, amphetamines, PCP, and 

can get authority from HHS to test for other drugs. The biggest 
question mark in terms of the perspective of the Federal employee 
is what is going to happen if there is a positive test result in terms 
of discipline. The executive order of the President and the speeches 
surrounding the initiative, talk about a "helping hand," and about 
the positive aspects of a drug-free work place. The guidelines that 
have come out, however focus more on use-on the job and off the 
job-and the punitive aspects of a confirmatory test. Employees 
can be reprimanded. They can be removed, and that is purely up to 
the discretion of the agency head. 

Mr. STEVENS. Yes, sir. We read the guidelines that came out as 
having a good deal more emphasis, and it is mostly a matter of 
tone, I think, but a good deal more emphasis on discipline, the fist 
as opposed to the velvet glove, and whereas the executive order, I 
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think, had emphasized more strongly the rehabilitative and con­
structive aspects of drug intervention. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Thank you. 
Let me focus on the privacy issues. In your testimony you men­

tioned Privacy Act concerns. Under that Act, Federal agencies are 
restricted from disclosing certain personal information about an 
employee unless the employee consents to its release or unless the 
information falls under one of 12 exceptions. One of these excep­
tions is a routine use exception. The logical question is: can agen­
cies easily establish this routine use by their use of it, and there­
fo:re remove any effective restraints of voluntary consent? 

Mr. STEVENS. Yes. I might ask my colleagues to help me on this. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Who is the lawyer in your group? 
Mr. STEVENS. Mr. Seldin is the lawyer. 
One of the groups I head is our privacy area of interest within 

GAO, and we have looked broadly, not within the drug testing con­
text, but in other systems of records under the Privacy Act, and we 
have determined that the routine use provision, which allows agen­
cies to use data for purposes that are called "compatible with the 
purpose" that it was originally collected for, has been very broadly 
interpreted, and is the basis, for instance, for most of the computer 
matchipg programs that go on. In O1L." opinion, the fact that it will 
be a Privacy Act system of records under the HHS guidelines is not 
a very great restriction at all because of the breadth wjth which 
that routine use provision has been interpreted. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. When someone stands up and mouths the words 
"the use of this information will be under the Privacy Act, will be 
wholly in compliance with the Privacy Act," Anyone listening to 
that should not take any comfort in it because the Privacy Act has 
some major exceptions. One is compatible use and routine use. 

Who is the expert on that here? 
Mr. STEVENS. Mr. Beall probably knows as much as anybody. 
Mr. BEALL. I do not believe you should take any particular confi­

dence that the records will not be disclosed under the Privacy Act 
routine use exception. There is also another exemption in the Pri­
vacy Act that allows release of records as well as a routine use in 
hiring practices. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Which would be the big fear, I would guess, assum­
ing there is no criminal referral prosecution that comes out of it. 
The big fear would be that this would be routinely passed on to 
future employers. 

Mr. BEALL. It is possible that that might happen. The guidelines 
are more rhetorical than procedural in terms of assuring the main­
tenance of the employee records of drug testing results. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Here again, there should be one policy as a rule in 
the Federal Government for the use of these records. There is 
reason to leave each agency to do what it pleases. 

Mr. STEVENS. We would agree with that, sir. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. And you made a statement that the issue of refer­

ral to the law enforcement people for criminal action or potential 
criminal action was cleared up in the OPM regulations. Let me 
backtrack for a moment. 

As I recall, the President's order states specifically in Section 5, 
H, "Agencies are not required to report to the Attorney General 
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for investigation or prosecution any information, allegation or evi­
dence relating to violations of Title 21 of the USC received as a 
result of the operation of drug testing programs established pursu­
ant to the order." 

Mr. STEVENS. They are not required, but they may. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Yes. Now, you said there was something in the 

OPM guidelines that softens that. 
Mr. STEVENS. Yes. We read those as they do not refer specifically 

to the Department of Justice, but they do refer to disclosure to 
other agencies and seem to prohibit it, except v.rith the consent of 
the tester. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Where is that? That is Section 5, Personnel Ac­
tions? I think it is important. I do not want to delay the subcom­
mittee, but I think it is important that we understand that inter­
pretation because if the President's executive order states that they 
are not prohibited from referring it to the Attorney General--

Mr. SELDIN. Excuse me. Section 4(f) is the section that deals with 
confidentiality of test results, and the way we read that section, 
that information, test results, could not be submitted to the Attor­
ney General. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. It lists the agencies it can be submitted to and does 
not include the Department of Justice. 

Mr. SELDIN. And then there is a general provision that is Subsec­
tion 5, which states, "Neither drug test results nor drug use treat­
ment or rehabilitation records may be otherwise disclosed by agen­
cies without the consent of the employee." Of course, if you have 
consent of the employee, then there would not be a problem. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. You have been in contact with the people at OPM 
who drafted these regulations and stand to interpret them as well 
as people at the Attorney General's office? 

Mr. STEVENS. We have certainly reviewed the testimony of the 
General Counsel here before the subcommittee. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Have they stated this to anyone? They did not teP 
us in the subcommittee that that was the case. 

Mr. STEVENS. No, not to me. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. I think that needs to be clarified with the execu­

tive order hanging over the regulation. 
Another bothersome item is that in both the OPM guidelines and 

in the executive order, guess who is supposed to be the individual 
in charge under Section 6(b)? "The Attorney General shall render 
legal advice regarding the implementation of this order and shall 
be consulted v.rith regard to all guidelines, regulations and policies 
proposed to be adopted pursuant to this order." 

According to the Office of Personnel Management, in their testi­
mony at the last hearing, it is the Attorney General who is charged 
v.rith the overall centralized oversight, if there is to be any. 

Mr. STEVENS. The guidelines themselves did not make a provision 
for any centralized oversight or monitoring, and we think that is a 
long term problem. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Yes, especially in the area of privacy if the execu­
tive order says you are not precluded from giving this information 
to the Attorney General, and the Attorney General is charged with 
the last say-so on these matters. 
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Mr. STEVENS. There are some discrepancies between the two doc­
uments, no question. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. There is no guarantee of equitability or equity in 
the proposed drug testing program. 

Mr. STEVENS. There is no guarantee, certainly. The possibility 
exists of very different treatment of employees, depending on 
where they happen to be situated. 

Mr. SIKORSKI, Let me at this point then turn to Congresswoman 
Morella. 

Did you have an opening statement you wanted to give at this 
point? 

Ms. MORELLA. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I do not have one 
planned, but certainly the fact that I am here indicates that I com­
mend the chairman of the subcommittee for holding drug testing 
hearing number two, becau.:Je we have had a lot of questions that 
were posed, some that were answered, which led to the substantial 
confirmation of the need for the amendment on the appropriations 
bill to make SUre that money was withheld from implementing the 
guidelines because they are frought with controversy. 

We have had questions with regard to the criteria, the cost, the 
accuracy, the invasion of privacy. Now as I scan your testimony, J 
see even more questions arising, such as what drugs will be tested. 
I did not realize that there was not the opportunity or the latitude 
to make sure that all of these drugs might well be tested, but 
rather, you say cocaine and marijuana, and there is no opportunity 
or no plan to test for any of the other illegal drugs. I had never 
even thought about that. 

Also, the uniformity of penalties, there is none. We have sentenc­
ing guidelines for criminals, but we have no kind of uniformity 
with regard to penalties in this situation. And even the uniformity 
or lack of uniformity of the privacy situation is not evident. So you 
are posing some additional questions that I had not even thought 
about specifically, and I appreciate and would like very much not 
only the questions posed, but if there are any solutions that you 
could offer to us that we can suggest. 

Mr. STEVENS. The basic problem, Congresswoman Morella, in our 
opinion, is that there is such a great degree of decentralization of 
decisionmaking and latitude in the area of drug testing. For in­
stance) the guidelines do require testing for two drugs, marijuana 
and cocaine, but the rest is entirely permissive. Agencies can, if 
they want, but they do not have to, and we have very little indica­
tion of what agency heads actually want to do. 

Ms. MORELLA. That defeats the purpose, does it not, in essence? 
Mr. STEVENS. Certainly, if the purpose is uniformity and equita­

ble treatment across government, I would say that purpose is 
threatened, and in the area of discipline, as well. A great deal of 
discretion is left to individual managers, agency heads, and a 
person even within the same agency, but certainly across agencies, 
can expect for a first time offense the possibility he or she will be 
treated very differently depending on where he or she sits. 

Ms. MORELLA. Maybe, Mr. Chairman, it would also be appropri­
ate at some point for you to, in writing, even indicate not only 
these questions, but if you have some suggestions that we can also 
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peruse and look at in terms of how one can change this type of in­
fraction. 

Mr. STEVENS. That is a very good suggestion, and we will contin­
ue to work with the staff. 

Ms. MORELLA. Thank you. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. I know you prepared a host of answers to a whole 

host of potential questions, many of which Congresswoman Morella 
pointed out. If you could in that context that she has suggested, 
please point out the problems with testable employees, who is 
going to be included, point out the problems with the testing proce­
dures and the whole HHS guidelines with regard to these blind 
proficiency tests, and point out the need for safeguards to insure 
that employees are not harassed through this process. 

We talked about the Privacy Act issues as well, and in the re­
lease of information, we have not focused much on the HHS guide­
lines, but the whole issue of what is unsatisfactory performance 
and how it is open to interpretation to be applied one way for one 
lab and a different way for another lab. Your testimony very well 
draws that out. 

Maybe, if you want to, you can emphasize that once again. You 
talked about what drugs would be tested. 

Just one last question. We are going to have to vote, and then I 
would like to let you go and come back and start with OTA, but 
you focused on an area of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amend­
ed, which generally includes a drug abuser as a person who is pro­
tected as a handicapped individual. Under this act, as you testify, 
employees may under certain conditions be protected from adverse 
actions, such as discharge, unless the agency can show the nexus, 
the impairment of the employee's job performance connection, be­
tween the drug use and the job performance. Therefore, applicants 
otherwise qualified for the position but refused employment solely 
on the basis of a positive drug test may have a valid claim under 
the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. There is no instruction to agencies, 
and employees should be informed about relevant provisions of the 
Rehabilitation Act. 

I take it, Mr. Beall, you are the expert on the Rehabilitation Act. 
Mr. BEALL. We share that expertise. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. You are all the experts. 
It is a real problem, is it not? 
Mr. SELDIN. It is a problem, and it relates also to the problem 

involving the Civil Service Reform Act and the nexus connection 
that is usually needed to have a disciplinary proceeding against an 
employee. There are various provisions in the Rehabilitation Act 
that protect handicapped employees, including drug users. Howev­
er, if it can be shown that the drug user's abuse of drugs will have 
a negative effect on work, then that particular individual is not 
protected. 

However, if that showing cannot be demonstrated, then the drug 
user is protected as a handicapped employee under various provi­
sions of the Rehabilitation Act. 

As a general matter, when disciplining a federal employee, the 
Civil Service Reform Act requires a showing of connection between 
the misconduct-in this instance, it would be the drug use-and 
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the impairment of service, the work. The courts are somewhat at 
odds on this issue. 

In many situations it is true that the fact of drug use itself may 
presumptively show that nexus. However, in circumstances where 
that has been held, there have been other circumstances as well. 
For example, in one instance, someone was an air traffic controller. 
In other instance, someone was a Customs Service employee who 
was involved in drug interdiction activities. In another instance 
there was a computer programmer who had access to classified in­
formation. 

However, in other cases, the courts have held that you cannot 
discipline an employee just on the basis of drug use alone. 

In one case, an employee who was convicted of distributing LSD, 
but had a very good job record and was an employee that was not 
in a sensitive position could not be dismissed on the basis of drug 
use. Whether that is positive or negative I do not know, but the 
courts are in conflict about that, and the guidelines do not provide 
any nexus test for disciplinary procedures that can be applied. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. This is a big issue. It needs to be resolved, and 
even if it is attempted in the guidelines, there are going to be some 
lawsuits. And if it is not resolved by the guidelines, there are going 
to be a huge number of lawsuits. 

Also, you pointed out in your testimony that there is a failure to 
provide that certain information be given to employees who find 
themselves in the situation with a positive drug test result. They 
are not informed of how the Rehabilitation Act affects them. They 
are not informed of rights under the Civil Service laws. They are 
not informed as to whether they have access, and the OPM guide­
lines are silent on the issue of do they have a right to challenge 
these results by getting information with regards to the track 
record of the particular laboratory which did their test. 

I am convinced, and we are going to hear from a lawyer later on, 
that a lawyer for those employees probably is due that access. 

Mr. STEVENS. Yes, sir, we would certainly say so under the guide­
lines. It is further evidence that the executive order was a good 
deal more even-handed and helpful than the guidelines themselves, 
which do not address that question. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Anything in summary? 
Mr. S'l'EVENS. Just that our principal concern, sir, remains that 

there is no long term oversight or monitoring of this program. So 
as these problems do emerge throughout government, agency by 
agency, we do not see anybody in a position in the Executive 
Branch to take charge, to assess how they are doing, and to suggest 
improvements in an area that is bound to be heavily litigated. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. I think the subcommittee is left having to get the 
President down here to tell us who is in charge of this drug testing 
progr.am that is supposedly so important. We brought OPM in 
thinking that they were in charge, and they pointed fingers in 
other directions, and HHS did the same finger-pointing. We will 
have to bring the White House and the AG in and find out who is 
in charge because there are going to be questions as we go along. 

Thank you again, gentlemen. You have been very helpful, and if 
you want to hit the high points that were missed in the question­
ing, that would be helpful to the subcommittee. Thank you. 
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Mr. STEVENS. Thank you, sir. 
[Whereupon, a short recess was taken.] 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Good morning, again. 
Our next witness is Dr. Lawrence Miike, senior associate in the 

Health Program in the Office of Technology Assessment. 
Dr. Miike is an outspoken authority on the accuracy and reliabil­

ity of drug tests, and has been moEt helpful in providing Congress 
with very thoughtful and scientific analysis of drug testing technol­
ogies. 

Good morning, Dr. Miike, and you may begin. Your entire testi­
mony will be placed in the record. You can summarize, as you see 
fit. 

STATEMENT OF LAWRENCE MIlKE, OFFICE OF TECHNOLOGY 
ASSESSMENT 

Dr. MIlKE. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
I have testified before on tills issue before the subcommittee 

under your previous Chairman Ackerman on September 16, and on 
April 9 of this year, I testified in front of the Senate Judiciary 
Committee. I have attached my Senate Judiciary Committee testi­
mony to my prepared testimony for today. 

For my testimony today, I decided that I would focus more on 
the connection between the technical aspects of testing and the 
reasonableness issue as it relates to who should be tested and how 
accurate these tests are. 

I should also say that I have training as a lawyer, although I do 
not practice. So even though I do not know the technical details of 
the law, I feel qualified to make some comments on the law. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. I am a lawyer as well. Joe Cannon, the Speaker of 
the House for which this building was named, died, and his succes­
sor, we are told, was out campaigning in Missouri and was likening 
himself to Joe Cannon. He said he was raised in rural Missouri, 
and they applauded. He had gone to the big city of St. Louis and 
shown them what to do, and they applauded. He said he was a 
lawyer, and there was no applause. He turned to an aide and said, 
"What's up?" He said, "They don't like lawyers." He quickly 
amended his statement by saying, "But not a very good one." 

So I know you are a good lawyer, and you did condition it by 
saying you do not practice that much, but with your legal training 
and the scientific background, you can help us out a lot, and we 
thank you for that. 

Dr. MIlKE. I think that in terms of the reliability and accuracy of 
urine drug tests, when they are done properly they are very reli­
able and very accurate. Of course, the remaining issue is in prac­
tice how well the labs perform, and I think most of you know about 
the Channel 7 investigations about area labs, and there are really 
bad problems with error rates. 

So in terms of any kind of drug testing program, some kind of 
outside testing of the testers themselves obviously has to be an im­
portant part. So in terms of the tests themselves, I have two main 
points, and then I want to talk about the reasonableness issue. 

The first point is that in practice, especially in mass screening 
programs, errors are a much more real issue than in theoretical, 
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ideal situations. My previous testimony really focused on the ideal 
situation, but I do not think I need to get into the practical situa­
tion because I think everybody is aware of that now. 

The second main point I want to make about the accuracy and 
reliability of these tests is that you cannot talk about how good 
these tests are without talking about what populations you are 
testing, and in my prepared testimony I have given you some ex­
amples in my tables after page 6 that shows you the relationship 
between sensitivity and specificity and how that relates to the pre­
dictive value of an initially positive test when it is applied to popu­
lations with different prevalences of drug use. I will go into some of 
that a little later on beeause I think that will give you a working 
approach on how to deal with this reasonableness issue, not only 
from the standpoint of what kinds of work force populations should 
be tested, but also what these programs would cost in the context 
of low incidence drug user populations, such as the Federal work 
force, which, I might add, the average age is 42. 

On the reasonableness standpoint, I want to address two areas. 
One is the physical intrusion aspects, and the other is the reason­
ableness of applying it to populations, as I say, where there are dif­
ferent prevalences of drug use. 

I think all would agree that the fundamental reason for institut­
ing a screening program in the work force is to uncover drug abuse 
at the work site and its effect on worker performance. Then we get 
into profound disagreements about whether screening is also a 
good rationale to uncover off-tluty activities, such as weekend recre­
ational use of drugs, or whether mandatory screening programs in 
the work site are an appropriate means for detecting and deterring 
illegal behavior per se. 

We all know that those are issues that we are profoundly dis­
agreeing on, but I think everybody agrees that if there is a good 
rationale for mandatory screening, it is to make sure that drug 
abuse in the work site is not taking place. But from that stand­
point, if you are talking about the techniques for screening, then 
blood tests are the best, because blood tests will show you use 
within hours. Urine tests get a little bit further away, because we 
are talking about days now, 1 to 3 days, and when we are talking 
about marijuana, I think the record is 79 days after last use, but 
usually 1 to 4 weeks. 

I think that if you look at many of the kinds of screening pro­
grams that go on, people are aware of that, and they often give you 
a 30-day notice when screening is first initiated. 

We will be hearing from the next witness, who will talk about 
hair analysis. That would be less physically intrusive than blood or 
urine screening, but in terms of behavior intrusion, I think it is 
profoundly intrusive in the sense that it can start tracking you 
back months and months and months, and I can imagine all of the 
federal work force coming shaved every day with no hair on their 
head or long hair disappearing even among women if hair becomes 
the way that one analyzes. 

If we look at the urine screening program now, I am not too sure 
whether it is less intrusive than blood testing. Blood testing is in­
trusive in the sense that someone jabs a needle into your arm and, 
in essence, physically assaults you and takes your blood away. In 
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urine screening, when you look at the guidelines for collection pro­
cedures, there is a monitor in there. You are in a stall. Your water 
is blue. They check the temperature, all of those kinds of issues. If 
one does that, I would at least like the choice of red, white and 
blue water and be a little bit more patriotic than blue water. 

My point on that is in trying to meet the requirements of chain 
of custody for the urine specimen and to make sure that people do 
not cheat, the very process of collecting urine now becomes, in my 
opinion, more intrusive than getting your arm stuck for blood. So I 
offer, not facetiously but fairly seriously, that if one would talk 
about using mandatory random screening tests, let's use the stand­
ard of blood tests. If you are going to do a mandatory screening, 
let's say who would be appropriate to do blood testing on, and then 
maybe that will sharpen the focus about whom we should be using 
mandatory screening on. 

My second area is the reasonableness of these tests as applied to 
different populations, and for that purpose, I would just ask you to 
turn after page 6 of my testimony. There has been a lot of confu­
sion on accuracy of tests, and we have all heard the notion of false 
positives and false negatives. In my prepared testimony I make an 
analogy to the use of the AIDS antibody screening tests among 
blood banks and among high risk populations, and the same issue 
really arises in that context. 

Briefly, sensitivity really applies to the situation in which of all 
the known drug specimens, of all the uri:qes that have drugs in 
them, 'how many will we pick up. So if you' are talking about a 95 
percent sensitivity, it is saying that out of 100 positive urines, you 
would fInd 95 and you would miss fIve, and the screening situation 
being such that confIrmatory testing is only done on positive tests 
on the screen, the fIve that you miss that time you are going to 
miss forever. You are not going to pick them up again. 

Specmcity goes to the issue of all the urines that do not have 
drugs in them, how many are identifIed as having drugs in them, 
and that is the false positive issue. 

Now, in my examples that I show you, you can have a 100 per­
cent sensitive test and not make very much difference in the per­
cent of the initial screens that are positive. For example, in my 2 
percent prevalence example, if you assume 95 percent sensitivity, 
meaning that you would pick np 95 percent of the urines, you 
would pick up 19 out of 20 on my example or 2 percent out of 
1,000. If you were at 100 percent sensitivity you would pick up 20 
out of 20, but you see that that would only switch the predictive 
value from 16 percent to 17 percent. 

In tables in my Senate testimony and in the following table in 
my prepared testimony, I give you a range of populations with dif­
ferent prevalences of drug use; 2, 5, 10, 25, 50 percent, and the pre­
dictive value of a positive screening test going from 16, 34, 51, 76, 
to 90 percent. Now, if we are dealing with random testing in the 
federal work force, my guess would be, and if I were a betting man, 
I would bet that prevalence it would be less than 10 percent and 
probably would be under 5 percent. 

So if you take the very best tests available for screening, you are 
still going to get an initially positive rate of which less than 25 per­
cent of them are going to be actually confIrmed--
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Mr. SIKORSKI. Before we get too far ahead, when I was reading 
this last night, it struck me that the percentage rate is not that 
great. 

Dr. MIlKE. No. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. For all of the ballyhoo about these accurate tests 

the percentage is not very good and the cost of identifying positive 
samples is incredibly high. If we assume away the inaccuracies, the 
potential problems in accurate testing-from the actual sample 
taking to the transportation, the labeling of the sample, contamina­
tion, and the problems with the tests assume that we have opti­
mum testing procedures-even then we are going to end up with 
false positives. And according to the statistics in your statement, if 
you consider the false positives, we are going to be able to confirm 
only one-fourth of those false positive tests. 

Dr. MIlKE. Yes, most likely. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. So if we look at all of the positives that come out, 

we will be able to confirm one-fourth of those, and when we are 
done, we have spent a lot of money. 

Dr. MIlKE. Yes. The money aspect comes in h~ving to provide a 
confirmatory test, knowing that most of those that are positive on 
screening are going to end up falsely positive. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Assume that under the two percent, it is a ques­
tion in urinalysis, and your guess was that the Federal work force 
probably has drug use of under 5 percent. It is an older population. 

Dr. MIlKE. Of course i~, would be stratified among the different 
age groups. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Right-and job use, economic, social and the rest of 
it-but it is generally less than the general U.S. work force because 
it is demographically an older population and those demographics 
tell us that there is less drug use, not alcohol, but illegal drug use 
in older populations. 

Now, under the 5 percent of samples contain drugs, what does 
the 34 percent mean? 

Dr. MIlKE. What that means is of all the tests initially positive 
on the screens, only 34 percent will be confirmed with the confirm­
atory tests. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Of all the tests that come out positive, one-third of 
them will truly be confirmed, and we will get into a situation that 
action will be taken. 

Dr. MIlKE. Yes. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. And if it is 2 percent? 
Dr. MilKE. It is only 16 percent of the initially positives that 

would turn out to be truly positive. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. So if the federal work force is close to the 2 per­

cent of drug use situation, only 16 percent of those positive results 
will be confirmed as actual results, and the cost of getting down to 
that? 

Dr. MUKE. It is in the next column. You can see the comparative 
costs in that very same table. In other words, in the last column 
there it says that given all of the drug testing costs, what is the 
cost of finding one really positive case. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. $1,000? 
Dr. MIlKE. $1,036, versus if you had a 50-percent population of 

drug users, then it would be $'76. 
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Of course, I am not tallrL"t'Ig about tr.e total cost of the program. 
The total cost of the program would depend on how many people 
you test and how many people that you have to confirm also at the 
same time. 

The last column is sort of a cost-effectiveness analysis. What are 
we getting for our bucks in testing? 

Mr. SIKORSKI. So for every 1,0{)0 people screened in the Federal 
work force, assuming the two percent prevalence of drug use, for 
each positive case found, it would be about $1,000? 

Dr. MilKE. Right. What I am saying in this is if you take a 2-
percent prevalence drug use and you screen 1,000 people with the 
test sensitivity and specificity that I indicated, the total cost would 
be close to $20,000, and it sounds cheap when you say that the cost 
per person is only about $20, but when you figure out what the cost 
is of actually finding a truly positive, it comes out to be over 
$1,000. 

So you can see that as the population that you test has lLigher 
drug use, obviously your testing would be much more efficient and 
much more cost effective, and that is what I mean by the reason­
ableness of the testing program as applied to populations of differ­
ent drug use. So it is obviously a much more efficient system to 
test high drug user popu.lations than to test low drug user popula­
tions, and it is a judgment call, I guess, about where you draw that 
line. 

Now, let me mention some other things. I had hoped that I 
would have received the most recent military statistics on costs 
and incidences of testing. Since this is the Post Office and Civil 
Service Committee, maybe I should complain. I have not gotten it 
from the Pentagon although it was sent to me on Thursday. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. They said it was sent on Thursday? 
Dr. Mmm. That is no problem here, because I can submit it for 

the record. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. It is in the mail? 
Dr. MIlKE. Yes. I have to say that I get letters from my mother 

in Hawaii quicker than that. 
When we look at the 1985 military testing program, they had 

testing under two situations. One is random testing, and the other 
one is what you would call probable cause. They had three catego­
ries all lumped together. It is probable cause, command directed, 
and medical testing. 

In the 1985 drug urinalysis program, in random testing-and re­
member this is the service population which is younger than the 
Federal work force-out of 2,044,309 people tested in the random 
program, they found 36,848 confirmed positives, a rate of about 1.8 
percent, sort of what you would expect in the Federal work force. 
Remember this is a younger population. 

In their random testing program, they test~d. 295,304 people and 
found 29,179 positive for a positive rate of about 10 percent. Now, 
that is a little surprising to me that in a probable cause, command 
directed, medical testing program, that only 10 percent of them are 
found to be positive. 

So I am guessing that what happens in any kind of disciplinary 
hearing, proceedings or medical testing, they almost routinely now 
test for drug use. 
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My point on using the military statistics is that in their random 
testing program, they are only finding about 2 percent of drug use 
in that military population. Now, you have got to temper this by a 
couple of things. 

One is that this is happening even though they know they are 
going to be tested. So what we are really talking about is probably 
drug users who were drug users who were drug users, but if you 
look at the statistics, they are heavily concentrated in the most 
recent recruits, the lowest enlisted population and the youngest 
people, and so it sort of mirrors the general population in that 
sense. 

The other thing, too, is that the Army has a higher rate. So 
there are socio-economic factors .lnd differences such as that, but I 
think this is an interesting lesson for testing for the fedeI al work 
force. 

Now, in terms of the cost of the military program, I think these 
numbers or the examples that I gave you in my prepared testimo­
ny are supported by the military. In the military'::. program there 
are costs per specimen. In the Army it was $16, in the Navy $23, in 
the Air Force $14. Now, that contrasts to my example of about $20, 
but the military does most of its testing in its own labs. So these 
costs are, I think, artificially low in the sense that they are not 
going to be the kinds of costs if I contracted with an outside lab. 

~:h. SIKORS.KI. Are there any agencies under the executive order 
and the guidelines looking at their own labs? 

Dr. MIlKE. In the survey last year that was done by the Post 
Office and Civil Service Committee, it varies all over the place. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. But now? We are almost a year later into the test­
ing program. 

Dr. MilKE. All I can mention at this moment is the certification 
process that the National Institute of Drug Abuse was setting up, 
and I would guess that some agencies may contract with some of 
the military labs, but I do not think that any of the agencies has 
the capability to test on the mass basis as the military programs 
are. So I think what they are concentrating on is developing certifi­
cation programs to qualify outside labs who would get on the Hst of 
contractors. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. And are more expensive? 
Dr. MIlKE. Most likely. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. And how about testing the testers? 
Dr. MIlKE. That is the main emphasis of the National Institute of 

Drug Abuse Program, to set up a program to test the testing labs 
that would be under contract. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. I think from your testimony you underscored the 
need to do that. 

Dr. MIlKE. Oh, yes. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. So does GAO, that the test results are only as good 

as the testing, and these contractors need to have their own testers 
as clean as possible. 

Dr. MIlKE. At the end of my April 9 testimony I attached an in­
teresting bill in the California Legislature that tries to address that 
issue. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. It was vetoed, was it not? 
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Dr. MIlKE. I was trying to check up on what was going on. I was 
not sure if the bill was going to pass, but as a legislative approach, 
I thought it was an interesting one. 

Let me just end up by mentioning one other issue here; obvious­
ly, in testing the Federal work force, the tradeoff is that we offer 
rehabilitation services. So what would that cost? 

The military has their costs identified, and what is interesting to 
me is that in the Army and the Navy, their testing costs are more 
than 50 percent of their total costs. In other words, they are spend­
ing more on their testing programs than they are spending on their 
rehabilitation programs. The Air Force is a little different. About 
25 percent of the total cost of their program is on testing. So they 
spend a lot more proportionately on rehabilitation. 

Now, of course, in terms of absolute total numbers the Army is 
much larger than the Air Force and the Navy is much larger than 
the Air Force, although the Navy tests for a much greater range of 
drugs than the Army does. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Even though the Army does not test for that great 
a range of drugs, their cost of testing is more then their cost of--

Dr. MIlKE. No. In the testing situation in 1985, the Army spent a 
little bit over $11 million, the Navy almost $34 million, and the Air 
Force about $2.5 million, but remember the Army tests only for 
marijuana and cocaine, and the Navy tests for about seven or eight 
substances. 

Mr. SIKORSKI .. The point is even though their costs are lower for 
testing because they are only testing for two drugs, they are still 
spending more on testing than they are on the counseling serviceS' 
and the rest of it. 

Dr. MIlKE. Yes. I am not sure, but I think one of the reasons for 
that is marijuana positive people in terms of rehabilitation; I do 
not think rehabilitation is offered to the occasional marijuana user. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Let me ask you, in the areas associated with drug 
testing you talked about testing the testers, and you earlier men­
tioned the WGLA, Channel 7 experiment. They set up a fictitions 
courier company and sent a number of spiked urine samples to 
area drug testing labs for pre-employment screening. One sample 
was even dog urine. The results showed that the dog got the job, as 
well as at least 50 percent of the people associated with the spiked 
urine samples. 

Dr. MIlKE. And Esther Peterson flunked after eating a poppy 
seed roll. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. That will teach her. Those poppy seed rolls can 
really do you in. 

Is this an acceptable false negative rate for a qualified lab? 
Dr. MilKE. Defmitely not, and I believe many of the false nega­

tives were at levels much higher than the lower limits of detection. 
So I think that was just sloppy work. 

I should add also I talked to the reporter, Roberta Haskins, I be­
lieve, and she had an amusing story to relate, which was that she 
had not realized that male dogs do not just pee once. They go all 
over the place. So she had a hell of a time collecting it. What she 
was able to collect was a miniscule amount which she thought the 
lab would reject out of hand, but they tested it anyway. 

76-899 0 - 87 - 7 
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Mr. SIKORSKI. Times have changed. When I was growing up in 
northern Minnesota, a urine test was whether you could write 
your name in the snow. 

You laugh. Try writing Sikorski. 
Are there any subjective measurements that must be made by 

the drug tester in the drug screen of the confirmatory test? 
Dr. MIlKE. No. Well, one must always have to eyeball it, but 

what we are really talking about is a printout that you can see. It 
is sort of a time related and dose related thing. 

The easiest analogy is to a fingerprint. That is quite different 
from the confirmatory test with the AIDS antibody test, for exam­
ple, where a lab technician has to eyeball it. Even though it is a 
certain pattern, one still has to eyeball it. So the GC/MS test to me 
is a much better test than the Western blot test that is used to con­
firm the presence of antibodies to the AIDs virus. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Well, looking at the GC/MS and the confirmatory 
test, the more expensive thing, that is not 100 percent accurate 
either. Let's put it this way. It is not accurate for the poppy seed or 
these other things that show up. They are real positives, but they 
are not real drugs. 

Dr. MIlKE. Yes. When you have the same thing from a different 
source, then, of course, you may not be able to tell. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. You have two levels of problems. You have some 
over-the-counter drugs, Midol and so forth, which show up as con­
trolled substances. That is wrong. rl'hat is a problem. 

Then there are other substances like poppy seeds and tea that 
show up as contrrlled substances, and these tests pick things in a 
very sensitive way. 

Dr. MIIKE.I would qualify that, however, by saying if need be a 
good GC/MS person could then fractionate. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. You said "a good." 
Dr. MIlKE. Yes. Routinely they would not do that, obviously. But 

when we are talking about something Eke marijuana or cocaine or 
morphine, et cetera, it is usually not one single excreted product. It 
is several metabolytes so that if one were real careful, I would 
guess that you could distinguish between metabolytes that came 
out of a poppy seed versus something that came out of an illegal 
drug. But in the usual course of a mass screening program where 
you are doing a whole lot of GC/MSs, I do not think that would be 
the case, but I think we have some witnesses that could answer 
that question after me. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. We know that alcohol use and abuse is much more 
prevalent in society, and one would presume in the federal work 
force, than drug abuse, other drugs. Should we be testing our work 
force for alcohol abuse? 

Dr. MIlKE. If you do it, I think you are going to have to do a 
breathalizer test or a blood test. It does not last very long in the 
urine. 

If you ask me, if it is related to on-the-job abuse, I do not know. 
It is a good question. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. The reason I asked it is that the focus of your testi­
mony here today and much of the other testimony you have given, 
which you have attached, is that we are talking about job impair­
ment. If you focus on job impairment, the best testing is for that 
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which is here and now, and not yesterday or 2 days ago or 2 
months ago, and it should relate to the kind of job that is being 
performed. 

If that is the case, then we should be focusing on the after lunch 
bunch. 

Dr. MIlKE. I would answer that question in the following way. I 
would not put my resources in testing. I would put my resources in 
rehabilitation. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. And I agree. 
Thank you, Dr. Miike. 
[The prepared statement of Dr. Lawrence Miike follows:] 
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TESTIMONY OF LAWRENCE HIlKE 
OFFICE OF TECHNOLOGY ASSESSMENT 

U.S. CONGRESS 
BEFORE THE HOUSE COMMITTEE ON POST OFFICE AND CIVIL SERVICE 

SUBCOMMITTEE ON HUMAN RESOURCES 

Accuracy and Reliability of Urine Dru~ Tests 

Hay 20, 1987 

I am Dr. Lawrence Miike, Senior Associate in the Health Program of the 

Office of Technology Assessment, and I am here today to comment on the 

accuracy and reliability of urine drug tests. 

At hearings before this Subcommittee on September 16, 1986, and before 

the Senate Committee on the Judiciary on April 9, 1987, I provided detailed. 

information on the accuracy and reliability of urine drug tests. My previous . *, 
te~~imony to the Senate Judiciary Committee is attached,-and I would be 

pleased to answer any questions t,1<1 Subcommittee may have on the tests 

involved. 

,to summarize that previous testimony, existing urine drug screening 

tests are highly accurate and reliable, provided that: 1) initial positive 

results are confirmed by a separate test that is based on different physical 

and chemical principles from the initial screening test, and 2) appropriate 

laboratory procedures are used to conduct tests. 

Confirmatory tests must be used to distinguish between positive 

screening results that are due to the presence of the drug in the urine 

specimen from positive screening results that are due to cross-reactivity of 

the drug test with other substances in the urine specimen, or to testing 

errors. 

~/ Not reprinted. 

1 

1-__________________________________ " _______ _ 
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The most important technical issue at the moment is whether these tests 

are being performed properly. This is an especially crucial issue because: 1) 

there is more chance for error in mass testing, and 2) even a small error rate 

will represent large numbers of people. The initial focus of these concerns 

was on those persons who might be wrongly identified as drug users by the 

screening test. This situatiotl can usually be avoided if confirmatory testing 

is done on all positive screening tests (there are exceptions, such as poppy 

seeds as a possible source of opiates). Because confirmatory testing is 

expensive, however, a high false positive rate on the initial test would 

result in a costly and inefficient testing program. 

In fact, most erroneous results on the initial screening test represent 

"false negatives." Therefore, a substantial proportion of drug-containing 

urine specimens are being missed. Since these urine specimens are not 

identified as "presumptive positives" and subjected to confirmatory testing, 

if they are missed on the screening test, they will be missed altogether. 

To minimize errors associated with testing, it is necessary to test the 

testers themselves. Such "proficiency testing" programs are conducted at 

~everal levels. Within the laboratory, laboratory management may slip in 

known test samples with actual specimens to see how well technicians perform 

when they do not know which specimens are test samples. At another level, 

tests of individual labs can be conducted by outside monitors. For example, 

several national organizations provide proficiency testing services for a fee, 

and recent results of two of these organizations were provided in my previous 

2 
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testimony. The military also monitors its in-house and contract labs in this 

manner, and similar efforts have been developed for evaluating labs taking 

part in the Administration's' drug screening initiative. 

Information on the technical aspects of drug screening tests can be of 

help in determining the reasonableness of a drug screening program. In the 

following analYSiS, the "reasonableness" issue will be discussed in terms of a 

drug screening program's objectives and the types of employees who may be 

s~bJ8cted to testing. 

The primary purpose for itl' :ituting urine drug testing in the workplace 

is to deter drug use and thereby prevent untoward impact of drug abuse on 

worker safety and performance. The more worker perfo~nce affects the public 

safety, the greater the impetus for, and acceptance of, mandatory testing. 

This is the case, for example, in occupations affecting public transportation, 

and in particular, air travel. Other justifications for mandatory testing in 

the workplace are used, such as detecting and deterring drug abuse off the job 

but which may affect worker performance, and detecting and deterring behavior 

that is illegal. However, there is profound disagreement on the 

appropriateness of mandatory drug screening as a condition of employment as 

the means to meet these objectives. 

The use of YIiD& drug testing is already a compromise between available 

technologies and the objectives of scrs,'lling programs. If the objective is to 

detect drug abuse at the workplace, blood dn.g tests would be the 

technological choice, because detectable drug levels in blood mean that the 

person tested has used the drug very recently, usually within a matter of 

3 
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hours. But blood testing is considered too intrusive, and too costly. 

Moreover, except for alcohol, scientists have not been able to make good 

correlations between blood drug levels and degrees of impairment. 

Urine testing is considered much less intrusive, but legal challenges 

and concerns have led to elaborate collection procedures designed to prevent 

cheating and to meet chain-of-custody requirements pertaining to legal 

evidence, ,.hich have themselves resulted in intrusions on a person's privacy. 

Urine drug tests, while less pl"ysically intrusive than blood drug tests, are 

arguably more intrusive to many persons than blood tests, because, frankly 

speaking, you have to urinate on demand in the presence of a person whose sole 

purpose is to see that you do not cheat. Moreover, urine drug tests are more 

intrusive than blood tests in the sense that they can "look. back" further in 

time and are less related to the problem of drug abuse in the workplace. 

Urine drug tests, because they are less physically intrusive than blood tests 

and because they are relatively cheap, would be more widely applied than blood 

testing even if blood testing was an acceptable screening procedure. Thus, 

the tradeoff between blood versus urine testing is that, because urine testing 

is considered less physically intrusive, it has been applied to a much larger 

population than would be the case if blood testing were conducted. But the 

"reasonableness" question has not been settled, and the physical intrusion 

necessary under collection protocols and the longer "window" into past 

behavior that urine testing provides are currently being litigated. 

I make these observations because hair analYSis is being touted as a 

possible new screening technology that is less intrusive than urine testing. 

However, this method will uncover drug use that is even less correlated to 

4 
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recent use than urine testing. In fact, it is claimed that ~ne can track 

monch-to-month use, roughly corresponding to 1-1.3 centimet~rs of hair growth 

per month. I can envision legitimate uses for this new technology; for 

example, monitoring patients on long-term prescription drugs, and in the 

illegal drug area, monitoring drug abuse clinic clients, prisoners, and 

parolees. Perhaps it could also replace urine testing among other populations 

in which some type of mandatory testing is accepted; for example, as a cost­

effective alternative for the military'S extensive d~lg testing program. 

However, I believe that it would be a mistake to judge the appropriateness of 

hair analysis by its less intrusiT-e collection method as compared to urine 

collection. 

The foregoing analysis discussed 'reasonablenes~' in terms of the 

physical intrusion necessitated by the screening technologies and the extent 

to which the drug use uncovered is related to performance in the workplace. 

Let me now turn to the reasonablqness issue in terms of the value of urine 

drug testing when identical tests are applied to populations with different 

patterns of drug use. We can assess reasonableness through the following 

questio~~. Among populations with different prevalences of ~rug use: 1) how 

many persons identified as "positive" on the screening test will actually turn 

out to be positive on the confirmatory test, and'2) how cost-effective is 

testing? 

My previous testimony provides details regarding the concepts of the 

"sensitivity" and "specificity" of screening tests and the relationship of 

~ese test parameters to the issue of "false positives" and ~false negatives' 

(see accompanying figure). Tables 3 and 4 in my previous testimony provide 

5 
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examples of the percent of positives found on the screening test that are 

truly positive and the costs associated with identifying each truly positive 

urine specimen. The accompanying tables provide similar examples. 

What these examples show is that for populations with drug use below 10 

percent, les9 than half of the positive tests on initial screening will be 

confirmed. The "predictive vB,lue" of a positive test falls as the prevalence 

of drug use declines. For example, the predictive value of a positive 

screening test is only 34 percent "hen 5 percent of samples contain drugs. 

The predictive value falls to only 16 percent for specimens of which 2 percent 

actually contain drugs. My examples use a sensitivity of 95 percent (meaning 

that 5 percent of positive urines will test negative), but these findings hold 

even for tests of 100 percent sensitivity (for example, the 16 percent figure 

would only increase to 17 percent). The reason is that many non-drug users 

are subject to testing, and other substances in the urine specimen may react 

with the test ingredients (the "false positive" issue). 

In fact, increasing the sensitivity of a screening test usually comes 

at the expense of a lower specificity. This occurs because as a test is 

calibrated to detect smaller and smaller amounts of a drug, the chances 

increase that the test ingredients will also react with other substances in 

the urine. This relationship between sensitivity and specificity is 

illustrated by the blood test for antibodies to the AIDS virus that is used to 

screen all blood donations. Because the intent is to detect all blood 

donations that contain antibodies to the AIDS virus (implying that the blood 

is infected with the AIDs virus), the lowest limit of detection (the test's 

"cutoff" point) has been deliberately set very low to eliminate the problem of 

6 
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"false negatives." As a consequence, most of the initially positive blood 

donations will be "false positives" and will be found to be negative on 

confirmatory testing. 

Confirmatory testing has mitigated, in large part, the problems 

inherent in using only screening tests to conclude that a urine specimen 

contained drugs. However, confirmatory testing has significantly increased 

the costs of drug screening programs. 

The accompanying tables illustrate the relationships between 

sensitivity, specificity, the prbvalence of drug use, the predictive value of 

drug screening tests, and the costs incurred in identifying one case of drug 

use correctly. For any population with a drug use prevalence of less than 10 

percent, less than half of the positive tests on initial screening will be 

truly positive. 

The cost-effectiveness of screening is illustrated by the fact that 

only 51 percent of the positive screening tests of a 10 percent drug user 

population will be confirmed, in contrast to the 90 percent confirmation rate 

of a 50 percent drug user population. This means that the cost of finding one 

truly positive urine specimen in the 10 percent drug user population is more 

than 3 times the cost of identifying one truly positive urine specimen in the 

50 percent drug user population ($236 vs. $76). "screening program directed 

at a popUlation with only 2 percent of its urine specimens containing drugs 

will cost more than 4 times as much as a screening program directed at a 10 

percent drug user population ($1,036 vs. $236). 

7 
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Conclusion 

Urine drug screening tests are highly reliable and accurate when 

performed properly, and the focus of concern on the technical capebilities of 

current tests has shifted toward the performance of the testing laboratories 

and their personnel. 

Urine drug screening is less physically intrusive than blood screening, 

but urine screening is also physically intrusive because of the chain-of­

custody requirements that are needed to prevent cheating arid to maintain the 

urine specimen and its testing results as legal evidence. Urine screening is 

more intrusive than blood screening in that it is less related to workplace 

drug use; positive blood tests reflect recent use measured in hours, while a' 

positive urine test reflects use measured in days (in ,the case of marijuana, 

measured in weeks). Newer methods of screening, such as testing hair, may be 

less physically intrusive, but the results will be even less related to recent 

use. Hair analysis raises the issue as to whether physical discomfort, 

embarassment, and/or temporary psychic trauma--the byproducts of collecting 

blood or urine specimens--deserve more legal protection than delving into past 

behavior that is measured in months. Perhaps concerns over invasion of 

privacy should be reframed, and the test for screening should be: Under what 

circumstances would we agree that screening is appropriate, assuming that only 

blood testing was available? 

The reasonableness of a drug screening program is not only related to 

the technical capabilities of the tests and the circumstances under which the 

specimens are collected, but also to the populations that are to be subjected 

to testing. Two measures that can be used to assess reasonableness are the 

percent of initially positive tests that will be confirmed (the predictive 

value), and the cost-effectiveness of screening populations with low drug use 

patterns. 
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Relationship Between S~nsltlYlty, Specificity, 
Prevalence of Drug Use, Predictive Value of Drug Screening Tests, 
and Costs Incurred in Identifying One Cas. of Drug Use Correctly 

Hypothetical Situation: 

2,000 persons tested, 1,000 In each group: 

1) First group with 2 percent with drug in urine. 

2) Second group with 5 percent with drug in urine. 

Screening test with: 

a) 95 perc4Pnt sensitivity 

b) 90 percent specifiCity 

Cost of testing: 

a) Screening -- $15 

b) Confirmation -- $40 

What this example will illustrate is: 

1) the predictive value of positive tests when applied to different 
populations of drug users; and 

2) the costs inc~rred in Identifying a drug user correctly when 
different populations of drug users are tested. 

Drug in Urln@ 

PRESENT ABSENT 

POSITIVE 
A = True 8 = Fals. I Positive PositivI 

Screen i ng Test 

C ,. False o = Trut 
NEGATIVE Negative N.gativtl 

Sensitivity = A/(A + C) 

Specificity = 0/(8 + D) 
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PRESENT ABSENT 

POSITIVE 19 98 

Sec"n i n9 Tnt 

NEGATIVE 882 

P,rcltnt of tho t im9 it positivI! !lcrnning tnt would be correc t I 

19 • 16X 
(19 + 98) 

Qrug !n !./c:iO! (5"/. arevahn,lt) 

PRESENT ABSENT 

POSITIVE 48 95 

Seruning Tnt 

NEGATIVE 2 855 

Plrc.nt of th. time a positivI scr~ening test woul~ be corretl, 

48 = 34;1, 
(48 + 95) 

In these eXamples, the predictive valut of positive seree~:ng tests would only 
be 16i: and 34i: 
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2X Prevalence of Drug Use: ~/, Prevalence of Drug Use: 

Screeningl 1,000 x $15 = $15,000 1,000 x $15 = $15,000 

Confirmation: 117 x $40 = $4,680 143 x $40 = 95,720 

Total Cost: $19,680 920,720 

Cost per person tested: 919,68 $20.72 

Cost per each 
positive case found: $19,680/19 = '1,036 920,720/48 = $432 

R,lationshlp Bet~.tn Pr.yal.nc. of Drug Us. and 
the Predietiu. Value of a PositivI ScrRenlng Test 

PREVALENCE OF 
DRUG USE 

lOY. 

2~/' 

SOY. 

PREDICTIVE 
VALUE OF A 
POSITIVE SCREENING 
TEST" 

16Y. 

34Y. 

SlY. 

76Y. 

90Y. 

COST TO IDENTIFY 
EACH POSITIVE URINE 
SPECIMEW 

'1,036 ' 

~432 

'236 

$116 

$76 

* Prtdlctiv, valu. of a posltlv, tvst· Th~ IIK.lihood that 
a posltiv! t.st actually rffl.ets the prestncl of drugs in urln. 

+ Anumu' cost of initial seruning Is '15.00 and confirmatory tntlng is 
$40,00 
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Mr. SIKORSKI. Our next witness is Dr. Werner Baumgartner, a 
biophysical research chemist in the Nuclear Medicine Department 
of the Wadsworth Veterans' Administration Hospital in Los Ange­
les. Dr. Baumgartner is also the scientific director of Ianus Founda­
tion, a nonprofit research institute, and of the Psychemedics Corpo­
ration, a drug testing, publicly owned company. 

In 1977, Dr. Baumgartner invented a hair analysis test for drug 
use detection to be used for solving the clinical problems in the 
treatment of drug addiction. Today Dr. Baumgartner presents his 
research on this radioimmunoassay of hair and its uses for detect­
ing drug use in the work place. 

I take it you are going to tell us whether blondes do have more 
fun. Dr. Baumgartner, it is a real pleasure. I have had a chance to 
meet you before and I am impressed with your work. It is nice to 
have a chance to meet you in a public forum and give you an op­
portunity to share your excellent expertise with us. 

STATEMENT OF WERNER A. BAUMGARTNER, SCIENTIFIC 
DIRECTOR, IANUS FOUNDATION 

Dr. BAUMGARTNER. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman and 
members of the committee. 

I would like to summarize our work by reading you briefly a 
written statement, and then I will be very happy to entertain all 
questions. 

The drug testing technology that we developed in 1977 is based 
on the analysis of hair, which I believe will solve the major prob­
lems of urinalysis. This new technology, which was invented in our 
VA laboratory, is referred to as radioimmunoassay of hair, which is 
RIAH and happens to spell "hair" backward, one of those happy 
accidents. 

It was originally developed for addressing some of the clinical 
problems encountered in the treatment of drug addiction. However, 
this test promises now to be particularly useful for legal proceed­
ings, especially for protecting people against the faulty urinalysis 
results, particularly the false positives, as well as for screening per­
sonnel in positions of high responsibility, such as those affecting 
public safety, that is, positions for which there is a growing consen­
sus that the adverse effects of drug addiction cannot be tolerated. 

To assure public safety, we need to test such critical employees 
by methods which are evasion proof and error free. It can be read­
ily demonstrated that urinalysis does not meet these requirements. 
For one, urinalysis can be easily evaded at a preemployment 
screening or at regularly scheduled physicals merely by the 
prewarned applicant abstaining from drug use a few days prior to 
the preemployment tests. Thus, although urinalysis can be provid­
ed at a relatively low cost, it is in no way cost effective since it fails 
in its primary objective, that is, guaranteeing the public drug free 
employees in positions of public safety. 

Of course, it is generally recognized that urinalysis is not error 
free. Particularly bothersome are errors caused. by mixed up ot· 
contaminated urine samples or those who have positive test results . 
which arose from the ingestion of spiked food, drink or poppy seeds 
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since such evidential (Le., nontechnical) false positives cannot be 
identified by the usual confirmation techniques. 

Hair analysis, on the other hand, is essentially evasion proof amI 
fail safe. It is evasion proof because hair provides a permanent 
record of a person's drug use over long periods of time, depending 
on the length of hair. Since head hair grows at approximately half 
an inch a month, say, a three inch long sample would provide a 
history of drug use of approximately 6 months. 

By comparison, urinalysis has a narrow window of detection of 
only 2 to 3 days for most drugs. In the case of hair analysis, ab­
staining from drug use two to three days prior to a preemployment 
screening will not enable a drug user to evade detection. 

Also, hair can be collected without embarrassment under close 
supervision, thereby avoiding evasive maneuvers used against uri­
nalysis, such as substitution or adulteration of samples. Neither 
does excessive fluid intake prior to a test affect hair analysis. 

If there is a concern about the validity of a particular hair analy­
sis result, one can always repeat the analysis with a newly collect­
ed sample, one that is identical to the first sample. This is not pos­
sible with a urine sample. 

Also, the other errors, such as poppy seed ingestion and speci­
men contamination do not affect hair analysis results. Thus, hair 
analysis is essentially fail safe, quite distinct from urinalysis. 

One of the most important immediate applications of hair analy­
sis, therefore, is as a confirmation test for· disputed urinalysis re­
sults. By thus acting as a safety net, the strained relationships be­
tween employers and employees due to the fear of erroneous test 
results can be greatly reduced. 

While it is easily demonstrated that hair analysis at the price of 
approximately $50 per substance analyzed is cost effective for 
screening employees in public safety positions, such costs in my 
opinion cannot be justified in the case of wide scale drug screening 
of noncritical employees. Of course, there are also legal and ethical 
objections to such wide scale testing. 

Another major technical advantage of hair analysis is that it pro­
vides a quantitative measure of a person's drug use. That is, we 
can distinguish between heavy, medium, light or no use. Urinaly­
sis, in contrast, can only tell you what drug is used, but not how 
much. 

This is, of course, of considerable importance in monitoring reha­
bilitation patients since we can establish whether a person is im­
proving, getting worse or staying the same. Therefore, we expect 
hair analysis to have a major impact on drug rehabilitation pro­
grams where objective evaluation of treatment outcome is a long 
overdue event. 

As a final point on the difference between hair analysis and uri­
nalysis, I would like to indicate that my statement should not be 
construed to be an attack on urinalysis per se. Actually the two 
tests ar.e complementary. Urinalysis is best suited for short-term 
monitoring, that is, 2 to 3 days after a possible drug related event, 
and hair analysis for the screening of a small segment of critical 
personnel, and of course for clinical evaluation. 

Hair analysis has been extensively field tested through numer­
ous analyses on more than 700 human subjects. This involved stud-
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ies with psychiatric patients, Navy personnel and in the courts. 
With a $200,000 research grant from the National Institute of Jus­
tice, the Ianus Foundation is currently doing a field study on pro­
bationers and parolees. 

This completes my formal statement. I will be very happy to 
answer specific questions on our research. 

[The prepared statement of Dr. Werner A. Baumgartner follows:] 
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TesliJ"ony of Werner A. Baumgat"l"I'I', Ph.n. 

Scientific Director, T::lnl.ls Foun!l.')l il)ll 

INTRODUCTION 

A new method of t~sting for drugs of abuse through the 
analysis of human hair was invented in 1977 in my V.A. 
laboratory and refined with the assislance of the Ianus 
Foundation over the P3st decade. The mel hod known as 
radioimmunoassay of hair (RIAH) was developed primarily for 
addressing some of the clinical problems encountered In the 
treatment of drug addiction. 

rn l-(~Cent years, hO\oIever, a g)-owing nUl1lhf~r of J~f"quests 

for assislance to people implicated hy false positive urine 
tests ha" underscored the facl that hair Clnalysis ,!ops not 
incur many of the technical, procedural, legal and ethical 
problems of urinaly"is. Sinep the legal problems of 
urinalysis 8n~ by now well recogni.zed , I wi 11 r.onfine my 
presentation to " disr.ussion of the llIAH lnPt.hod nnd how the 
major problems of urinalysis can be avoided b~ this new drug 
testin. technology. 

Figure I shows the biological basis for hair analysis, 
namp.ly, the inl.imate conl8.r-t bC"tt'lt!pn the VPIlous/al"terial 
blood supply and the hair synthesizing foillcl~. Thus drugs 
circulating in th", blood stl'pam an' .,rfect iv.,ly II'an"r"I'l'ed 
to and permanently embedded in lhe growing hair fiber. Hair 
analysis is carried out by releasing the entrapped d~ugs 
through chemical destruction of Lhe hair fiber, then 
applying specially developed radioimmunoassay or gas 
chromatography/mass spectromeLry procedures Lo the extract. 

I tis import all t to di s t i ngui-'Lh,J)f' l"een Ita i2:_",,-I:!~.i~._. 
for drugs of abuse and the unproven clinical_"j.8.!lific'l.'!_'2!'...2.L 
nutritional hair analysis. In conLrast to nutritional 
analysis, the diagnostic value of R[AU drug testing has heen 
established by field studies involving numerous analyses on 
over 700 human subjects, including psychiatric patients, 
Navy personnel, and court cases. The Ianus Foundation is 
currently doing a $195,000 field study "ith the National 
Institute of Justice with federal probationers and parolees. 
The science of hair analysis for· drug detection has been 
validated by independent laboratories in the U.S., Germany, 
Italy Rnd Japan, using methodologies different from our own. 
Tbe RIAH method has been applied to r.ocaine, morphine, 
heroin, marijuana, quaaludes and PCP. 

A unique aspect of hair analysis is that it provides a 
quantitative measure of a person's drug use; i.e., we can 
distinguish between heavy, medium, light and no use (Fig. 
2). This is in contrast to urinalysis which tells only what 
drug was used. Classification into categories of heavy, 
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medium an'd light use is particularly helpful with mar1Juana 
users, the only drug effectively detected by urinalysis in 
pre-employment screening. A~ there are an estimated 20 
million marijuana users in the U.S., unemploying everyone 
who tests positive for marijuana use is obviously not a ' 
realistic policy, since the occasional weekend user does not 
pose the same threat to public safety as tbe heavy or 
chronic user. 

Head hair grows at approximately 1.0-1.3 centimelers 
per month. Thus a 12-centimeter-long head hair provides a 
drug history of 9--12 months. Slower-growing body hair can 
extend this period up to several years. By cutting hair 
strands into suitably small sections (starting with the most 
recently grown hair near the scalp and moving progressively 
along the strand to older sections), one can by hair 
analysis obtain a read-out on the pattern of a person's past 
drug use. For example, the case depicted in Fig. 3 
documents a person reducing her heroin intake from 14 bags 
per day down to-'2 bags a day over a period of approximately 
20 months. Such progress in the rehabilitation process 
cannot be documented by urinalysis, since this provides only 
non-quantitative information and, at best (i.e., in the 
absence of evasion), would have shown uniformly positive 
results for this patient. 

The quantitative chronological data provided by RTAH 
can be of considerable importance for many other medical 
situations, as, for example, in determining the severity and 
duration of prenatal drug exposure through analysis of the 
mother's hair. Such objective, long-term information is 
critical to any medical study of the adverse effects of drug 
exposure on,--i'etal and postnatal development. RIAH promises 
to have a major impact on this under-investigated field. 

Resolution of the False Negative Problem* of Urinalysi~_ 
,by Hair Analysis 

This wide window of detection, which ranges from months 
to years, makes hair analysis essentially evasion-proof. By 
contrast, most drugs can be detected in urine for only a few 
days after last use, thereby making urinalysis (except for 
marijuana) of little value for regularly scheduled tests 
such as pre-employment screening, since detection can easily 
be avoided by the forewarned individual merely by abstaining 
from drug use for a few days prior La the test. OLher 
evasive maneuvers which create false negattves in urinalysis 
are flushing (excessive fluid intake), adulteration and 
substitutian of specimens. These do not work with hair 
analysis since the 40 to 50 hair strands needed for hair 
analysis can be readily obtained under close supervision 
without embarrassment. Thus, evasion-proof drug testing 

*Drug user who ·fests negative 

2 
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by hair analysis can be effec-tively applied to i>_ersonnel in 
highly sensitive positions at regularly scheduled annual 
physicals, thereby avoiding 4th Amendment problems, while at 
the same time effectively addressing the safety concerns of 
the public. 

Hair can be ~onveniently shipped and indefinitely 
stored without refrigeration; thus the integrity of the 
specimen is not jeopardized by environmental conditions. 
For instance, a historical hair sample, that of the poet 

-John KeHls who took an opium derivative as a pain killer, 
allowed us to demonstrate drug use 150 years after the 
event. 

The low d~tection efficiency of urinalysis can b~ 
augmented, but this only by frequent (legally troublesome) 
random testing. But even here the efficacy of delecting 
drug use is not satisfactory for most highly sensitive 
positions since random testing is too infrequently 
performed. Furthermore, many evasive maneuvers still can be 
appliod. 

The problems with random urine testing are well known 
in the criminal justice system where parolees and 
prubationers are tested randomly as often as six times per 
month. It is precisely because evasion is still possible 
upder lhese circumslances that the Nalional Institute of 
Justice is comparing the effectiveness of hair analysis to 
urinalysis fnr drug monitoring and diagnosis in probation 
and parole settings. (See National Institute of Justice 
Report, Mal'ch/April, 1987, pg. 3 - Attached). 

Being unaware of lhe serious false negative problem of 
urinalysis caused by lhese deficiencies, the public is 
lulled into a false sense of security. One can therefore 
readily agree wilh the opinion expressed by Lois Williams 
(Director Litigation, National Treasury Employee Union) that 
"a test which is ineffective in meeting its stated goals 
(i .e., urin<llysis) cannot be constitutional." 

R~soluti...Q.fl_-,?f the False Positive* Problem of Urinalysis 
by Hair Analysis 

The olher side of the coin in the false positive 
problem of urinalysis. Ils causes are partly technical, 
operational and economic. As time does not permit me to go 
inlo lhe many technical d~tails of this problem, I will 
restrict myself to some general remarks before focusing on 
the most troublesome problem of urinalysis; i.e., the 
occurrence of false positives which cannot be identified by 

*Non-users who test positive 

3 
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This proble~ can only be recognized by 

First of all, concerning the economics of drug testing, 
I would like to express my concern of how the current price 
war between urinalysis drug testing laboratories could 
affect the quality of the offered test~ng services. For 
example, one of this country's largest test(~g laboratories 
is offering a screen of a panel of 6 illicit drugs for $27. 
Included in this price are GC/MS confirmation, chain of 
custody procedures, and a commitment of defending the 
results in court. In r~onLl'ast to this, ($27.), the same 
laboratory offers the Boalysis of ooe commonly used 
pharmaceutical agent (Digoxin) for the standard fee of 
between $20-$30 dependiog on volume. What is significant is 
that the technical complexity and the cost of reagents and 
labor for the digoxin test is equal to ONE (not six) illicil 
drug screenS. Furthermore the digoxin tesL requires no 
GC/MS co~flrmation, no chain of custody, and is essentially 
free of any legal consequences. Now laboratories may 
provide these drug screens as a public service, or recoup 
their losses in same way, but Lhe fnct remains that this low 
price, when taken on a nationwide basis, must inevitably 
lead to a deterioration in the overall quality of such 
testing. As I will show below, a drop from 100% accuracy to 
one no lower than 95' will result in a most unfavorable 
risk/benefit ratio, so as to preclude wide-scale urinalysis 
testing of a populatioll (i .e., ,dthout cause). Another 
example to support this point is Lhat forensic laboratories 
have to charge at least five Lo Len times the amount for 
their drug testing services in order to achieve a level of 
quality acceptable for presenLation in the courts. 

On the technical side, there are numerous reasons why 
urine testing cannot be made anywhere ncar fail-safe and 
this in spite of the fac~ that 3 GC/MS confirmation tast is 
being performed on samples which gave a positive result by 
the screening test. I am afraid that the public has been 
given the impression that confirmation testing by the more 
expensive and technically more complex GC/MS procedure makes 
drug tesLing fail-safe. This is not Lhe case, for there are 
a number of technical Dr procedural reasons why even GC/MS 
analysis can be in error. 

What is true, hOl."ver, is thal the overall error rate 
of testing is reduced when two independent tests are 
performed. In particular, GCjMS confirmation addresses the 
possibility of a false positive screening result due to 
immunological cross reactivity. Dut Lhis does not guarantee 
against the occurrence of technical or procedural errors 
during GC/MS analysis. Also, because of their small number, 
even the inclusion of control samples provides no guarantee 
against a low error rate. 
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But unfortunately these are by no means the only 
reasons for false positives by GC/MS. Through hair analysis 
we were able to demonstrate an essentially new class of 
false positives. These may be called evioential false 
positives as distinct from technical false positives. 
Examples of such cases are the inadvertent (or in some ~ases 
even lhe advertent) contamination or mixup of urine 
specimens at the collection site or in the laboratory. 
Thes.e samples obviously will Lesl positive by both lhe 
initial screen and by the GC/MS confirmation technique, even 
though the individual may not be a drug user. 

There are numerous ways that conlamination of specimens 
can occur. particularly in th~ case {)f cocnine, since this 
drug is so ubiquitously present in so,;i,~ty (e.Il., cocaine 
contamination of our currency). By touching certain obje(:ts .,/ 
handled by both drug users and non-users (e.g., doorknobs, 
etc.), lraces of drugs may be transferred to the hands of 
the non-user, and from there Lo lhe urine specimen by 
handlinll lhe inside of Lhe lid of the collecLion jar. There 
cocaine breaks down readily into the metabolite benzoyl 
ecgonine--Lhe subs lance measured in thu GC/MS confirmation 
test. 

Hair analysis does not suffer from such contamination 
problems since hair is thoroughly cleansed before analysis. 
And of course, we can always get n new, idenlical hall­
sample if there is any claim of a specimen mixup or breach 
in the chain of cusLody. This makes hair analysis 
essentially fail-safe in contrast to urinalysis, since a 
fresh, identical urine specimen cannot be obtained at a 
later date. 

Another, even more likely occurrence is the 
contamination of urine specimens in the laboratory by a 
drug-using chemist through the handling of certain types of 
equipment llsed in drug testing (e. g., pi.pet. Lips, etc. \. 
Thi~ possibility is furLher enhanced by the paradoxical facL 
that most drug testing laboratories do not test lheir 
personnel for drug use. And ev~n if laboratories did such 
testing, they would do it too infrequently, and by the 
readily evaded, false negative prone, urine test. fly the 
time a drug-using chemist is id~ntified by urinalysis, many 
evid~ntial false positives could have been generaLed. Thus 
the testing of the testers by essentially eVRsion-proof hair 
analysis should in my opinion be the firsl slep in any drug 
testing program. In any case, many positive urinalysis 
results can be challenged in courl on the basis of the 
ineffective screening of laboratory personnel. 

Another possible source of evidential false positives 
is through Lhe inadvertent ingestion of drinks or food which 
had been spiked with drugs. A $120-billion illicit drug 
trafficking industry may well go Lo such lenglhs in ordfrr to 
discredil a particular urinalysis testing program. Whether 

5 
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an ~ctual occurrence or not, such a scenario is a powerful 
legal defense, known as the "brownie defense." 

While GC/MS analysis of urine specimens cannot identify 
contaminated specimens and inadvertent exposures, hair 
analysis can identify such occurrences. This can be 
achieved simply by looking for evidence of drug use in 
different sections of hair corresponding to different 
periods of time. One-time inadvertent exposure would only 
show up at a particular point in the hair strand and pMrsons 
with contaminated urine specimens would yield negative hair 
results. 

A slightly different problem is a false evidential 
positive resulling from the ingestion of puppy saeds. (An 
amount equaling those in three bagels appears Lo be 
sufficient.) Unlike in urine, the morphine present in poppy 
seeds as used in food does not accumulate in hair in 
sufficienlly high quantities to generate a false evidential 
positive result. This incidentally, is also true for olher 
substances capable of interfering in the initial screen 
through immunological cross reactions. 

It should be noted that the various scenarios ciled 
above are not hypothetical cases but occurrences which we 
were ab:' to demonstrate through hair' analysis. During II,,; 
past. year ,.,e have ,dready bepn able to vindicate p""ple IVho 
had been accused by such false evidential positives. Most 
recently, this occul-red in a court martial of a ~!"rine, in 
spite of the fact that the urinalysis for cocaine had been 
performed by the Navy, lhe undisputed leader in urinalysis 
lesting. (See attachment.) 

Now my crit.icisms of personnel screening programn hasf~d 

on urine (or blood) analysis should not be construed to be 
an at lack on urinalysis per se. Urinalysis and blood 
analysis are fine tests in themselves when applied in their 
proper setting. There is no competition between urinalysis 
(blood analysis) and hair analysis or for lhal maltar with 
electroencephalographic lesting. (i.e., by the Verilas 
instrument). Rather, these different tt~sts are 
comFlimentary and not competing lechnologies. Thus, 
electroencephalographic tesling provides Information about 
impairment at the time of an a~cusalion, whereas urinnlysJs 
is best suited for demonstrating drug use IVlthin the 
immediale past (e.g., post-accident lesting). nair analysis 
provides an evasion-proof, quantitative histori,: overview of 
drug Use and is thus the test Df choice for medical 
diagnosis and the screening of personnal in highly sensilive 
positions. 

Being a more complex lest than urinHlysis, hair 
analysis will cost approximately $50 per SUbstance analyzed. 
It is, therefore, unlikely that hair 'Analysis lVi II be used 
for mass screening purposes. Of course, lVide-scale druK 

6 
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screening even by a fail-safe and efficient detection method 
such as hair analysis is also precluded by legal and ethical 
considerations. In my judgment, hair analysis can readily 
be justified for medical purposes, in testing for cause, in 
the courts, in the criminal justice system 
(probation/parole), or for screening personnel in positions 
affecting pubic safety. 

The problems of urinalysis which make it unsuitable for 
mass drug screening can be summarized 1,y one general 
population statistical argument. To illustrate this 
argt·ment, let us assume that if Oll a nati011wid", basis 
urinalysis could ac~ieve n 95~ accuracy rate and were able 
to identify 5% of the population as drug users (an 
unrealistically high figure because of the many possible 
e~asive maneuvers and narrow wind~w of detection), then out 
of every 100 people tested, we would accuse 5 innocent 
people for every 5 drug users correctly identified. In my 
judgment, such situations result in quite an unfavorable risk/benefit 
ratio. A similar argument was recently made by Dr. George 
Lundberg, the edi~or of the Journal of the American Medical 
Association. (See"J"A~lA, Dec. 1986, pg. 3001). 

One has only to remember how adversely the tourist 
industry was affected b.y the far lower probability of a 
terrorist attack to reco'gnize that the public will not 
tolerate even a low probability of casualties in the "war on 
drugs." Such casualties, of course, can be effectively 
eliminated if hair analysis were to be used as a 
confirmation test for disputed urinalysis results. 

With such a "safety net" in place, the stressed 
relationships between management and apprehensive employees 
could be greatly reduced. The ability of employees to now 
pr~ve their innocence in court through hair analysis, and 
thus win expensive damage suits, should stimulate management 
into providing such a safety net while they are in the 
process of rethinking their drug testing policies. However, 
even with a "safety net" in place, urinalysis still poses a 
threat to the public by being unable to meet its primary 
objective, i.e., guaranteeing the drug-free status of that 
small segment of the work forc~ for which drug testing can 
be Justified--those in positions affecting public safety. 

The many problems of urinalysis have led me to abandon 
my own initial support for wide-scale drug screening at the 
workplace. I supported such policies initially hecause 
testing and the subsequent threat of unemployment seemed tu 
be an effective means for addressing the demand side of 
the drug problem. But, then, it can even be argued that 
unemploying addicted individuals has potentially serious 
drawbacks, since this would tend to turn such people to 
crime in order to support their drug habits--particularly 
drug dealing. Closing the vicious cycle in such a manne~ 
results in a furth~r escalation of the drug problem. 

7 
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Thus the choices that we are left with at the demand 
side of the problem appear to be education and 
rehabilitation. In particular, we need to focus an more 
effective and more economical means for rehabilitation. 
Critical to such advances in drug abuse rehabilitation are 
improvements in diagnosis, patient monitoring, and objective 
evaluations of treatment outcome. Hair analysis appears 
uniquely suited for these purposes. Unfortunately, 
rehabilitation workers have been singularly reluctant in 
adopting objective chemical test ina for evaluating and 
monitoring of their patients. However, perhaps the time for 
change has come. Darly Kosloski, A.C.S.W., in his article, 
"HMO and PPO: Future Trends in Add ict ion liealtheare (1'. S . 
.Journal of Drug and Alcohol Dependp.llcv, Apri I, J 987) u;':-ges 
behavioral health professionals "to become betLer 
evaluators, screeners, and diagnosticians," and "more truly 
objective and uncompromising in (patient) assessments." He 
urges the development of programs which force "therapists to 
be more accountable for treatment, planning, and progress." 
The pressures imposed by DRG's, HMO's and rro's on the 
behavioral health care industry provide the means for 
achieving these long overdue improvements. I urge Congress 
to be active in facilitating these new opportunities in 
rehabilitation, for drug testing in the medical setting can 
easily be justified in view of the obvious benefits to the 
patient and to Lhe nation. 

8 



214 

A hair follICle absorbs drugs such 
as cocaine and heroin along WIth 
nutnents from lhe body's bloOO 
supply, After extracting drug 
traces from a saction of hair, 
chemists can determine the 
amount and frequency of 
exposure by mixing the molecules 
WIth radioactIVe materials and 
antibodies Since hair grows 
approximately an inch a mcnth. 
SCIentiSts can conslruct a record 
of drug use or abstinence gOlflg 
back mcnths or years, depending 
on hair length 

Source Werner Baumgartner 
I>ophYSlcal Chemist at Wadswonh 
Veterans MmlnlstratlOn Hosprtalln 
Los Ang€les 

locon:U{l9 blood . - .. , 
?Wgoing blood 

Reprinted with permission from The Orange County <California) 
Register, Monday, February 9, 1987. 

Figure 1: Note: hair grows approximately one half-inch 
per month, not one inch per month as stated above. 



215 

- /. "' 

to u 

FIG. 2 : Correlation between self-reported drug use and drug content of hair. 

Scatter in data is due to inaccuracies in self-reporting. 
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HAIR L£llCTll (Of I'M" ~OOT) 

FIG. 3: Distribution of heroin along a strand of hair of a person using 14 bags per day 

of heroin 20 months ago, reducing use to.2. bags per day within the last 4 

months. 
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UNITED STATES MARINE cffiPS 
regal Se~ices SUpport Team "En 
legal Service Support Section 

15 April 1987 

1st Force Service Support Group, FMFPac 
Camp Pendleton, California 92055-5702 

W. A. Baullgartner. Ph.D. 
Nuclear Medicine 
Veteran's Administration 
V.A. Medical Center West IDs Angeles 
Wilshire & Sawtelle Boulevards 
IDs Angeles, CA 90073 

Re: United States v. LCpl Steven t-l. pi=lo, U.S.M.C. 

Dear Dr. Baurrgartner: 

This letter is to thank you for the assistance that you rendered in the 
court-martial of my client LCpl Pi=lo, ~lhich was tried here at Camp 
Pendleton, California on 6 Febraury and 6 March 1987. 

As you recall, LCpl Piccolo was wrongly accused by the Navy urinalysis program 
of using cocaine. 

After interviewi.ng several witnesses who all stated unequivocally that LCpl 
piccolo was not a dmg user, I contacted }-Uu and requested that you analyze a 
sample of his hair. Your analysis showed that there was no cocaine present in 
the hair, which confirmed my investigation. I then prepared to go trial and 
contest the case. 

The prosecution proceeded under the theory that their urinalysis program was 
infallible. The chief prosecution witness testifed that his lab perforrred 
approximatley 600,000 urinalyses per year. He further testified ttat although 
neither he nor any of the other workers in his lab could specifically remember 
the urine sample submitted by LCpI Piccolo, that it must have been done 
properly, because the system does not make mistakes. 

The system was described as roughly the following. A urinalysis was conducted. 
LCpl Piccolo was one of the many Marines who lined up outside the restroom near 
the cauJ;Eny office and who went in two at a time to fill a specimen bottle with 
urine. 

The bottles are made of plastic with a screw on metal cap. It is necessary to 
hold the cap in one hand while urinating into the bottle. This rrocedure was 
not performed in a clinical setting, am there l'lere plenty of opportunities for 
particulate contamination of the specimen. 

Testimony, of the First Sergeant, in fact established that there were 6 known 
drug users in the unit at the time of the urinalysis, from which contamination 
might have occured. 

The cap was placed back on the bottle by LCpI piccolo and it was placed in a 
box next to other bottles. The bottles were not sealed in any manner. 
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The box was eventually sealed aoo shipped off to the drug lab. 

'l'estirrony at trial elicited the facts that the Navy Drug lab \~hich performed 
these tests, is staffed pr:ilrarily with civilians. 'Ihat the civilians are never 
tested for drug use. That security was lax. And that there \<,6.S no uniformity 
in the packaging of urine samples. 

In short there were plenty of opportunities for either deliberate or 
inadvertant particulate contamination. 

The First Sergeant further testified, that the 6 knoIm drug users that worked 
and lived in the imnEdiate viC"inity of LCpI pi=lo, did not like him. They 
disliked him because he was such a squared-away Marine. They thought that he 
was a "Narc". 

In other words, he would have been the perfect target for an act of subterfuge. 

At trial, witness after witness tcok the stand to test.ify that LCpl piccolo had 
good military character, was not the type of person to use drugs and that he 
was trustworthy and honest. !\hen asked if they would believe LCpl Piccolo 
under oath, .the witnesses to a man replied yes. 

LCpl Piccolo took th~ stand and testified that he has never used cocaine. 

You greatly assisted me in the preparation of this case. You also testified as 
an expert, to the possibilities of particulate contamination and how that could 
give a false positive reading. 

Ideally the analysis of hair should be used as a safety net. \"Ie won this 
trial, with your help, but the important point is that we should never have 
been forced into trial. 

LCpl Piccolo maintained his innocence, this innocence was proven scientifically 
and also in a court of law. HONever, even though he won at trial, he also lost 
to an extent. He was forced to put his name aoo reputation on the line. His 
unit deployed to Okina"a, Japan, yet he was forced to remain back here at camp 
Pendleton awaiting his trial. While we all pay lip service to the phrase 
innocent until proven guilty, the reality is that once you are accused of drug 
use everyone assllllEs that you are guilty. LCpI pi=lo had to bear this stigma 
as well as the ordeal of a trial. The shame is that. his prosecution W?.5 an 
exercise in futility. 

Prior to the beginning of the trial, I informed the Commanding Officer that 
LCpl Piccolo had come up clean on a hair analysis and asked him to withdraw the 
charges. Unfortunately, the Commanding Officer had not heard of hair analysis. 
He had received briefings on urinalyisis and proceeded with that in which he 
had been trained. 

The system currently has some buffers built into it, which is a recognition 
that out of 600,000 samples, there might be an =casional mistake made. Hair 
analysis can serve as a final safety net. 

As a defense counsel I have seen countless urinalysis cases. Since the hair 
analysis has been made available, LCpl piccolo is the only one '''ho wanted to be 
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tested. In other words the i~t can be vindicated by it, while the guilty 
will not subject themselves to it. . 

Hair analysis can serve as a safety net against mistake and it can also serve 
as a safety net against subterfuge. 

Today we are more and more vulner:able to subterfuge. It is not inconceivable 
to imagine a disenchanted subordinate or sane outside agent spiking the food or 
drink of an American servicanan. That serviceman would then be reToved fran 
his job and either punished or discharged. Hair analysis can show that a 
person is not a la.J level user, and that showing can uncover the cases that 
involve subterfuge. 

I again wish to thank you for your help. 

I also intend to use hair analysis as a prosecutor. It offers great premise, 
when there is a problem with a urinalysis chain of custody or with a person who 
has been evading urinalysis testing~ 
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Statement about Technical Aspects of Hair Analysis 

Linus Pauling 

Linus Pauling Institute of Science and Medicine 

440 Page M~ll Road, Palo Alto, California 94306 

I am at present Research Professor in the Linus Pauling 

Institute of Science and Medicine. I have served as 

Professor of Chemistry in the California Institute of 

Technology, University of California in Berkeley and San Diego, 

Oxford University, and Stanford University, where I am now 

Professor Emeritus. 

I have received many awards for my contributions to 

chemistry, including the Nobel Prize in Chemistry for 1954, 

the National Academy of Sciences (U.S.A.) Medal in Chemical 

Sciences, the Davy Medal of the Royal Society of London, 

the Medal of the City of Paris, the Lomonosov Medal of the 

U.S.S.R. Academy of Sciences, and several medals and prizes 

of the American Chemical Society: the ACS Award in Pure 

Chemistry (1931), the Priestley Medal, the Nichols Medal, 

the Theodore William Richards Medal, the J. Willard Gibbs 

Medal, the Gilbert Newton Lewis Medal, the Linus pauling Medal, 

and the ACS Award in Chemical Education (1987). 

I have had several decades of experience in the field 

of quantitative chemical analysis. This experience has 

included work on urinalysis by the methods of gas chromatography 
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and mass spectrometry. I have also done much work in the 

field of immunochemistry, but I have not had experience with 

radioimmunoassay methods, although I am familiar with them. 

It is my opinion that the radioimmunoassay of hair 

(RIAH), which was invented by Dr. Werner A. Baumgartner 

and his associates in 1977, has very great value for the 

study of the amount of drugs in the human body. It is, 

I believe, far more reliable than urinalysis. A sample of 

hair can be washed and cleaned before it is analyzed, so 

that the possibility of contamination is greatly reduced, 

compared with that for a sample of urine. Reasonably reliable 

quantitative determinations of the amount of a substance 

in the body can be obtained by analysis of the hair. By 

analysis of segments of a sample of hair at different 

distances from the root, the amount of the substance present 

in the body at the time that the sample was obtained and a 

earlier times, weeks or months earlier, can be determined. 

A check on the analysis can be made by use of another ~ample, 

even taken at a later date, with use of the rate at which hair 

grows, about ~ inch per month for. hair of the human head. 

For these and other reasons it is my opinion that 

radioimmunoassay of hair is a far more preferable method of 

studying drugs in the human body than urinalysis. 

11 May 1987 
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Mr. SIKORSKI. Thank you, Dr. Baumgartner. 
First of all, in looking over your testimony as submitted, there 

are a couple of points where I think right away the hair analysis 
would be helpful. 

You talk about a price war looming for people competing for 
these urinalysis test contracts. You talk on page 4 of the attach­
ment of laboratories, one of the country's largest testing laborato­
ries offering a screen of a panel of six illicit drugs for $27, which 
would include the GC/MS confirmation test, chain of custody pro­
cedures, and a commitment of defending the results in court. 

You also make a point that in contrast to this $27, the same labo­
ratory offers an analysis of one commonly used pharmaceutical 
agent for the standard fee of between $20 and $30, depending on its 
volume, and that includes no confirmation test with GC/MS (Gas 
chromatography/mass spectrometry) or chain of custody or defense 
in a court. 

So you conclude now laboratories may provide these drug screens 
as a public service or recoup their losses in some way, but the fact 
remains that this low price, when taken on a nationwide basis 
must inevitably lead to a deterioration in the overall quality of 
such testing. You stand by those comments? 

Dr. BAUMGARTNER. Yes. I have discussed this problem with some 
of the major laboratories, and they certainly feel there is no way 
that they can offer such a service on an economic basis and survive 
if they were not involved in some other business. 

I believe that quality and price are related, and of course, in a 
forensic laboratory tests of the same kind that have to stand up in 
court are offered at at least 5 to 10 times the price. So I think it is 
a crucial point. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. I think it is, too, and that is why I wanted to raise 
it, and I thank you. 

The second point that you raised, page 7 of your attachment, you 
said that if on a nationwide basis urinalysis could achieve a 95 per­
cent accuracy rate, similar to Dr. Miike's hypothetical example, 
then one would incorrectly identify 5 percent of the population as 
drug users. It is an unrealistically high figure, incidentally, because 
of the many possible ways to evade and the narrow window of de­
tection. Then out of every 100 people tested, we would accuse five 
innocent people for every five drug users correctly identified. 

We have a risk/benefit ratio then of 5 to 5, an unacceptable level 
in your opinion, and mine as well, and you have others, such as Dr. 
George Lundberg of the Journal of American Medical Association, 
who have confirmed this risk/benefit ratio or innocent/ guilt ratio. 

Dr. BAUMGARTNER. Yes. It is a risk/benefit ratio that is totally 
unacceptable. We are looking, as Dr. Miike pointed out, for a 
needle in the haystack. That is the problem. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. But every time we pick up a needle, we really have 
a piece of hay. For every needle we fmd, we have an innocent indi­
vidual. 

Dr. BAUMGARTNER. That is right, and the impression has been 
given that GC/MS protects against all possibilities of false posi­
tives, and this is totally, absolutely incorrect. Our experience over 
the years has shown repeatedly that innocent people have been im­
plicated by false positives that have been monitored by the so-

76-899 0 - 87 - 8 
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called confirmation technique, and we have been wondering how 
this comes about, and of course, ijIere are several answers for this. 
Of course, one is that even GC/MS can go wrong. It is well known 
by experts that there are ghost peaks which result from a previous 
sample having gone through and adhering to certain parts of the 
equipment, such as the septum, but more a likely cause of error is 
that the testers in laboratories are not tested, and this is quite dif­
ferent from testing laboratory proficiency. If you have a drug using 
chemist, there could be enough cc.caine on the hands of such a 
person that by such a person handling a piece of equipment, gener­
ally called a pipette, you pick this thing up and then you go into 
the urine sample. That urine sample can become contaminated. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. This is not hypothetical. You have experienced this 
in your own lab at one point? 

Dr. BAUMGARTNER. Absolutely. As a matter of fact, a couple of 
weeks ago I was brought in to defend a Marine, a Lance Corporal, 
who was innocently accused, although the GC/MS confirmation 
test showed him to be positive, and we worked out a number of pos­
sibilities. 

It is not only that such an occurrence (i.e. false positive) could 
have arisen in the laboratory, but these people do end up in 
strange places on Saturday nights, and people may actually engage 
in some kind of subversive activity (e.g. spike drinks). This fear is 
also shared by police undercover agents, and there are other sce­
narios of how you can get false positives. 

If you handle equipment, if you are in the vicinity of drug users 
and you handle common equipment; even the door knobs may be 
containing traces of cocaine. Another person then touches this door 
lmob, say, at the rest room facility where urines are being collect­
ed, and then you unscrew the urine jar, you put your finger on the 
inside, and if it is cocaine, for instance (which is, of course, widely 
dispersed and our currency is contaminated as we know) you put 
your finger on the inside of the lid and you screw it down, then you 
can get a contamination of the urine with cocaine; there it breaks 
down readily into benzoylecgonine, the metabolyte, which is then 
tested by GC/MS. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. You mentioned in your attachment there are a lot 
of ways, cocaine contamination can occur, e.g., currency, door 
knobs, drug using chemists, the ingestion of food and drink that 
has been spiked with drugs, the so-called "brownie defense," inges­
tion of poppy seeds. 

Dr. BAUMGARTNER. I should mention that hair analysis can dis­
tinguish between such occurrence because you can go back in time 
and see that the person has not been a drug user at all, and if it 
was a spiked drink, then it would show only up as a tiny little blip, 
in the hair and so on. So we won the acquittal of the Lance Corpo­
ral in the Marines, and I should remind you this Lance Corporal 
had been tested by the best urine testing laboratory in the country 
i.e. by one of the Navy laboratories. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. And part of your attachment is a letter from the 
defense team that we have in the record. 

Dr. BAUMGARTNER. That is right. That we have a safety net func­
tion is one of our primary objectives. Hair analysis should be ap­
plied as a safety net to protect the innocent in order to reduce the 
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stress between employer and employees which arises from drug 
testing policies. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Let me get into that quickly. Could you tell the 
subcommittee about the various field tests where hair analyses 
have been completed and are currently underway? You have field 
tests. You have a DOJ grant. 

Dr. BAUMGARTNER. Right. We had a grant from the Navy to 
evaluate clients in their rehabilitation program. This was very 
useful. 

I should also mention the point Dr. Miike made about hair being 
possibly more invasive. That is not so. In a preemployment test, we 
would only be measuring, say, the last 1 or 2 months of the hair. If 
a person has long hair, such as a woman, it may go back 3 or 4 
years. We would not need to go that far back in time, but only as 
far as the last 2 months. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. How do you do that? You just do not.go any fur­
ther back or the hair is not taken? 

Dr. BAUMGARTNER. You would just simply cut a small section of 
hair. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. You would just take the tip? 
Dr. BAUMGARTNER. You would take 1 inch near the root, for in­

stance, and so you would have a "window" of 2 months rather 
then, of course, 2 to 3 years. 

Anybody that can abstain from drug use for 2 months, I think, is 
not an addict and is not a threat. 

The same situation pertains to marijuana. I will get to your ques­
tion in a second. With marijuana, we have 20 million marijuana 
users, and I would guess that a sizable fraction, maybe a quarter or 
so, at UCLA may be using marijuana. You cannot unemploy every­
body that shows a positive for marijuana, but the person who 
smokes 5 to 10 joints a day certainly is a hazard to the public, par­
ticularly if the individuals flies a plane or drives a school bus and 
so on. 

So with hair analysis, we can distinguish between the heavy, 
medium or light user or the nonusers, and I certainly think that 
we can easily pick up a person that smokes 5 to 10 joints and obvi­
ously is a hazard. 

Concerning the field study, this was one of the field studies that 
we did with the Navy to get a retrospective record of a person's 
drug use. There is a lot of denial. We also did a field study with the 
noted forensic psychopharmacologist at UCLA, Dr. Siegel. Dimin­
ished capacity claims are a very important defense these days. You 
rob a bank, and just before you rob a bank, you take a little bit of 
cocaine. If you get caught, you claim that you are a compulsive 
user and could not help yourself, and instead of getting a long jail 
sentence, you are out there in a rehab program. 

But with hair analysis, there you can go back in time and clearly 
establish whether somebody has been a heavy user or an occasional 
user. So there we are not dealing with an invasion of privacy issue. 

In the Navy treatment program we wanted to know how h~avy a 
person's drug use has been, whether they were heavily addicted 
people, therefore in a high-risk category, or whether they were just 
playing around and therefore could be easily rehabilitated. The 
same thing. is true with the National Institute of Justice in their 
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field study parolees and probationers are tested randomly about six 
times a month, and even with such a stringent surveillance pro­
gram, evasion is still readily achieved, by "flushing", substituting 
samples, and so on. 

However hair analysis is essentially evasion proof. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. You are proposing hair analysis at the end of the 

testing line? 
Dr. BAUMGARTNER. Well, it becomes cost effective by simply test­

ing such populations only every three months rather than six 
times a month. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. In your conversation with me and in your state­
ment, you are not supportive of wide scale testing, but only testing 
for specific purposes, safety, security kinds of situations. Is that 
correct? 

Dr. BAUMGARTNER. Yes. I think it makes no sense to test your 
secretary. If she is ineffective because she is on drugs, that is easily 
established. You know, you simply remove her from her employ­
ment for incompetency. But if you are driving a school bus or 
flying planes, I do not think that you should take the risk of 
having a heavy drug user in control of public safety; and preem­
ployment testing by urinalysis just does not identify these people. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Let me ask you on the hair test, have studies been 
done to determine the way that different factors, such as race, sex, 
diet, et cetera, might affect the growth rate of hair and the way in 
which it retains drugs or drug metabolytes? 

Dr. BAUMGARTNER. Yes. We looked at those variables, and there 
are no major differences in growth rate and retention of drugs by 
hair. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Are there any factors that make a difference? 
Dr. BAUMGARTNER. Not that we know at this point. You see, 

what we have done so far is we have correlated self reports with 
what shows up in hair, and of course, the variabilities in self-re­
porting are rather large: poor memory; in most cases people do not 
know what the purity of the drug was et cetera. So I am sure there 
will be subtle differences, but when it comes to subdividing people 
into heavy, medium and light users, into those categories, then we 
do not have a problem at all. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Is this anything like looking at rings on a tree? 
Dr. BAUMGARTNER. It is a metaphor. Yes, that would be approxi­

mately similar. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. How about bleaching, dying or otherwise treating 

the hair affecting the analyais or altering the amount of drug 
which would be detectable by hair analysis? 

Dr. BAUMGARTNER. We have looked at these parameters, and 
there is no real way of escaping detection by applying these meth­
ods because it is easily identified, too, when hair has been so treat­
ed. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. And you make a point in your statement, and the 
statement by Linus Pauling that is attached as well, you can wash 
and cleanse the hair to remove any contaminants before the test­
ing, which, of course, cannot be done with urine. 

Dr. BAUMGARTNER. Yes. 
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Mr. SIKORSKI. In some ways hair analysis is less intrusive than 
urinalysis or blood analysis. However, because hair analysis can 
trace an individual's history of past actions, it too is intrusive. 

Dr. BAUMGARTNER. However, as an example, you can test the 
hair of a mother that will go back, you know, all three trimesters, 
nine months, to see what the severity, the quantity of drug expo­
sure was, first, second and third trimester, and then to establish 
how that affected the fetal, as well as postnatal development of a 
child. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. That is an interesting example because it seems to 
;mderscore what Dr. Miike was concerned with. There was unsuc­
cessful prosecution, I believe, in California a few months ago for 
child abuse based on drug use during pregnancy. Is that an intru­
sive use of hair analysis, to go back and get proof? 

Dr. BAUMGARTNER. Well, there are legal issues. Once drug use 
has been identified in the mother, at that point it is important for 
medicall'easons to establish what the severity of the drug use has 
been. It is also important for the pediatricians to know that, and in 
some cases, of course, adoption agencies are also very interested to 
know whether this will be a handicapped child. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. The controls would have to be on the use for which 
the analysis is made. 

Dr. BAUMGARTNER. Yes. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. The distinguished member of the full committee in 

the House and a valuable member of the subcommittee is here, and 
I know he is juggling, like all of us, three different schedules, and I 
want to recognize him for a statement and any questions he might 
have. 

Mr. GILMAN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and I regret that we do 
have another hearing on at the same time that I am going to have 
to go to, and I want to thank the gentleman from Minnesota, our 
distinguished chairman, for holding this series of hearings on a 
very important issue. 

As our Nation's largest employer, our Federal Government is 
going to have to take a leading role in the fight against drug abuse 
in the work place, and I know that many of our employers are very 
much concerned, particularly in sensitive positions. We have seen 
that no segment of our society is immune to the effects of drug or 
alcohol abuse, whether they be the rich or the poor, the suburban 
or the inner city, black or white. All have been touched by the ef­
fects of drug abuse one way or another. 

However, even though strong measures are necessary to fight the 
debilitating problems, we are going to have to be cognizant of its 
impact on individual rights, and it is for that reason that your 
hearings are so important in this committee. 

I commend you, Mr. Chairman, for examining this very conten­
tious issue. I know that as a result of these hearings, we may be 
able to come out with some practical resolution of some problems 
confronting us as at the same time we try to make certain that we 
do whatever we can to rid· our society of drug- abuse, and particu~ 
larly in areas where there are sensitive and safety considerations. 
Whether it be urinalysis or hair analysis or whatever we utilized, I 
hope that we can find a satisfactory resolution as we continue to do 
battle with this scourge on the· society. 
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Thank you, Mr. Chairman, for permitting me to intervene at this 
time. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Thank you. 
The gentleman from New York raises the concern eloquently 

and a lot more briefly than I did, and I commend you for doing 
that. I am going to make sure that the record is open so that if any 
member or the staffs desire to insert matters into the record or to 
question the witnesses, we will have some time yet to do that out­
side of the hearing. 

Thank you. 
Dr. Baumgartner, many drug testing experts support the poten­

tial of hair analysis, but they all say it is in development. Is that 
true? 

Dr. BAUMGARTNER. No. We have been in this business now, not 
business, but in the research, for ten years. Relative to the deficien­
cies of urinalysis, we are ready to make a very important contribu­
tion, the most important contribution being to protect the innocent 
and, two, to apply hair analysis where it counts most, namely in 
rehabilitation. Detection is only the first step. Rehabilitation is, 
you know, the most important issue that I think confronts our 
nation with regard to drug use. 

With rehabilitation we have the problem that there is a $40 bil­
lion drug rehab industry. Some people call it "the other drug busi­
ness," and this industry needs to meet its obligations by developing 
more effective, objective measures of outcome, and hair analysis 
will be a very important tool in that area. This is why we have 
been around for ten years. 

There is an example on the last page of my testimony. We have 
a graph where we see a person that has been on 16 bags of heroin/ 
day. Twenty months ago she was in a rehab program, and in a step 
like fashion you can see a decrease of use to two bags/day during a 
20-month period. If you had used urinalysis, you would, at best, if 
she had not evaded detection, just simply think that the person is 
continuing to use. You would only know that she is using, but you 
would not recognize that she is truly improving. 

So that kind of information, I think, is vital to improving our re­
habilitation programs and also to steer the public to programs that 
work and those that do not work. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. That is an excellent point. Has hair analysis been 
approved by the FDA yet? 

Dr. BAUMGARTNER. We do not need FDA approval since we are 
using the kits which are used for radioimmunoassay procedures of 
urine. We are simply applying it to a different specimen, and we 
have developed special extraction techniques. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. This technique is interpretative, and the question 
then becomes: can you have enough highly trained individuals who 
can make the appropriate interpretations or are we setting our­
selves up for another juncture for potential error? 

Dr. BAUMGARTNER. Well, what we are doing now with the sup­
port of venture capital, we are setting up the Psychemedics Corpo­
ration, and there we will be training, of course, people to become 
experts in hair analysis. We also have a clinical program, and we 
will also be licensing the technology to any laboratory that wants 
to use the technology. 
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I should also complete your previous question. For legal pur­
poses, we need to develop all of the confirmation techniques for 
hair analysis, such as GC/MS and that phase is now in progress. In 
the next couple of months we should have completed that work as 
well so that hair analysis will also be available for identifying drug 
users in these highly critical positions. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. One of the criticisms of the testing program and 
some of the current tests surround the idea of designer drugs. We 
have known that cocaine and marijuana are the two that are going 
to be tested automatically. Others, drugs, such as barbiturates 
others could get approval for testing from HHS, but the point has 
been made that you can get around those with designer drugs. 

Is hair analysis as easy to get around with designer drugs as 
urine analysis or do we not know? 

Dr. BAUMGARTNER. As I said, all evasive maneuvers that I can 
think of that work for urinalysis do not work for hair analysis. We, 
currently, with hair analysis can measure PCP, heroine, morphine, 
marijuana, cocaine and quaaludes. The reason that the menu is so 
small is that it reflects the difficulty of obtaining the necessary 
funds over the last ten years. This is a general problem with any 
innovative, new science. There is an in-built bias in the funding 
agencies to support new work; this is another topic of discussion, 
and I do not want to get into that now. 

But the "menu" we want to expand: we would like to go into, of 
course, monitoring for industrial pollutants, carcinogens, and also 
to monitor the compliance with psychoactive medication, such as 
antipsychotic agents, antidepressants, to establish whether people 
who are outside of psychiatric hospitals are safe to look after them­
sEihres. There has been, a case, a very well known case, where a 
person has ceased taking his antipsychotic agent and switched to a 
propsychotic agent, such as PCP, and in the process or, rather, as a 
consequence of this change ended up killing a number of people. 

So there are many applications for hair analysis outside of the 
drug testing area. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Dr. Baumgartner, you have been, as the other wit­
nesses have been, extremely helpful to the subcommittee, and we 
will have perhaps questions submitted to you. I think we went 
through the ones I had, but there might be others, and we ask that 
you submit the answers for the record and anything else that 
would be helpful for the record. 

Again, thank you for your excellent testimony. 
Dr. BAUMGARTNER. Thank you very much for your interest in 

our work. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Our next witness is Mark Waple, partner in. the 

law firm of Hutchens and Waple. Mr. Waple is an expert in the 
area of drug testing litigation and has defended over 500 adminis­
trative and criminal urinalysis cases. Mr. Waple is here today, and 
we thank him for unselfishly sharing his expertise and time and 
resources with the subcommittee for the purposes of analyzing po­
tential for litigation inherent in the administration's current drug 
testing program. 

Mr. Waple, good morning. I know you flew in this morning. We 
thank you for your assistance. 
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STATEMENT OF MARK WAPLE, ESQ., HUTCHENS & WAFLE 

Mr. W APLE. Thanks for the invitation. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. We have your testimony that will be placed in the 

record. 
Would you care to summarize for us in any way you would like, 

and then we can get into some questions? 
Mr. W APLE. Yes, sir. 
I would like to start by being certain that the written testimony 

that I have provided is really just a summary. When I received 
Congressman Sikorski's invitation last week, I was in the middle of 
picking a jury on a first degree murder case, and the judge let me 
go from North Carolina to come up here today. So this is really a 
brief summary. I did not mean it in any way as being really com­
prehensive, but there are some things in here that perhaps would 
help the committee. 

For approximately 5 years now I have had the honor really of 
representing a considerable amount of U.S. Armed Forces person­
nel in the southeastern region of the United States, and they have 
been active duty Army, active duty Marine, Navy, Coast Guard and 
Air Force. As I put in the written testimony, their occupational 
specialties have ranged from an infantryman, nurses' military 
police, air traffic controllers, and physicians, and other professional 
people. 

The drug testing laboratories that we have had some experience 
with have included Department of Defense drug testing laborato­
ries, state and federal contract drug testing laboratories, commer­
cial drug testing laboratories, and the severity of the adverse 
action that was being taken against these approximate four to 500 
individuals ranged from the possibility of incarceration all the way 
down to letters of reprimand and loss of employment. 

In nearly every case, the allegation was use of the controlled su.b­
stance rather than the more traditional drug type offense, such as 
possession, sale, distribution or manufacture. Ninety-five percent of 
these cases, and these are estimates, the urine which eventually al­
legedly tested positive for a controlled substance was taken from 
the individual randomly rather than through a search warrant or 
the other traditional legal processes. 

Only in a very few cases were the urine specimens taken as a 
result of a probable cause or a reasonable suspicion following a 
mishap, such as a vehicular accident. In otr4er words, the vast ma­
jority of these cases were these individuals were required to pro­
vide a urine specimen because their Social Security account 
number was taken out of the hat. 

In trying to prepare this information for you, I thought back and 
found that it was interesting at least to me that in approximately 
90 percent of these cases, these were individuals who had never 
been tested positive for a controlled substance before and had, in 
fact, tested negative on many prior occasions. I indicate in the writ­
ten testimony that most of these individuals had at least two or 
three prior negative test results. 

Aithough I have not kept specific data over the past 5 years, it 
is my opinion that in at least 75 percent of all of these cases, and I 
am talking about 75 percent of approximately 500 cases, there were 
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legal or scientific irregularities which substantially affected the re­
liability of the allegation that the individual in question had, in 
fact, used a controlled substance. 

So what I have done or what I have attempted to do for you is to 
identify some of the more commonly recurring legal or scientific ir­
regularities which I have experienced. I have developed, quite 
frankly, a check list. Every time I sit down with a new case, I have 
about a 90-item check list that I go through with the toxicologist 
that I consult with as well as my clients. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Would you be willing to share that check list with 
the subcommittee? 

Mr. W APLE. I did not bring one with me. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Would you consider sharing it with us? I know it 

might be something that you consider part of your technique and 
expertise, but if you could protect it appropriately and share as 
best you can, the fact that there are 80 or 90 things is something 
that we should appreciate, and to the extent we can get those, it 
would be helpful. 

Mr. WAPLE. Fine. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Thank you. 
Mr. W APLE. What I have attempted to do here is to take those 80 

or 90, and that is 80 or 90 different legal, procedural or scientific or 
evidentiary problems, not all scientific problems by any means, and 
I have categorized them here in this talking paper and this written 
testimony into eight general problem areas. 

The first is one which I understand is not before the committee 
today. That is whether the specimen was taken in a constitutional­
ly permissible manner. 

The second problem area is whether the test results were derived 
from nonspecific drug tests, such as the immunoassays and the 
EMITS. 

The third general area is whether the test results were supported 
with the requisite supporting chain of custody. 

Fourth is whether the testing techniques that were used in the 
individual's case were those techniques that have now been accept­
ed in the American scientific community. 

The fifth is where the test results contain supporting quality con­
trol data. 

Sixth, whether the test results have been properly interpreted by 
a competent person. 

Whether the test results have concentration levels consistent 
with either passive inhilation or passive or unknowing ingestion of 
the drug. 

And, finally, whether the test results could be false positives. 
Then I have listed some frequently recurring procedural prob­

lems that I thought were important at least to bring to your atten­
tion. I have had many cases, and this is just basics here, where the 
individual's Social Security number was completely wrong. That is 
obviously one of the first things we want to do. I have seen them 
transpose. I have seen Social Security account numbers of one indi­
vidual attributed to another individual. That obviously creates seri­
ous problems with regards to the validity of the identification proc­
ess. 
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There have been several cases where there are inconsistent test 
results between the field screening test, that is, the presumptive 
screening test, and the confirmatory test. Most of those confirmato­
ry tests in the past 3 years have been by GC/MS rather than any 
other type of test, but the point I am making there is that in one 
urine specimen it would test negative and be confirmed positive. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Why would that happen? I thought negative tests 
were never screened again. 

Mr. W APLE. Procedurally that is what is supposed to happen. I 
have experienced cases where the supervisor made the determina­
tion to overrule that procedure. For example, the individual would 
test negative, but the supervisor takes the position that they have 
a strong suspicion that the screening test is wrong, send it forward 
and have it tested by the confirmatory test. It would be in those 
kinds of cases. It is basically a failure to follow the normal routine. 

Because most of the urine specimens are collected and shipped, 
confusion in the mailing process, confusion with registration num­
bers has been a problem. 

Item number four that I have listed in the written testimony I 
thilJ.k is important because I see that it is partially addressed in 
the guidelines that were mailed to me to take a look at. It has been 
my experience that it is not uncommon for there to be a great deal 
of confusion concerning the quantity or the volume of the urine. 
My experience has been that 60 milliliters of urine is what is the 
desired volume. I see in the material I received it is the same. 

Normally 60 milliliters of urine is the preferred amount, and in 
some cases the indiv)dual simply cannot provide that volume, and 
this creates confusion over what the proper disposition of that spec­
imen is. That is to say: should the specimen be kept and the indi­
vidual return later, which creates the problem of a specimen laying 
around without enough urine in it which could be contaminated, 
practical joke by another employee or someone could take place, or 
should the individual or that employee's specimen be destroyed and 
the employee be required to come back and provide a total 60 milli­
liter volume? 

The confusion is to the disadvantage of the employee as well as 
the employer. 

I have had several cases involving officer clients, aviators in par­
ticular, in my memory, where the specimen bottles were acciden­
tally dropped, accidentally contaminated, dropped into a latrine, 
dropped on a bathroom floor, creating confusion in how the collec­
tion process is to take place thereafter. 

I have experienced cases where there were discrepancies between 
the presumptive screening test, either the RIA, the EMIT and the 
GC/MS. For example, I have experienced cases where the individ­
ual's urine specimen would test positive for marijuana by the pre­
sumptive screen test, with a concentration level of, say, 150 nano­
grams per milliliter, and later test positive on the confirmatory 
test with a concentration of more than 150 nanograms per mil, and 
I think most of the toxicologists that J have consulted with and 
who assist me in our cases agree that the concentration levels 
should decrease as time passes through degradation, and what you 
have there is some disagreement between the presumptive test and 
the confirmatory test. 
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I have had tests reported out as positive where the internal qual­
ity controls at the drug testing laboratory have failed, obviously 
raising questions concerning the accuracy or the reliability of 
either the presumptive or confirmatory test. 

I think Item 8 concerns me more than anything on this list. It 
has not been uncommon in my experience for a particular drug 
testing lab to fail to follow their own standard operating proce­
dures for equipment maintenance, data interpretation regarding 
retention times, mass ratios, mean ratios, and instead, to substitute 
a judgment call that as positive test result is close enough. I am 
certainly familiar with the phrase "close enough for government 
work." 

The point I am trying to make there is that when your require­
ments and your guidelines or if they are implemented, that the 
drug testing laboratories, whether they are government labs, mili­
tary labs, contract, commercial labs, there seems to be a tendency 
to substitute judgment for requirements, and I am simply bringing 
that to your attention. 

The ninth item has to do with the problem of the internal chain 
of custody within a drug testing laboratory. It has been my experi­
ence that internally, within the drug testing laboratory, particular­
ly labs that are doing high-volume testing, that there is an inatten­
tion to detail and a tendency to rush everything up, and the inter­
nal chain of custody documents need to be looked at very, very 
careftdly. 

The. tenth item I see has been addressed in the material that was 
sent to me. That is the problem of carryovers. I have had. cases 
where carryover created a false positive, that is, created a speci­
men whose concentration level was higher than the cutoff. 

It has also been my experience to have drug testing laboratories 
while they are reporting out positive drug tests to have an unsatis­
factory external quality control. I think that the Armed Forces In­
stitute of Pathology, and they have the same data that I have, 
could provide to you examples of anywhere from a zero correct 
identification rate up to a 100-percent correct identification rate for 
labs which were reporting out positive and negative test results. 

Now, the correct identification rate has to do with how correctly 
the particular lab in question is identifying known purportedly 
blind, external quality controls. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. It is amazing. In the literature they do a much 
better job when there is an open test or when they know there is 
going to be a test going on. They do not know which samples, and 
they do a very good job. The error rate goes down to like 10 percent 
as opposed to 50 percent when there are blind proficiency tests. 

Mr. WAPLE. Correct. That has been my experience. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Much of the argumentation about the value of 

these tests would be eliminated if they treated all of the tests with 
the same care and degree that they treat those that they kno~y 
have some control tests in them. 

Mr. W APLE. Yes,.,sir, absolutely. 
Item No. 12 has to do again. with chain of custody within a drug 

testing laboratory. I have had several cases where we were doing a 
lot of work with the same lab over and over and over again. So we 
began to collect the signature specimens of each person who .rou.-



232 

tinely appeared in the chain of custody and would routinely take a 
look at the signatures, and after a while it became quite apparent 
that, say, the signature of John Doe in the Jones case was not the 
same signature as John Doe in the Mary Jane case, and when this 
was challenged either at an administrative proceeding or at a 
criminal prosecution, investigations were conducted and Ultimately 
it was determined that the signatures were not genuine. 

I then go on to summarize this, on page 7 I talk very briefly 
about the problem of false positive tests. The issue of false positives 
is an important issue. I have had at least a dozen cases where we 
were able to document that the positive test result was a false posi­
tive. There are different ways to define, of course, what a false 
positive is. I have tried to defme it both ways in this paper. The 
first definition is to define a false positive as an unconfirmed posi­
tive when a reasonable attempt has been made to confirm the posi­
tive test result by using an analytical test different and at least as 
sensitive as the testing method reporting the positive in the first 
place. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Mr. Waple, could you hold on for a second? 
Mr. WAPLE. Sure. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. We are going to take a five minute recess, and I 

want to get into this. We will be back at 5 minutes to 12. 
[Whereupon, a short recess was taken.] 
Mr. SIKORSKI. I am sorry for the interruption. 
You were going to talk about the false positives and false nega­

tives. 
Did you hear the earlier testimony of Dr. Miike? For every five 

people who are confirmed as drug users, we are going to pick up 
five innocent people who are confirmed as drug users, but do not 
use drugs. Did you hear that? 

Mr. W APLE. No, sir. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. I guess that was not Dr. Miike. That was the testi­

mony of Dr. Baumgartner earlier. 
Mr. WAPLE. I do not think I was here. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Is that kind of analysis, a risk/benefit analysis, 

consistent with yours? He cited r.J.s own experience and the discus­
sion by Dr. Lundburg, the editor of the .Journal of American Medi­
cal Association, December of 1986. Is that consistent with what you 
have been experiencing? 

Mr. W APLE. The only thing I can say is that I have experienced, 
and quite frankly, it has been like pulling teeth out of the experts 
who testify from these various drug testing labs because the last 
thing in the world they want to do is to concede that an error has 
taken place because obviously it would subject their contract with 
the government to possible termination. The only thing I can say is 
that there is a tremendous reluctance to admit making an error in 
any drug testing laboratory. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Another issue that has been raised and perhaps 
you can confirm it for us is that the General Accounting Office's 
analysis of the regulations and guidelines proposed by the Office of 
Personnel Management and the Health and Human Services do 
not allow for or do not specify what rights employees who test posi­
tives have to the information on the lab, their error rate and all of 
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the rest of it, and clearly from your perspective that is absolutely 
essential if they are to defend themselves. 

Mr. WAPLE. That is precisely one of the points that I noted when 
I reviewed the scientific and technical guidelines of the drug test­
ing program. I imagine this is promulgated by the Department of 
Health and Human Services. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Do you have a date on that one? 
Mr. W APLE. I am looking at Alcohol, Drug Abuse and Mental 

Health, Administration. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. That is HHS. You are right. There are two kinds of 

guidelines pursuant to the executive order. One was last Novem-­
ber, the Office of Personnel Management, and the other is the 
Health and Human Services basically focusing on the issues tHat 
you have been focusing on. 

Mr. WAPLE. Yes, sir. Well, the note that I made to myself if the 
question were asked was when it comes to reporting the positive 
test result, I saw no provision in the material I received for the 
Federal employee to have a~ess to the drug test data and the data 
about how well that laboratory was performing with regards to its 
~xternal quality control. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. In fact, the GAO testifies that there is no defmi­
tion of unsatisfactory performance by one of these labs in the 
guidelines; that, in fact, you can have unsatisfactory labs, that 
have been shown under blind proficiency tests to be doing incompe­
tent work, still continuing to do incompetent work. 

They testified that if they show up as doing unsatisfactory per­
formances, all of the tests 15 days before and 15 days after are sus­
pect and have to be confirmed. They raised the question about the 
people who were tested 16 or 17 days before or after the lab was 
deemed unsatisfactory. 

This isa mighty big issue for you as an attorney who is challeng­
ing these. 

Mr. W APLE. Well, my experience has been that getting the infor­
mation from the labs is like filing a Freedom of Information Act 
request. It is that difficult. It is that cumbersome, and usually the 
employee cannot get the data, and it should be provided to the 
person who is accused of alleged drug use. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. If I can follow up on this for a second. Is it correct 
that Comp-U-Chem Lab in North Carolina is one of the military 
labs? Have you had any experience with them? 

Mr. WAPLE. They are located in North Carolina, yes. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Do they do a lot of military tests? 
Mr. WAPLE. Yes, sir. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. As I understand it they are the only contracted out 

lab for the military, and the results or their tests are performed in­
house. 

Mr. W APLE. I am not sure what that means. I know that that lab­
oratory does the presumptive screen tests and all of the confirmato­
ry tests in the same facility. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. So they are the only lab that I am aware of that is 
approved for doing the lab accreditation. 

Mr. WAPLE. I know they are subject to quality control measures 
by AFIP. 
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Mr. SIKORSKI. This Comp-U-Chem lab does a lot of the military 
stuff. They are located in North Carolina. They are the closest of 
any lab that we are aware of to approval, accreditation under the 
HHS guidelines that you have there before you. Have you had ex­
periences in your practice with Comp-U-Chem that cast doubt as to 
the total reliability of their tests? 

Mr. WAPLE. Well, I want to be completely honest. My experience 
has been, and I could almost identify every lab that I have dealt 
with, I have dealt with almost all of the DOD labs, Fort Meade, 
TripIer, Weisbaden. I have had considerable experience with Comp­
U-Chem, Brooks Laboratory in Texas, the Center for Human Toxi­
cology. So the answer to your question is I have had experiences, 
both positive and negative, with all of those labs, and I would not 
want to single Comp-U-Chem out for being better or worse than the 
others. 

If I had a general statement to make I would have to say that 
getting data directly from that lab has been very difficult for the 
alleged drug user. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Have you been successful in your practice in over­
turning actions taken on the basis of tests performed by Comp-U­
Chem? 

Mr. W APLE. Certainly. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. The only reason we focus on Comp-U-Chem is that 

to our knowledge they are the closest to accreditation. 
How many cases have you had with Comp-U-Chem that you have 

overturned their results? 
Mr. WAPLE. Well, to the best of my recollection, we started 

seeing Comp-U-Chem cases in around the period of time that the 
Fort Meade lab for the Army was shut down for irregularities. My 
recollection is that we started seeing Comp-U-Chem cases on a reg­
ular basis in I want to say the 1983 timeframe, and how many 
cases we have been successful with I do not have an exact number. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. More than five? 
Mr. WAPLE. Oh, yes. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. More than ten? 
Mr. WAPLE. Yes. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Does anyone handle as many cases as you do? 
Mr. WAPLE. I do not know. I have no idea. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. You have handled over 500 of these? 
Mr. W APLE. I want to be sure that that figure is not misleading, 

too. That includes simply sitting down with someone at a table and 
discussing their problem. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Telling them they do not have a chance and they 
do have a chance, and here is what is involved if you want to chal­
lenge it and the rest of it. 

Mr. WAPLE. Exactly, as well as administrative hearings and 
criminal prosecution. I have seen a trend with regard to criminal 
prosecutions. I do not know if this has any interpretive. value for 
you at all, but the trend has clearly been away from criminal pros­
ecutions within the Department of Defense, in my opinion, to the 
administrative process. where the burden of proof is not proof 
beyond a reasonable doubt. It becomes the same burden of proof 
that I see identified in the materials sent to me, which is this pre­
ponderance of the evidence standard. 
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I think that is an important issue because my experience has 
been once an E:'mployee is identified as positive on a drug test, that 
individual is not still presumed innocent. That person is presumed 
guilty until that individual proves he is innocent, and that is a 
value judgment to be made, but it is a fact of life. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. I am told that even if they are proven innocent 
through administrative or legal action, there still is a labeling proc­
ess that has occurred with colleagues, with peers, with family, 
neighbors and others. 

Mr. W APLE. That is absolutely correct. 
Of course, I would not mention names, but a case that illustrates 

that so well involved a military neurosurgeon whom I represented 
several years ago. His urine test came out positive for marijuana. 
It was later determined that or there was an administrative proc­
ess issued to have him show cause why he should not be dismissed 
from the military. We challenged the validity of the drug test. It 
was a poor scientifically processed case. The administrative actions 
were stopped, but he has within the last year informed me that a 
prospective employer contacted the Department of the Artny, and 
they informed this prospective employer that he was a drug abuser, 
and it has interfered with his ability to obtain gainful employment. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. I thought those files were confidential. 
Mr. W APLE. I have found that that is not always the case. I see 

that the reference is made in the material to protection under the 
Privacy Act. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. We had testimony from the GAO that the Privacy 
Act allows for routine use, compatible use kinds of exceptions, and 
also includes a provision about hiring practices which would be a 
big loophole to drive this kind of information forward, as it hap­
pened in the doctor's case that you were tal¥J.ng about. 

Mr. WAPLE. Yes, sir. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. So your experien.ce has not been that this informa­

tion has been treated confidentially at all as private? 
Mr. WAPLE. Not at all. It is morE:! frequent that other individuals 

where the employee is assigned in the same office or the same or­
ganization, sometimes they know before he knows or she knows 
that their test has come back positive. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. You have had a chance to review the drug testing 
regulations. Do any of their provisions other than the ones we have 
talked about jump out at you as being ripe for litigation? 

Mr. WAPLE. I made a few notes. Yes, sir. With regards to the col­
lection procedures on page 4, I think that the individual who is col­
lecting the specimen has the responsibility to note unusual behav­
ior. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Yes. 
Mr. W APLE. I found that that is a very subjective matter and cer­

tainly very subject to possible abuse by another employee, for ex­
ample. 

The collection procedures outlined on page 6 talk about how 
urine specimens could be stored temporarily. My experience with 
temporary storage of the specimens has been fraught with disaster. 
I have seen people put them in closets. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Nothing is as permanent as something temporary. 
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Mr. WAPLE. Nothing, and the thought I had is perhaps there 
should not be any temporary storage at all. 

On the bottom of page 7, the very last paragraph, very last sen­
tence, "it is not necessary to send specimens by registered mail." I 
made a note in the margin, "Why not?" Certainly no harm can be 
done with that additional, although small safeguard, but it is some­
thing that might protect the individual. 

At the top of page 8 under the paragraph entitled "Confirmatory 
Tests," I may have misread this, but as I read the end of that para­
graph, it reads, "At this time gas chromotology/mass spectrometry 
is the only authorized confirmation method." I made a note in the 
margin to myself, "With how many ions?" How many ions are 
being monitored? 

I have had cases where the individual was being accused of using 
drugs where they were only monitoring one ion, and I think there 
are many toxicologists who would testify that a single ion monitori­
zation is not accepted in the American scientific community yet. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Is that a threshold problem? What should the ion 
be? 

Mr. WAPLE. A minimum of three, I think, is what we are suggest­
ing, if not full scale. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Because with a single ion you pick up all kinds of 
false positives; is that it? 

Mr. WAPLE. It just does not give you enough identifying factors 
to be comfortable in the identification process. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. So waiving the GC/MS confirmation test if it is not 
appropriate, if it is not done right, is no confirmation at all? 

Mr. WAPLE. Yes, sir. In other words, what I am suggesting is if 
the requirements are confirmation by GC/MS, that perhaps it 
should be further specified monitoring not less than three ions if 
not full scale spectrum. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Okay. 
Mr. WAPLE. At the top of page 9, the first partial paragraph 

where it reads, "Both internal and external blind proficiency test 
sam;ples should appear as ordinary samples to laboratory person­
nel,' I think the intent there is good, that is, that the lab person­
nel cannot identify the blind proficiency test. My experience has 
been they always put them in the same spot in the same rack so 
that they know where the sit sequentially, and though they may 
not be able to identify them, they know because of procedure 
where they sit in the tray so that they can identify them anyway. 
So you really do not have a blind proficiency test at all. 

The suggestion would be that they be placed randomly. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Is there someone from Health and Human Services 

here? 
[No response.] 
Mr. Sikorski Okay. 
Mr. W APLE. On page 10, sir, I noted under reporting results, the 

small second paragraph under reporting results, it reads, "All 
records pertaining to a given urine specimen shall be retained 2 
years." The question I had is does that include or will that include 
all negative test results. My feeling is that it should so that an em­
ployee can document the fact that they have had prior negative 
tests. 
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My experience has been that negative test results are not re­
tained, and it simply provides a greater history for the emplovee in 
question. 

At the top of page 11 under retesting specimens, I think I would 
like to make what I consider an important point. It provides for re­
testing, and my experience has been when we are talking about es­
pecially contract labs, where we are talking about millions of dol­
lars involved in the contract, and partiCUlarly where the language 
of the contract says that unsatisfactory performance by the labora­
tory or false positives may be grounds for terminating the contract, 
that to have a retest done by that same laboratory necessarily re­
quires that laboratory to admit if there truly was a false positive 
that it has made a mistake, which would jeopardize the contract 
itself. 

I have never had the experience yet where a laboratory on a 
retest has admitted that their first test was inaccurate, and the 
thought I had and the marginal note I made to myself on the plane 
coming up this morning was that perhaps-and I know this would 
be an additional expense-but perhaps retesting should be done by 
a second, independent lab. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. When does retesting occur? Is it when there has 
been a challenge or a confusion? You are not talking about confir­
mation testing? 

Mr. WAPLE. No, sir. We are talking about a test that has been 
presumptively screened positive and confirmed positive, reported 
out positive, but challenged. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Okay. At that point then it does make sense to 
remove the sample, which is then almost an adverse party situa­
tion. 

Mr. WAPLE. Yes, sir, and I noted somewhere in here where we 
talked about the medical reviewing officer's role. I believe it starts 
on page 15. There seems to be built into this program a review by a 
medical reviewing officer. A::>parently this individual will evaluate 
the test results, examine or discuss the test result with the employ­
ee, make this determination, whether there is any possible expla­
nation medically or otherwise, and he has this authority, among all 
of this other discretion--

Mr. SIKORSKI. A Solomon kind of situation. 
Mr. WAPLE. Exactly. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. And it is pointed to as a real major safety net or 

fail safe mechanism. 
Mr. W APLE. It appears to me or the point that I was going to 

make is that he obviously can require a retest, but if it goes back to 
that same lab that has its multimillion contract at stake, that lab 
is not going to admit that their first test was inaccurate, and that 
brings me back to the last point, which is perhaps it is worthwhile 
to consider whether retests should be conducted at the same lab 
that reported it out the first time. 

On a positive note, on page 12 with regard to requirements of in­
ternal laboratory quality control, there is a provision which reads, 
"In addition, some of the quality control specimens will contain 
drug or metabolytes that are near the threshold cutoff levels." I 
think that is a very good internal! external quality control tech­
nique. 
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On page 13, under the title "Agency, External Laboratory Qual­
ity Control Procedures," at the bottom of that paragraph where it 
begins to read, "Should a false positive error occur on the blind 
proficiency test specimen," this is something you mentioned earli­
er, "retesting of all specimens submitted to that lab for the period 
2 weeks before and 2 weeks after is required," but then it goes on 
and says, "Unsatisfactory performance on proficiency test samples 
is sufficient cause for the agency to revoke lab accreditation." I 
have never seen that happen because it seems to me what develops 
there is sort of an identification of the agency with their own lab, 
and if they have 60 or 100 outstanding or pending adverse adminis­
trative personnel actions, it is very doubtful that they are going to 
disqualify or revoke the laboratory accreditation. I just do not 
think it is realistic, and I do not think it will happen. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Obviously the accreditation process and the blind 
proficiency tests have to be done outside of the agency by some cen­
tralized Federal Government source, probably NIDA. The revoca­
tion process must be based on the facts from the blind proficiency 
tests, because you raised an issue that I never thought of, and of 
course, if I were representing any of the 50 people that had a pend­
ing challenge and the lab came through with a blind proficiency 
test, I would use that information. But if the agency took the 
action it should have, if it was sufficiently problematic, and re­
voked the accreditation, then they would be certainly casting ques­
tion, a looming shadow, over the results that occurred prior to that 
and that led to the action against my client. . 

Mr. W APLE. Yes, slr. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. There is probably a prima facie case right there. 

So there is a big, big incentive not to revoke even when the labs 
are performing below standards. 

Any other points? You have been very helpful. 
Mr. WAPLE. Yes, sir. There are just a few things with regard to 

the material that was sent. I do not know if you are inquiring into 
this or not, and if you are not, I will leave it out, but with regard to 
the information from the Federal personnel manual--

Mr. SIKORSKI. Yes, that was done previously. We have kind of a 
joint custody of this baby, and the real paternity lies in the Attor­
ney General's Office, but the adoptive parents or the custodian par­
ents at this point are Office of Personnel Management and HHS. 

Mr. W APLE. Just very briefly with regard to that, because poten­
tial areas of litigation was the question, on I think page 3, this 
process talks about the manner in which individuals will be desig­
nated to provide urine specimens. I could not tell from the way it 
was drafted or written whether random testing was mandatory or 
was simply a guideline. 

On the top of page 4 it begins or it appears that the intent is for 
it to be a random process. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. I think on page 4, you are in reasonable suspicion 
testing. 

Mr. WAPLE. Yes, sir. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. There are two. There is random and comprehen­

sive testing in sensitive positions, and they state all of those, al­
though no agency has come forward with a definition of "sensitive 
persons" for their agency thus far, and one of the GAO criticisms 
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was that you can have someone in a similar position in one agency 
who is tested on an open, random testing, and another person simi­
larly situated in a whole bunch of other agencies not. 

Mr. WAPLE. Yes, and that basically was one of the points that I 
was going to make. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Then there is the voluntary testing for those who 
volunteer, and then there is the reasonable suspicion testing. 

Mr. W APLE. And in that area, sir, that is where I think there are 
going to be a lot of problems because the reasonable suspicion test­
ing has listed there four or five activities that could give rise to a 
supervisor making the determination that there is reasonable sus­
picion .. One that causes in my experience the greatest concern, and 
I have had experience with Subparagraph (d) there, "Identification 
provided either by reliable and credible sources or independently 
corroborated." 

I would presume that all Federal employees are reliable. There­
fore, any Federal employee could report to any supervisor that 
they suspect that anotheremploy(ce has used or abused drugs, and 
my -experience has been there is a lot of internal problems with 
drug testing because there are personality conflicts within an office 
or an agency. There are petty jealousies. There are.problems with 
promotions, those kinds of things, and to allow a drug specimen to 
be requu'ed from an employee simply because another employee 
has made a :report seems to be frought Vtrith problems. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. They have found in public health work dealing 
with sexually transmittable diseases that there are a whole host of 
problems when tracing sexual partners, and this kind of situation 
is abused all the time. All kinds of people show up, relatives, neigh­
bors, coworkers, supervisors, bosses and others where they were fal­
sified for a variety of purposes. 

We have your testimony that you have found that to be the case 
here, but we also have a long history of public health work that 
that is the case. 

I would have thought you would say· two, pattern of abnormal 
conduct or erratic behavior, which is like art. It is subject to a 
matter of tast.e. 

Mr. W APLE. In that same vein, I think another grounds for rea­
sonable suspicion is listed as arrest or eonviction for a drug related 
offense. I have seen that abused in the past because if you rational­
ize long enough, any offense in violation of a state or Federal law 
could be a drug related offense. Even a traffic violation, erratic vio­
lation of a motor vehicle theoretically could be a drug related of­
fense, in theory. 

I do not know. I would assume that traffic violations, such as 
speeding or running a stop sign, would not be included, but it is 
unclear from the way it is '\";l'itten. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. It is unclear also when the arrest-the conviction 
is gne thing. Often you have conviction for careless driving, which 
is really a driving while under the influence, and I do not know if 
that is a drug related offense or not. 

Any others? 
Mr. WAPLE. No, sir. I think those are the highlights that I 

wanted to identify. 
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Mr. SIKORSKI. Mr. Waple, you have been extremely helpful to the 
subcommittee, and we look forward to using you as a resource in 
the future. I once again want to underscore your willingness to 
assist us unselfishly, and at some inconvenience to you and to the 
court. Thank the judge for his willingness to allow you to come, 
and I know everyone on all sides of this issue will benefit from 
your expertise that you have shared with us. 

We will be continuing our relationship in the future, hopefully 
not at billable hours. 

Mr. W APLE. Thank you. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Thank you, Mr. Waple. 
[The prepared statement follows:] 
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WRITTEN TESTIMONY OF MARK L. WAPLE, ESQUIRE 
BEFORE THE UNITED STATES HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES 

SUBCOMMITTEE ON HUMAN RESOURCES OF THE COMMITTEE ON POST 
OFFICE AND CIVIL SERVICE 

May 20, 1987 

At your request that I testify at this hearing to discuss 

from the legal perspective possible procedural problems associ­

ated with drug testing by urinalysis, the following written 

testimony is provided. 

First it may be helpful to you to understand that since 

approximately 1982 my law firm in North Carolina has either 

provided office counseling or legal representation in various 

forums both administrative and criminal to nearly 500 clients who 

have been accused of using controlled sUbstances as a result of 

positive drug testing by urinalysis. Most of these individuals 

have been active duty members of the Armed Forces of the United 

States to include the U. 5. Coast Guard, U • S • Navy, U. 5. Air 

Force, U.5. Marines and U.S. Army. Their occupational speciali­

ties have ranged from infantrymen to air traffic controllers to 

physicians; The drugs which were alleged to be involved in all 

. of these cases were cocaine and marijuana. The drug testing 

laboratories which produced the positive test results have been 

military drug testing laboratories, commercial drug testing 

laboratories and state or federal contract drug testing labora-

tories. The severity of the adverse action initiated against 

these individuals has ranged from possible incarceration, loss of 

flight status, loss of secu~ity clearances, loss of continued 

employment, loss of specialized training, loss of hospital 

credentials, loss of rank and position as well as fines and pay 
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forfeitures. In nearly every case the allegation was use of a 

controlled substance rather than possession, sale, distribution 

or other more traditional drug ~ffenses. In 95% of these cases 

the urine, which eventually allegedly tested positive for a 

controlled substance, was taken from the individual randomly 

rather than through a search warrant or other traditional legal 

process. Only in a very few cases were the urine specimens taken 

as a result of "probable cause" or "reasonable suspicion" or 

following a mishap such as a vehicle accident. Also, thinking 

back on this now, I think it is interesting that at least 90% of 

these cases involved individuals who had never been tested 

positive for a controlled substance before and, to the contrary, 

had tested negative on prior occasions at least two or three 

times. Although I have not kept specific data over the past five 

years, it is my opinion that in at least 75% of all of these 

cases there was a legal or scientifically irregularity which 

substantially affected the reliability of the allegation that the 

individual in question had in fact used a controlled substance. 

It ma~ be helpful for you to know some of the more commonly 

recurring legal or scientific irregularities which I have found 

in urine drug tests. Checklists which I frequently use in 

representing a client alleged to have a positive drug test 

includes between 80 and 90 items, anyone of which could invali­

date the scientific conclusion that a urine tested positive for a 

partjcular controlled substan2e for a particular individual. In 

general however, there are eight major areas where urinalysis 

-2-
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testing can be challenged. These areas are: (1) whether the 

urine specimen was taken in a constitutionally permissible 

manner: (2) whether the test results were derived from nonspecif­

ic drug tests; (3) whether the test results are supported with 

the requisite supporting chain of custody; (4) whether the 

testing techniques are those accepted in the American scientific 

community; (5) whether the test results contained supporting 

quality control data; (6) whether the tests results have been 

properly interpreted by a competent person; (7) whether the test 

results have concentration levels consistent with either "passive 

inhalation" or "passive ingestion" and (8) whether the test 

results are false-positives. 

I understand from Congressman Sikorski's invitation that 

your interest today is largely related to possible procedural 

problems associated with drug testing rather than the constitu­

tional questions related to drug testing. Therefore, the consti­

tutional issues are not discussed here. 

Typical procedural problems are listed below: 

1. 'It has not been uncommon for an individual's social 

security account number or laboratory accession number to be 

incorrect, thus causing major problems with the validity of t.he 

identification of the specimen. 

2. Frequently there are inconsistent results between a 

field screening test (a 

confirma·tory test (GCMS). 

presumptive screen test) and the 

Tpat is to say one test screened the 

urine negative and the second test resulted in a positive. 

-3-
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Clearly this creates doubt in the validity of one or both of the 

testS. 

3. It is not uncommon for ur::'ne specimens to be shipped by 

mail with registration numbers lost or confused. 

4. It is not uncommon for there to be confusion concerning 

the quantity or volume of urine to be collected from an individu- ' 

al. Normally.60 ml of urine is the preferred amount and in some 

cases the individual cannot provide that volume, thus creating 

confusion over the proper disposition of that specimen. That is 

to say, should the specimen be kept and the individual return 

later, or should it be destroyed until a complete specimen can 

later be provided. 

5. Specimen bottles are accidently dropped and accidently 

contaminated. This also creates confusion in the collection 

process. 

6. Frequently there are discrepancies between the presump­

tive screen test, either radio immunoassy or EMIT, and the 

confirmatory test, usually GCMS. For example, an individual's 

urine sample could test positive for marijuana by the presumptive 

screen test with a concentration level of 150 nanograms per 

milliliter and later test positive on the confirmatory test with 

a concentration of more than 150 nanograms per milliliter. 

Generally speaking 

concentration level 

most toxicologists would agree that the 

should decrease as time passes through 

type of, apparent discrepancy between the 

and the confirmatory test raises questions 

degradation. This 

presumptive test 

concerning the validity of one or the other test. 
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7. It is notuncommorr for' internal quality controls" to fail' 

thus raising questions concerning the accuracy or ,reli~bility of 

either the presumptive screen test or the confirmatory test. 

8. It has not been uncommon for the particular drug testing 

laboratory in question to have failed to follow their own stan­

dard operating procedures for equi~meut maintenance, data inter­

pretation regarding retention times, mass ratios and mean ratios 

and instead to substitute a "judgment call" that the positive 

test result is "close enough." 

9. Sometimes there are problems with the internal chain of" 

custody within a drug testing laboratory. That is to say that 

once the specimen arrives at a drug testing laboratory all 

individuals who handle that specimen or any portion of that 

specimen do not appear in the drug testing laboratory's internal 

chain of custody. This of course violates the reason for and 

philosophy behind the requirement of a strict chain of custody. 

10. Occasionally a drug testing laboratory has reported out 

a positive drug test as the result of ~hat is referred to as the 

"carryover" problem. These are cases where a specimen with a 

very high concentration of a controlled sUbstance Acarries over~ 

and contmninates the immediately succeeding specimen. 

11. On occasion a particular drug-testing laboratory will 

have unsatisfactory external quality control data and' still be 

reporting out positive test results. 

12. Although not frequ~ntlY occurring, some cases have been 

processed through "high volume" drug testing laboratories and the 

-5-
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signatures of individuals handling the specimens or portions of 

the specimens are not the true signatures of that individual. 

The above listing is truly only a brief description of 

procedural or scientific irregularties that I have seen. I have 

taken depositions at laboratories where access to the chain of 

custody room was allowed without any need-to-access or proper 

documentation. On certain occasions, laboratory technicians have 

confirmed that they did not know how to properly use instruments 

and I have handled cases where civilian supervisors routinely 

signed reports of positive drug tests which had little, if any, 

scientific standards for such test results. 

It has been my experience that one of the main hazards of 

high volume urine testing has to do with the problem of the 

integrity, safe keeping, and control of the urine specimen. Gaps 

in the continuity of the possession of the urine specimen cannot 

be filled in by any presumption of the performance of any offi­

cial duty or correctness. Problems generally arise not only in 

insuring that the client's urine speci~en was properly identified 

from the' very moment the urine passes into the urine specimel. 

collection bottle but all the way through and including delivery 

of the urine specimen bottle t~ the drug testing laboratory. In 

urinalysis cases, the chain of custody problem is particularly 

unique since not only are the drug testing laboratories usually 

at some distance from where the actual urine specimen was col­

lected but the chain of cus_tody issue is complicated further by 

the fact that a single urine specimen will frequently be subject­

ed to multiple tests. 

-6-
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It is quite clear that false-positive test results for 

controlled substance in human urine have occurred and have been 

documented. The issue of false-positives must be further refined 

by evaluating the problem of false-positives as it exists with 

presumptive screen tests such as the RIA and EMIT and also the 

question of false-positives after testing by gas chromotography 

mass spectrometry. The occurrence of a false-positive is much 

more important than a false-negative to the individual. I prefer 

to define a false-positive as an unconfirmed positive when a 

reasonable attempt has been made .to confirm the positive test 

result by using an analytical test different and at least as 

sensitive as the testing method repc-rting the positive in the 

first instance. False-positive results have also occurred even 

where the screen test have been confirmed by the scientifically 

favored confirmatory test (GCH5). ! have obtained testimony from 

certain drug testing laboratories that at least one laboratory 

experienced five false-positive in the 1981-1984 time frame. 

Outside of the question of unconfirmed positive test results 

there remains the issue of false-positive test results caused by 

improperly interpreted drug test information. Cases have 

occurred where the concentration of the controlled substance 

reported by the screening test was not within the sensitivity 

level of the screening test itself. We have also experienced 

cases where interfering substances in the gas chromatograms made 

proper scientific interpretat~on impossible. We have experienced 

cases where mass ratio evaluations on positive drug tests did not 

fall within accepted levels and where mass <'.mount ratios also 

-7-
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failed to fall within acceptable limits. In some cases I have 

experienced positive test results where retention times of the 

characteristic ion peaks in GCMS testing did not fall ~ i thin 

scientifically acceptable ranges. 

Passive inhalation of marijuana smoke is an issue that 

frequently occurs in cases where concentration levels are low.· 

Clearly, passive inhalation of marijuana can result in urinary 

excretion of detectable amounts of the cannabinoid material 

producing positive results by the enzyme multipled immunoassay 

technique. Obviously such factors as environment, duration of 

marijuana smoke exposure, time lapsed between exposure and urine 

excretion, and concentration levels of the marijuana metabolized 

become important. 

Passive ingestion or the involuntary or unknowing consump­

tion of a controlled substance such as marijuana or cocaine in 

food and drink is also an issue which has become important in 

these kinds of cases. This is true in particular cases where the 

individual suspects contamination of his food or drink by third 

parties. . Toxicologist for both government and private insti­

tutions have testified in cases which I have handled which were 

adversarial in nature and have agreed that concentration levels 

of 4000 to 5000 ng/ml of the cocaine metabolite is consistent 

with unknowing consumption of cocaine placed in "Christmas 

punch. " And, th.,. same testimony has been taken in cases with 

concentration levels less th~n 140 ng/ml where marijuana had been 

cooked into food by third parties. 

-8-
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I hope that the information that I have provided to you will 

be useful as you address the possible procedural problems associ-

ated with drug testing by u~inaly~is. I apologize for the 

brevity of this written material and assure you that this is by 

no means a comprehensive or all includi!.'g description of the 

procedural, legal and scientific problems that arise in drug 

testing by urinalysis. I will be more than willing to answer any 

of your questions. 

May 20, 1987 

BY ~==~~~~~ ______________ __ 
MARK L. WAPLE 
HUTCHENS & WAPLE 
Post Office Box 650 
Fayetteville, NC 28302 
Telephone: 919-864-6888 
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Mr. SIKORSKI. Our last witness today is Dr. Stuart Bogema. Dr. 
Stuart Bogema is technical director of the Toxicology and Thera­
peutic Monitoring Lab of American Medical Laboratory in Fairfax, 
Virginia. 

Dr. Bogema has been with the American Medical Lab since 1973 
and has been the director of the Toxicology Lab since 1983. This 
lab is currently responsible for part of the preemployment drug 
testing and screening performed for the Federal Government. 

Dr. Bogema, we have your testimony, and we will let you, since 
you are the cleanup batter today, do what you like. Your entire 
statement will be placed in the record. It is not that long. If you 
would like to go through it or touch on anything else that has been 
raised thus far, it is up to you. 

STATEMENT OF STUART BOGEMA, TECHNICAL DIRECTOR, TOXI­
COLOGY AND THERAPEUTIC DRUG MONITORING LAB, AMERI­
CAN MEDICAL LABORATORIES, INC. 

Dr. BOGEMA. Thank you. 
The statement that I left is very general. I did not have a lot of 

time to prepare that, and it is not very specific. Generally, it de­
scribes what American Medical Laboratories does. We are not a 
large volume drug testing laboratory. Drug testing is a small part 
of the work that we do in my laboratory. We are a general service, 
medical laboratory. 

We do with cause and preemployment testing for some local in­
dustries, mostly public safety related industries. We do not have 
any contracts to do any Federal Government employee testing, and 
I am not here as an advocate of Federal Government employee 
testing. I am here primarily to answer questions and help shed 
some light on some of the technical issues involved in drug testing 
and primarily here to answer any questions that you may have. 

[The prepared statement of Dr. Stuart Bogema follows:] 
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AMERICAN MEDICAl:.. LABORATORIES. INC. 
11091 Main Street. P.O. Box 188. Fairfax. Virginia 22030 / Telephone: (703) 691·9100 

HOUSE HEARING STATEMENT FOR MAY 20, 1987 

Stuart C. Bogema, Ph.D., Director of Toxicology and 
Therapeutic Drug Monitoring Laboratory 

American Medical Laboratories, Inc.-
11091 Main Street, Fairfax, Virginia 22030 

American Medical Laboratories, Inc. (AML) is a licensed, 
full-service reference laboratory, operated and supervised by 
pathologists, and dedicated to providing the highest quality 
professional laboratory services available. It has been in 
operation since 1959 in the city of Fairfax, Virginia. AML's 
services encompass the fields of: 

Radioimmunoassay 
Immunopathology 
Toxicology and Drug Abuse Testing 
Therapeutic Drug Monitoring 
Industrial Hygiene 
Clinical Chemistry 
Cytogenetics 
Cytology 
Histology 
Microbiology 
Virology 
Hematology 
Veterinary Pathology 
Surgical and Anatomical pathology 

AML differs from the general clinical laboratory by offering a 
substantially broader range of professional and technical 
services. AML performs a comprehensive array of analytical 
procedures, utilizing sophisticated instrumentation and highly 
trained personnel to assure optimal reliability'. The labor.atory 
currently employs over 600 people, over 40% are technical and 
professional. Ninety-three percent of all technical personnel 
hold degrees in medicine, medical technology and other laboratory 
sciences. Technologists reponsible for test performance and 
supervision are certified by the Americ('m Society of Clinical 
Pathologists, American Association of Clinical Chemistry, 
American Society of Microbiology, American Society of Medical 
Technologists and the American Society of Cytology. All 
personnel performing testing in the Toxicology Laboratory are 
approved by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services. 
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AML is accredited by the College of American Pathologists and 
licensed by the Centers for Disease Control. These both require 
regular inspections of the facilities and satisfactory completion 
of proficiency testing programs. The Toxicology Laboratory is 
also licensed by the state of Pennsylvania and participated in 
the National Institute on Drug Abuse proficiency testing pilot 
programs in 1986. 

The Toxicology Laboratory has been performing the screening and 
confirmation of drugs for emergency toxicology purposes and for 
the detection of drug abuse for over fifteen years. We have been 
using gas chromatography-mass spectrometry (GC-MS) for the 
confirmation of drugs in biological fluids for over seven years. 
AML has offered documentation of the chain of custody of 
laboratory specimens for many years now. AML plans to meet the 
standards put forth by NIDA and the Department of Health and 
Human Services for drug testing. Modifications of some of our 
current procedures will be necessary to meet thoso standards. We 
will also seek accreditation by the NIDA sponsored National 
Laboratory Accreditation Program when the guidelines and program 
become available. 

The Toxicology Laboratory of AML maintains a high level of 
accuracy in drug testing by: 

1. Employing personnel extensively training and ex~rienced in 
analytical toxicology: 

A. Director, with Ph.D. in pathology from the Medical 
College of Virginia and seven years experience in 
analytical toxicology. 

B. Technical Supervisor, Medical Technologist (ASCP) with 
twenty years experience in analytical toxicology. 

C. Two Bench Supervisors, Medic&l Technologists (ASCP), each 
with ten years experience in analytical toxicology. 

D. Research and Development Toxicologist, with M.S. in 
Clinical Chemistry and ten years experience in analytical 
toxicology. 

E. Four Senior Medical Technologists, each with at least six 
years experience in analytical toxicology. 

F. Thirteen Medical Technologists, each completely trained 
in analytical toxicology with experience ranging up to 
eight years. Initial training in toxicology lasts at 
least five months. 

G. Seven Medical Technicians who perform limited testing 
under direct supervision of Medical Technologists. 
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2. using state-of-the-art instrumentation and procedures. -. 

3. Assaying standards and controls with all patient specimens. 

4. participating in relevent proficiency testing programs. 

5. Being monitored by a separate Quality Assurance Department. 

6. Being inspected by CAP and the u.S. Department of Health and 
Human Services. 

7. Retesting positive samples from a new aliquot from the 
original specimen container. 

8. Using quantitative GC-MS assays for. definitive determination 
of positive specimens. 

9. Using multiple, unique numbers for identification of samples. 

10. Storing frozen positive specimens for one year. 
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Mr. SIKORSKI. We thank you. 
Let me go through a little bit of your testimony and at the same 

time ask questions that affect it. You have been here all the time, I 
know, and has anything been raised thus far that you would like to 
comment on? Do you feel driven by internal powers to comment 
either critically or positively? 

Dr. BOGEMA. Well, I think the most critical issue with drug test­
ing, particularly as it would involve random testing of persons like 
Federal employees, is in the collection of specimens and safeguards 
of the safety of those people. 

One thing that was just mentioned by Mr. Waple was the fact 
that if one Federal employee can say that he suspects another Fed­
eral employee of using drugs, a person could also possibly contami­
nate the food or drink of that employee so that he will show up 
positive. That is one of my major concerns about it. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. In the drug testing that you do, do your people 
take the tests? Are they the beginning part of it or does someone 
else take the tests, and you end up with the samples? 

Dr. BOGEMA. We basically collect a very small percentage of the 
samples that we test. We cannot insure the integrity of samples be­
cause we do not collect the majority of them. 

What we have to do, of course, is to protect and maintain the in­
tegrity and accuracy of the testing that we do. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Do you test your own employees? 
Dr. BOGEMA. At this point we have not tested any of our employ­

ees in any of our departments within the laboratory. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. How many drug tests does your lab conduct on a 

daily or weekly basis of the kind we are talking about? 
Dr. BOGEMA. The kind that we are talking about, in the range of 

20 to 40 a day. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. And how many screening tests can a technician 

perform in an 8-hour day? 
Dr. BOGEMA. It generally takes one medical technician most of 

the day to properly screen, say, 40 samples. There are other larger 
laboratories. I am sure that one person would screen a much larger 
number of specimens than that. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. How about in the confirmatory tests? How long do 
those take? 

Dr. BOGEMA. One medical technologist can, say, confirm by GCI 
MS up to maybe 25 to 30 specimens in an 8-hour day, and they will 
not be completed. They will be extracted, put on the GC/MS instru­
ment, and they will continue to run for a number of hours after 
that person has finished their shift. They would be turned over or 
the work would be taken over by a second medical technologist. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. There has been a lot of talk and some of the testi­
mony we have not focused on yet, states we simply do not have the 
labs on line or potentially on line to do massive drug testing of 
Federal employees. . 

Dr. BOGEMA. I agree with that. Another major problem that I see 
in the whole drug testing field is the number of laboratories that 
have become involved in it in just the last year or so. These are 
laboratories that do not have the experience, do not have the per­
sonnel necessary to do it correctly, and in some cases, they do not 
have the instrumentation necessary to do it. 
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If they have gone out and purchased a gas chromatograph/mass 
spectrometer in the last 6 months, they will rush it into use with 
personnel who are not experienced in the use of the instrumenta­
tion, and they may not even have a scientific director who can 
oversee to insure that things are done correctly. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Testing the GC/MS machine or equipment is not 
easy. It is pretty intricate, is it not? 

Dr. BOGEMA. It is the most sophisticated instrument in my labo­
ratory, and I have a large array of different types of laboratory in­
strumentation. It takes experience; it takes training; it takes some­
body with a good chemistry background; and it takes maintenance 
personnel. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. It needs to be calibrated. 
Dr. BOGEMA. That is right. It not only has to be calibrated every 

day, but it also has to have other periodic maintenance done to 
insure that what is called the source of the mass spectrometer is 
operating correctly, that the gas chromatography portion of the 
test is being done correctly. There has to be routine maintenance 
to insure that the instrument is running correctly, and then you 
have to have within every batch of samples that you run standards, 
controls, blanks, to insure that that particular test itself is running 
properly. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Do you end up in court? 
Dr. BOGEMA. Yes, I do. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. So you do have to testify either on one side or the 

other. You are an expert witness. You defend your techniques and 
also might be called to comment generally on what the standard is 
in the business. 

Dr. BOGEMA. That is correct. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. So you see that all the time. There are a whole 

bunch of junctures of errors, potential junctures for errors being 
made. Where is the biggest area of liability in the lab, in the collec­
tion process, in transportation, storage, shipment, or does that 
change? 

Dr. BOGEMA. As Mr. Waple mentioned, he has a check list of 80 
or 90 different items that he checks that start from the very begin­
ning, from collection, all the way until the storage, interpretation 
of the information, et cetera. As you can see, there are a lot of 
things that have to be done properly. There has to be assurance 
that they are done properly. 

I would say that it is mixed. It can be anywhere and everywhere. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. What do you charge for your preemployment 

screening? Do you have a pertest kind of charge or is it a contract­
ed amount? 

Dr. BOGEMA. I would say that generally the range or an estimat­
ed cost of a preemployment screen with GC/MS confirmation, the 
way that we do it, and we do do things somewhat differently than 
other laboratories; we always repeat the screens on a fresh sample 
from the original container; the mass spec, of course, is done on a 
sample from the original container so that we can go back and re­
peatedly check the identity of the specimen during the testing proc­
ess. The cost for, say, 8 to 10 drugs or drug classes to be screened 
and then confirmed, the positives about the $30 to $45 from our 
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laboratory. There is an additional $10 charge for the chain of custo~ 
dy documentation. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. So you are talking $40 or $45 as opposed to this 
$27 that was talked about in Dr. Baumgartner's testimony. You 
were here for his testimony? 

Dr. BOGEMA. That is right. That is probably one reason why we 
are not a large scale drug testing laboratory. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. But you heard Mr. Waple's comments about retest~ 
ing on a challenged thing. It makes sense to me that the specimen 
go out of lab. 

Dr. BOGEMA. That is right. We have sent specimens that we have 
screened and confirmed positive to the Center for Human Toxicol~ 
ogy at the University of Utah, for instance, to have them recheck 
samples that we have done. We have rechecked samples from both 
the Navy and the Army in our laboratory. 

Yes, I think that is very important, and that is really the pur~ 
pose for saving the positive specimens frozen for at least a year. 

'1'here was one question that Mr. Waple raised. That was as far 
as saving negative samples. I do not feel that it is necessary to save 
the negative samples. I think saving the information from the test~ 
ing that was done so that it would be available. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. I think that is what he testified, saving the test re~ 
suIts. 

Dr. BOGEMA. Of course in a laboratory like ours, all results are 
saved for a long period of time. I cannot understand why they 
would not save negative results in the military testing. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Let me see if I can finish up here. You have your 
own internal proficiency program and guidelines because you are 
called up to defend those all the time. 

Dr. BOGEMA. That is correct. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. It seems to me, and maybe you have a different 

opinion, that it makes sense that if a lab does not meet the per­
formance standards under the guidelines and they foul up and it 
shows on the proficiency testing, that they should not or that the 
revocation of that lab should not be made by the agency that has 
these pending matters, dependent upon the efficacy of that lab and 
the reputation of that lab, but instead should be done by some 
other group that is in .:-harge of accreditation. Does that make 
sense? 

Dr. BOGEMA. Yes, it does. Unfortunately, up to this point and 
continuing now is that there is no agency; there is no accreditation 
standards. The standards that have been printed are constantly 
being reviewed and redrafted. It seems like every month the NIDA 
standards or a new revision is sent out. 

I think as soon as a good program can be put into place, it will 
be of great benefit not only to any potential Federal employees 
that are tested, but there is a lot of testing being done currently on 
non~Federal employees where there is no licensing, no accreditation, 
no assurance that the test results are accurate. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Your lab has an excellent track record in terms of 
accuracy I am told. I presume you are not going to contradict that 
here today. 

Are standard drug testing procedures capable of detecting so­
called designer drugs? 
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Dr. BOGEMA. Not standard techniques, There are no automated 
screening immunoassays for designer drugs like there are for mari­
juana, cocaine, PCP, et cetera. They can be detected, but you would 
have to specifically look for them. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Have you heard of Fentanyl? 
Dr. BOGEMA. Yes. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. What do people do when they take that? 
Dr. BOGEMA. Well, Fentanyl is a synthetic narcotic, like mor­

phine, except that the Fentanyls are anywhere from 1,000 to 5,000 
times more potent than morphine or heroin, so that the amount 
that would. be used is very, very small. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. And the cost of this stuff is equivalent to what 
morphine would be or heroin would be? 

Dr. BOGEMA. I would think so. Most of the Fentanyl use has been 
isolated to the west coast up to this time. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. And hallucinogens would not show up on the 
standard test? 

Dr. BOGEMA. There is a radioimmunoassay available for LSD 
now, but hallucinogens, such as Mushrooms or Mescalin, no, there 
is no routine screening technique for those. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. And an individual who has ingested poppy seeds 
can sometimes test positive for morphine; is that correct? 

Dr. BOGEMA. That is correct. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Can confirmatory tests distinguish between mor­

phine from poppy seeds and morphine from that which has been 
ingested? 

Dr. BOGEMA. Not always. In order to distinguish between mor­
phine that is contained in poppy seeds and morphine that is the 
metabolite of heroin, you would have to look for other metabolites 
of heroin, such as acetylmorphine, which are not present in the 
poppy seeds, but in many cases I suspect that there will not be any 
acetylmorphine from heroin although there is morphine in the 
urine. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Acetylmorphine-is that the Tylenol set? 
Dr. BOGEMA. No. morphine is a constituent of the poppy plant. It 

is the morphine that is removed from the poppy plant and then 
made into heroin by being acetylated, and then when heroin is in­
jected into the body, it is rapidly deacetylated, and one of the meta­
bolites of heroin is monoacetyl-morphine, and then when that is 
deacetylated, it forms morphine. So one way to determine whether 
or not the morphine is present is from heroin, which is to also look 
for the monoacetylmorphine, which mayor may not be present. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. One last question. Mr. Waple had this in his testi­
mony, and we did not get into it, and I think Dr. Baumgartner did 
as well. Can marijuana smoke that has been passively inhaled 
result in a postive test result? 

Dr. BOGEMA. Yes, it can. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. And are there enzymes in certain people's urine 

which might cause false positives with certain testing procedures? 
Dr. BOGEMA. Not that I am aware of now. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Did you hear anything else that you want to com­

ment on? 
Dr. BOGEMA. Very early in the testimony there was reference to 

the Channel 7, W JLA testing, the drug testing series of which 
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American Medical Laboratories was one of the laboratories that 
was tested. My feeling on that portion of that series was that there 
was a grave distortion of the facts, and I think that an attempt to 
sensationalize the issue, basically they chose to order tests which 
have a higher detection level or poor sensitivity for the drugs that 
they entered. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. What did they test for? 
Dr. BOGEMA. They tested for oxazepam, which is a metabolite of 

benzodazipine. They tested for canabanoids. They tested for co­
caine. They tested for morphine, I believe. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Marijuana and cocaine would be appropriate. 
Dr. BOGEMA. Well, what they did was they spiked the urine sam­

ples with levels of drugs below the detection levels of the tests that 
they requested to be done, even though we had informed them just 
days before they sent the samples of the proper tests to use. They 
chose to use the less sensitive test, in which case you are going to 
have what they call false negatives. 

From all of the testing that was done, there were no false posi­
tives, but there were false negatives because the samples were 
spiked below the detection limits of the tests that they used. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Your lab did very well. 
Dr. BOGEMA. Well, we did well compared to the other laborato­

ries, but the way that the samples were sent out, it was a point 
where nobody could do very well. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Let's put it this way. You do preemployment 
screening. Say a guy came in or a test came in from a guy who 
wants a job at one of the companies you are screening for, and the 
level in the sample is equivalent to the level that they did in this 
test. Would that person be using that stuff? 

Dr. BOGEMA. We would have detected those specimens if they 
had ordered the test that we recommended that they use for 
preemployment testing. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. So they did not use your traditional preemploy­
ment testing procedures? 

Dr. BOGEMA. That is correct. They used a test which was de­
signed for monitoring drug abuse, known drug abusers, basically, 
where the levels of drug are expected to be higher. The cost of the 
test is about half of what it would have been because the tech­
niques that are used are thin layer chromatography as opposed to 
immunoassay, and the test is just not as sensitive and is not appli­
cable to preemployment testing where you want to catch somebody 
who has used drugs two or three days ago. 

Mr. SIKORSKI. Is your standard preemployment test the standard 
in the industry? 

Dr. BOGEMA. I would say yes. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. So they not only used small amounts below the 

threshold, but they also caused to be used tests that are not the 
norm for preemployment screening? 

Dr. BOGEMA. That is correct. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Okay. Anything else? 
Dr. BOGEMA. No. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Well, I want to thank you, and I think the subcom­

mittee has benefitted tremendously in this whole discussion on em­
ployee drug testing. The caliber of it has been increased by today's 
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testimony. Dr. Baumgartner, Dr. Bogema, Mr. Waple, Dr. Miike 
and Mr. Stevens, all have done excellent work, and the subcommit­
tee is very appreciative. 

Thank you for taking time off. I know you could be other places. 
Dr. BOGEMA. You are w0lcome. 
Mr. SIKORSKI. Thank you. 
[Whereupon, at 12:45 p.m., the subcommittee was adjourned, sub­

ject to the call of the Chair.] 
[The following statement and report were received for the 

record:] 
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GERALD W. McENTEE, President KENNETH T. BLAYLOCK, Socretary·Troasurar 

STATE/LOCAL DIVISION FEDERAL/POSTAL DIViSION 

PUBLIC EMPLOYEE DEPARTMENT 
AFL·CIO 

The Honorable Ger'ry Sikorski, Chai nnan 
Subcormlittee on Human Resources 

Albert Shankar 
John J, Sweeney 

COlllnittee on Post Office and Civil Service 
U.S. House of Representatives 
122 Cannon House Offi ce B1 dg. 
Washington, D. C. 20515 

Dear Mr. Chai nnan: 

Execullve Vu:e Pto5idonls 
Angolo Fosco 

Vincent A Sombrcllo 

John Leyden, ExecutIve Dlloctor 

May IS, 1987 

The Subcolllnittee on Human Resources is currently considering the 
issue of drug testing of federal employees. The Public Employee Department 
(PED), AFL-CIO and its Federal/Postal Division includes 24 international 
unions representing nearly 1.5 million federal and postal employees throughout 
the nation. PED policy stands in finn opposition to all mandatory random 
drug testing programs and rejects the Presi dent's federal program under 
Executive Order 12564. We therefore request that this letter presenting 
our views be included in the record of your Subcollmittee's hearings. 

The U.S. Constitution protects against unreasonable searches and 
sei zures and se1 f-incrimi nati on, guarantees freedoms of associ ation and ex­
pression, and the right to due process of 1a:t. While court decisions on 
mandatory random drug testing have presented contradictory opinions, num­
erous challenges continue to move through the judicial process. We fully 
eXPbct that, lihen the issue is raised before the U.S. Supreme Court, consti­
tutional challenges to mandatory random drug testing will be upheld. 

Beyond the constitutional issues, there are serious problems with the 
reliability of testing procedures. Many of the tests used to ~creen workers 
for dru\)s are extremely inaccurate, especially the ones that are used in 
volume. False-positives are 25 percent or higher for many of these tests, 
and the results of tests can be affected by the use of cOlllnon substances such 
as cough syrup, caffiene and other cOllmon chemicals. In addition, many of 
the laboratories that perform drug tests also often have very high fa1se­
positive error rates. According to the Centers for Oisease Control (CDC), 
some labs have false-positive error rates as high as 66 percent. 

Mandatory random drug testing is a workers' rights issue. The rights 
of the overwhelming majority of employees who are drug-free, as well as the 
rights of a drug-abusing worker need to be considered in dealing with this 
issue. Drug abuse is an illness. Those suffering from this disease need 
treatment and not punishment. At the same time, addicted individuals can pose 
health and safety hazards on the job. The PED finn1y believes that the col­
lective bargaining process is the best means for reconciling these competing 
inteNsts and developing effecti ve and balanced programs. 
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May 15, 1987 

Such programs are developed and implemented cooperatively by 
employers together with their workers. They are founded primarily upon 
education and prevention of addiction, they safeguard employee privacy and 
reject arbitrary and illegal searches, and they provide nonpunitive rehabili­
tation-oriented responses for those whose drug use has, in fact, impaired 
their job performan'ce. Many PED affiliates have, through the collective 
bargaining process, already developed such cooperative programs. Our ex­
periences show them to be fair as well as effective. 

For all these reasons, we urge you to reject all mandatory random 
drug testing programs and to actively oppose Executive Order 12564. We 
thank you for your consideration of our views, presented on behalf of the 
1.5 million federal and postal employees we represent. 

cc: Members, Subcommittee on 
Human Resources 

SNc:relY, 

~~de~~ 
Executive Oi rector 
Federal/Postal Division 
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Report on the 
FY 86 Military Drug and Alcohol Abuse Programs 

INTRODUCTION 

Department of Defense Directive 1010.3, Drug and Alcohol 
Abuse Reports, was reissued on 23 September 1985 and changed the 
information gathering requirements for the the Services' drug and 
alcohol programs. Additionally, during FY 86 there were changes 
in the format for the budget exhibit used by the Services to 
identify costs associated with various elements of the drug and 
alcohol abuse programs. Each Service was unable to implement all 
of these changes during FY 86. Comparison to FY 85 data will be 
made where possible. This report also includes Marine Corps 
figures that have been separated from those of the Navy. 

FINANCIAL DATA 

Table 1 presents the Service expenditures for the areas of 
biochemical testing, education, treatment (residential and 
nonresidential), training, evaluation, and personnel (military 
and civilian). The FY 86 budget exhibit lists personnel costs as 
a separate line item. 

The total expendit~re by the Military Services for their drug 
and alcohol abuse prevention programs during FY 86 was $214 
million as compared to $172 million in FY 85. Forty-six percent 
of the total was spent on drug programs and 54 percent on alcohol 
programs. The increase in the Army expenditures accounted for 
essentially the entire $42 million increase. We believe that the 
accounting system implemented by the Army to track its 
expenditures has allowed it to provide more accurate figures. 

The Services spent 52 percent of the drug program funds on 
biochemical testing. The figures were to include drug testing 
laboratory cost, field testing costs, civilian contract 
laboratory costs, and specimen shipping costs. Personnel costs 
were to be excluded. The Navy was unable to provide separate 
personnel costs but these were included in each functional 
category. The Army showed an unusually large expenditure in 
biochemical testing for alcohol and drugs in comparison to both 
FY 85 and FY 87. The reason for this large increase is that the 
FY 86 expenditure included the purchase of large numbers of 
breathalyzers and field test equipment which was purchased by 
local commanders as opposed to being budgeted through the Army 
drug and alcohol abuse prevention program. 

The costs in the education category were to include those 
teaching and learning functions that indoctrinate, orient, or 
inform personnel about the Service'S alcohol and drug abuse 
prevention programs and resources. A DoD Drug and Alcohol Abuse 
Working Group met on a monthly basis to review print and 
audiovisual materials commercially available for consideration 

2 
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for joint-interest purchase requests. A to.t.al of 175 drug and 
alcoh~~-~udi6visuals were available in 1966 for use within the 
Services and DoD covering all audiovisual media such as films, 
videotapes, and slide sets. . 

The FY 96 figures for alcohol abuse were significantly 
different from the FY 95 figures. Since treatment is manpower 
intensive, most of the cost has been transferred to the personnel 
category. The FY 96 figures indicated that approximately 70 
peccent of the alcohol program costs were personnel costs, 
assuming that most of the Navy's treatment costs were actually 
personnel co~~s. The Services were tasked with furnishing 
OASD(HA) with the formula(s) they used in computing treatment 
costs, however, this information was not provided. 

Training costs included those teaching and learning functions 
that develop or improve the competence of health care 
professionals and paraprofessionals and those Service personnel 
responsible for supervision or execution of alcohol and drug 
abuse prevention programs. 

Evaluation costs included those associated with evaluation of 
drug and alcohol abuse programs by full-time individuals, Service 
implemented drug and alcohol abuse surveys that were either 
contracted out or conducted in-house, and any additional studies 
to develop new tests, prevention, or treatment protocols. 

The man-year figures represent personnel investment expressed 
in full-time equivalents. They equate to an active duty man-year 
investment (Rate/lOaD) of 2.4, 2.8, 1.4, and 1.3 for the Army, 
Navy, Air Force, and Marine Corps, respectively, based on active 
duty str.ength as of 31 March 1986. 

DRUG URINALYSIS TESTING PROGRAM 

The drug urinalysis data submitted by the Services are given 
in Table 2. A total of 2.9 million specimens were tested by the 
nine military drug testing laboratories and two contract 
laboratories. Table 3 gives some field testing data. The Army 
was unable to provide an exact figure for its field testing 
program, although the estimate of 400,000 is believed to be 
accurate. When the laboratory and field test data are combined, 
the total number of specimens tested by the Services is 3.6 
million specimens as compared to 2.7 million for FY 95. 

During FY 96 the Army tested all specimens for two drugs 
(marijuana and cocaine) and additional drugs on a pulse basis or 
by request, the Navy tested all specimens for six drugs 
(marijuana, cocaine, amphetamines, barbiturates, phencyclidine, 
opiates), and the Air Force tested all specimens for marijuana, 
60 percent for cocaine, and additional drugs on a pulse basis or 
'y request. 

3 
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The Services reForted 92,653 total laboratory positives for 
FY 86-as-cbmpated-to 78,624 for FY- 85. This- increase appears due­
to the increased amount of testing and not to an increase in 
abuse rates. Marijuana continues to be the most widely abused 
drug followed by cocaine. Since the number of specimens tested 
for each drug is not reported by all the Services, we cannot 
state positives as a percentage of specimens tested. 

FIELD TESTING 

Table 3 gives data related to the Services' field testing 
programs. The Army has increased its field testing program, the 
Navy and Marine Corps have maintained their programs at a 
constant level, while the Air Force does not conduct a field 
testing program. 

The Army increased its field testing during FY 86 to permit 
local installations the opportunity to test more personnel since 
the capacity of its drug testing laboratories was unable to meet 
the requirements of the line commanders. The Army was unable to 
provide specific data regarding the number of random or PC/CD/M 
specimens or the number positive for each drug. The Navy has not 
stressed field testing since its laboratories are capable of 
handling the workload. The Marine Corps field tests 23 percent 
of the total specimens collected. All specimens field tested 
positive must be sent to a drug testing laboratory for both 
initial and confirmatory testing before any permanent action may 
be taken against a service member. The Services are responsible 
for ensuring that the field testing programs are conducted 
according to the requirements in 000 Directive 1010.1. 

TREATMENT PROGRAMS 

The treatment data provided by the Services indicate that 
most individuals identified for drug abuse are in the EI-E5 pay 
grade. This finding agrees with the figures in the 1985 
worldwide survey. The level of funding for both nonresidential 
and residential rehabilitation programs remained relatively 
stable from FY85, though there are still major differences among 

'Services observable from the figures. 

The Navy (including the Marine Corps) increased its 
alcohol-related referrals to Awareness Education by 38 percent 
(39,900 to 54,900) while reducing its referrals to nonresidential 
(4,200 to 3,800) and residential (6,600 to 5,400) 
rehabilitation. As Table 4 reflects, the Navy refers 
significantly fewer personnel to nonresidential programs than the 
Army or the Air Force, but it refers many more people to 
residential programs. The Army referred only 709 people, or less 
than 0.1% of its active duty force, to residential treatment; the 

<I 
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Air Force referred 900, or 0.15%; the Navy's 4,197 residential 
referrals represent 0.7%; and-the Marine Corps shows referral~·of 
1,549, 0.8% of its active duty force. 

Dollar figures for personnel costs are reported differently 
by the Services and are aggregated where they are separately 
stated. It is not possible to derive such figures as costs per 
person for treatment, costs for nonresidential versus residential 
treatment either within or across Services, and similar 
measures. Some of these comparisons might provide valuable 
yardsticks for assessing relative effectiveness and for 
determining future policy, allocation of resources, and program 
strategies. 

CONCLUSIONS 

The data provided by the Services for FY 86 appear to be more 
accurate than those for FY 85 and the budget and man-year figures 
seem to be consistent for each of the Services' programs. 
However, there remains a concern that the Services are unable to 
collect data that can be used in evaluating many aspects of their 
programs or in making economically and programmatically effective 
decisions regarding drug and alcohol abuse prevention. 

It would be helpful to Health Affairs, and it should be of 
value to the Services, to invest the necessary time and expertise 
in establishing a reporting capability with more detail and 
flexibility. This would allow for meaningful analysis both 
within and among Services, and would provide a beginning basis 
for more accurate and useful trend data. This will be one of the 
items to be examined by the 000 Ad Hoc Committee formed at Dr. 
Mayer's direction. 

5 
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TABLE 1. EY 1986 FINANCIAL DATA (Dollars in Thousands) 

DRUG ABUSE PROGRAMS 

ARMY NAVY AIR FORCE MARINE CORPS 
Biochem. Test. 18,588 30,540 2,492 775 

Education 164 4,510 60 775 

Treatment 108 
Nonresidential 1,598 2,389 1,075 
Res iden tial 36 3,062 39 

Training 56 1,622 160 91 

Evaluation 218 2,138 20 

Personnel 
Military 5,351 * 6,723 4,941 
Civilian 9,919 * 1,623 0 

Total 35,930 44,261 12,192 6,690 

ALCOHOI, ABUSE PROGRAMS 

Biochem. Test. 3,599 557 0 0 

~ Education 383 6,181 90 158 

Treatment 77 
Nonresidential 3,728 2,013 3,263 
Residential 290 13,470 3,529 

Training 132 1,968 239 125 

Evaluation 510 1,160 30 0 

Personnel 
Military 12,500 * 34,059 1,491 
Civilian 23,144 * 1,323 485 

Total 44,286 25,349 42,533 2,336 

MAN-YEARS 

Biochem. Test. 182 NR 99 129 

Treatment 72 
Nonresidential 1,454 NR 661 
Residential 162 NR 73 

All Other 93 NR 38 53 
Categories 

Total 1,891 1,613 871 254 

Note: * Personnel costs included in each category; NR Not Reported 
6 
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TABLE 2. FY 1986 LABORATORY URINALYSIS TESTING DATA 

SPECIMENS TESTED BY DRUG TESTING LABORATORIES (Number) 

Service Random, PC/CD/M 

Army 
Navy 1,354,529 117,783 
Air Force 176,030 31,834 
Marine Corps 

Laboratory positives (NumiJer) 

RANDOM TESTING 

Ser.vice THC Cocaine 

Army 16b47 1600 
Navy 21891 6634 
Air Force 2159 115 
Marine Corps 2293 595 

PC/CD/M TESTING 

Service THC Cocaine 

Army 17605 2040 
Navy 7806 2366 
Air Force 2482 248 
Marine Corps 880 343 

Note: PC is Probable Cause 
CD is Command-Directed 
M is Medical 

°Eiates !\.!l)E 

50 
2322 1327 

59 7 
197 122 

°Eiates ~ 

47 
828 473 

28 11 
11 40 

7 

Total 

765,505 
1,472,312 

207,864 
466,242 

Barb PCP 

664 332 

33 24 

Barb PCP 

236 119 
4 1 
5 9 
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TABLE 3. FY 1986 FIELD TESTING URINALYSIS DATA 

Specimens Field Tested (Number) 

Service ~ PC/CD/M 

Army 
Navy 87,431 60,7::;7 
Air Force 
Marine Corps 126,048 10,990 

Field Test positives (Number) 

Random 

Service THC Cocaine 

Army 
Navy 784 237 
Air Force 
MC 1106 188 

PC/CD/~l 

Service THC Cocaine 

Army 
Navy 1922 584 
Air Force 
riC 212 74 

Note: PC is Probable Cause 
CD is Command-Directed 
M is Medical 

°Eiates ~ 

83 48 

26 454 

°Eiates ~ 

204 117 

6 140 

8 

Total 

400,000 
148,188 

0 
137,038 

Barb 

24 

4 

Barb 

58 

PCP 

12 

2 

PCP 

29 

2 



270 

TA8LE 4. FY.,1986 ALCOHOL AND DRUG TREAT~IENT DATA. 

NEW CASES IDENTIFIED 

Service 

Army 
Navy 
Air Force 
Marine Corps 

Army 
Navy 
Air Force 
Marine Corps 

RETURNED TO DUTY 

Army 
Navy 
A:i.r Force 
Marine Corps 

Army 
Navy 
Air Force 
Marine Corps 

ALCOHOL TREATMEN1' PROGRAMS 

Awareness 
Education 

Treatment 
Nonresidential Residential 

7,202 
50,533 

7,662 
4,409 

18,285 
2,196 
8,272 
1,627 

DRUG TREATMENT PROGRAMS 

4,660 
6,091 

613 
1,706 

7,498 
814 

3,951 
519 

ALCOHOL TREATNENT PROGRAMS 

5,188 
50,533 

7,662 
4,628 

10,051 
1,607 
6,388 
1,376 

DRUG TREATMENT PROGRAMS 

3,008 
6,091 

613 
1,706 

9 

3,720 
641 
750 
365 

658 
4.,010 

900 
1,386 

51 
187 

o 
163 

472 
3,815 

900 
1,087 

12 
165 

o 
107 
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TABLE 5. COMPARISON OF PROGRAMS FOR FY 85 AND FY 86 

Service FY 85 

DRUG ABUSE PROGRAMS ($ in Thousands) 
Army 20,718 
Navy/Me 49,466 
Air Force 11,277 

ALCOHOL ABUSE PROGRAMS ($ in Thousands) 
Army 21,427 
Navy/MC 28,433 
Air Force 40,409 

MAN-YEARS 
Army 1,812 
Navy/MC 1,985 
Air Force 840 

SPECIMENS TESTED BY DRUG TESTING LABORATORIES 
Army 
Navy/~!C 
Air Force 

SPECIMENS REPORTED 
Army 
Navy/MC 
Air Force 

692,149 
1,463,480 

183,984 

POSITIVE 
39,986 
29,695 

8,943 

~ 

35,930 
50,,_1 
12,192 

44,286 
27,685 
42,533 

1,891 
1,867 

871 

765,505 
1,938,554 

207,864 

37,989 
49,550 

5,114 

NONRESIDENTIAL/RESIDENTIAL ALCOHOL PROGRAMS (New Cases) 
Army 
Navy/MC 
Air Force 

19,649 
10,800 

9,166 

18,943 
9,219 
9,172 

, NONRESIDENTIAL/RESIDENTIAL DRUG PROGRAI1S (New Cases) 

Army 
Navy/MC 
Air Force 

8,315 
2,210 
5,315 

7,549 
1,683 
3,951 

~: For this table the Navy/Marine Corps figures were combined 
since the FY 85 report did not give separate figures 
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